
AGENDA 
CITY OF PEARLAND ♦ CITY COUNCIL 

July 28, 2014           6:30 p.m. 

MAYOR 
Tom Reid 

Keith Ordeneaux 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

Position No. 4 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Tony Carbone 
Position No. 1 

Gary Moore 
Position No. 3 

Jon R. Branson 
Deputy City Manager 

Darrin Coker 
City Attorney 

Clay Pearson  
City Manager 

Scott Sherman 
Position No. 2 

Greg Hill 
Position No. 5 

Trent Epperson 
Assistant City Manager 

Young Lorfing 
City Secretary 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public 
information, at all times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting 
on the bulletin board located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



 
 

RECOGNITION AND AWARDS NOTICE 
 

The Mayor and Councilmembers will be present the following:  
 

Award Presentation for 2014 “Let Freedom Sing” Finalists/Winners. 
 
Presentation will be held: 

Monday, July 28, 2014 
6:15 p.m. 

Council Chambers 
3519 Liberty Drive 

Pearland, Texas 77581 
 ****************************************************************************************************** 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
CITY OF PEARLAND 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 28, 2014,│6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS│PEARLAND CITY HALL│3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
281.652.1600 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II.  INVOCATION AND THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE UNITED STATES OF 

AMERICA FLAG AND TEXAS FLAG     
  
III. ROLL CALL: Mayor Reid, Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, Councilmembers Carbone, 

Sherman, Moore, and Hill. 
 
IV. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  In order to hear all citizen comments at a reasonable 

hour, the City Council requests that speakers respect the three-minute time limit 
for individual comments and the five-minute time limit for an individual 
speaking on behalf of a group.  This is not a question-answer session, however, 
it is an opportunity to voice your thoughts with City Council. 

 

Page 1 of 5 – 7/28/2014    
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
V.  PUBLIC HEARING: To gather public comment and testimony regarding amendments 

to the Strategic Partnership Agreements between the City and Brazoria County 
Municipal Utility Districts Nos. 21 and 22.  Mr. Darrin Coker, City Attorney. 

 
I. STAFF REVIEW  
 

 II. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 III. COUNCIL/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
 IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA:   
 

All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine and 
require little or no deliberation by the City Council.  These items will be 
enacted/approved by one motion unless a councilmember requests separate 
action on an item, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered by separate action (VI. matters removed from Consent 
Agenda).  Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts the items of legislation.     
 

A. Consideration And Possible Action – Approval Of Minutes:     
 
1. Minutes of the July 14, 2014, Special Meeting, held at 5:30 p.m. 

 
B. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 

Ordinance No. CUP 2014-03 –  An ordinance of the City Council of the City 
of Pearland, Texas, approving a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), for certain 
property, being legally described as 4.83 acres (210,206 square feet), all of 
a called 4.826 acres  being the south 129’ of Lot 79 and the north 214’ of 
Lot 78, Figland Orchard, H.T.  and B.R.R. Survey, Abstract 240, Brazoria 
County, Texas, located on the east  side of Harkey Road, between 
Josephine Street to the north and Fite Road to the  south; Pearland, TX., for 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP2014-03 to allow for a church, 
within the Neighborhood Service (NS) zoning district, at the request of 
Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard  Christian Fellowship of 
Pearland, owner; containing a savings clause, a severability clause and an 
effective date and other provisions related to the subject.   
Ms. Lata Krishnarao, Director of Community Development. 

 
C. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 

Ordinance No. 2000M-116 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the 
City of Pearland, Texas, for the purpose of changing the classification of 
certain real property, being a tract ofland containing 0.4362 acres (19,000 
square feet), situated in the H.T. & R.R.R.Survey, Abstract No. 543, 
Brazoria County, Texas, being out of the H.C. Johnson 1.0 acre tract out of 

Page 2 of 5 – 7/28/2014    
 

 



Lot 1 of a subdivision of Section 4 recorded in Volume 410, Page 536 of the 
Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria County,Texas, (located 
at the northwest corner of Walnut Street and Johnson Street, Pearland, TX), 
Zone Change 2014-08Z; a request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for 
approval of a change in zoning from Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) to 
Office and Professional (OP) on approximately 0.44 acres of land, providing 
for an amendment of the zoning district map; containing a savings clause, a 
severability clause and an effective date and other provisions related to the 
subject.  Ms. Lata Krishnarao, Director of Community Development. 

 
D. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 

Ordinance No. 788-1 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas amending the procedure for abandoning, altering, closing, 
and vacating streets, alleys, and other public rights-of-way and portions 
thereof within the City of Pearland; containing a savings clause and a 
severability clause; providing for codification and an effective date; and 
containing other provisions relating to the subject.   Mr. Darrin Coker, City 
Attorney. 

 
E. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-78 – A 

resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the 
City Manager or his designee to enter into amendments to the Strategic 
Partnership Agreements with Brazoria County Municipal Utility District Nos. 
21 and 22; providing the conditions under which the City’s sales and use tax 
may be collected; and providing for the temporary use of the City’s 
Convenience and Necessity.  Mr. Darrin Coker, City Attorney.   

 
F. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-76 – A 

resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the 
City Manager or his designee to enter into a professional services contract 
for surveying services with C. L. Davis & Company, in the amount of 
$77,062.00 associated with the north/south ditches impacted by Cowart 
Creek Drainage Project.  Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager. 

 
VI.     MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA   
 
VII.  NEW BUSINESS:     
 

1. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-83 – A 
resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, awarding a bid 
for construction services, associated with the Sports Complex at Shadow 
Creek Ranch Park, to the Crain Group, LLC., in the amount of 
$6,569,575.96 and authorizing and authorizing budget amendment.    
Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager. 

 
2.  Consideration and Possible Action – Regarding Shadow Creek Ranch 

Park – Municipal Utility District Funding for Utilities.  Mr. Trent Epperson, 
Assistant City Manager. 

 
 

Page 3 of 5 – 7/28/2014    
 

 



3. Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No. 
1501 – An ordinance authorizing the issuance of City of Pearland, Texas, 
permanent improvement and/or refunding bonds in one or more series; 
setting certain parameters for the bonds; authorizing refunding of certain 
outstanding obligations; authorizing a pricing officer to approve the amount, 
the interest rate, price, and terms thereof and certain other procedures and 
provisions relating thereto.  Ms. Claire Bogard, Director of Finance. 

 
4. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. 2014-80 – A 

resolution authorizing publication of notice of intention to issue Certificates 
of Obligation, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $5,000,000, 
for the acquisition, construction and improvement of certain public works, 
authorizing distribution of a preliminary official statement relating to such 
series of certificates and authorizing certain other matters relating thereto.  
Ms. Claire Bogard, Director of Finance. 

 
5. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-84 – A 

resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, determining the 
public necessity for certain water line/hydrant improvements in the vicinity of 
SH 35 and Alice Street.  Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager. 

 
6.     Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No. 

CUP 2014-04 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, 
Texas, approving a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), for certain property, 
being legally described as a  tract or parcel containing 1.1019 acres or 
47,999 square feet of land, out of a  called 9.993 acre tract situated in the 
H.T. & B.R.R. CO. Survey, Abstract No.  506, Brazoria County, Texas 
Conveyed to the Old Place, Inc. as recorded in the  Brazoria County 
Clerk’s File No. 97-001270, Brazoria County, Texas, the parent  tract being 
located at the northwest corner of Broadway Street and Hillhouse 
Road,Pearland, TX., for Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP2014-
04, to  allow for the construction of an Auto Wash (Self Service), with the 
General  Business (GB) zoning district; at the request of Chan Patel with 
Sparkles  Express, applicant; on behalf of The Old Place, Inc., owner; 
containing a savings  clause, a severability clause and an effective date 
and other provisions related to the subject.   Ms. Lata Krishnarao, Director 
of Community Development. 

 
7. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-85 – A 

resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, awarding the  
employee health insurance benefits for stop loss and administration 
services to Cigna and renewing employee dental insurance with Aetna.  
Ms. Bonita Hall, Director of Human Resources. 

 
8. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-82 – A 

resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, approving the 
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Community 
Development Block Grant Program year 2014/fiscal year 2015 Annual 
Action Plan.  Mr. Joel Hardy, Grants Coordinator. 

 

Page 4 of 5 – 7/28/2014    
 

 



9. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-81 – A  
resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing a 
contract for professional services associated with the McHard Road 
Extension Project, with Freese Nichols, Inc., in the amount of 
$4,415,202.20.  Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager. 

 
VIII.  OTHER BUSINESS: None. 

 
IX. MAYOR/COUNCIL ISSUES 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT  
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call Young 
Lorfing at 281.652.1840 prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 
 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 – 7/28/2014    
 

 



 Public 
Hearing 
Agenda 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Please see attached June 12th memo regarding this issue and a map of the two 
affected (2) municipal utility districts in the southwestern portions of its ETJ (MUD No. 
21 and Mud No.22) that make up what is today known as the Lakes of Savannah 
neighborhood. At the time of their creation the Districts entered into Strategic Partnership 
Agreements (“SPA”) with the City outlining the terms with respect to the timing of certain 
infrastructure improvements and when annexation could occur. 

Prior to the creation of the Districts, City obtained a Certificate of Convenience 
and Necessity (“CCN”) over the portion of the ETJ in which the Districts are located, and 
MUD No.21 (area south of CR 58) obtained an overlapping CCN to provide water/sewer 
services to the area. Over the past months construction in MUD No.22 (area north of CR 
58) has commenced, and it will soon be time to provided water/sewer services to the
residences in this area. Representatives for MUD No. 22 recently informed the City that 
their engineers made an erroneous assumption that the original CCN applied to both 
MUDs; however, that is not the case, and MUD No. 22 has since initiated a CCN 
application for its service area. As with MUD 21, the City does not object to the CCN, but 

AGENDA OF: 7-28-14 ITEM NO.:

DATE SUBMITTED: 7-7-14 DEPARTMENT OF ORIGIN: Planning 

PREPARED BY: Darrin Coker PRESENTOR: Darrin Coker 

REVIEWED BY: NA REVIEW DATE: NA 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing re: Strategic Partnership Agreement Amendments for 
BCMUD’s 21 and 22 

EXHIBITS: June 12th memo to City Council; Map; Proposed Amendments 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: AMOUNT BUDGETED: 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.:  
ACCOUNT NO.:  

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance   Legal   Ordinance   Resolution 

Public Hearing



it will take a few months for the TCEQ to process the MUDs CCN application. 
Unfortunately for MUD No. 22, they cannot wait since they are already under construction 
and need to provide service sooner than later.  

While the MUD is waiting for its CCN application to be processed, it has been 
proposed that the parties amend the SPA allowing the MUD to construct and operate its 
facilities as a temporary agent of the City. The facilities would be constructed, maintained 
and operated by the MUD using the City’s CCN. The agency relationship would terminate 
once the MUD’s CCN is issued. The MUD will also indemnify and hold harmless the City 
from any and all liability associated with its use of the City’s CCN. Although MUD 21 has 
limited commercial capacity (3 parcels along SH 6), the proposed amendment will also 
allow the City to collect sales taxes from the commercial tracts when they develop. 
The amendment will address the immediate concern of getting water/sewer services to 
properties in the MUD, but the dialogue has also presented opportunities for the long-term 
planning of infrastructure connections and capabilities for this portion of the City’s ETJ. 

This is the second required public hearing for this issue, and a resolution 
approving the amendments is scheduled for the same meeting.  























Consent 
Agenda 
Item A 

A. Consideration And Possible Action – Approval Of Minutes: 

1. Minutes of the July 14, 2014, Special Meeting, held at 5:30 p.m.



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON MONDAY, JULY 14, 2014, AT 5:30 P.M., 
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, 
PEARLAND, TEXAS. 

Mayor Reid called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. with the following present: 

Mayor Tom Reid 
Mayor Pro-Tem Keith Ordeneaux 
Councilmember Tony Carbone 
Councilmember Scott Sherman 
Councilmember Gary Moore 
Councilmember Greg Hill 
City Manager Clay Pearson 
City Attorney Darrin Coker 
City Secretary Young Lorfing  

Others in attendance: Jon Branson Assistant City Manager; J.C. Doyle Police 
Chief; Sparkle Anderson Communications Manager. 

CALL TO ORDER: 

ROLL CALL: Mayor Reid, Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, Councilmembers 
Carbone, Sherman, Moore, and Hill. 

Council adjourned into Executive Session under Texas Government Code at 
5:30 p.m. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 

1. SECTION 551.074 – PERSONNEL MATTERS –
Regarding the appointment of an associate Judge in
Municipal Court. Mr. Clay Pearson, City Manager.

NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED: 

Council returned from Executive Session at 6:00 p.m. 

Council Action – Regarding the appointment of an associate Judge in Municipal 
Court. City Council. 

Councilmember Sherman made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem 
Ordeneaux to appoint Catherine Samaan as the Associate Judge in Municipal 
Court. 

Page 1 of 2 – 7/14/2014 



Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 

Voting “No” None. 

Motion Passed 5 to 0. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting was adjourned at 6:05 p.m. 

Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected this the ______ day of 
____________, A.D. 2014. 

__________________________ 
Tom Reid 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Young Lorfing, TRMC 
City Secretary 

Page 2 of 2 – 7/14/2014 



Consent
Agenda
Item B

B. Consideration and Possible Action –Second and Final Reading of 
Ordinance No. CUP 2014-03 –  An ordinance of the City Council of the 
City of Pearland, Texas, approving a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), for 
certain property, being legally described as 4.83 acres (210,206 square 
feet), all of a called 4.826 acres  being the south 129’ of Lot 79 and the 
north 214’ of Lot 78, Figland Orchard, H.T.  and B.R.R. Survey, Abstract 
240, Brazoria County, Texas, located on the east  side of Harkey 
Road, between Josephine Street to the north and Fite Road to the  
south; Pearland, TX., for Conditional Use Permit Application No. 
CUP2014-03 to allow for a church, within the Neighborhood Service 
(NS) zoning district, at the request of Verret Group, applicant; on 
behalf of Vineyard  Christian Fellowship of Pearland, owner; containing 
a savings clause, a severability clause and an effective date and other 
provisions related to the subject.  Ms. Lata Krishnarao, Director of 
Community Development.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF: July 28, 2014       

DATE SUBMITTED: June 20, 2014
       

PREPARED BY: Johnna Matthews 

REVIEWED BY:
  

Lata Krishnarao     

ITEM NO.: Ordinance No. CUP2014-03    

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning   

PRESENTOR:  Lata Krishnarao   REVIEW 

DATE:  June 23, 2014 

SUBJECT: A request of Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard Christian 
Fellowship of Pearland, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) to allow for a church on approximately 4.83 acres of 
land.  

   General Location: East side of Harkey Road, between Josephine 
Street to the north and Fite Road to the south, Pearland, TX 

ATTACHMENTS:      Ordinance No. CUP2014-03 and Exhibits (Exhibit A –          
 Legal Description; Exhibit B – Location Map; Exhibit C - 
 Site Plan; Exhibit D- Legal Ad; Exhibit E -  Planning and  
 Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter); 6.16.14 Joint 
 Public Hearing Items: Memo and Staff Report,  Site Plan, 
 Aerial Rendering, Exterior Elevations, Aerial Map, Zoning 
 Map, FLUP Map, Notification Map, Notification List, Returned 
 Notice, Applicant Packet, Planning and Zoning Commission 
 Recommendation Letter 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 

To be completed by Department: 
    Finance     Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct an 
approximately 15,500 square foot church on 4.83 acres of land.  The proposed building 
will include a 361-seat auditorium, lobby, classrooms and offices.  Per the site plan, a 
garden is proposed, a gravel trail partially located within the detention pond, a play area 
and one hundred (100) parking spaces.  The primary entrance to the building will be 
located on the east side of the building with an additional entry near the south side of 
the building.  The applicant proposes to preserve as many trees as possible as 
identified by the “ghosted in” trees on the site plan.    New trees will be planted along 
Harkey Road to satisfy the street tree requirement and along the north and south 
property lines as required to meet residential adjacency requirements.  At least fifteen 
percent (15%) of the gross site area is required to be maintained in landscaped area. 
As illustrated by the site plan, the applicant proposes to exceed the requirement.  
Access will be provided from Harkey Road and 6 foot sidewalks will be constructed. 

A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Church was approved for the site on April 7, 
2008; however has since expired, as the permit was not acted upon.  The CUP included 
a condition that no access shall be granted from Bardett Street to the site. 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notices, comment forms, and a vicinity map were 
mailed to the applicant as well as property owners within 200 feet of the subject 
property under consideration for the conditional use permit.  Staff received one (1) 
notice in opposition to the request. 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION:  At the regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on June 16, 2014, Planning and Zoning 
Commissioner Elizabeth McLane made a motion to approve the CUP with staff’s 
recommended condition that no access to the site shall be granted to the site via Bardet 
Street.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Linda Cowles.  The motion passed 
7/0. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Consider CUP2014-03 to construct an 
approximately 15,500 square foot church on 4.83 acres of land, subject to the following 
condition: 

1. As approved with the expired CUP that was approved for a church in 2008, no
access to the site shall be granted via Bardet Street.



Ordinance No. CUP 2014-03 

An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, approving a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP), for certain property, being legally described as
4.83 acres (210,206 square feet), all of a called 4.826 acres  being the south 
129’ of Lot 79 and the north 214’ of Lot 78, Figland Orchard, H.T.  and B.R.R. 
Survey, Abstract 240, Brazoria County, Texas, located on the east  side of 
Harkey Road, between Josephine Street to the north and Fite Road to the  south; 
Pearland, TX., for Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP2014-03 to allow 
for a church, within the Neighborhood Service (NS) zoning district, at the request 
of Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard  Christian Fellowship of 
Pearland, owner; containing a savings clause, a severability clause and an 
effective date and other provisions related to the subject.  

WHEREAS, Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard Christian Fellowship 

of Pearland, owner; is seeking approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a 

church on approximately 4.83 acres of land; said property being legally described in the 

original application for amendment attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as Exhibit “A” and more graphically depicted in the location map identified as 

Exhibit “B” and the site plan identified as Exhibit “C”; and 

WHEREAS, on the 16th day of June, 2014, a Joint Public Hearing was held 

before the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the City of 

Pearland, Texas, notice being given by publication in the official newspaper of the City, 

the affidavit of publication being attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as Exhibit "D", said call and notice being in strict conformity with provisions of 

Section 1.2.2.2 of Ordinance No.  2000T; and 

WHEREAS, on the 17th day of June, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

of the City submitted its report and recommendation to the City Council regarding the 

conditional use permit application of Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard 

Christian Fellowship of Pearland, owner; to allow for a church on 4.83 acres of land, 

said recommendation attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as 



Exhibit “E”; and 

WHEREAS, upon receipt of the report from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, City Council considered this application and the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission at regular meetings on the 14th day of July 2014 and 

the 28th day of July 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council having fully heard the testimony and argument of all 

interested parties, and having been fully advised in the premises, finds that in the case 

of the application of Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard Christian Fellowship 

of Pearland, owner; to allow for a church on 4.83 acres of land, presented which, in the 

judgment of the City Council, would justify the approval of said application; now, 

therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section I.  The following described property located within the corporate City 

 Limits of the City of Pearland, Texas, and presently located within the Neighborhood 

Service (NS) zoning district, is hereby granted a conditional use permit to allow for a 

church in said zoning district and consistent with the attached site plan; such property 

being more particularly described as: 

4.83 acres (210,206 square feet), all of a called 4.826 acres being the south 129’ 
of Lot 79 and the north 214’ of Lot 78, Figland Orchard, H.T. and B.R.R. Survey, 
Abstract 240, Brazoria County, Texas.  

GENERAL LOCATION:   East side of Harkey Road, between Josephine Street to 
the north and Fite Road to the south, Pearland, TX 

Subject to the following condition: 

1. As approved with the expired CUP that was approved for a church in 2008, no
access to the site shall be granted via Bardet Street.

Page 2 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-03 



     Section II.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that  
the recitations in the preamble hereof are true and that all necessary 
prerequisites of law have been accomplished and that no valid protest of the 
proposed change has been made.  The City Council further finds and determines 
that there has been compliance with the mandates of law in the posting and 
presentation of this matter to the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the 
City Council for consideration and decision. 

Section III.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that 

the amendment adopted herein promotes the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

public and is a proper valid exercise of the City's police powers. 

Section IV.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions thereof. 

Section V.  All rights and remedies, which have accrued in the favor of the City 

under this Ordinance and its amendments thereto, shall be and are preserved for the 

benefit of the City. 

Section VI.  This Ordinance shall become effective after its passage and 

approval on second and final reading. 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on First Reading this 14th day of July, 

2014. 

Page 3 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-03 



_________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR  

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on Second and Final Reading this 28th 

day of July, 2014.  

__________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

Page 4 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-03 



Exhibit A 
Legal Description 

4.83 acres (210,206 square feet), all of a called 4.826 acres  being the south 129’ of Lot 
79 and the north 214’ of Lot 78, Figland Orchard, H.T. and B.R.R. Survey, Abstract 240, 
Brazoria County, Texas 

Page 5 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-03 



Ex
hi

bi
t B

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
M

ap
 

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 1

0 
O

rd
. N

o.
 C

U
P

 2
01

4-
03

 



Exhibit C 
Site Plan 

Page 7 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-03 



Exhibit D 
Legal Ad 

Page 8 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-03 



Exhibit E 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter 

June 17, 2014 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 

Re: Recommendation on Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP 2014-03 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 

At their meeting on June 16, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered 
the following:   

A request of Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard Christian Fellowship 
of Pearland, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a 
church on approximately 4.83 acres of land on the following described property, 
to wit: 

Legal Description:  4.83 acres (210,206 square feet), all of a called 4.826 acres 
being the south 129’ of Lot 79 and the north 214’ of Lot 78, Figland Orchard, H.T. 
and B.R.R. Survey, Abstract 240, Brazoria County, Texas.  

General Location:  East side of Harkey Road, between Josephine Street to the 
north and Fite Road to the south, Pearland, TX 

After staff presentation and discussion, Planning and Zoning Commissioner Elizabeth 
McLane made a motion to approve the CUP with staff’s recommended condition that no 
access to the site shall be granted to the site via Bardet Street.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Linda Cowles.  The motion passed 7/0. 

Page 9 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-03 



Sincerely, 

Johnna Matthews 

City Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Page 10 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-03 



Proposal 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct an 
approximately 15,500 square foot church on 4.83 acres of land.  The proposed building will 
include a 361-seat auditorium, lobby, classrooms and offices.  Per the site plan, a garden is 
proposed, a gravel trail partially located within the detention pond, a play area and one hundred 
(100) parking spaces.  The primary entrance to the building will be located on the east side of 
the building with an additional entry near the south side of the building.  The applicant proposes 
to preserve as many trees as possible as identified by the “ghosted in” trees on the site plan. 
New trees will be planted along Harkey Road to satisfy the street tree requirement and along 
the north and south property lines as required to meet residential adjacency requirements.  At 
least fifteen percent (15%) of the gross site area is required to be maintained in landscaped 
area.  As illustrated by the site plan, the applicant proposes to exceed the requirement.  Access 
will be provided from Harkey Road and 6 foot sidewalks will be constructed. 

Background 

The property is currently undeveloped and is not platted.  Platting of the two (2) tracts will be 
required prior to development.  The property was annexed into the City of Pearland in 1997. 
The site is located within the Neighborhood Service (NS) zoning district, and which district’s 
purpose is to permit a limited area of service establishments for the benefit of adjacent and 
nearby residential development. Surrounding uses include single family to the north and west; 
the property directly to the south is developed with what appears to be an accessory structure; 
and the property directly to the east is undeveloped. 

A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Church was approved for the site on April 7, 2008; 
however has since expired, as the permit was not acted upon.  The CUP included a condition 
that no access shall be granted from Bardett Street to the site. 

Public notices, comment forms, and a vicinity map were mailed to the applicant as well as 
property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration for the CUP.  

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date: June 16, 2014 

Re:  Conditional Use Permit Application Number 2014-03 

A request of Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard 
Christian  Fellowship of Pearland, owner; for approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit  (CUP) to allow for a church on 
approximately 4.83 acres of land  generally  located on the 
east side of Harkey Road, between Josephine Street to 
the north and Fite Road to the south; Pearland, TX. 



Additionally, a legal notice of public hearing was published in the local newspaper and 
notification signs were placed on the property by the applicant.  
Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the CUP 2014-03 to allow for the construction of a church on the 
approximately 4.83 acres of land for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed church should not negatively impact surrounding properties or 
developments.  However increased traffic may be an issue.  A Traffic Impact Analysis is 
required as part of the platting process in order to determine if any improvements would 
be required to mitigate any adverse impacts as it relates to traffic.

2. The subject property is adjacent to single family to the north and south.  The building 
setback requirements in addition to the residential adjacency requirements will ensure 
minimal impacts to the existing residential developments.  Pursuant to Section 4.2.4.1, 
because the applicant proposes a vegetative screen, a 30-foot buffer area is required 
dense enough to be completely opaque year round, which is at least four feet (4’) tall at 
the time of planting and at least  eight feet (8’) tall within twelve (12) months.  The 
applicant proposes to use new and existing trees.

3. As illustrated by the site plan, the applicant proposes to exceed the required 15% 
landscaped area.

Conditions 

1. As approved with the expired CUP that was approved for a church in 2008, no access
to the site shall be granted via Bardet Street.

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report
2. Site Plan (Revised)
3. Aerial Map
4. Zoning Map
5. Future Land Use Map
6. Notification Map
7. Notification List
8. Applicant Packet



Summary of Analysis 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct an 
approximately 15,500 square foot church on 4.83 acres of land.  The proposed building will 
include a 361-seat auditorium, lobby, classrooms and offices.  Per the site plan, a garden is 
proposed, a gravel trail partially located within the detention pond, a play area and one hundred 
(100) parking spaces.  The primary entrance to the building will be located on the east side of 
the building with an additional entry near the south side of the building.  The applicant proposes 
to preserve as many trees as possible as identified by the “ghosted in” trees on the site plan. 
New trees will be planted along Harkey Road to satisfy the street tree requirement and along 
the north and south property lines as required to meet residential adjacency requirements.  At 
least fifteen percent (15%) of the gross site area is required to be maintained in landscaped 
area.  As illustrated by the site plan, the applicant proposes to exceed the requirement.  Access 
will be provided from Harkey Road and 6 foot sidewalks will be constructed. 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses 
Surrounding uses include single family to the north and west; the property directly to the south 
is developed with what appears to be an accessory structure; and the property directly to the 
east is undeveloped. 

Zoning Land Use 
North Neighborhood Service (NS) Single Family 
South Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) Accessory Structure 
East Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) & General 

Commercial 
Undeveloped Land 

West Single Family Residential 3 (R-3) Single Family 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 
The subject property is located within the Neighborhood Service (NS) zoning district.  The 
purpose of the aforementioned zoning district is to permit a limited area of service 
establishments for the benefit of adjacent and nearby residential development.  The proposed 
use is permitted with approval of a Conditional Use Permit.  The NS zone requires a minimum 
lot area of 12,500 square feet; a minimum lot width and depth of 100 feet; a minimum front yard 
setback of 25 feet and a minimum side yard of 10 feet; 15 feet if the side yard abuts a residential 
zoning district.  The aforementioned site abuts residential or residentially zoned property to the 
south and north.  The minimum rear yard is 10 feet; 15 feet if the rear yard abuts a residential 
zoning district.  The subject property does not directly abut a residential use or zoning district 
the east.  The proposed nonresidential use of a Church will be subject to the residential 
adjacency regulations which requires a 25 foot wide landscaped buffer which shall remain open 

Staff Report 



and unobstructed (i.e., no parking, driveways or other use of the buffer area.)  The 25-foot buffer 
increases to a 30-foot buffer if screening is achieved through vegetation as opposed to fencing. 
The applicant proposes a 30-foot vegetative screen using existing and new trees. 

The below table illustrates the above regulations and how the site will comply: 

NS Requirements Subject Property 
Minimum Lot Area 12,500 square 

feet 
210,206 square feet 

Minimum Lot Width 100 feet 343 feet 
Minimum Lot Depth 100 feet 100 feet 
Minimum Front Yard 25 feet 52  feet, 4 inches 
Minimum Side Yard 15 feet 30 feet N and >30 feet S 
Minimum Rear Yard 10 feet 58 feet 
Maximum Height 35 feet 26 feet 
Minimum Landscaped Area 15% >15% 
Residential Adjacency Buffer 
using Vegetation 

30 feet 30 feet 

All other requirements will be met including façade requirements, dumpster screening, platting, 
etc. 

Site History 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Pearland in 1997.  When a property is 
annexed into the City, the default zoning is Suburban Development (SD) district.  As a result of 
the adoption of the Unified Development Code in 2006, the site was rezoned to NS.  The 
property is undeveloped and is not platted.  A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Church was 
approved for the site on April 7, 2008; however has since expired, as the permit was not acted 
upon.  The CUP included a condition that no access shall be granted from Bardett Street to the 
site. 

Platting Status 
The site is not platted.  Platting will be required prior to development and the release of any 
permits.  Platting will trigger right-of-way dedication, the installation of 6-foot sidewalks along 
the frontage of the property, various easements such as water and sewer easements, fire 
hydrants, detention facilities and a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA). 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 
The site is located within the Business Commercial future land use designation, and was added 
to the Comprehensive Plan (The Plan) as a result of the 2004 update.  The Plan recommends 
non-residential-retail business within this designation and zoning districts General Business 
(GB) and General Commercial (GC).  Although the existing zoning of the site (NS) and the 
proposed use (church) do not necessarily conform to the recommendations of The Plan, 
anticipated that the City would encounter development proposals that do not reflect the purpose 



and intent of the 2004 update.  In these situations, The Plan recommends that these 
developments should be evaluated on their own merit, on a case-by-case basis.  A CUP allows 
the proposed development to be evaluated on its own merit, with input from the public, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, and ultimately the City Council.  In these instances, 
developments could be an improvement over what is recommended due to changing market, 
development and/or economic trends that have occurred after the update. Finally, The Plan 
recommends that these proposals should be viewed based on the following questions: 

1. Will the proposed development enhance the City economically?
2. Will the proposed development enhance the City aesthetically?
3. Is the proposed development consistent with the City’s vision, goals and/or objectives?
4. Is the proposed development a better use of land/property, both for the owner/developer

and the City, than that recommended by The Plan?
5. Will the proposed development impact adjacent residential areas in a positive or negative

manner?
6. Will the proposed development have adequate access-have considerations been made

for roadway capacity, ingress and egress, traffic impact?
7. Are uses adjacent to the proposed development similar in nature in terms of appearance,

hours of operation and other general aspects of compatibility?
8. Does the proposed development present a significant benefit to the public health, safety

and welfare of the community?

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 
The subject property has frontage on Harkey Road; a secondary thoroughfare, which requires 
100 feet of right-of-way.  Harkey Road is not in conformance with the thoroughfare plan, as the 
width of the roadway in this location is 90 feet.  Additional right-of-way will be dedicated at the 
time of platting. 

Availability of Utilities 
The subject property has access to public water and public sewer.  The applicant is responsible 
for extending lines onto the subject property, if necessary.  
Impact on Existing and Future Development 
The subject property is surrounded by single family to the west, which is separated by Harkey 
Road and to the north.  The property to the south is zoned for single family dwellings; however 
appears to be developed with an accessory structure.  The property directly to the east is 
undeveloped and further east are commercial uses.  Residential adjacency standards apply to 
the north and south of the subject property, which help to mitigate any negative impacts on the 
existing and future developments single family developments.  The applicant proposes a 30 foot 
vegetative screen along the northern and southern property lines, using existing and new trees. 
Additionally, a traffic impact analysis is required prior to development.  This process will 
determine if improvements may be required to mitigate any traffic issues.   
Additional Comments 
A Pre-Development Meeting was held with the applicant in April, 2014.  Additionally, the request 
has been reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) and there were no additional 
comments from DRC at the time of this report. 



Public Notification 
Public notices, comment forms, and a vicinity map were mailed to the applicant as well as 
property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration for the CUP.  
Additionally a legal notice of public hearing was published in the local newspaper and 
notification signs were placed on the property by the applicant.  

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 
Staff has not received any comments either in opposition or in support of the CUP at the time 
of this report. 

Staff recommends approval of the CUP 2014-03 to allow for the construction of a church on 
the approximately 4.83 acres of land for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed church should not negatively impact surrounding properties or
developments.  However increased traffic may be an issue.  A Traffic Impact Analysis
is required as part of the platting process in order to determine if any improvements
would be required to mitigate any adverse impacts as it relates to traffic.

2. The subject property is adjacent to single family to the north and south.  The building
setback requirements in addition to the residential adjacency requirements will ensure
minimal impacts to the existing residential developments.  Pursuant to Section 4.2.4.1,
because the applicant proposes a vegetative screen, a 30-foot buffer area is required
dense enough to be completely opaque year round, which is at least four feet (4’) tall at
the time of planting and at least  eight feet (8’) tall within twelve (12) months.  The
applicant proposes to use new and existing trees.

3. As illustrated by the site plan, the applicant proposes to exceed the required 15%
landscaped area.

Conditions 

1. As approved with the expired CUP that was approved for a church in 2008 for the subject
property, no access to the site shall be granted via Bardet Street.



8

GRAVEL TRAIL

GARDEN

11

DETENTION POND
E

Q
.

30'-0" LANDSCAPE /
RESIDENTIAL ADJ.
BUFFER (NO FENCE)

25 '-0"  FRONT YARD

6'-0" WIDE SIDEWALK

CENTERLINE OF ROAD

15'-0" REAR
YARD

1
9
9
' -

 3
"

343.00'  N 02°36'53" W

6
1
2
.8

5
'  

S
8
7
°2

3
'4

3
" 

W

6
1
2
.8

5
'  

N
8
7
°2

3
'4

3
" 

E
343.00'  S 02°36'53" E

E
Q

.

1
0
0
' -

 0
" 

(R
.O

.W
.)

NEW CONTINUOUS
HEDGE

11
8

5

11 103

6

11

11

5

(E
X

IS
T

.  
R

.O
.W

.)

9
0
' -

 0
"

30'-0" LANDSCAPE /
RESIDENTIAL ADJ.
BUFFER (NO FENCE)

6/9/2014

8:51:33 PM

North

 1" = 80'-0"
1

SITE PLAN - CUP

PARKING (CHURCH)
A. NON-FIXED SEATING 

- 1 SPACE PER 100SF OF THE MAIN
AUDITORIUM FLOOR AREA.

- REQD.: 2,908SF / 100SF = 30 SPACES

B. FIXED SEATING
-  1 SPACE FOR EVERY 4 SEATS
-   144 SEATS / 4 =  36 SPACES

C. TOTAL:
- REQUIRED:  66 SPACES

- PROVIDED:  100 SPACES

AREA CALCULATIONS:

NS REQUIREMENTS
SUBJECT

PROPERTY

- MIN. LOT AREA 12,500 SF 210,206 SF
- MIN. LOT WIDTH 100'-0" 343'-0"
- MIN. LOT DEPTH 100'-0" 612.85'
- MIN. FRONT YARD 25'-0" 52'-4"
- MIN. SIDE YARD 15'-0" 30'-0"
- MIN. REAR YARD 15'-0" 58'-10"
- MAX. HEIGHT 35'-0" 26'-0"
- MIN. LANDSCAPE AREA 15% >15%
- RESIDENTIAL 30'-0" 30'-0"
 ADJACENCY BUFFER

NOTE: ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE UDC
WILL BE MET, INCLUDING RESIDENTIAL
ADJACENCY REQUIREMENTS.



5/30/2014

3:44:15 PM

1
SITE AERIAL - CUP



EIFS TRIM

8X8X16 SPLIT-FACE CMU

CEMENT STUCCO

STANDING MTL. ROOF

CEMENT STUCCO
ROUGH-SAWN

CEDAR TRELLIS

EIFS TRIM

8X8X16 SPLIT-FACE CMU

CEMENT STUCCO

STANDING MTL. ROOF

CEMENT STUCCOROUGH-SAWN

CEDAR TRELLIS

STANDING

MTL. ROOF

8X8X16 SPLIT-FACE CMU

CEMENT STUCCO

PLANT LATTICE

EIFS TRIM
8X8X16 SPLIT-FACE CMU

CEMENT STUCCO

STANDING MTL. ROOF

CEMENT STUCCO

STANDING

MTL. ROOF

EIFS TRIM8X8X16 SPLIT-FACE CMU

STANDING

MTL. ROOF

CEMENT STUCCO
ROUGH-SAWN

CEDAR TRELLIS

5/30/2014

3:44:05 PM

 1/32" = 1'-0"
4

NORTH ELEVATION - CUP

 1/32" = 1'-0"
3

OVERALL EAST ELEVATION - CUP

 1/32" = 1'-0"
2

OVERALL WEST ELEVATION - CUP

 1/32" = 1'-0"
5

SOUTH ELEVATION - CUP



Aerial Map
CUP 2014-03
2905 Harkey Road

HARKEY RD

BARDET ST

2821

15003

15010

15017

2920

15030

2933

15003

2945

15005

15002A

15017

2743

2741

2737

2849

2731

2727

2725

15005

2735

2733

6102

2721

5909

¯0 60 12030 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE



Zoning Map
CUP 2014-03
2905 Harkey Road

NS

R-2

R-3

GC

HARKEY RD

BARDET ST

2821

15003

15010

15017

2920

15030

2933

15003

2945

15005

15002A

15017

2743

2741

2737

2849

2731

2727

2725

15005

2735

2733

6102

2721

5909

¯0 60 12030 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE



FLUP Map
CUP 2014-03
2905 Harkey Road

Business Commercial

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

Public / Semi-Public

HARKEY RD

BARDET ST

2821

15003

15010

15017

2920

15030 2933

15003

2945

15005

15002A

15017

2743

2741

2737

2849

2731

2727

2725

15005

2735

2733

6102

2721

5909

¯0 60 12030 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE



Abutterl Map
CUP 2014-03
2905 Harkey Road

FITE RD

HARKEY RD

WAGON TRAIL RD

JOSEPHINE ST

WEST OAKS CIR E

RAINTREE DR

BARDET ST

ASPEN LN

MAPLE LN

WEST OAKS CIR S

WEST OAKS CIR N

RED OAK LN

CANTU RD

WHITE OAK LN

15030

2821

15010

3005

15003

2853

15002A

5720

15017

2920
2913

2929

5901

3030

2749

3009-1

3041

2818

2749

2818

5917

3029

2933

6101

6006

3014

2926

6302
2734

2850

2745

2941
2933

3037

3005

59095909

5902

6223

6223

5814

5917
3003

2718

2804

15003

2801

2717

2801

5921

2945

6101

2717

2804

6304

5802

6200

2718

6302

5933

6302

15005

6301

2733

15017

2737

6301

2727

2721

6306

2725

6122

6001

2731

2701

2741

3045

15031

6013

2841

2841

2743

2720

2802

6303

2720

30543054

2802

6025

6102

6304

2841

2841

2849

2817

14807

28202820
2740

6303

2817

6030

2725

2704

5834
6106-1

2811

2702

2811

2703

2710
2711

2704

2711

2701

2815

2810

2711
2712

2812

5902

2818

2816

2814

2710 27092709
2708

2814

2816 2813

2703

27052706

2712

28122809

2813
27382818

2807

2704

2805
2810

2726

2733

2708

2705

2720

2702

2809

2706

2808

2736

2713

2728

2724

27072705

2735

2718

27072707

2714

2710

2708

2719

2717

2715

2732

2709

2714
2716

2712

2815

2734

27302807

2703

2714

2706

2808

2713

2722

2805

2739

2713

2716

2806
28032806

2715

2737

2735

6034

3054

2733

2731

2729

2727

592960015933

2841

592059205930

5905

6211

5921

6207

6005

61056203 6109

600960176021

57375809
5806

6215

573858055813
5805

6103

2953

6110

2701

6107

6205

6104
6302 6204

6209 62016213

2702

6210 6206
62026208

6106
61086304

6022

6306

6022

14925

6014601059385934

15005

5922

14925
14925

14925
27162715

2803

3054

6034

2723

2725

2721

3005

6010

61026104

6002

5733

5922

3037

6216

5914

5814

5910

3049

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE



NOTIFICATION LIST
CUP 2014-03

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP
AMCU INC 2920 WAGON TRAIL RD PEARLAND TX 77584
BONEFAS WILLIAM J & MARYANN T 2727 W OAKS CIR E PEARLAND TX 77584
COWAN KENNETH D & SANDRA T 4128 FERNWOOD DR HOUSTON TX 77021
DEVIVEIROS MARIA & EVANGELOS GOLFIS 3811 HOUSTON LAKE DR PEARLAND TX 77581
EXPRE REALTY LTD 3219 OLD ALVIN RD PEARLAND TX 77581
GARZA CESAR CIRO PO BOX 477 PEARLAND TX 77588
GARZA MARIA R 2849 HARKEY RD PEARLAND TX 77584
GARZA MARIO ET UX 2933 HARKEY RD PEARLAND TX 77584
HERNANDEZ VICTOR A & NORMA A 6102 W OAKS CIR S PEARLAND TX 77584
JOHNSTON FAMILY HOLDINGS 5617 MEGAN ST PEARLAND TX 77581
PARRISH JACQUELINE DENISE 2733 W OAKS CIR E PEARLAND TX 77584
PEARLAND ELKS LODGE #2732 PO BOX 2251 PEARLAND TX 77588
PEARLAND ISD PO BOX 7 PEARLAND TX 77588
PEIPELMAN KYLE C & CHERRY 2735 W OAKS CIR E PEARLAND TX 77584
VALENTINE JOHN L & SHEILA J 2731 W OAKS CIR E PEARLAND TX 77584
VASQUEZ LUCIANO JR & NICOLASA 2737 W OAKS CIR E PEARLAND TX 77584
VINEYARD CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP OF PEARLAND PO BOX 1577 PEARLAND TX 77588
VU JOSEPH H & FRANCES J 2741 W OAKS CIR E PEARLAND TX 77584

































June 17, 2014 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 

Re: Recommendation on Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP 2014-03 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 

At their meeting on June 16, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the 
following:   

A request of Verret Group, applicant; on behalf of Vineyard Christian Fellowship of 
Pearland, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a 
church on approximately 4.83 acres of land on the following described property, to 
wit: 

Legal Description:  4.83 acres (210,206 square feet), all of a called 4.826 acres 
being the south 129’ of Lot 79 and the north 214’ of Lot 78, Figland Orchard, H.T. 
and B.R.R. Survey, Abstract 240, Brazoria County, Texas.  

General Location:  East side of Harkey Road, between Josephine Street to the 
north and Fite Road to the south, Pearland, TX 

After staff presentation and discussion, Planning and Zoning Commissioner Elizabeth 
McLane made a motion to approve the CUP with staff’s recommended condition that no 



access to the site shall be granted to the site via Bardet Street.  The motion was seconded 
by Commissioner Linda Cowles.  The motion passed 7/0. 

Sincerely, 

Johnna Matthews 

City Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 



Consent
Agenda
Item C

C Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 
Ordinance No. 2000M-116 – An ordinance of the City Council of the 
City of Pearland, Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning 
map of the City of Pearland, Texas, for the purpose of changing the 
classification of certain real property, being a tract ofland containing 
0.4362 acres (19,000 square feet), situated in the H.T. & 
R.R.R.Survey, Abstract No. 543, Brazoria County, Texas, being out of 
the H.C. Johnson 1.0 acre tract out of Lot 1 of a subdivision of Section 4 
recorded in Volume 410, Page 536 of the Deed Records of Brazoria 
County, Texas, Brazoria County,Texas, (located at the northwest corner 
of Walnut Street and Johnson Street, Pearland, TX), Zone Change 
2014-08Z; a request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for approval of a 
change in zoning from Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Office and 
Professional (OP) on approximately 0.44 acres of land, providing 
for an amendment of the zoning district map; containing a savings 
clause, a severability clause and an effective date and other 
provisions related to the subject.  Ms. Lata Krishnarao, Director of 
Community Development.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

ITEM NO.:    

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning 

PRESENTOR:  Lata Krishnarao 

AGENDA OF: July 28, 2014 DATE 

SUBMITTED: June 20, 2014 

PREPARED BY: Johnna Matthews 

REVIEWED BY:  Lata Krishnarao         REVIEW DATE:  June 26, 2014 

SUBJECT: A request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for approval of a 
   change in zoning from Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Office and 

Professional (OP) on approximately 0.44 acres of land 

   General Location: Northwest corner of Walnut Street and Johnson 
Street, Pearland, TX 

ATTACHMENTS:      Ordinance No. 2000M- 116 and Exhibits (Exhibit A –            
 Legal Description; Exhibit B – Location Map; Exhibit C - 
 Legal Ad; Exhibit D- Planning and Zoning Commission 
 Recommendation Letter); 6.16.14 Joint Public Hearing 
 Items: Memo and Staff Report Report, FLUP Map, 
 Notification Map, Notification List, Returned Notices, Aerial 
 Map, Applicant Packet, Planning and Zoning Commission 
 Recommendation Letter      

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 

To be completed by Department: 
    Finance     Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The subject property includes approximately 0.44 acres of land, of which the applicant is 
requesting a change in zoning from the Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) zoning district 

Ordinance No. 2000M-116



to the Office and Professional (OP) zoning district.  According to the applicant’s letter of 
intent, the purpose of the requested change in zoning is to use the property for an 
attorney’s office, CPA, insurance agent’s office or some other professional office. 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notices, comment forms, and a vicinity map were 
mailed to the applicant as well as property owners within 200 feet of the subject 
property under consideration for the conditional use permit.  Staff received eight (8) 
notices in support of the request; 2 were duplicates, which were signed by the property 
owner.  The others were not signed by the property owner on file with Brazoria County 
Appraisal District. 

CITY COUNCIL AND P&Z DISCUSSION: 
The Council discussed the surrounding properties that had been rezoned between 1999 
and 2013.  As indicated in the staff report, since the area had been undergoing 
transition, these zone changes had been approved in the past.  The current 
recommendation was based on the fact that the proposed zone change did not meet 
one of the criteria of approval – conformance to Future Land Use Plan (FLUP).   Staff 
had indicated to the Council that should the Council choose to approve the OP zone, 
the property and the surrounding areas would be modified to reflect the current zoning 
and uses in the annual FLUP update process to ensure compliance.    

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION:  At the regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on June 16, 2014, Planning and Zoning 
Commissioner Daniel Tunstall made a motion to approve the change in zoning.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Derrick Reed.  The motion passed 7/0. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Consider Zone Change Application 
2014-8Z to change the zoning of the approximately 0.44 acres from R2 to OP. 



Ordinance No. 2000M-116 

An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, amending 
Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the City of Pearland, Texas, for the 
purpose of changing the classification of certain real property, being a tract of 
land containing 0.4362 acres (19,000 square feet), situated in the H.T. & R.R.R. 
Survey, Abstract No. 543, Brazoria County, Texas, being out of the H.C. Johnson 
1.0 acre tract out of Lot 1 of a subdivision of Section 4 recorded in Volume 410, 
Page 536 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria County, 
Texas, (located at the northwest corner of Walnut Street and Johnson Street, 
Pearland, TX), Zone Change 2014-08Z; a request of Evelyn Pineda, 
owner/applicant; for approval of a change in zoning from Single Family 
Residential 2 (R-2) to Office and Professional (OP) on approximately 0.44 acres 
of land, providing for an amendment of the zoning district map; containing a 
savings clause, a severability clause and an  effective date and other 
provisions related to the subject.  

WHEREAS, Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; is seeking approval of a change in 

zoning from Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Office and Professional (OP) on 

approximately 0.44 acres of land; said property being legally described in the original 

application for amendment attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as 

Exhibit “A” and more graphically depicted in the location map identified as Exhibit “B”; 

and 

WHEREAS, on the 16th day of June, 2014, a Joint Public Hearing was held 

before the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the City of 

Pearland, Texas, notice being given by publication in the official newspaper of the City, 

the affidavit of publication being attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as Exhibit "C", said call and notice being in strict conformity with provisions of 

Section 1.2.2.2 of Ordinance No.  2000T; and 

WHEREAS, on the 17th day of June, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

of the City submitted its report and recommendation to the City Council regarding the 

zone change application of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant, for approval of a change in 



zoning from Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Office and Professional (OP) on 

approximately 0.44 acres of land, said recommendation attached hereto and made a 

part hereof for all purposes as Exhibit “D”; and  

WHEREAS, upon receipt of the report from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, City Council considered this application and the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission at regular meetings on the 14th day of July 2014 and 

the 28th day of July 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council having fully heard the testimony and argument of all 

interested parties, and having been fully advised in the premises, finds that in the case 

of the application of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for approval of a change in zoning 

from Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Office and Professional (OP) on approximately 

0.44 acres of land, presented which, in the judgment of the City Council, would justify 

the approval of said application; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section I.  The following described property located within the corporate City 

 Limits of the City of Pearland, Texas, and presently located within the Single Family 

Residential 2 (R2) zoning district, is hereby granted a change in zoning to the Office 

Professional (OP) zoning district, in accordance with all conditions and requirements of 

the current Unified Development Code and incorporated  for all purposes, such property 

being more particularly described as: 

Being a tract of land containing 0.4362 acres (19,000 square feet), situated in the 
H.T. & R.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 543, Brazoria County, Texas, being out of the 
H.C. Johnson 1.0 acre tract out of Lot 1 of a subdivision of Section 4 recorded in 
Volume 410, Page 536 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria 
County, Texas  

Page 2 of 9 
Ord. No. 2000M-116 



GENERAL LOCATION:   Northwest corner of Walnut Street and Johnson Street, 
Pearland, TX 

     Section II.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that  
the recitations in the preamble hereof are true and that all necessary 
prerequisites of law have been accomplished and that no valid protest of the 
proposed change has been made.  The City Council further finds and determines 
that there has been compliance with the mandates of law in the posting and 
presentation of this matter to the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the 
City Council for consideration and decision. 

Section III.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that 

the amendment adopted herein promotes the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

public and is a proper valid exercise of the City's police powers. 

Section IV.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions thereof. 

Section V.  All rights and remedies, which have accrued in the favor of the City 

under this Ordinance and its amendments thereto, shall be and are preserved for the 

benefit of the City. 

Section VI.  This Ordinance shall become effective after its passage and 

approval on second and final reading. 

Page 3 of 9 
Ord. No. 2000M-116 



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on First Reading this 14h day of July, 

2014. 

_________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR  

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on Second and Final Reading this 28th 

day of July, 2014.  

__________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

Page 4 of 9 
Ord. No. 2000M-116 



Exhibit A 
Legal Description 

Being a tract of land containing 0.4362 acres (19,000 square feet), situated in the 
H.T. & R.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 543, Brazoria County, Texas, being out of the 
H.C. Johnson 1.0 acre tract out of Lot 1 of a subdivision of Section 4 recorded in 
Volume 410, Page 536 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria 
County, Texas  

Page 5 of 9 
Ord. No. 2000M-116 



Ex
hi

bi
t B

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
M

ap
 

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 9

 
O

rd
. N

o.
 2

00
0M

-1
16

 



Exhibit C 
Legal Ad 

Page 7 of 9 
Ord. No. 2000M-116 



Exhibit D 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter 

June 17, 2014 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 

Re: Recommendation on Zone Change Application No. 2014-08Z 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 

At their meeting on June 16, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered 
the following:   

A request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for approval of a change in zoning 
from Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Office and Professional (OP) on 
approximately 0.44 acres of land, to wit: 

Legal Description:  Being a tract of land containing 0.4362 acres (19,000 
square feet), situated in the H.T. & R.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 543, Brazoria 
County, Texas, being out of the H.C. Johnson 1.0 acre tract out of Lot 1 of a 
subdivision of Section 4 recorded in Volume 410, Page 536 of the Deed Records 
of Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria County, Texas  

General Location:  Northwest corner of Walnut Street and Johnson Street, 
Pearland, TX 

After staff presentation and discussion, Planning and Zoning Commissioner Daniel 
Tunstall made a motion to approve the zone change request.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Derrick Reed.  The motion passed 7/0. 

Page 8 of 9 
Ord. No. 2000M-116 



Sincerely, 

Johnna Matthews 

City Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Page 9 of 9 
Ord. No. 2000M-116 



Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  June 16, 2014 

Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-8Z 

 A request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for approval 
     of a change in zoning from Single Family Residential 2  
     (R-2) to Office and Professional (OP) on approximately  
     0.44 acres of land, located at the northwest corner of  
     Walnut Street and Johnson Street, Pearland, TX. 

Proposal 

The subject property includes approximately 0.44 acres of land, of which the applicant is 
requesting a change in zoning from the Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) zoning district 
to the Office and Professional (OP) zoning district.  According to the applicant’s letter of 
intent, the purpose of the requested change in zoning is to use the property for an 
attorney’s office, CPA, insurance agent’s office or some other professional office. 

Background 

The subject property is developed with a single family home and an attached garage. 
According to Brazoria County Appraisal District records, the home was constructed in 
1958, with additional improvements added in 1981.  The property was annexed into the 
City of Pearland in 1905.  Prior to the adoption of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
in 2006, the property was zoned for single family residential and is currently located 
within the Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) zoning district. 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any returned notices from property 
owners within 200 feet of the site in favor or in opposition to the request. 

Recommendation 

Staff is unable to recommend approval of the request to change the zoning of the 
approximately 0.44 acre site from R-2 to OP for the following reasons: 

1 | P a g e



1. Pursuant to Section 2.2.1.4 (Criteria for Approval), in making a determination
regarding a requested zoning change, the Planning and Zoning Commission and
the City Council may consider the following factors:

• Whether the proposed zoning map amendment implements the policies of
the adopted Comprehensive Plan; including the land use classification of
the property on the Future Land Use Map and any incorporated sector
plan maps.

The proposed zoning district of Office and Professional (OP) does not
conform to the future land use element of the Comprehensive Plan for the
site, which is “Medium Density Residential.”  According to the
Comprehensive Plan, the aforementioned future land use designation is
designed for less traditional attached and detached developments,
including duplexes, townhomes and patio homes; or a mix of low and high
density residential uses, with an average density of 4-10 dwelling units per
acre on average lot sizes of 4,000 to 6,000 square feet.  Smaller lots may
be acceptable if common open space is provided and overall density is not
increased.  Appropriate zoning districts for the “Medium Density
Residential” future land use designation include R3 and R4 Single Family
districts.

Although the proposed zoning district of OP does not conform to the future
land use designation of the Comprehensive Plan, if the OP zoning district
is approved for the 0.44 acre site, staff will include the property in its
annual review and ultimate amendment of the Comprehensive Plan, to
ensure that the zoning districts across the city comply with the future land
use element of the Comprehensive Plan.

• Whether the uses permitted by the proposed change in zoning district
classification and the standards applicable to such uses will be
appropriate in the immediate area of the land to be reclassified.

The purpose of the proposed zoning district of OP is to permit a wide
variety of business, professional and organizational office needs of the
community together with desirable associated uses.  The OP zoning
district permits low impact office developments such uses as
medical/dental offices, veterinarian clinics, with or without outside pens.
The OP zoning district also permits uses which may be considered more
intense such as banks, with or without motor bank services, barber and
beauty shops, bed and breakfast inn, general retail stores, and child day
nurseries.

2 | P a g e



Additionally, when a change in use occurs on a piece of property there are 
certain triggers, including compliance with screening/fencing and parking 
requirements.  For example residential adjacency screening requirements 
will apply to this property if the zone change is approved.  Due to the 
existing residential zoning districts west and north of the site, either a 25 
foot buffer area with an opaque screening wall with a maximum of 8 feet in 
height or a 30-foot vegetative buffer would be required along these 
property lines.  According to the survey submitted as part of the zone 
change application, there is only 14.5 feet between the existing structure 
and the western property line. 

Parking requirements are based on the use and the square footage of the 
building.  Sufficient parking will be required based on the use as well as 
parking lot striping and screening, based on the location of the parking. 
An increase in pavement on site will trigger platting of the site, as it is 
currently not platted. 

• Whether the proposed change is in accord with any existing or proposed
plans for providing public schools, streets, water supply, sanitary sewers,
and other public services and utilities in the area.

The proposed change is in accord with existing/proposed plans for
providing public facilities.  Residential uses are not proposed at this time
for this development, and therefore should have no impact on the public
school system.  According to GIS records, there is an existing 10 inch
water line along the south side of Walnut Street and a 6 inch waterline
along Johnson Street.  Additionally, there is an existing 12 inch sewer line
along the west side of Johnson Street and an 8 and 15 inch line along
Walnut Street.  At the time of permitting and/or platting, existing
infrastructure will be assessed to determine if the extension of
infrastructure is required.  The impact of the proposed use on the current
infrastructure will also be analyzed and impact fees may be assessed.

3 | P a g e



Exhibits 

1. Staff Report

2. Aerial Map

3. Zoning Map

4. Future Land Use Map

5. Notification Map

6. Notification List

4 | P a g e



Summary of Request 

The applicant is requesting approval of a change in zoning from the Single Family 
Residential 2 (R-2) zoning district to the Office and Professional (OP) zoning district on 
approximately 0.44 acres of land located at the northwest corner of Walnut Street and 
Johnson Street. 

Site History 

The subject property is developed with a single family home and an attached garage. 
According to Brazoria County Appraisal District records, the home was constructed in 
1958, with additional improvements added in 1981.  The property was annexed into the 
City of Pearland in 1905.  Prior to the adoption of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
in 2006, the property was zoned for single family residential and is currently located 
within the Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) zoning district. 

The site is surrounded by the R2 zoning district to the north, west and east with 
properties south of the site located within the OP, R2 and Neighborhood Service (NS) 
zoning districts.  The property to the south which is currently zoned OP was rezoned 
from R2 to OP in 1999.  Similarly, the property south of the site currently zoned NS was 
rezoned from R2 to NS in 2013.  Surrounding uses include undeveloped land directly 
abutting the site to the north and west; and single family dwellings to the south and east. 

The below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

Zoning Land Use 
North Single Family Residential 2 (R2) Undeveloped 

Single Family 
South Office and Professional (OP) 

Single Family Residential 2 (R2) 
Neighborhood Service (NS) 

Single Family Home 
Attorneys Office 

Staff Report 
 

1 | P a g e



East Single Family Residential 2 Single Family Homes 
West Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) Undeveloped 

Single Family 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The existing use of the subject property as a single family home conforms to the 
existing zoning district of R2.  The purpose of the aforementioned zoning district is to 
permit low-density residential development of detached single-family dwelling units and 
appropriate desirable open space.  When a change in use occurs on a piece of property 
there are certain triggers, including compliance with screening/fencing and parking 
requirements.  For example residential adjacency screening requirements will apply to 
this property if the zone change is approved.  Due to the existing residential zoning 
districts west and north of the site, either a 25 foot buffer area with an opaque screening 
wall with a maximum of 8 feet in height or a 30-foot vegetative buffer would be required 
along these property lines.  According to the survey submitted as part of the zone 
change application, there is only 14.5 feet between the existing structure and the 
western property line. 

A comparison of the existing (R2) and proposed (OP) zoning districts follow as it relates 
to the site in terms of the general regulations: 

Existing Zoning 
District Regulations 
(R2) 

Proposed Zoning 
District 

Regulations (OP) 

Site 

Minimum Lot 
Area 

7,000 square feet 12,500 square feet 19,000 square feet 

Minimum Lot 
Width 

70 feet 100 feet 100 feet 

Minimum Lot 
Depth 

90 feet 100 feet 190 feet 

Minimum Front 
Yard 

25 feet 25 feet 39.8 feet 

Minimum Side 
Yard 

7 feet 6 inches 10 feet 14.5 feet (west), 

 > 14.5 (east)  

Minimum Rear 
Yard 

20 feet 10 feet > 20 feet 

2 | P a g e



Residential 
Adjacency 

N/A 25 feet with wall or 
30 feet with 
vegetation 

14.5 feet (western 
property line) 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The proposed change in zoning from R-2 to OP of the subject property, does not 
conform to the future land use designation of the subject property which is “Medium 
Density Residential.”  According to the Comprehensive Plan, the aforementioned future 
land use designation is designed for less traditional attached and detached 
developments, including duplexes, townhomes and patio homes; or a mix of low and 
high density residential uses with an average density of 4-10 dwelling units per acre on 
average lot sizes of 4,000 to 6,000 square feet.  Smaller lots may be acceptable if 
common open space is provided and overall density is not increased.  Appropriate 
zoning districts for the “Medium Density Residential” future land use designation include 
R3 and R4 Single Family districts.   

If the OP zoning district is approved for the 0.44 acre site, staff will include the property 
in its annual review and ultimate amendment to the Comprehensive Plan, to ensure that 
the zoning district complies with the future land use element of the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The property has frontage on Johnson Street; a local street of sufficient width which 
requires 50 feet of right-of-way, as well as Walnut Street; a major collector, which 
according to the thoroughfare plan is to be widened, and requires 80 feet of right-of-
way. 

Platting Status 

The property is not platted.  Platting of the site will be required prior to any development 
or the issuance of building permits. 

Availability of Utilities 

The subject property has access to public infrastructure, and according to the Utility 
Billing Department, is connected to public water and sewer.   According to GIS records, 
there is an existing 10 inch water line along the south side of Walnut Street and a 6 inch 
waterline along Johnson Street.  Additionally, there is an existing 12 inch sewer line 
along the west side of Johnson Street and an 8 and 15 inch line along Walnut Street.  At 
the time of permitting, existing infrastructure will be assessed to determine if the 

3 | P a g e



extension of infrastructure is required.  The impact of the proposed use on the current 
infrastructure will also be analyzed and impact fees may be assessed.  

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The subject property is surrounding by single family uses and/or zoning districts on all 
sides.  The introduction of nonresidential uses to the site could potentially negatively 
impact surrounding developments and/or future developments.  If the zoning is 
approved and the existing building is utilized, the residential adjacency screening 
requirements cannot be met as the existing structure is approximately 14.5 feet from the 
western property line.  A 25-foot buffer area, with a wall; or a 30-foot vegetative buffer is 
required.  Additionally Johnson Street is a local street and is residentially zoned, with 
the exception of Johnson Street as it intersects with Broadway Street.  As a result of 
nonresidential zoning, where exists mostly residential uses and zoning, an increase in 
traffic may arise which could adversely impact the existing neighborhood. 

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review Committee (DRC), 
and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this 
report. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the zone change.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed change in zoning request.   

Recommendation 

Staff is unable to recommend approval of the request to change the zoning of the 
approximately 0.44 acre site from R-2 to OP for the following reasons: 

1. Pursuant to Section 2.2.1.4 (Criteria for Approval), in making a determination
regarding a requested zoning change, the Planning and Zoning Commission and
the City Council may consider the following factors:

• Whether the proposed zoning map amendment implements the policies of
the adopted Comprehensive Plan; including the land use classification of

4 | P a g e



the property on the Future Land Use Map and any incorporated sector 
plan maps. 

The proposed zoning district of Office and Professional (OP) does not 
conform to the future land use element of the Comprehensive Plan for the 
site, which is “Medium Density Residential.”  According to the 
Comprehensive Plan, the aforementioned future land use designation is 
designed for less traditional attached and detached developments, 
including duplexes, townhomes and patio homes; or a mix of low and high 
density residential uses, with an average density of 4-10 dwelling units per 
acre on average lot sizes of 4,000 to 6,000 square feet.  Smaller lots may 
be acceptable if common open space is provided and overall density is not 
increased.  Appropriate zoning districts for the “Medium Density 
Residential” future land use designation include R3 and R4 Single Family 
districts.   

Although the proposed zoning district of OP does not conform to the future 
land use designation of the Comprehensive Plan, if the OP zoning district 
is approved for the 0.44 acre site, staff will include the property in its 
annual review and ultimate amendment of the Comprehensive Plan, to 
ensure that the zoning districts across the city comply with the future land 
use element of the Comprehensive Plan. 

• Whether the uses permitted by the proposed change in zoning district
classification and the standards applicable to such uses will be
appropriate in the immediate area of the land to be reclassified.

The purpose of the proposed zoning district of OP is to permit a wide
variety of business, professional and organizational office needs of the
community together with desirable associated uses.  The OP zoning
district permits low impact office developments such uses as
medical/dental offices, veterinarian clinics, with or without outside pens.
The OP zoning district also permits uses which may be considered more
intense such as banks, with or without motor bank services, barber and
beauty shops, bed and breakfast inn, general retail stores, and child day
nurseries.

Additionally, when a change in use occurs on a piece of property there are
certain triggers, including compliance with screening/fencing and parking
requirements.  For example residential adjacency screening requirements
will apply to this property if the zone change is approved.  Due to the
existing residential zoning districts west and north of the site, either a 25
foot buffer area with an opaque screening wall with a maximum of 8 feet in

5 | P a g e



height or a 30-foot vegetative buffer would be required along these 
property lines.  According to the survey submitted as part of the zone 
change application, there is only 14.5 feet between the existing structure 
and the western property line. 

Parking requirements are based on the use and the square footage of the 
building.  Sufficient parking will be required based on the use as well as 
parking lot striping and screening, based on the location of the parking. 
An increase in pavement on site will trigger platting of the site, as it is 
currently not platted. 

• Whether the proposed change is in accord with any existing or proposed
plans for providing public schools, streets, water supply, sanitary sewers,
and other public services and utilities in the area.

The proposed change is in accord with existing/proposed plans for
providing public facilities.  Residential uses are not proposed at this time
for this development, and therefore should have no impact on the public
school system.  According to GIS records, there is an existing 10 inch
water line along the south side of Walnut Street and a 6 inch waterline
along Johnson Street.  Additionally, there is an existing 12 inch sewer line
along the west side of Johnson Street and an 8 and 15 inch line along
Walnut Street.  At the time of permitting and/or platting, existing
infrastructure will be assessed to determine if the extension of
infrastructure is required.  The impact of the proposed use on the current
infrastructure will also be analyzed and impact fees may be assessed.

6 | P a g e



Medium Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services
Low Density Residential

W WALNUT ST

SILSBEE DR

BROADWAY ST

JOHNSTON ST

RAY ST

FRANCIS DR

4707

4804

4619 4615

4604 4614

4804
4702 4608 4606

4801

47014824A

4911

4706

47044708

2701

4806

4824

4618

4717

2705

2703

4618

4909

4808

4706

4614

4613

4715

2702

2514

4905
4907

4803

2702

46124614

2510

4610

4611

4616

2701

4609

2702

2508

2701

4807

2510

2701

4713

2704
2704

4811

2703

2503

2509

4714

2703

4903 4901 4809 4805

2702

4627

2704

2506

4704

2507

2706

4627

2705
4714

2704 2706

4708
4904

2506
4808

2707

4607

2703 2705

4808

4627 2430

FLUP MAP

ZONE CHANGE
2014-8Z

4701 WALNUT ST.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 167 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



W WALNUT ST

SILSBEE DR

BROADWAY ST

JOHNSTON ST

RAY ST

FRANCIS DR

4707

4804

4619 4615

4604 4614

4804
4702 4608 4606

4801

47014824A

4911

4706

47044708

2701

4806

4824

4618

4717

2705

2703

4618

4909

4808

4706

4614

4613

4715

2702

2514

4905
4907

4803

2702

46124614

2510

4610

4611

4616

2701

4609

2702

2508

2701

4807

2510

2701

4713

2704
2704

4811

2703

2503

2509

4714

2703

4903 4901 4809 4805

2702

4627

2704

2506

4704

2507

2706

4627

2705
4714

2704 2706

4708
4904

2506
4808

2707

4607

2703 2705

4808

4627 2430

NOTIFICATION MAP

ZONE CHANGE
2014-8Z

4701 WALNUT ST.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 167 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



NOTIFICATION LIST
2014-8Z

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP
4608 W WALNUT LLC 1607 N VENICE DR PEARLAND TX 77581
4704 W WALNUT LLC 1607 N VENICE DR PEARLAND TX 77581
4706 W WALNUT LLC 1607 N VENICE DR PEARLAND TX 77581
BROWN ERINN G 2402 SUNLIGHT LN PEARLAND TX 77584
EVELYN PINEDA 2704 TRANQUILITY TRL PEARLAND TX 77584
ELLIOTT J LON & SUZANNE PO BOX 1302 PEARLAND TX 77588
ETTE ENTERPRISES 2623 SUNBIRD CT PEARLAND TX 77584
GONGORA ROBERTO 1113 SHADOWBEND ST PEARLAND TX 77581
GONZALEZ MICHAEL W 4702 W WALNUT ST PEARLAND TX 77581
HOLDEN DANIEL W 2514 JOHNSTON ST PEARLAND TX 77581
KHAN KHALID RASHEED & ASFAR 3801 CANYON LAKE DR PEARLAND TX 77581
MCNEIL INTEREST PO BOX 752423 HOUSTON TX 77275
PRICE JOHN C 4619 W WALNUT ST PEARLAND TX 77581
REYES ONECIMO G III & ROSIE M REYES 2510 JOHNSTON ST PEARLAND TX 77581



















W WALNUT ST

JOHNSTON ST

BROADWAY ST

4804

4707

4619

4604
4702 4608 4606

4701

4704

4801

4708

4618

4706

4615

2514

4808

2510

4803
4807

4905
4805

4708

4811 4809

2509

49014903

4618

4706

2701

4614

4808

4616

4907

4614

AERIAL MAP

ZONE CHANGE
2014-8Z

4701 WALNUT ST.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 104 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT























June 17, 2014 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 

Re: Recommendation on Zone Change Application No. 2014-08Z 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 

At their meeting on June 16, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the 
following:   

A request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for approval of a change in zoning 
from Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) to Office and Professional (OP) on 
approximately 0.44 acres of land, to wit: 

Legal Description:  Being a tract of land containing 0.4362 acres (19,000 square 
feet), situated in the H.T. & R.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 543, Brazoria County, 
Texas, being out of the H.C. Johnson 1.0 acre tract out of Lot 1 of a subdivision of 
Section 4 recorded in Volume 410, Page 536 of the Deed Records of Brazoria 
County, Texas, Brazoria County, Texas  

General Location:  Northwest corner of Walnut Street and Johnson Street, 
Pearland, TX 

After staff presentation and discussion, Planning and Zoning Commissioner Daniel 



Tunstall made a motion to approve the zone change request.  The motion was seconded 
by Commissioner Derrick Reed.  The motion passed 7/0. 

Sincerely, 

Johnna Matthews 

City Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 



Consent
Agenda
Item D

D. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 
Ordinance No. 788-1 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas amending the procedure for abandoning, altering, 
closing, and vacating streets, alleys, and other public rights-of-way and 
portions thereof within the City of Pearland; containing a savings 
clause and a severability clause; providing for codification and an 
effective date; and containing other provisions relating to the subject.   
Mr. Darrin Coker, City Attorney.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Please see attached the June 26th City Council memo summarizing the proposed 
amendments to Ordinance No. 788. 

AGENDA OF: 7-28-14 

DATE SUBMITTED: 7-7-14 

PREPARED BY: Darrin Coker 

REVIEWED BY: NA 

ITEM NO.: Ordinance No. 788-1

DEPARTMENT OF ORIGIN: Planning 

PRESENTOR: Darrin Coker 

REVIEW DATE: NA 

SUBJECT: Right-Of-way Abandonment Ordinance Amendment 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 788-1; Previous City Council Memo 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: AMOUNT BUDGETED: 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.:  
ACCOUNT NO.:  

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance   Legal   Ordinance   Resolution 



















Consent 
Agenda 
Item E 

E. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-78 – A 
resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing 
the City Manager or his designee to enter into amendments to the 
Strategic Partnership Agreements with Brazoria County Municipal Utility 
District Nos. 21 and 22; providing the conditions under which the City’s 
sales and use tax may be collected; and providing for the temporary use 
of the City’s Convenience and Necessity.  Mr. Darrin Coker, City Attorney.  



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Please see attached June 12th memo regarding this issue and the two affected (2) 
municipal utility districts in the southwestern portions of its ETJ (MUD No. 21 and Mud 
No.22) that make up what is today known as the Lakes of Savannah neighborhood. At the 
time of their creation the Districts entered into Strategic Partnership Agreements (“SPA”) 
with the City outlining the terms with respect to the timing of certain infrastructure 
improvements and when annexation could occur.  

Prior to the creation of the Districts, City obtained a Certificate of Convenience 
and Necessity (“CCN”) over the portion of the ETJ in which the Districts are located, and 
MUD No.21 (area south of CR 58) obtained an overlapping CCN to provide water/sewer 
services to the area. Over the past months construction in MUD No.22 (area north of CR 
58) has commenced, and it will soon be time to provided water/sewer services to the
residences in this area. Representatives for MUD No. 22 recently informed the City that 
their engineers made an erroneous assumption that the original CCN applied to both 
MUDs; however, that is not the case, and MUD No. 22 has since initiated a CCN 
application for its service area. As with MUD 21, the City does not object to the CCN, but 

AGENDA OF: 7-28-14 ITEM NO.:

DATE SUBMITTED: 7-7-14 DEPARTMENT OF ORIGIN: Planning 

PREPARED BY: Darrin Coker PRESENTOR: Darrin Coker 

REVIEWED BY: NA REVIEW DATE: NA 

SUBJECT: R2014-78; Strategic Partnership Agreement Amendments for 
BCMUD’s 21 and 22 

EXHIBITS: June 12th memo to City Council; Map; Proposed Amendments 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: AMOUNT BUDGETED: 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.:  
ACCOUNT NO.:  

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance   Legal   Ordinance   Resolution 

Resolution No. R2014-78



it will take a few months for the TCEQ to process the MUDs CCN application. 
Unfortunately for MUD No. 22, they cannot wait since they are already under construction 
and need to provide service sooner than later.  

While the MUD is waiting for its CCN application to be processed, it has been 
proposed that the parties amend the SPA allowing the MUD to construct and operate its 
facilities as a temporary agent of the City. The facilities would be constructed, maintained 
and operated by the MUD using the City’s CCN. The agency relationship would terminate 
once the MUD’s CCN is issued. The MUD will also indemnify and hold harmless the City 
from any and all liability associated with its use of the City’s CCN. Although MUD 21 has 
limited commercial capacity (3 parcels along SH 6), the proposed amendment will also 
allow the City to collect sales taxes from the commercial tracts when they develop. 
The amendment will address the immediate concern of getting water/sewer services to 
properties in the MUD, but the dialogue has also presented opportunities for the long-term 
planning of infrastructure connections and capabilities for this portion of the City’s ETJ. 



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-78 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
authorizing the City Manager or his designee to enter into amendments 
to the Strategic Partnership Agreements with Brazoria County 
Municipal Utility District Nos. 21 and 22; providing the conditions under 
which the City’s sales and use tax may be collected; and providing for 
the temporary use of the City’s Convenience and Necessity. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That certain Amended Strategic Partnership Agreements with Brazoria 

county Municipal Utility District Nos. 21 & 22, copies of which are attached hereto as 

Exhibits “A” & “B” and made a part hereof for all purposes, are hereby authorized and 

approved. 

Section 2. That the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute 

and the City Secretary to attest Amended Strategic Partnership Agreements. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the _____ day of _________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

_________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 









AMENDMENT TO STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § 

This AMENDMENT TO STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT (this 
“Amendment”) is made and entered into, effective as of July 1, 2014, by and between 
the CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, a municipal corporation and general-law city of the 
State of Texas (the “City”), and BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 21, a conservation and reclamation district created pursuant to Article 
XIV, Section 59, Texas Constitution and operating pursuant to Chapters 49 and 54, 
Texas Water Code (the “District”). 

RECITALS 

1. The District and the City entered into that certain Strategic Partnership
Agreement, dated July 1, 2002 (the “Agreement”), following notice and hearings as 
provided by law, for the purposes stated therein, including providing for the 
incorporation of the District into the City.   

2. The City and the District desire that the conditions under which the City
may impose its sales and use taxes should be revised to comply with current law.  

3. The City and the District have provided notice and held two public
hearings relating to this Amendment, as required by Texas Local Government Code Sec. 
43.0751, and wish to amend the Agreement as more fully described below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual agreements, 
covenants, and conditions contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, 
the City and the District agree as follows: 

1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings
provided for them in the Agreement, unless otherwise defined or the context clearly 
requires otherwise. 

2. Amendments.  The Agreement is hereby amended as provided in this
Section. 

a. Article 7 is amended to read in its entirety as follows:

“7.01. Imposition of sales tax. The City is hereby authorized to impose its 
sales and use taxes within the area of any limited-purpose annexation under 
Section 7.03, below.     

493686 Page 1 



7.02. Cooperation.   The parties will cooperate to provide such 
documentation as the City may reasonably require to satisfy the requirements of 
the State Comptroller in connection with the collection of sales and use taxes 
within the District. 

7.03. Limited-purpose annexation.  

a. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Agreement, the City is
authorized to annex any land developed for commercial purposes (“Commercial 
Property”) within the District for the limited purpose of levying and collecting its 
sales and use taxes within the area of limited-purpose annexation in accordance 
with applicable law.  Upon full purpose annexation of the District under Article 
3, above, any area annexed for limited purposes shall be considered to be within 
the full-purpose jurisdiction of the City.  

b. During the period of limited-purpose annexation: (i) neither the
District nor any owners of taxable property within District is liable for any 
present or future debts of the City, (ii) ad valorem taxes levied by the City will 
not be levied on taxable property within District (including specifically any area 
of limited-purpose annexation), and (iii) the area of limited-purpose annexation 
shall be treated as if it were within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction except as 
specifically provided herein.” 

3. Agreement in effect. Except as specifically amended hereby, the 
Agreement remains in full force and effect, as of its Effective Date. 

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW] 

493686 Page 2 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Parties have executed this Agreement 
effective as of the date first written above. 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

By: ______________________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
City Secretary 

BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 21 

By: ______________________________________ 
President, Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

By: ______________________________ 
Secretary 

493686 Page 3 



AMENDMENT TO STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § 

This AMENDMENT TO STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT (this 
“Amendment”) is made and entered into, effective as of July 1, 2014, by and between 
the CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, a municipal corporation and general-law city of the 
State of Texas (the “City”), and BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 22, a conservation and reclamation district created pursuant to Article 
XIV, Section 59, Texas Constitution and operating pursuant to Chapters 49 and 54, 
Texas Water Code (the “District”). 

RECITALS 

1. The District and the City entered into that certain Strategic Partnership
Agreement, dated July 1, 2002 (the “Agreement”), following notice and hearings as 
provided by law, for the purposes stated therein, including providing for the 
incorporation of the District into the City.   

2. The City and the District desire that the conditions under which the City
may impose its sales and use taxes should be revised to comply with current law, and 
that the provision of water and wastewater services should provide for the issuance of 
appropriate certificates of convenience and necessity.   

3. The City and the District have provided notice and held two public
hearings relating to this Amendment, as required by Texas Local Government Code Sec. 
43.0751, and wish to amend the Agreement as more fully described below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual agreements, 
covenants, and conditions contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, 
the City and the District agree as follows: 

1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings
provided for them in the Agreement, unless otherwise defined or the context clearly 
requires otherwise. 

2. Amendments.  The Agreement is hereby amended as provided in this
Section. 

a. A new Section 6.05 is added as follows:

“6.05.  Water and wastewater services prior to District certification.
The City holds a certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) covering water 

493218 Page 1 



and wastewater service on land in its extraterritorial jurisdiction, including the 
land in the District.  The District has applied for its own CCNs for water and 
wastewater, and anticipates receipt of the CCNs in the near future.  During the 
period that the District’s CCNs are pending approval, the District shall construct 
water and wastewater facilities to serve the land within the District, and shall 
operate such facilities, including billing, collections and maintenance on behalf of 
and as the agent of the City, and may reference the City’s CCNs as may be 
reasonably required in connection with its plans and other approvals from 
regulatory agencies having jurisdiction thereover.  The District shall operate the 
water and wastewater facilities in accordance with applicable laws and 
regulations.  In consideration of the costs of design, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the water and wastewater facilities, as well as for the indemnity 
provision in the following paragraph, the District will retain all revenues of such 
facilities during the term of this Section.  Upon the issuance of the District’s 
water and wastewater CCNs, this Section shall terminate, and all water and 
wastewater facilities constructed by or on behalf of the District shall be owned 
owned by the District and operated under the District’s CCNs. 

In consideration of the above, the District hereby indemnifies and holds 
harmless the City, its officials and employees of any and all liability resulting 
from the construction, operations and maintenance of the District’s water and 
wastewater facilities and the use of the City’s CCN as described above.” 

b. Article 7 is amended to read in its entirety as follows:

“7.01. Imposition of sales tax. The City is hereby authorized to impose its 
sales and use taxes within the area of any limited-purpose annexation under 
Section 7.03, below.     

7.02. Cooperation.   The parties will cooperate to provide such 
documentation as the City may reasonably require to satisfy the requirements of 
the State Comptroller in connection with the collection of sales and use taxes 
within the District. 

7.03. Limited-purpose annexation.  

a. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Agreement, the City is
authorized to annex any land developed for commercial purposes (“Commercial 
Property”) within the District for the limited purpose of levying and collecting its 
sales and use taxes within the area of limited-purpose annexation in accordance 
with applicable law.  Upon full purpose annexation of the District under Article 
3, above, any area annexed for limited purposes shall be considered to be within 
the full-purpose jurisdiction of the City.  

493218 Page 2 



b. During the period of limited-purpose annexation: (i) neither the
District nor any owners of taxable property within District is liable for any 
present or future debts of the City, (ii) ad valorem taxes levied by the City will 
not be levied on taxable property within District (including specifically any area 
of limited-purpose annexation), and (iii) the area of limited-purpose annexation 
shall be treated as if it were within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction except as 
specifically provided herein.” 

3. Agreement in effect. Except as specifically amended hereby, the 
Agreement remains in full force and effect, as of its Effective Date. 

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW] 

493218 Page 3 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Parties have executed this Agreement 
effective as of the date first written above. 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

By: ______________________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
City Secretary 

BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 22 

By: ______________________________________ 
President, Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

By: ______________________________ 
Secretary 

493218 Page 4 



Consent 
Agenda 
Item F 

F. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-76 – A 
resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing 
the City Manager or his designee to enter into a professional services 
contract for surveying services with C. L. Davis & Company, in the amount 
of $77,062.00 associated with the north/south ditches impacted by Cowart 
Creek Drainage Project.  Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager. 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:  July 14, 2014 ITEM NO.:  

DATE SUBMITTED: July 3, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Capital Projects 

PREPARED BY: Cara Davis PRESENTOR:  Trent Epperson 

REVIEWED BY: Jon R. Branson REVIEW DATE:  May 12, 2014 

SUBJECT: N/S Ditch Maintenance Project 

EXHIBITS: R2014-76; A – C. L. Davis & Company Professional Services 
Agreement, Proposal & Scope of Services 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: $77,062.00 AMOUNT BUDGETED: $13,116,450 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: $136,902 PROJECT NO.: DR0602 
ACCOUNT NO.:  202-0000-565-01-00 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
   X     Finance   X Legal  Ordinance X  Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends that Council approve the proposal and award a professional services 
contract to C. L. Davis & Company for surveying of the N/S Ditch Maintenance project in the 
amount of $77,062.00 and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement.  

BACKGROUND 

The maintenance of the ditches running north to south between Bailey Road (CR 101) and CR 
100 along Wellborn Rd, McLean Rd, Berry Rd, Wayne Rd, Harkey Rd and Holland Rd is part 
of the overall Cowart Creek drainage project in preparation for the Bailey Road Expansion 
transportation project.  The Cowart Creek drainage project consists of the regional detention 
pond and pump station, diversion channel and redirection of the flows along the roadside 
ditches between CR100 and Bailey Road.  The purpose of this specific phase of the project is 

Resolution No. R2014-76



to re-grade the ditches to the south, improve flow through the area, and replace some of the 
culverts along the corridor that currently act as flow restrictors. 

ESPA Corp was previously contracted with JKC to perform the drainage design for the 
maintenance project.  In 2011, the City terminated its contract with JKC and entered into a 
contract agreement directly with ESPA.  At the time of termination 60% plans had been 
submitted, reviewed and returned for comments.  Subsequent reviews led to the optimization 
of the Bailey Road corridor drainage system and the Cowart Creek Diversion drainage system 
to reduce the overall cost between the projects.  Utility coordination issues, inter-agency 
coordination and design challenges have slowed progress of the design completion. 

SCOPE OF CONTRACT/AGREEMENT 

The N/S Ditch Maintenance project consists of the re-grading of ditches along six streets south 
of the Bailey Road Expansion project corridor to optimize drainage in this area.  Culverts 
currently acting as restrictors will be replaced at set elevations and water flow redirected in 
some instances to achieve more positive flow. 

Surveys performed by JKC Associates and C. L. Davis & Company in the timeframe of 
2005/2006 were provided to ESPA at the start of their design under JKC.  This contract will 
update these surveys to include new improvement, changes, and new utilities due to the length 
of time that has transpired.   

The scope of the proposed contract with C. L. Davis & Company (re)establishing control and 
updating six miles topo and utility investigations for any new improvements.  An add service to 
prepare control sheets if necessary is also included in the scope.  These services will be billed 
as a lump sum of $77,062.00 based on monthly progress.   

BID AND AWARD 

N/A 

SCHEDULE 

A Notice to Proceed is scheduled for issue within ten days of the contract authorization. 

POLICY/GOAL CONSIDERATION 

The N/S Ditch Maintenance project is an integral part of the overall Cowart Creek Regional 
Drainage improvements and is necessary for construction of the Bailey Road Expansion 
project which will improve mobility and potential development in south Pearland. 



CURRENT AND FUTURE CIP FUNDING /FINANCIAL IMPACTS/DEBT SERVICE 

The project is funded by General Obligation bonds of the CIP budget, of which $9,255,000 
have already been sold.  The FY2015 funds, bond funds, are included in the forthcoming 2015-
2019 CIP budget and will be sold at a later date. 

Budget 13,116,450$     1,600,000$       14,716,450$     

Prior Expenditures
     PER - 
     Land/ROW 2,421,279         2,421,279         
     Design/Survey 1,399,592         1,399,592         
     Construction 9,158,673         9,158,673         
     FF&E - 
Current Request
     Design/Survey 77,062 77,062 
Future Expenditures
     PER - 
     Land/ROW - 
     Design/Survey - 
     Construction 1,600,000         1,600,000         
     FF&E - 

Total Expenditures 13,056,606$     1,600,000$       -$  -$  -$  14,656,606$     

Remaining Balance 59,844$            59,844$            59,844$            59,844$            59,844$            59,844$            

Debt Sold 9,255,000         
Debt to Be Sold 100,000            1,524,159         
Annual Debt Service 620,000            626,000            728,000            728,000            728,000            

O&M IMPACT INFORMATION 

Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Operation and Maintenance Costs



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-76 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
authorizing the City Manager or his designee to enter into a 
professional services contract for surveying services with C. L. Davis & 
Company, in the amount of $77,062.00 associated with the north/south 
ditches impacted by Cowart Creek Drainage Project.  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That contract for surveying services, a copy of which is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes, is hereby authorized and 

approved. 

Section 2. That the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute 

and the City Secretary to attest a contract for surveying services associated with the 

north/south ditches impacted by Cowart Creek Drainage Project. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the _____ day of _________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

_________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 





















New 
Business 
Item No. 1 

1. Consideration and Possible Action – RESOLUTION NO. R2014-83 – A
resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, awarding a
bid for construction services, associated with the Sports Complex at
Shadow Creek Ranch Park, to the Crain Group, LLC., in the amount of
$6,569,575.96 and authorizing and authorizing budget amendment.
Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:   July 28, 2014 ITEM NO.:  

DATE SUBMITTED: July 22, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Capital Projects 

PREPARED BY: Cara Davis PRESENTOR: Trent Epperson 

REVIEWED BY: Trent Epperson REVIEW DATE: July 23, 2014 

SUBJECT: Shadow Creek Ranch Park Construction 

EXHIBITS: R2014-83; A - Engineers Estimate, Bid Tab and Recommendation Letter 
B – Proposed Construction Contract and Project Budget Details 
 C – Park Layout 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: $6,569,575.96 AMOUNT BUDGETED: $8,415,051 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: $7,728,252 PROJECT NO.: P20002 
ACCOUNT NO.:  203-0000-565-03-00 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: $340,000 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
 X       Finance  X  Legal        Ordinance X   Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff recommends that Council approve the negotiated Competitive Sealed Proposal and 
to award a Construction Contract to Crain Group, LLC for the new Sports Complex at 
Shadow Creek Ranch Park in the amount of $6,569,575.96 and authorize the City 
Manager to execute the contract. 

Staff recommends a budget adjustment to add $340,000 to the Shadow Creek Ranch 
Park project budget from available fund balance in Fund 50. 

BACKGROUND 

The Fiscal Year 2012 Capital Improvement Program Budget included funding for the 
design of the Shadow Creek Ranch Community Park, which was part of the 2007 Bond 
election.  Construction funding was contained in the 2013 and 2014 CIP’s.  As originally 

Resolution No.  R2014-83



conceived the project included eight lighted softball/baseball fields, a 
restroom/concession building with a pavilion, one soccer field, parking, a hike and bike 
trail around the fields and a lawn amphitheater for special events. 
 
The project was packaged as a Competitive Sealed Proposal (CSP), which enables the 
City to select the proposal that presents the best value to the City based on the 
published selection criteria.  After selection of the firm with the best value proposal, the 
City can negotiate scope and schedule modifications with the firm that can beneficially 
influence the proposed cost of the work.   
 
The project was originally advertised in early April 2014 and a pre-bid conference was 
held April 22nd. Due to bond requirements and the broad scope of the work, only one 
proposal was received from SpawGlass Civil Construction in the amount of 
$13,365,060.64, which exceeded the budget by nearly $5 million.  Council rejected that 
proposal on May 19, 2014.  Staff began work to revise the scope of the project bid 
package and to prepare to re-bid the project. 

 
 
 SCOPE OF CONTRACT/AGREEMENT 
 

The revised project scope was reduced to remove the following items from the bid 
package:  Traffic signal modifications, Kingsley Drive turn lane, site landscaping, ball 
field lighting, and the off-site water line extension.    In addition, some site amenities 
within the bid package were changed to alternate bid items, these included:  the 
amphitheater, maintenance building, volleyball courts, flagpoles, playground, picnic 
tables, refuse containers, and park signage.   
 
The project does include the soccer field that was proposed for removal in the previous 
information provided to the City Council.  It is a practice field located within the detention 
pond that serves the park project.  
 
BID AND AWARD 
 
The new park package was advertised in early June 2014 with a mandatory pre-
proposal conference held on June 17th.  A total of 27 contractor representatives signed 
in, with 9 general contractors being represented.  
 
Proposals were unsealed on July 1, 2014 and three proposals were successfully 
submitted for the project.  Crain Group, L.L.C., Comex Corporation and SpawGlass Civil 
Construction submitted base bids plus alternate items in the amounts of $8,468,134.88, 
$8,848,116.91 and $9,275,921.12 respectively.  All bids exceeded the revised 
engineer’s estimate of $7,075,214.00.  
  
As a Competitive Sealed proposal, Staff selected the proposal offering the “best value” 
for the City and opened scope and schedule negotiations with The Crain Group, LLC.  
These initial discussions resulted in a Base Bid scope and price of $7,630,039.78. 
 
Working with the Parks Department, Staff elected to keep four Alternate Items, 
specifically: the flag poles, picnic tables, refuse containers and the park entry sign.  
These items add $130,721.25 to the contract. The following alternate items were not 
selected:  the lawn amphitheater, the maintenance building, volleyball courts, 



playground equipment, clearing and grubbing of phase 2 areas, crushed stone road, the 
additional 1 year tree maintenance, and substituted concrete for the granite trail.   
Staff then identified base bid items that could be modified to reduce the costs with 
minimal impact on the core park functions.  These items included: removing the crushed 
granite trail, removed imported soils for the pond field, reduction of parking spaces from 
474 to 302, reduced sidewalks and ramps, removed the scoreboards, reduced imported 
soils in ball fields, reduced the waterline loop length, reduced the 2.5 inch waterline 
length, changed plumbing fixtures in restrooms, added hydro-mulch for the pond soccer 
field, changed the sod specification, and removed one softball field.  This resulted in a 
cost reduction of $1,191,185.07. 
 
The result of the above is a recommended contract for construction in the amount of 
$6,569,575.96 which includes the base bid ($7,630,039.78), plus selected alternates 
($130,721.25), less modified base bid items ($-1,191,185.07).   
Items remaining from the original scope package that were removed and are planned to 
be contracted for separately include: lighting 7 ball fields, installation of the fourth leg of 
the traffic signal, the off-site waterline, landscaping and construction material testing are 
estimated to cost $1,497,659.00.  This brings the total cost for the project along with 
those offsite work items above to $8,067,234.96. The currently unencumbered project 
budget remaining is $7,728,252.00 leaving a total project shortfall of $338,982.96. 

 
See Exhibit B for construction contract and project budget details. 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
Construction is scheduled to begin in early August 2014 based on a contract award on 
July 28, 2014.  Construction duration is schedule for substantial completion within 300 
days and final completion in 330 days. 
 
POLICY/GOAL CONSIDERATION 
 
Construction of this park will provide a multipurpose sports complex in this area of the 
community as called for in the Parks and Recreation Master Plan and originally 
identified in the 2007 bond program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
CURRENT AND FUTURE CIP FUNDING /FINANCIAL IMPACTS/DEBT SERVICE 
 
The budget shown below represents the modified Base Bid and Selected Alternates and future 
required expenditures.  These figures include allocating $340,000 to the project budget in 2015 
from the Fund Balance of Fund 50, of which $708,235 is available.   
 
Year To Date 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
Budget 8,755,051$       8,755,051$       

Prior Expenditures
     PER 37,051              37,051              
     Land/ROW -                    
     Design/Survey 649,749            649,749            
     Construction -                    
     FF&E -                    
Current Request
     Construction 6,569,576      6,569,576      
Future Expenditures
     PER -                    
     Land/ROW -                    
     Design/Survey -                    
     Construction 1,497,659         1,497,659         
     FF&E -                    

Total Expenditures 7,256,375$       1,497,659$       -$                  -$                  -$                  8,754,034$       

Remaining Balance 1,498,676$       1,017$              1,017$              1,017$              1,017$              1,017$              

Debt Sold 2,292,400         
Debt to Be Sold 3,950,766         2,116,834         
Annual Debt Service 153,591            418,292            560,120            560,120            560,120            

 
 
 
O&M IMPACT INFORMATION 
 
 
Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Operation and Maintenance Costs 150,000$       524,616$       540,659$       551,838$       

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-83 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
awarding a bid for construction services, associated with the Sports 
Complex at Shadow Creek Ranch Park, to the Crain Group, LLC., in the 
amount of $6,569,575.96 and authorizing and authorizing budget 
amendment. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That bids were obtained for the construction of the Sports Complex at 

Shadow Creek Ranch Park. 

Section 2. That the City Council hereby awards a bid to the Crain Group, LLC., in 

the total amount of $6,569,575.96. 

Section 3. That a budget amendment is hereby approved, authorizing a transfer 

of $340,000.00 to the Capital Projects Fund for the Shadow Creek Ranch Park from the 

available fund balance in Fund 50. 

Section 4. The City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute a 

contract for the construction of the Sports Complex at Shadow Creek Ranch Park. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the ______ day of _____________, 

A.D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 



________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 





CITY OF PEARLAND PROPOSAL

Project Name: Shadow Creek Ranch Sports Complex, Phase I
Project No. P20002 Bid No.: 2014-18R
Bid Date: July 1, 2014

Item Number Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
SECTION 1 - BASE PROPOSAL

1 Mobilization (01505), Not to exceed 3% of construction LS 1 228,000.00$    228,000.00$          248,625.00$    248,625.00$         250,000.00$    250,000.00$          278,000.00$    278,000.00$           
2 Bonds & Insurance, Not to exceed 2% of construction cost LS 1 152,000.00$    152,000.00$          165,750.00$    165,750.00$         170,000.00$    170,000.00$          181,293.44$    181,293.44$           
3 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (01565) LS 1 30,000.00$      30,000.00$            27,625.00$      27,625.00$           40,000.00$      40,000.00$            27,568.83$      27,568.83$             

410 000 00$ 442 000 00$ 460 000 00$ 486 862 27$

Client : City of Pearland

GENERAL CONDITIONS

SUBTOTAL GENERAL CONDITION ITEMS

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE
Comex Corporation

BIDDER NO. 1
Crain Group, L.L.C.

BIDDER NO. 2 BIDDER NO. 3
SpawGlass Civil Construction, Inc.

410,000.00$      442,000.00$      460,000.00$        486,862.27$       
ON-SITE STORM ITEMS

4 12" HDPE (02630) LF 4,034 30.00$             121,020.00$          30.94$             124,811.96$         31.00$             125,054.00$          30.58$             123,359.72$           
5 18" HDPE (02630) LF 1,963 37.00$             72,631.00$            38.68$             75,928.84$           39.00$             76,557.00$            38.22$             75,025.86$             
6 24" HDPE (02630) LF 258 42.00$             10,836.00$            53.04$             13,684.32$           53.00$             13,674.00$            52.42$             13,524.36$             
7 24" RCP (02630) LF 296 65.00$             19,240.00$            62.99$             18,645.04$           63.00$             18,648.00$            62.25$             18,426.00$             
8 30" HDPE (02630) LF 785 70.00$             54,950.00$            64.09$             50,310.65$           64.00$             50,240.00$            63.34$             49,721.90$             
9 36" HDPE (02630) LF 729 75.00$             54,675.00$            77.35$             56,388.15$           77.00$             56,133.00$            76.45$             55,732.05$             
10 36" RCP (02630) LF 235 87.00$             20,445.00$            108.29$           25,448.15$           100.00$           23,500.00$            107.03$           25,152.05$             
11 36" CMP (02630) LF 113 80.00$             9,040.00$              89.51$             10,114.63$           89.00$             10,057.00$            88.46$             9,995.98$               
12 Trench Safety System (01570) LF 4,157 1.00$               4,157.00$              1.11$               4,614.27$             1.10$               4,572.70$              1.09$               4,531.13$               
13 2' x 4' RCB (02630) LF 107 140.00$           14,980.00$            187.85$           20,099.95$           187.00$           20,009.00$            185.66$           19,865.62$             
14 Storm Sewer Manhole (02542) EA 3 3,500.00$        10,500.00$            2,848.69$        8,546.07$             2,836.00$        8,508.00$              2,815.54$        8,446.62$               
15 Chain Link trash screen in detention pond (02821) EA 2 2,200.00$        4,400.00$              828.75$           1,657.50$             3,355.00$        6,710.00$              8,773.40$        17,546.80$             
16 24" S E T (02629) EA 2 1 500 00$ 3 000 00$ 1 449 76$ 2 899 52$ 21 035 00$ 42 070 00$ 1 432 89$ 2 865 78$

SUBTOTAL GENERAL CONDITION ITEMS

16 24  S.E.T. (02629) EA 2 1,500.00$       3,000.00$             1,449.76$       2,899.52$            21,035.00$      42,070.00$            1,432.89$       2,865.78$              
17 Storm Sewer D-1 Inlet (02631) EA 3 1,700.00$        5,100.00$              1,181.25$        3,543.75$             1,458.00$        4,374.00$              1,167.50$        3,502.50$               
18 Storm Sewer Inlet (02631) EA 77 1,750.00$        134,750.00$          1,139.26$        87,723.02$           1,320.00$        101,640.00$          1,126.00$        86,702.00$             
19 Junction Box (02631) EA 5 2,000.00$        10,000.00$            1,762.48$        8,812.40$             2,101.00$        10,505.00$            1,741.96$        8,709.80$               
20 Remove 24" Culverts and 2-S.E.T.s at FM 2234 (02220) LS 1 1,200.00$        1,200.00$              994.50$           994.50$                4,950.00$        4,950.00$              982.92$           982.92$  
21 Clearing and Grubbing (02200) AC 46 6,300.00$        289,800.00$          13,260.00$      609,960.00$         10,518.00$      483,828.00$          8,365.79$        384,826.34$           
22 Conc Pilot Channels in detention pond SY 970 40.00$             38,800.00$            93.93$             91,112.10$           47.00$             45,590.00$            43.44$             42,136.80$             
23 Pond Excavation; spread and compact on site CY 72,411 5.00$               362,055.00$          1.11$               80,376.21$           5.88$               425,776.68$          12.41$             898,620.51$           
24 Emergency Over-flow Structure SY 254 50.00$             12,700.00$            93.93$             23,858.22$           64.00$             16,256.00$            97.11$             24,665.94$             
25 4-1/2" Sidewalk Transition (02771) SY 58 60.00$             3,480.00$              60.78$             3,525.24$             61.00$             3,538.00$              51.51$             2,987.58$               
26 Import soils, embankment material (02255) CY 5,000 15.00$             75,000.00$            22.10$             110,500.00$         40.00$             200,000.00$          18.41$             92,050.00$             

1,332,759.00$    1,433,554.49$    1,752,190.38$     1,969,378.26$     
ON-SITE WATER 

27 8" Fire Line (Including valves and fittings) (02510) LF 3,251 60.00$             195,060.00$          30.94$             100,585.94$         31.00$             100,781.00$          30.58$             99,415.58$             
28 Trench Safety System (01570) LF 3 251 1 00$ 3 251 00$ 1 11$ 3 608 61$ 61 00$ 198 311 00$ 1 09$ 3 543 59$

SUBTOTAL ON-SITE STORM ITEMS

28 Trench Safety System (01570) LF 3,251 1.00$              3,251.00$             1.11$              3,608.61$            61.00$             198,311.00$          1.09$              3,543.59$              
29 Fire Hydrant assembly (02514) EA 3 4,100.00$        12,300.00$            4,490.72$        13,472.16$           4,922.00$        14,766.00$            4,438.46$        13,315.38$             
30 2" DOM. Water Line (Including valves and fittings) (02515) LF 1,686 15.00$             25,290.00$            12.16$             20,501.76$           12.00$             20,232.00$            12.01$             20,248.86$             
31 2" Water Meter and Box Allowance 6,000.00$              6,000.00$             6,000.00$        6,000.00$              6,000.00$        6,000.00$               

241,901.00$       144,168.47$       340,090.00$        142,523.41$        
ON-SITE SANITARY 

32 4" Sanitary Sewer (02530) LF 18 25.00$             450.00$  23.21$             417.78$                24.00$             432.00$ 22.94$             412.92$  
33 6" Sanitary Sewer (02530) LF 339 32.00$             10,848.00$            25.42$             8,617.38$             26.00$             8,814.00$              25.12$             8,515.68$               
34 8" Sanitary Sewer (02530) LF 1,402 45.00$             63,090.00$            30.94$             43,377.88$           31.00$             43,462.00$            30.58$             42,873.16$             
35 Trench Safety System (01570) LF 1,740 1.00$               1,740.00$              1.11$               1,931.40$             1.10$               1,914.00$              1.09$               1,896.60$               
36 Sanitary Sewer Manholes (02542) EA 7 3,600.00$        25,200.00$            3,638.77$        25,471.39$           3,625.00$        25,375.00$            3,596.42$        25,174.94$             

SUBTOTAL ON-SITE WATER ITEMS



CITY OF PEARLAND PROPOSAL

Project Name: Shadow Creek Ranch Sports Complex, Phase I
Project No. P20002 Bid No.: 2014-18R
Bid Date: July 1, 2014

Item Number Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
SECTION 1 - BASE PROPOSAL

Client : City of Pearland

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE
Comex Corporation

BIDDER NO. 1
Crain Group, L.L.C.

BIDDER NO. 2 BIDDER NO. 3
SpawGlass Civil Construction, Inc.

37 Grease Trap EA 1 7,500.00$        7,500.00$              11,050.00$      11,050.00$           7,403.00$        7,403.00$              8,707.57$        8,707.57$               
38 Connect to Exist Sanitary Sewer (02530) EA 1 50.00$             50.00$                   1,181.25$        1,181.25$             1,176.00$        1,176.00$              1,167.49$        1,167.49$               

108,878.00$       92,047.08$         88,576.00$          88,748.36$          
ON-SITE PAVING

39 C h d G i SY 1 907 30 00$ 57 210 00$ 119 34$ 227 581 38$ 140 00$ 266 980 00$ 43 69$ 83 316 83$

SUBTOTAL ON-SITE SANITARY ITEMS

39 Crushed Granite SY 1,907 30.00$            57,210.00$           119.34$          227,581.38$        140.00$           266,980.00$          43.69$            83,316.83$            
40 4-1/2" Concrete Sidewalk (02771) SF 90,270 4.00$               361,080.00$          4.97$               448,641.90$         6.40$               577,728.00$          4.72$               426,074.40$           
41 ADA Curb Ramp (02771) EA 24 2,000.00$        48,000.00$            1,381.25$        33,150.00$           1,375.00$        33,000.00$            1,197.32$        28,735.68$             
42 Roadway Excavation; spread and compact on site CY 3,761 8.00$               30,088.00$            11.05$             41,559.05$           5.84$               21,964.24$            6.55$               24,634.55$             
43 5" Concrete Pavement, including striping per plans (02751) SY 9,268 30.00$             278,040.00$          39.78$             368,681.04$         34.00$             315,112.00$          41.31$             382,861.08$           
44 6-inch Reinforced Conc Curb (02770) LF 8,605 5.00$               43,025.00$            5.53$               47,585.65$           3.63$               31,236.15$            7.12$               61,267.60$             
45 6" Concrete Pavement for transformer access (02751) SY 1,157 40.00$             46,280.00$            49.73$             57,537.61$           37.00$             42,809.00$            54.59$             63,160.63$             
46 7" Concrete Pavement, including striping per plans (02751) SY 13,080 47.00$             614,760.00$          59.67$             780,483.60$         43.00$             562,440.00$          48.85$             638,958.00$           
47 Lime Stabilize Subgrade, 6" at 8% (02335) SY 22,348 3.50$               78,218.00$            11.05$             246,945.40$         7.43$               166,045.64$          6.83$               152,636.84$           
48 Lime (02335) TON 467 180.00$           84,060.00$            154.70$           72,244.90$           248.00$           115,816.00$          191.12$           89,253.04$             

1,640,761.00$    2,324,410.53$    2,133,131.03$     1,950,898.65$     
SITE ELECTRICAL

49 Trenching (26 02 00, 26 05 33) LF 5,000 3.00$               15,000.00$            17.06$             85,300.00$           17.00$             85,000.00$            17.12$             85,600.00$             
50 Conduit & wiring (26 05 19, 26 05 33) LF 15,000 60.00$             900,000.00$          22.10$             331,500.00$         26.00$             390,000.00$          26.37$             395,550.00$           
51 CenterPoint Pad and Primary Ductbank (Per T&C) LS 1 23 000 00$ 23 000 00$ 25 171 90$ 25 171 90$ 16 700 00$ 16 700 00$ 16 862 20$ 16 862 20$

SUBTOTAL ON-SITE PAVING ITEMS

51 CenterPoint Pad and Primary Ductbank (Per T&C) LS 1 23,000.00$     23,000.00$           25,171.90$     25,171.90$          16,700.00$      16,700.00$            16,862.20$     16,862.20$            
52 Switchboards/Dist. Panels (26 23 00) EA 1 11,000.00$      11,000.00$            26,520.00$      26,520.00$           26,400.00$      26,400.00$            26,618.28$      26,618.28$             
53 Sports lighting panels (26 24 16) EA 2 11,000.00$      22,000.00$            14,807.00$      29,614.00$           14,770.00$      29,540.00$            14,889.70$      29,779.40$             
54 Panels (26 24 16) EA 1 4,000.00$        4,000.00$              11,050.00$      11,050.00$           10,900.00$      10,900.00$            11,025.63$      11,025.63$             
55 Transformers (26 22 13) EA 1 4,000.00$        4,000.00$              2,873.00$        2,873.00$             2,800.00$        2,800.00$              4,688.17$        4,688.17$               

979,000.00$       512,028.90$       561,340.00$        570,123.68$        
BALLFIELD IRRIGATION

56 Irrigation, complete in place (ball fields) (02811) LS 1 94,000.00$      94,000.00$            97,240.00$      97,240.00$           97,000.00$      97,000.00$            136,517.49$    136,517.49$           
94,000.00$            97,240.00$           97,000.00$            136,517.49$           

LARGE BALL FIELDS (300' foul line)
57 Scoreboard & controls (26 05 33) EA 4 28,000.00$      112,000.00$          17,788.29$      71,153.16$           8,150.00$        32,600.00$            17,753.13$      71,012.52$             
58 Fencing (1,200 LF) each field LF 4,800 28.00$             134,400.00$          15.47$             74,256.00$           35.00$             168,000.00$          27.16$             130,368.00$           
59 Dugouts (A1.09) EA 8 4,500.00$        36,000.00$            7,956.00$        63,648.00$           1,400.00$        11,200.00$            12,832.82$      102,662.56$           
60 Retaining wall (A1.05 Detail 20) LF 600 150.00$           90,000.00$            110.50$           66,300.00$           220.00$           132,000.00$          194.43$           116,658.00$           
61 Bleachers (A1 05) EA 8 4 500 00$ 36 000 00$ 7 514 00$ 60 112 00$ 7 480 00$ 59 840 00$ 7 385 05$ 59 080 40$

SUBTOTAL SITE ELECTRICAL ITEMS

SUBTOTAL BALLFIELD IRRIGATION ITEMS

61 Bleachers (A1.05) EA 8 4,500.00$       36,000.00$           7,514.00$       60,112.00$          7,480.00$        59,840.00$            7,385.05$       59,080.40$            
62 Import soils, preparation, and fine grading (02910) LS 1 40,000.00$      40,000.00$            419,687.84$    419,687.84$         540,200.00$    540,200.00$          471,586.03$    471,586.03$           
63 Sod - TIFF 419 (field areas) (02922) LS 1 80,000.00$      80,000.00$            174,055.18$    174,055.18$         184,270.00$    184,270.00$          131,242.90$    131,242.90$           
64 Central plaza & announcers station EA 1 56,000.00$      56,000.00$            16,575.00$      16,575.00$           50,000.00$      50,000.00$            7,644.98$        7,644.98$               

584,400.00$          945,787.18$         1,178,110.00$       1,090,255.39$        
SMALL BALL FIELDS (200' foul line)

65 Scoreboard & controls (26 05 33) EA 4 28,000.00$      112,000.00$          15,136.29$      60,545.16$           8,150.00$        32,600.00$            14,954.04$      59,816.16$             
66 Fencing (900 LF) each field LF 3,600 28.00$             100,800.00$          15.47$             55,692.00$           35.00$             126,000.00$          26.62$             95,832.00$             
67 Dugouts (A1.09) EA 8 4,500.00$        36,000.00$            7,956.00$        63,648.00$           1,400.00$        11,200.00$            12,832.82$      102,662.56$           
68 Retaining wall (A1.05 Detail 20) LF 600 150.00$           90,000.00$            110.50$           66,300.00$           220.00$           132,000.00$          196.30$           117,780.00$           
69 Bleachers (A1.05) EA 8 4,500.00$        36,000.00$            7,514.00$        60,112.00$           7,480.00$        59,840.00$            7,385.05$        59,080.40$             

SUBTOTAL LARGE BALL FIELD ITEMS



CITY OF PEARLAND PROPOSAL

Project Name: Shadow Creek Ranch Sports Complex, Phase I
Project No. P20002 Bid No.: 2014-18R
Bid Date: July 1, 2014

Item Number Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
SECTION 1 - BASE PROPOSAL

Client : City of Pearland

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE
Comex Corporation

BIDDER NO. 1
Crain Group, L.L.C.

BIDDER NO. 2 BIDDER NO. 3
SpawGlass Civil Construction, Inc.

70 Import soils, preparation, and fine grading (02910) LS 1 40,000.00$      40,000.00$            271,411.21$    271,411.21$         330,000.00$    330,000.00$          326,932.09$    326,932.09$           
71 Sod - TIFF 419 (field areas) (02922) LS 1 80,000.00$      80,000.00$            94,961.49$      94,961.49$           106,000.00$    106,000.00$          74,858.53$      74,858.53$             
72 Central plaza & announcers station EA 1 56,000.00$      56,000.00$            16,575.00$      16,575.00$           50,000.00$      50,000.00$            7,644.98$        7,644.98$               

550,800.00$          689,244.86$         847,640.00$          844,606.72$           
SOCCER FIELD

SUBTOTAL SMALL BALL FIELD ITEMS
SOCCER FIELD

73 Goals EA 2 4,000.00$        8,000.00$              1,657.50$        3,315.00$             1,600.00$        3,200.00$              1,668.79$        3,337.58$               
74 Import soils, preparation, and fine grading (02910) LS 1 28,000.00$      28,000.00$            63,648.00$      63,648.00$           63,360.00$      63,360.00$            28,504.85$      28,504.85$             
75 Sod - TIFF 419 (field areas) (02922) LS 1 5,600.00$        5,600.00$              39,307.06$      39,307.06$           44,630.00$      44,630.00$            25,617.34$      25,617.34$             

41,600.00$            106,270.06$         111,190.00$          57,459.77$             
PAVILION

76 Pavilion Building LS 1 280,000.00$    280,000.00$          335,559.77$    335,559.77$         30,400.00$      30,400.00$            442,578.07$    442,578.07$           
77 Restroom/Concession Building LS 1 241,000.00$    241,000.00$          488,472.99$    488,472.99$         85,665.00$      85,665.00$            587,400.00$    587,400.00$           
78 Dumpster pad, drain and enclosure LS 1 5,600.00$        5,600.00$              8,287.50$        8,287.50$             10,000.00$      10,000.00$            12,041.94$      12,041.94$             

526,600.00$          832,320.26$         126,065.00$          1,042,020.01$        

EXTRA WORK ITEMS
79 Special Excavation CY 100 15.00$             1,500.00$              11.05$             1,105.00$             11.00$             1,100.00$              10.92$             1,092.00$               
80 8" Water Line LF 100 60.00$             6,000.00$              30.94$             3,094.00$             31.00$             3,100.00$              30.58$             3,058.00$               
81 8" Sanitary Sewer LF 100 45 00$ 4 500 00$ 30 94$ 3 094 00$ 31 00$ 3 100 00$ 30 58$ 3 058 00$

SUBTOTAL SOCCER FIELD ITEMS

SUBTOTAL PAVILION ITEMS

81 8" Sanitary Sewer LF 100 45.00$            4,500.00$             30.94$            3,094.00$            31.00$             3,100.00$              30.58$            3,058.00$              
82 Hand Excavation CY 25 60.00$             1,500.00$              16.58$             414.50$                17.00$             425.00$                 126.60$           3,165.00$               
83 Cement Stabilized Sand CY 25 60.00$             1,500.00$              37.57$             939.25$                38.00$             950.00$                 37.13$             928.25$                  
84 Wet Sand Bedding for Sanitary Sewer LF 100 6.50$               650.00$                 16.58$             1,658.00$             17.00$             1,700.00$              16.38$             1,638.00$               
85 Flagger HR 40 36.00$             1,440.00$              16.58$             663.20$                50.00$             2,000.00$              35.15$             1,406.00$               

17,090.00$            10,967.95$           12,375.00$            14,345.25$             

ALTERNATE  ITEMS

86 Amphitheater Embankment, preparation, and fine grading (02910) CY 2,500 15.00$             37,500.00$            46.41$             116,025.00$         8.80$               22,000.00$            9.83$               24,575.00$             

87 Amphitheater Hydromulch (02921) AC 0.5 3,300.00$        1,650.00$              3,315.00$        1,657.50$             3,300.00$        1,650.00$              3,288.64$        1,644.32$               
88 Amphitheater Retaining wall LF 300 250.00$           75,000.00$            110.50$           33,150.00$           220.00$           66,000.00$            357.15$           107,145.00$           
89 Maintenance Building LS 1 213,000.00$    213,000.00$          349,697.14$    349,697.14$         465,000.00$    465,000.00$          312,623.36$    312,623.36$           
90 Pipe bollards EA 6 750.00$           4,500.00$              110.50$           663.00$                100.00$           600.00$                 655.29$           3,931.74$               
91 Volleyball Court EA 3 28,000.00$     84,000.00$           27,550.97$     82,652.91$          48,745.00$      146,235.00$          27,230.33$     81,690.99$            

SUBTOTAL EXTRA WORK ITEMS

91 Volleyball Court EA 3 28,000.00$     ,$ 27,550.97$     ,$ 48,745.00$      , 3$ 27,230.33$     ,$
92 Flag poles EA 3 4,500.00$        13,500.00$            5,248.75$        15,746.25$           3,594.00$        10,782.00$            5,681.31$        17,043.93$             
93 Picnic tables EA 30 600.00$           18,000.00$            2,762.50$        82,875.00$           3,750.00$        112,500.00$          999.31$           29,979.30$             
94 Refuse containers EA 20 550.00$           11,000.00$            1,105.00$        22,100.00$           1,100.00$        22,000.00$            738.29$           14,765.80$             
95 Park Entry Signage Allowance $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 10,000.00$      $10,000
96 Playground equipment LS 1 164,500.00$    164,500.00$          162,440.53$    162,440.53$         179,000.00$    179,000.00$          160,548.93$    160,548.93$           
97 Playground fencing LS 1 5,500.00$        5,500.00$              15,912.00$      15,912.00$           15,840.00$      15,840.00$            5,460.70$        5,460.70$               
98 Clearing and Grubbing Soccer Fields 2, 3 & 4 AC 9.75 3,500.00$        34,125.00$            20,995.00$      204,701.25$         6,050.00$        58,987.50$            6,552.84$        63,890.19$             

99
Deduct for Crushed Stone All-Weather Road instead of Concrete 
access to Kingsley SY 2,500 (32.00)$            (80,000.00)$           5.53$               13,825.00$           (2.00)$              (5,000.00)$             (14.74)$            (36,850.00)$            

100 Add Extra 1-Year Tree Maintenance LS 1 30,000.00$      30,000.00$            13,260.00$      13,260.00$           13,200.00$      13,200.00$            54,607.00$      54,607.00$             



CITY OF PEARLAND PROPOSAL

Project Name: Shadow Creek Ranch Sports Complex, Phase I
Project No. P20002 Bid No.: 2014-18R
Bid Date: July 1, 2014

Item Number Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
SECTION 1 - BASE PROPOSAL

Client : City of Pearland

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE
Comex Corporation

BIDDER NO. 1
Crain Group, L.L.C.

BIDDER NO. 2 BIDDER NO. 3
SpawGlass Civil Construction, Inc.

101 Add to substitute 4 1/2" concrete for crushed granite at walking trail SY 1,965 20.00$             39,300.00$            11.05$             21,713.25$           11.00$             21,615.00$            15.84$             31,125.60$             

547,425.00$          1,146,418.83$      1,140,409.50$       882,181.86$           SUBTOTAL ALTERNATE ITEMS

PROPOSAL SUMMARY

410,000.00$          442,000.00$         460,000.00$          486,862.27$           
1,332,759.00$       1,433,554.49$      1,752,190.38$       1,969,378.26$        

241,901.00$          144,168.47$         340,090.00$          142,523.41$           
108,878.00$          92,047.08$           88,576.00$            88,748.36$             

1,640,761.00$       2,324,410.53$      2,133,131.03$       1,950,898.65$        
979,000.00$          512,028.90$         561,340.00$          570,123.68$           
94,000.00$            97,240.00$           97,000.00$            136,517.49$           

584,400.00$          945,787.18$         1,178,110.00$       1,090,255.39$        
550,800.00$          689,244.86$         847,640.00$          844,606.72$           
41,600.00$            106,270.06$         111,190.00$          57,459.77$             

526,600.00$          832,320.26$         126,065.00$          1,042,020.01$        
17,090.00$            10,967.95$           12,375.00$            14,345.25$             

6 527 789 00$ 7 630 039 78$ 7 707 707 41$ 8 393 739 26$SUBTOTAL BASE BID ITEMS

SUBTOTAL ON-SITE STORM ITEMS

SUBTOTAL EXTRA WORK ITEMS

SUBTOTAL LARGE BALL FIELD ITEMS
SUBTOTAL SMALL BALL FIELD ITEMS

SUBTOTAL SOCCER FIELD ITEMS
SUBTOTAL PAVILION ITEMS

SUBTOTAL GENERAL CONDITION ITEMS

PROPOSAL SUMMARY

SUBTOTAL BALLFIELD IRRIGATION ITEMS
SUBTOTAL SITE ELECTRICAL ITEMS

SUBTOTAL ON-SITE WATER ITEMS
SUBTOTAL ON-SITE SANITARY ITEMS

SUBTOTAL ON-SITE PAVING ITEMS

6,527,789.00$      7,630,039.78$     7,707,707.41$       8,393,739.26$       
547,425.00$          1,146,418.83$      1,140,409.50$       882,181.86$           

7,075,214.00$       8,776,458.61$      8,848,116.91$       9,275,921.12$        

SUBTOTAL BASE BID ITEMS

TOTAL BID PROPOSAL 

SUBTOTAL ALTERNATE ITEMS





Shadow Creek Ranch Park
Proposed Construction Contract and Project Budget Details

Page 1 of 2 July 21, 2014

Base Bid (A) 7,630,039.78     

Bid Alternate Items
Lawn Amphitheater* 150,832.50      
Maintenance Bldg 350,360.14      
Volleyball Courts* 82,652.91        
Flag Poles* 15,746.25        
Picnic Tables* 82,875.00        
Refuse Containers* 22,100.00        
Park Entry Sign* 10,000.00        
Playground* 178,352.53      
Clear & Grub Phase II 204,701.25      
Crushed Stone Road 13,825.00        
Extra 1-Year Tree Maintenance 13,260.00        
Sub Concrete for Granite Trail 21,713.25        
Alternate Items Subtotal 1,146,418.83   

Bid Alternates Items - Selected
Flag Poles* 15,746.25        
Picnic Tables* 82,875.00        
Refuse Containers* 22,100.00        
Park Entry Sign* 10,000.00        
Bid Alternates Selected Subtotal (D) 130,721.25        

* In 2007 Bond Package Project

Base Bid Items Proposed for Modifications
Remove Crushed Granite Trail (227,581.38)     
Reduce Import Soils for Pond Field (63,648.00)       
Reduce Parking from 474 to 302 (236,355.08)     
Reduce Sidewalks & Ramps (220,917.78)     
Remove Scoreboards (100,758.32)     
Reduce amount of Imported Soils (134,230.82)     
Reduce water line loop distance (16,826.25)       
Reduce 2" water line (16,051.20)       
Plumbing Fixture Changes (8,563.75)         
Sub Hydromuch for Sod -  Soccer Field (35,439.56)       
Change Sod Spec & Reduced Quantity (54,788.93)       
Remove 1 Softball Field (does not include soils and sod) (76,024.00)       
Base Bid Item Modifications Subtotal (C) (1,191,185.07)   

Proposed Package to Award to Crain Group (D)= (A+B+C) 6,569,575.96     

tepperson
Text Box
Exhibit B



Shadow Creek Ranch Park
Proposed Construction Contract and Project Budget Details

Page 2 of 2 July 21, 2014

Items to be Contracted Separately
Ballfield Lighting (7 fields) - estimate 883,259.00      
Traffic Signal mods - estimate 36,000.00        
Water Line - off site estimate 153,000.00      
Landscaping - estimate 383,000.00      
Construction Material Testing 42,400.00        
Subtotal (E) 1,497,659.00     

Total Funds Required (D+E) 8,067,234.96     
Less Funds Available (7,728,252.00)   
Project Shortfall 338,982.96        



tepperson
Text Box
Exhibit C



New 
Business 
Item No. 2 

2. Consideration and Possible Action – Regarding Shadow Creek Ranch
Park – Municipal Utility District Funding for Utilities.  Mr. Trent Epperson,
Assistant City Manager.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:   July 28, 2014 ITEM NO.:  

DATE SUBMITTED: July 21, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Engineering 

PREPARED BY: Trent Epperson PRESENTOR: Trent Epperson 

REVIEWED BY: Trent Epperson REVIEW DATE: July 23, 2014 

SUBJECT: Shadow Creek Ranch Park – MUD Funding for Utilites 

EXHIBITS:  A – Letter from Brazoria County MUD #26 & Brazoria/Fort Bend MUD #1 
 B – MUD Map 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: $0 AMOUNT BUDGETED:  
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO.:   
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance    Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consider entering into Interlocal Agreements and Pre-Financing Agreements Brazoria MUD 
#26 and Brazoria/Fort Bend MUD #1 for reimbursement of the water, sewer, and drainage (W, 
S,& D) infrastructure associated with the Shadow Creek Ranch Park. 

BACKGROUND 

City Staff has been contacted by MUD Boardmembers and their representative regarding the 
possibility of the MUD reimbursing the City for W, S, & D infrastructure cost associated with the 
development of Shadow Creek Ranch Park in accordance with the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ) reimbursement rules and regulations.  MUD representative 
have indicated that in exchange, they want the savings to be expended on additional park 
amenities that were being postponed to future park phases due to limited funds.  

New Business No. 2



On July 18, 2014, City Staff met with a member from each board and the district’s attorney to 
further understand their offer.  Also in attendance was a member of Brazoria County MUD #34 
representing Southern Trails.  BC MUD#34 cannot contribute to the park but is interested in 
the completion of the park.  There is an estimated $1.37M of water, sewer, and drainage 
infrastructure that is potentially eligible to be funded by the MUDs.  The MUDs would most 
likely need to sell additional debt to fund this amount but it would be short term debt that would 
not extend beyond the maturity of current debt.  For example, the most recent debt incurred by 
one of the MUDS had a six year maturity.  The MUD Attorney stated that there is an 80% 
likelihood that the TCEQ approves the reimbursement. 

The MUDs typically reimburse developers for all public utilities built within the district subject to 
TCEQ review and approval.  The W, S, & D infrastructure that serves the park is all within 
public property and is therefore within their ability to reimburse. 

The MUD Boards have taken formal action to engage the City in this discussion and have 
submitted the attached letter regarding their position.  

If the City chooses to seek reimbursement through the MUDs, it will take approximately 6-8 
months to determine what will be approve by the TCEQ.  Therefore, in a separate Agenda 
Request, Staff has recommended that the City Council approve a construction contract for the 
park that is entirely funded by the City.  In the event that the MUD reimburses the City for the 
water, sewer, and drainage infrastructure included in that contract, the City would have two 
options for adding additional amenities to the park.  1) Change Order the construction contract 
or 2) Bid out the items under another contract.  If the current proposed prices can be held with 
no or minimal increases, staff recommends the Change Order route.    

The following is a prioritized list of park features that may be added back to the park.  The list 
prioritizes bond package amenities over features that were not included in the bond package. 

1. Playground $178,353 
2. Crushed Granite Trail $227,581 
3. 4th Lighted Softball Field $400,065 
4. Lawn Amphitheater $150,833 
5. Scoreboards for Softball $55,683 
6. Volleyball Courts $82,653 
7. Maintenance Building $350,360 
8. Clear & Grub Phase II $204,701 
Total $1,650,229 

Staff is seeking Council direction on whether to pursue the Interlocal Agreements and Pre-
Financing Agreements with the MUDs.  







  BC MUD 26 & B/FB MUD 1 

Scale 1:34,395
1 in = 2,866 ft
July 23, 2014 

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It 
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location

of property boundaries.

tepperson
Polygonal Line

tepperson
Callout
Shadow Creek Ranch Park



New 
Business 
Item No. 3 

 
 
 
3. Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No. 

1501 – An ordinance authorizing the issuance of City of Pearland, Texas, 
permanent improvement and/or refunding bonds in one or more series; 
setting certain parameters for the bonds; authorizing refunding of certain 
outstanding obligations; authorizing a pricing officer to approve the 
amount, the interest rate, price, and terms thereof and certain other 
procedures and provisions relating thereto.  Ms. Claire Bogard, Director of 
Finance. 

 
 
 
 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:   July 28, 2014 ITEM NO.:  

DATE SUBMITTED: July 16, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Finance 

PREPARED BY:  Claire Bogard PRESENTOR:   Claire Bogard 

REVIEWED BY: REVIEW DATE: 

SUBJECT:    First Reading – Permanent Improvement and Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2014 

EXHIBITS:    Ordinance 1501 
  PPT Presentation 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:      AMOUNT BUDGETED: 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:        PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO.:   

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
  X Finance  Legal           X  Ordinance Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 
Pursuant to the 2007 bond referendum approved by the voters in May 2007, the City has been 
implementing the street, drainage, and park projects.  The fiscal year 2014 budget, in 
conjunction with the Five-Year CIP, continued the implementation of projects and as such 

CJP 7/21/14

Page 1 GO Refunding 2014

Ordinance No. 1501



included a debt issuance.  The debt issuance was included in the City’s 2014 annual budget 
and Five-Year forecast of the Debt Service Fund. 

Projects and amounts budgeted to be funded from the sale of bonds versus actual amounts are 
as follows 

Series 2014 
Bond Sale Budget 

STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
McHard $   530,039 $   530,015 
CR403-Hughes Ranch $1,065,000 $1,065,000 
Kirby Dr. Expansion  $1,235,000 $1,226,000 
Fite Rd. Extension  $     73,513 $     73,513 
Max Rd. Widening  $   202,838 $   190,838 
Regency Paving $   245,161 $   245,161 
CR59 Expansion $1,260,000 $2,004,612 

DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
Cullen Regional Detention $3,708,000 
Cowart Creek  $  100,000 
Old Town Site  $  100,000 $   483,000 
Piper Drainage $   100,000 

PARKS & RECREATION 
Max Sports Complex  $2,626,320 $2,626,320 
Shadow Creek Ranch  $3,950,766 $6,067,600 
Centennial Park $   183,800 $1,373,658 

TOTALS $11,572,437 $19,693,717 

The difference in what was budgeted and what the actual amount needed is $8.1 million mainly 
due to the current schedules of projects.  The additional money will be needed, but in a future 
year.  Cullen Regional Detention, in the amount of $3.7 million now has a project schedule of 
2015 and 2016.  Shadow Creek Ranch Park and Centennial Park reduction of $2.1 million and 
$1.2 million respectively for construction is pushed to later in fiscal year 2015, as Shadow Creek 
Ranch is pending award of construction contract and Centennial Park is under design. 

After this bond sale, there is still $83.577 million authorized but unissued from the 2007 bond 
referendum, most of which is anticipated to be sold over the 2015-2019 fiscal year time period. 

Based on Council direction at the previous Council meetings of June 9, June 23 and July 14, 
2014 the new money portion of the bonds will be structured with a 20-year maturity and level 
principal, paying off principal faster, and saving on future interest paid. 

In conjunction with the new money, staff is also recommending to refinance $24,835,000 in 
existing debt from five different issues, saving approximately $1.6 million in interest over a 13 
year period.   Based upon Council direction, this is a straight restructuring, no change in 
principal payments, only taking advantage of a lower interest rate environment.  Net present 
value savings is $1.3 million or 5.44%, exceeding the minimum 3% net present value savings 
targeted for such refunding in the City’s Financial Management Policy Statements.   

Page 2 GO Refunding 2014



To allow the Financial Advisor to price the bonds when market rates are favorable versus on a 
set Council meeting date, City Council is being asked to approve a parameter sale.  A 
parameter sale is one where certain parameters have to be met before the sale and refunding 
could occur.  The Mayor, City Manager, and Director of Finance would have the authority to 
approve the sale given that the parameters were met.  Below are the parameters as laid out in 
Section 5 of the recommended Ordinance herein: 

(i) none of the Bonds shall bear interest at a rate greater per annum or in excess of the 
maximum rate allowed by Chapter 1204, Texas Government Code, as amended; 

(ii) the aggregate principal amounts of  the Bonds may not exceed the maximum principal 
amounts authorized in Section 3 hereof, and the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, along 
with any available funds of the City to be used in the refunding, must be sufficient to 
provide, after all original issue discount and underwriter’s discount, amounts necessary to 
fund the costs and expenses of refunding the Refunded Bonds and the estimated costs of 
issuance of the Bonds; and 

(iii) the net present value savings in debt service resulting from the refunding of the Refunded 
Bonds shall be at least 3% of the principal amount of the Refunded Bonds, as shown by a 
table of calculations prepared by the City’s financial advisor and attached to the Officer’s 
Pricing Certificate. 

And new added to the Ordinance 

(iv) the refunding of the refunded bonds shall be undertaken to achieve debt service savings and 
not for the purpose of restructuring or shortening the amortization of the debt evidenced by 
the Refunded Bonds. 

The ordinance also states that new money bonds will not exceed $11,575,000 and together, 
including the refunding, the total bond sale will not exceed $41,575,000.  The parameter order 
for is good for one year, however, that order is expected to be executed within the next few 
weeks, if approved by City Council. 

BID AND AWARD 
Due to the complexity of the refunding and structuring, the bond sale will be negotiated versus a 
competitive bid.  A negotiated sale is one in which the City selects an underwriting team, at the 
recommendation of the financial advisor, to price and market the bonds.  The advantage of the 
negotiated sale is it allows the financial advisor the flexibility to structure the bond issue during 
the sales process.  

The City retains two firms in regards to bond issuance and refinancing; bond counsel, Andrews 
Kurth LLP and a financial advisor, BOSC, Inc.  Each firms fees are based on a sliding scale 
dependent upon the size of the issuance.    

A legal opinion must accompany the bond document as to the City’s authority to borrow, the 
nature of the bonds, and the tax exempt status of the bonds.  Bond Counsel will also advise the 
City as to compliance with Federal Securities Laws and continuing disclosure 

Page 3 GO Refunding 2014



requirements.  Bond Counsel will prepare and submit all the legal paperwork to the State of 
Texas Attorney General office for review and approval as well.    

The City’s financial advisor provides an array of services to the City.  They played an active role 
in doing the financial analysis in 2007 on the impact of the $162million bond referendum and 
also assists the City with financial analysis upon request.  The financial advisor will also prepare 
the official bond offering statement to potential buyers of the City’s bonds, coordinate the rating 
agency calls and rating, prepare and coordinate the bidding and bid tabulation and recommend 
award of competitive bids and work with underwriters on negotiated sales.  

Both firms provide the knowledge and expertise in areas that are required of a bond sale that 
City staff does not have. Both firms do not get paid until and unless the bonds close.   The fees 
do get rolled into the bond sale as well as other issuance costs for rating agencies, printing of 
the bond offering, which is the official statement, attorney general fee, trustee for the refunding, 
and verification agent.  There is no 
staff conflict of interest with either of these firms. 

SCHEDULE 
Staff and the Financial Advisors are working on the preliminary official statement.  The schedule 
of events, which is attached, shows bond rating calls to take place the week of August 18, 2014, 
with pricing of the bonds to occur the week of August 25, 2014.  The bonds will close 
approximately 30 days later, the week of September 22, 2014.  

CURRENT AND FUTURE FUNDING /FINANCIAL IMPACTS/DEBT SERVICE 
The first debt service payment on the bonds will be due in fiscal year 2015, estimated at 
$862,000, net of the refunding savings of $127,000 for fiscal year 2015.     

The new money (both the GO and Certificates of Obligation) and the refunding were included in 
the long-term forecast last shared with City Council on July 14, 2014.   Though not due to this 
one transaction, below is the comparison of the debt service tax rate and total tax rate, based 
on issuing all new debt with a 20-year level principal schedule during the 5-year time period, 
with and without the straight refunding.  Total debt to be issued over this time-period based on 
the capital improvement program is $118.3 million. 

Debt Service Tax Rate Only 
   New Debt   New Debt + 
 20-Year –No 20-Year With 

Fiscal Year   Refunding   Refunding 
2015   .4950   .4950 
2016   .5150   .5050 
2017   .5200   .5050 
2018   .5200   .5100 
2019   .5425   .5375 

Page 4 GO Refunding 2014



Total Tax Rate 
2014 – current    .7051   .7051 
2015   .7201   .7201 
2016   .7501   .7401 
2017   .7651   .7501 
2018   .7651   .7551 
2019   .7826   .7826 

In 2007, the voters approved the various bond propositions totaling $162million with the 
knowledge of a potential 7.5 cent increase in the tax rate.  In addition to, at that time the City still 
had authorized but unissued bonds from the 2001 bond referendum, adding a potential 5.5 
cents to the 7.5 cents, for a total potential tax increase of 13 cents.  The tax rate, at the time 
was .652659; a 13 cent increase would make for a potential tax rate of $.782659.   The City is 
projecting to be at the 78 cents by 2019 based upon current assumptions in the five-year 
forecast. 
In both cases, there is a total tax rate increase projected of 7.75 cents, of which 3 cents is 
related to operations (public safety, parks, public works, etc.) with the remaining related to debt 
service. 

Based on an various residential values the fiscal year 2015 tax bill will as follows: 

Proposed 
Market Value Current FY2015 Change Change due to Debt 
$150,000 $1,022 $1,044 $22 $7.25 
$200,000 $1,375 $1,404 $29 $9.75 
$300,000 $2,073 $2,117 $44 $14.70 

Tax bill calculated with homestead exemption only; no calculation has been included for over-65 
or disabled persons, as frozen levies are in place for those homeowners already qualified.  

Staff and the City’s financial advisor, Ryan O’Hara with BOSC, Inc. will review with City Council 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consideration and Approval of an Ordinance Authorizing The Issuance Of City Of Pearland, 
Texas, Permanent Improvement And/or Refunding Bonds in one or more Series, Setting Certain 
Parameters For The Bonds; Authorizing Refunding Of Certain Outstanding Obligations; 
Authorizing A Pricing Officer To Approve The Amount, The Interest Rate, Price, And Terms 
Thereof And Certain Other Procedures And Provisions Relating Thereto.  

Page 5 GO Refunding 2014



ORDINANCE NO. 1501 

An Ordinance authorizing the issuance of City of Pearland, Texas, permanent 
improvement and/or refunding bonds in one or more series; setting certain 
parameters for the bonds; authorizing refunding of certain outstanding 
obligations; authorizing a pricing officer to approve the amount, the interest 
rate, price, and terms thereof and certain other procedures and provisions 
relating thereto. 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTIES OF BRAZORIA, FORT BEND AND HARRIS § 
CITY OF PEARLAND § 

WHEREAS, the City of Pearland, Texas (the “City”), acting through its City Council, is 
authorized by Section 3.07 of its Home Rule Charter and the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Texas, particularly Chapters 1331 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, to issue bonds for 
the purpose of making needed public improvements; 

WHEREAS, the issuance of certain bonds herein authorized was approved by the voters of 
the City at an election held for such purpose on May 12, 2007 (the “Election”), which was called by 
the City Council pursuant to Resolution No. R2007-35 adopted March 5, 2007, and which authorized 
the issuance of: (i) $84,190,000 in bonds for purchasing and otherwise acquiring land for and 
constructing, repairing and improving streets, bridges and sidewalks of the City with first priority to 
be given to the construction, repair and improvement of Bailey Road, Cullen Boulevard, Dixie Farm 
Road and McHard Road (“Proposition 1”); (ii) $35,305,000 in bonds for purchasing, acquiring, 
enlarging, extending, equipping and constructing drainage improvements and facilities at various 
locations within the City, including acquiring lands and rights-of-way for any of such purposes 
(“Proposition 2”); (iii) $2,895,000 in bonds for purchasing, acquiring, constructing, repairing and 
improving land, facilities and equipment for public safety purposes (including fire fighting 
needs)(“Proposition 3”); (iv) $19,990,000 in bonds for purchasing, acquiring, constructing, repairing 
and improving land, facilities and equipment for park and recreation purposes (“Proposition 4”); (v) 
$16,225,000 in bonds for purchasing, acquiring, constructing, repairing and improving land, facilities 
and equipment for park and recreation purposes, with first priority to be given to the construction of 
recreation center and the construction of a natatorium (“Proposition 5”); and (vi) $3,410,000 in 
bonds for purchasing and otherwise acquiring land for and constructing, repairing and improving 
library facilities (“Proposition 6”); 

WHEREAS, the City Council canvassed the returns of the Election and by Ordinance No. 
R2007-86, adopted May 22, 2007 declared the results to be in favor of the issuance of the Bonds; 

WHEREAS, the City has previously authorized, issued and delivered four installments of 
such authorized bonds from the Election in an aggregate principal amount of $66,860,000, consisting 
of (i) $27,370,000 of principal attributable to bonds authorized by Proposition 1; (ii) $17,416,500  of 
principal attributable to bonds authorized by Proposition 2; (iii) $2,895,000 of principal attributable 
to bonds authorized by Proposition 3; and (iv) $4,150,000 of principal attributable to bonds 

Page 6 GO Refunding 2014



authorized by Proposition 4; (v) $15,210,500 of principal attributable to Proposition 5; and (vi) $0 of 
principal attributable to Proposition 6; 

WHEREAS, the City has now determined that it is necessary and advisable to authorize, 
issue and deliver a sixth installment of such authorized bonds from the Election in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $11,575,000 for the purposes of funding the permanent 
improvements described herein; 

WHEREAS, the City Council is of the opinion and hereby affirmatively finds that it is in the 
best interest of the City to issue such sixth installment of bonds from the Election in the amounts and 
for the purposes herein stated. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has heretofore issued or assumed the obligations 
described in Exhibit A attached hereto and as more particularly described in the Officer’s Pricing 
Certificate (defined herein); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to refund part of said obligations in advance of their maturities 
as determined pursuant to the parameters set forth herein (the “Refunded Bonds”) for the purpose of 
achieving debt service savings; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended (“Chapter 1207”) 
authorizes the City to issue refunding bonds payable from taxes, without an election, for the purpose 
of refunding the Refunded Bonds in advance of their maturities, and to accomplish such refunding by 
depositing directly with any paying agent for the Refunded Bonds (or other qualified escrow agent), 
the proceeds of such refunding bonds, together with other available funds, in an amount sufficient to 
provide for the payment or redemption of the Refunded Bonds, and provides that such deposit shall 
constitute the making of firm banking and financial arrangements for the discharge and final payment 
or redemption of the Refunded Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to authorize the execution of an escrow agreement, if 
necessary, and provide for the deposit of proceeds of the refunding bonds, together with other 
lawfully available funds of the District, to pay the Refunded Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, upon the issuance of the refunding bonds herein authorized and the deposit of 
funds referred to above, the Refunded Bonds shall no longer be regarded as being outstanding, 
except for the purpose of being paid pursuant to such deposit, and the pledges, liens, trusts and all 
other covenants, provisions, terms and conditions of the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the 
Refunded Bonds shall be, with respect to the Refunded Bonds, discharged, terminated and defeased; 

WHEREAS, the City is a home-rule municipality that (i) adopted its charter under Section 5, 
Article XI, Texas Constitution; (ii) has a population of 50,000 or more; and (iii) has outstanding 
long-term indebtedness that is rated by a nationally recognized rating agency for municipal securities 
in one of the four highest rating  categories for a long-term obligation and thus the City qualifies as 
an “Issuer” under Chapter 1371, Texas Government Code (“Chapter 1371”); and 

Page 7 GO Refunding 2014



WHEREAS, Chapter 1207 and Chapter 1371 authorize the City to delegate the authority to 
effect the sale of the Bonds to a Pricing Officer, as defined herein. Now, therefore 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND: 

1. Recitals; Consideration.  It is hereby found and determined that the matters and facts
set out in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

It is hereby found and determined that the refunding contemplated in this Ordinance will 
benefit the City by providing a present value savings in the debt service payable by the City, that 
such benefit is sufficient consideration for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, and that the 
issuance of the refunding bonds is in the best interests of the City. 

2. Definitions.  Throughout this Ordinance the following terms and expressions as used
herein shall have the meanings set forth below: 

“Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations” means the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations 
between the City, the Registrar and DTC. 

“Bond Purchase Agreement” means an agreement between the City and the Underwriter 
described in Section 23 of this Ordinance. 

“Bonds” means the means one or more series of Bonds issued by the City of Pearland, Texas 
authorized in this Ordinance, as designated in an Officer’s Pricing Certificate.  

“Business Day” means any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or a day on which the 
Registrar is authorized by law or executive order to close, or a legal holiday. 

“City” means the City of Pearland, Texas. 

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment any series of Bonds. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“Comptroller” means the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

“Debt Service Fund” means the debt service fund for payment of the Bonds established by 
the City in Section 20 of this Ordinance. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any successor 
securities depository. 

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations 
and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities to facilitate the 

Page 8 GO Refunding 2014



clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants. 

“Escrow Agent” means Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

“Escrow Agreement” means an agreement between the City and the Escrow Agent relating to 
the escrow of funds to pay the Refunded Bonds. 

“Initial Bond” means the Initial Bond authorized by Section 6(d). 

“Interest Payment Date”, when used in connection with any Current Interest Bond, means 
shall mean the date(s) determined by a  Pricing Officer and set forth in the Officer’s Pricing 
Certificate.  

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Officer’s Pricing Certificate” means a certificate signed by the Pricing Officer pursuant to 
Section 5 hereof. 

“Ordinance” as used herein and in the Bonds means this ordinance authorizing the Bonds. 

“Owner” means any person who shall be the registered owner of any outstanding Bond. 

“Pricing Officer” means the Mayor, City Manager or the Director of Finance. 

“Record Date” means, with respect to the Bonds, the close of business on the last Business 
Day of the month preceding such Interest Payment Date. 

“Refunded Bonds” means any of the obligations described on Exhibit A attached hereto and 
as more specifically described in the Officer’s Pricing Certificate. 

“Register” means the books of registration kept by the Registrar, in which are maintained the 
names and addresses of, and the principal amounts of the Bonds registered to, each Owner. 

“Registrar” means Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., and its successors in that capacity. 

“Report” means the report of Grant Thornton LLP, verifying the accuracy of certain 
mathematical computations relating to the Bonds and the Refunded Bonds. 

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“Underwriters” means the firms listed in the Officer’s Pricing Certificate as the underwriters 
or initial purchasers of the Bonds.  

Page 9 GO Refunding 2014



3. Authorization.  The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form in a maximum
principal amount, including any premium counted against voted authorization, (i) not to exceed 
$11,575,000 for the public improvements as follows: (a) $4,613,000 for purchasing and otherwise 
acquiring land for and constructing, repairing and improving streets, bridges and sidewalks of the 
City, (b) $200,000 in bonds for purchasing, acquiring, enlarging, extending, equipping and 
constructing drainage improvements and facilities at various locations within the City, including 
acquiring lands and rights-of-way for any of such purposes, (c) $6,762,000 for purchasing, acquiring, 
constructing, repairing and improving land, facilities and equipment for park and recreation 
purposes,  (d) the costs of issuing the Bonds, and/or (ii) if certain savings thresholds are achieved, in 
an amount not to exceed $30,000,000 for the purpose of refunding the Refunded Bonds, under and in 
strict conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, particularly Chapters 1207, 
Texas Government Code and the costs of issuing the Bonds.  The Bonds may be issued in one or 
more series/installments. 

4. Date, Denomination, Interest Rates, and Maturities.  The Bonds shall be designated as
City of Pearland, Texas Permanent Improvement 1 and shall be dated the date set forth in the 
Officer’s Pricing Certificate, shall mature on March 1 in each of the years and in the amounts set out 
in the Officer’s Pricing Certificate, shall be subject to prior optional and mandatory redemption on 
the dates, for the redemption prices and in the amounts set out in the Officer’s Pricing Certificate and 
shall bear interest from their issuance date at the rates set forth in the Officer’s Pricing Certificate 
payable on each March 1 and September 1 commencing on the date set forth in the Officer’s Pricing 
Certificate.  The Bonds may be transferred and exchanged as set out in this Ordinance.  The Initial 
Bond shall be numbered I-1 and all other Bonds shall be numbered in sequence beginning with R-1.  
Bonds delivered on transfer of or in exchange for other Bonds shall be numbered in order of their 
authentication by the Registrar, shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof, 
and shall mature on the same date and bear interest on the same rate as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of 
which they are delivered. 

5. Selling and Delivering the Bonds.  As authorized by Sections 1207 and 1371, Texas
Government Code, as amended, the Pricing Officer is hereby authorized to act on behalf of the City 
in selling and delivering the Bonds, in one or more series of bonds/installments, and carrying out the 
other procedures specified in this Ordinance, including without limitation determining the price at 
which the Bonds will be sold, the issuance date for the Bonds, the form in which the Bonds shall be 
issued (whether as current interest bonds or as any combination of current interest bonds and 
compound interest bonds), the years in which the Bonds will mature, the principal amount to mature 
in each of such years, the rate of interest to be borne by each such maturity, the dates, prices and 
terms upon and at which the Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of 
the City, as well as any mandatory redemption provisions for the Bonds, and all other matters not 
expressly provided in this Ordinance, relating to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, and the 
refunding of the Refunded Bonds, all of which shall be specified in the Officer’s Pricing Certificate; 
provided that: 

(i) none of the Bonds shall bear interest at a rate in excess of the maximum rate 
allowed by Chapter 1204, Texas Government Code, as amended; 

1 Insert from Pricing Certificate. 

Page 10 GO Refunding 2014



(ii) the aggregate principal amounts of  the Bonds may not exceed the maximum 
principal amounts authorized in Section 3 hereof, and the proceeds from the 
sale of the Bonds, along with any available funds of the City to be used in the 
refunding, must be sufficient to provide, after all original issue discount and 
underwriter’s discount, amounts necessary to fund the costs and expenses of 
refunding the Refunded Bonds and the estimated costs of issuance of the 
Bonds;  

(iii) the net present value savings in debt service resulting from the refunding of 
the Refunded Bonds shall be at least 3% of the principal amount of the 
Refunded Bonds, as shown by a table of calculations prepared by the City’s 
financial advisor and attached to the Officer’s Pricing Certificate; and 

(iv) the refunding of the Refunded Bonds shall be undertaken to achieve debt 
service savings and not for the purpose of restructuring or shortening the 
amortization of debt evidenced by the Refunded Bonds. 

6. Execution of Bonds; Seal.  (a) The Bonds shall be signed on behalf of the City by the
Mayor and countersigned by the City Secretary, by their manual, lithographed, or facsimile 
signatures, and the official seal of the City shall be impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such 
facsimile signatures on the Bonds shall have the same effect as if each of the Bonds had been signed 
manually and in person by each of said Officer’s, and such facsimile seal on the Bonds shall have the 
same effect as if the official seal of the City had been manually impressed upon each of the Bonds. 

(b) If any officer of the City whose manual or facsimile signature shall appear on the 
Bonds shall cease to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before the delivery of 
such Bonds, such manual or facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all 
purposes as if such officer had remained in such office. 

(c) Except as provided below, no Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be 
entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears thereon the 
Registrar’s Authentication Bond substantially in the form provided herein, duly authenticated by 
manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Registrar.  In lieu of the executed 
Registrar’s Authentication Bond described above, the Initial Bond delivered at the Closing Date shall 
have attached hereto the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate substantially in the form provided 
herein, manually executed by the Comptroller, or by his duly authorized agent, which certificate shall 
be evidence that the Initial Bond has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State of 
Texas and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the City, and has been registered by the 
Comptroller. 

(d) On the Closing Date, the Initial Bond, being a single bond representing the entire 
principal amount of the Bonds, payable in stated installments to the Underwriter or its designee, 
executed by manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and City Secretary of the City, approved by 
the Attorney General, and registered and manually signed by the Comptroller, shall be delivered to 

Page 11 GO Refunding 2014



the Underwriter or its designee.  Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the Registrar shall cancel the 
Initial Bond and deliver definitive Bonds to DTC. 

7. Payment of Principal and Interest.  The Registrar is hereby appointed as the paying
agent and registrar for the Bonds.  The principal of the Bonds shall be payable, without exchange or 
collection charges, in any coin or currency of the United States of America which, on the date of 
payment, is legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of America, upon their 
presentation and surrender as they respectively become due and payable at the principal payment 
office of the Registrar in Dallas, Texas.  The interest on each Bond shall be payable on each Interest 
Payment Date, by check mailed by the Registrar on or before the Interest Payment Date to the Owner 
of record as of the Record Date. 

If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on any Bond is not a Business Day, then 
the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect 
as if made on the date payment was originally due. 

8. Successor Registrars.  The City covenants that at all times while any Bonds are
outstanding it will provide a commercial bank or trust company, organized under the laws of the 
United States or any state, and duly qualified and legally authorized to serve as Registrar for the 
Bonds.  The City reserves the right to change the Registrar on not less than 60 days written notice to 
the Registrar, so long as any such notice is effective not less than 60 days prior to the next 
succeeding principal or interest payment date on the Bonds.  Promptly upon the appointment of any 
successor Registrar, the previous Registrar shall deliver the Register or copies thereof to the new 
Registrar, and the new Registrar shall notify each Owner, by United States mail, first class postage 
prepaid, of such change and of the address of the new Registrar.  Each Registrar hereunder, by acting 
in that capacity, shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Section. 

9. Special Record Date.  If interest on any Bond is not paid on any Interest Payment Date 
and continues unpaid for thirty (30) days thereafter, the Registrar shall establish a new record date 
for the payment of such interest, to be known as a Special Record Date.  The Registrar shall establish 
a Special Record Date when funds to make such interest payment are received from or on behalf of 
the City.  Such Special Record Date shall be fifteen (15) days prior to the date fixed for payment of 
such past due interest, and notice of the date of payment and the Special Record Date shall be sent by 
United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, not later than five (5) days prior to the Special Record 
Date, to each affected Owner of record as of the close of business on the day prior to the mailing of 
such notice. 

10. Ownership; Unclaimed Principal and Interest.  The City, the Registrar and any other
person may treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such 
Bond for the purpose of making and receiving payment of the principal of or interest on such Bond, 
and for all other purposes, whether or not such Bond is overdue, and neither the City nor the 
Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary.  All payments made to the 
person deemed to be the Owner of any Bond in accordance with this Section shall be valid and 
effectual and shall discharge the liability of the City and the Registrar upon such Bond to the extent 
of the sums paid. 

Page 12 GO Refunding 2014



Amounts held by the Registrar which represent principal of and interest on the Bonds 
remaining unclaimed by the Owner after the expiration of three years from the date such amounts 
have become due and payable shall be reported and disposed of by the Registrar in accordance with 
the applicable provisions of Texas law including, to the extent applicable, Title 6 of the Texas 
Property Code, as amended. 

11. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange.  So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, the
Registrar shall keep the Register at its principal payment office in Dallas, Texas, and, subject to such 
reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Registrar shall provide for the registration and transfer 
of Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance. 

Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the presentation and surrender thereof at the 
principal payment office of the Registrar in Dallas, Texas, duly endorsed for transfer, or 
accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the registered Owner or his authorized 
representative in form satisfactory to the Registrar.  Upon due presentation of any Bond for transfer, 
the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor, within three Business Days after 
such presentation, a new Bond or Bonds registered in the name of the transferee or transferees, in 
authorized denominations and of the same maturity and aggregate principal amount and bearing 
interest at the same rate as the Bond or Bonds so presented. 

All Bonds shall be exchangeable upon presentation and surrender thereof at the principal 
payment office of the Registrar in Dallas, Texas, for a Bond or Bonds of like maturity and interest 
rate and in any authorized denomination, in an aggregate amount equal to the unpaid principal 
amount of the Bond or Bonds presented for exchange.  The Registrar shall be and is hereby 
authorized to authenticate and deliver exchange Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this 
Section.  Each Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall be entitled to the benefits and 
security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such Bond is 
delivered. 

The City or the Registrar may require the Owner of any Bond to pay a sum sufficient to cover 
any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with the transfer or 
exchange of such Bond.  Any fee or charge of the Registrar for such transfer or exchange shall be 
paid by the City. 

12. Mutilated, Lost, or Stolen Bonds.  Upon the presentation and surrender to the
Registrar of a mutilated Bond, the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a 
replacement Bond of like maturity, interest rate, and principal amount, bearing a number not 
contemporaneously outstanding.  If any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully taken, the 
City, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence of notice or knowledge 
that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall authorize and the Registrar shall 
authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond of like maturity, interest rate and principal amount, 
bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding. 

Page 13 GO Refunding 2014



The City or the Registrar may require the Owner of a mutilated Bond to pay a sum sufficient 
to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection therewith and any 
other expenses connected therewith, including the fees and expenses of the Registrar.  The City or 
the Registrar may require the Owner of a lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken Bond, before 
any replacement Bond is issued, to: 

(1) furnish to the City and the Registrar satisfactory evidence of the ownership of 
and the circumstances of the loss, destruction or theft of such Bond; 

(2) furnish such security or indemnity as may be required by the Registrar and 
the City to save them harmless; 

(3) pay all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not 
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Registrar and any tax or other 
governmental charge that may be imposed; and 

(4) meet any other reasonable requirements of the City and the Registrar. 

If, after the delivery of such replacement Bond, a bona fide purchaser of the original Bond in lieu of 
which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such original Bond, the City and the 
Registrar shall be entitled to recover such replacement Bond from the person to whom it was 
delivered or any person taking therefrom, except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to 
recover upon the security or indemnity provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost or 
expense incurred by the City or the Registrar in connection therewith. 

If any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken Bond has become or is 
about to become due and payable, the City in its discretion may, instead of issuing a replacement 
Bond, authorize the Registrar to pay such Bond. 

Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall be entitled to the 
benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such 
replacement Bond is delivered. 

13. Cancellation of Bonds.  All Bonds paid in accordance with this Ordinance, and all
Bonds in lieu of which exchange Bonds or replacement Bonds are authenticated and delivered in 
accordance herewith, shall be canceled and destroyed upon the making of proper records regarding 
such payment.  The Registrar shall furnish the City with appropriate certificates of destruction of 
such Bonds. 

14. Book-Entry Only System.  (a) The Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of the
Underwriters.  Except as provided in Section 15 hereof, all other Bonds shall be registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. 

(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the 
City and the Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC Participant or to any 

Page 14 GO Refunding 2014



person on behalf of whom such DTC Participant holds an interest in the Bonds, except as provided in 
this Ordinance.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Registrar 
shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, 
Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the 
delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as shown on the Register, 
of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to 
any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as shown on the Register, of any 
amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds.  Notwithstanding any 
other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the City and the Registrar shall be entitled to treat 
and consider the person in whose name each Bond is registered in the Register as the absolute Owner 
of such Bond for the purpose of payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, for the purpose of 
giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of 
registering transfer with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Registrar 
shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the 
respective Owners, as shown in the Register as provided in this Ordinance, or their respective 
attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully 
satisfy and discharge the City’s obligations with respect to payments of principal, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person other than an Owner, 
as shown in the Register, shall receive a Bond certificate evidencing the obligation of the City to 
make payments of amounts due pursuant to this Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Registrar 
of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of 
Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions of this Ordinance with respect to interest checks being 
mailed to the Owner of record as of the Record Date, the phrase “Cede & Co.” in this Ordinance 
shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

15. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry Only System.  In the
event that the City in its sole discretion, determines that the beneficial owners of the Bonds be able to 
obtain certificated Bonds, or in the event DTC discontinues the services described herein, the City 
shall (i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the 
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants, as identified 
by DTC, of the appointment of such successor securities depository and transfer one or more separate 
Bonds to such successor securities depository or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants, as identified 
by DTC, of the availability through DTC of Bonds and transfer one or more separate Bonds to DTC 
Participants having Bonds credited to their DTC accounts, as identified by DTC.  In such event, the 
Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Register in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor securities depository, or its 
nominee, or in whatever name or names Owners transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in 
accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

16. Payments to Cede & Co.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to
the contrary, so long as any Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all 
payments with respect to principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds, and all notices 
with respect to such Bonds, shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the 
Blanket Letter of Representations. 

Page 15 GO Refunding 2014



17. Optional and/or Mandatory Redemption; Defeasance.  The Bonds are subject to
optional and/or mandatory redemption as set forth in the Form of Bond in this Ordinance and in the 
Officer’s Pricing Certificate. 

Principal amounts may be redeemed only in integral multiples of $5,000.  If a Bond subject to 
redemption is in a denomination larger than $5,000, a portion of such Bond may be redeemed, but 
only in integral multiples of $5,000.  Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the 
Registrar, in accordance with Section 11 hereof, shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a 
Bond or Bonds of like maturity and interest rate in an aggregate principal amount equal to the 
unredeemed portion of the Bond so surrendered. 

Notice of any redemption identifying the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part shall be 
given by the Registrar at least thirty days prior to the date fixed for redemption by sending written 
notice by first class mail to the Owner of each Bond to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address 
shown on the Register.  Such notices shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place 
at which Bonds are to be surrendered for payment and, if less than all Bonds outstanding of a 
particular maturity are to be redeemed, the numbers of the Bonds or portions thereof of such maturity 
to be redeemed.  Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to have 
been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice.  By the date fixed for redemption, 
due provision shall be made with the Registrar for payment of the redemption price of the Bonds or 
portions thereof to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  When Bonds 
have been called for redemption in whole or in part and due provision has been made to redeem same 
as herein provided, the Bonds or portions thereof so redeemed shall no longer be regarded as 
outstanding except for the purpose of receiving payment solely from the funds so provided for 
redemption, and the rights of the Owners to collect interest which would otherwise accrue after the 
redemption date on any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall terminate on the date 
fixed for redemption. 

The Bonds may be discharged, defeased, redeemed or refunded in any manner now or 
hereafter permitted by law. 

18. Forms.  The form of the Bond, including the form of Registration Certificate of the
Comptroller, which shall be attached or affixed to the Initial Bond, the form of Assignment and the 
form of the Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, , shall be, respectively, substantially as follows, 
with such additions, deletions and variations as may be necessary to conform to the terms specified 
in the Officer’s Pricing Certificate: 

Page 16 GO Refunding 2014



(a) Form of Bond. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTIES OF BRAZORIA, FORT BEND AND HARRIS 

REGISTERED REGISTERED 
NUMBER  DENOMINATION 
_____  $___________ 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 
PERMANENT IMPROVEMENT ____1_____ 

INTEREST RATE:    MATURITY DATE:      ISSUE DATE:    CUSIP: 
    March 1, 20__     ______1_____ 

REGISTERED OWNER: 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS 

The City of Pearland, Texas (the “City”) promises to pay to the registered owner identified 
above, or registered assigns, on the maturity date specified above, upon presentation and surrender of 
this Bond at the principal payment office of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., in Dallas, Texas (the 
“Registrar”), the principal amount identified above, payable in any coin or currency of the United 
States of America which on the date of payment is legal tender for the payment of debts due the 
United States of America, and to pay interest thereon at the rate shown above, calculated on the basis 
of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, from  ______1_____, or the most recent interest payment 
date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for.  Interest on this Bond is payable by check 
on March 1 and September 1 beginning on ______1_____, mailed to the registered owner of record 
as of the close of business on the 15th day of the month preceding each interest payment date. 

THIS BOND is one of a duly authorized issue of Bonds, aggregating $  2  (the 
“Bonds”), issued for [(i)  purposes authorized by the Election as set forth in the Ordinance (defined 
below)  [and/or]2  (ii) the purpose of refunding a portion of the City’s outstanding obligations, under 
and in strict conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, particularly 
Chapters1207 and 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended,] and pursuant to an ordinance 
adopted by the City Council (the “Ordinance”), which Ordinance is of record in the official minutes 
of the City. 

1 Insert from Officers Pricing Certificate. 

2 Insert from Officers Pricing Certificate. 

Page 17 GO Refunding 2014



THE CITY RESERVES THE RIGHT, at its option, to redeem Bonds maturing on and after 
March 1, 20  3  , in whole or from time to time in part, in integral multiples of $5,000, on March 1, 
20  4  , or any date thereafter at par plus accrued interest on the principal amounts called for 
redemption to the date fixed for redemption.  If less than all the Bonds are to be redeemed, the City 
shall select the Bonds to be redeemed. 

[If applicable, mandatory redemption language] 

NOTICE OF ANY REDEMPTION shall be given by the Registrar at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the date fixed for redemption by first class mail, addressed to the registered owners of each 
Bond to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown on the books of registration kept by 
the Registrar.  When Bonds or portions thereof have been called for redemption, and due provision 
has been made to redeem the same, the principal amounts so redeemed shall be payable solely from 
the funds provided for redemption, and interest which would otherwise accrue on the amounts called 
for redemption shall terminate on the date fixed for redemption. 

THIS BOND IS TRANSFERABLE only upon presentation and surrender at the principal 
payment office of the Registrar in Dallas, Texas, duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an 
assignment duly executed by the registered owner or his authorized representative, subject to the 
terms and conditions of the Ordinance. 

THE BONDS ARE EXCHANGEABLE at the principal payment office of the Registrar in 
Dallas, Texas, for Bonds in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, subject 
to the terms and conditions of the Ordinance. 

THIS BOND shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit 
under the Ordinance unless this Bond is either (i) registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts 
of the State of Texas by registration certificate attached or affixed hereto or (ii) authenticated by the 
Registrar by due execution of the authentication certificate endorsed hereon. 

THE REGISTERED OWNER of this Bond, by acceptance hereof, acknowledges and agrees 
to be bound by all the terms and conditions of the Ordinance. 

THE CITY has covenanted in the Ordinance that it will at all times provide a legally qualified 
registrar for the Bonds and will cause notice of any change of registrar to be mailed to each 
registered owner. 

3 Insert from Officers Pricing Certificate. 

4 Insert from Officers Pricing Certificate. 

Page 18 GO Refunding 2014



IT IS HEREBY certified, recited and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly 
issued and delivered; that all acts, conditions and things required or proper to be performed, to exist 
and to be done precedent to or in the issuance and delivery of this Bond have been performed, exist 
and have been done in accordance with law; and that annual ad valorem taxes, within the limits 
prescribed by law, sufficient to provide for the payment of the interest on and principal of this Bond, 
as such interest comes due and such principal matures, have been levied and ordered to be levied 
against all taxable property in the City, and have been pledged irrevocably for such payment. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Bond has been signed with the manual or facsimile signature 
of the Mayor Pro Tem and countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the City 
Secretary, and the official seal of the City has been duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this 
Bond. 

(AUTHENTICATION (SEAL) CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 
   CERTIFICATE) 

_________________________________ 
Mayor Pro Tem 

_________________________________ 
City Secretary 

(b) Form of Registration Certificate of Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE: REGISTER NO. _______ 

I hereby certify that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity, and approved by 
the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Bond has been registered by the Comptroller 
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WITNESS MY SIGNATURE AND SEAL this ______________________________. 

__________________________________ 
Comptroller of Public Accounts 

of the State of Texas 
(SEAL) 

Page 19 GO Refunding 2014



(c) Form of Registrar’s Authentication Certificate. 

AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 
It is hereby certified that this Bond has been delivered pursuant to the Bond 
Ordinance described in the text of this Bond. 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
As Paying Agent/Registrar 

By  ________________________ 
      Authorized Signature 
      Date of Authentication ____________ 

(d) Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 
For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

(Please print or type name, address, and zip code of Transferee) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

(Please insert Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number of Transferee) 
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
attorney to transfer said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of 
substitution in the premises.   

DATED:  __________________________ ___________________________________ 

Signature Guaranteed:  ___________________________________ 
Registered Owner 

__________________________________ NOTICE:  The signature above must 
correspond to the name of the registered 

__________________________________ owner as shown on the face of this Bond in 
NOTICE:  Signature must be guaranteed every particular, without any alteration, 
by a member firm of the New York Stock enlargement or change whatsoever. 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

(e) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d) of this 
Section, except for the following alterations: 

Page 20 GO Refunding 2014



(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings “INTEREST RATE” 
and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As 
Shown Below” and the word “CUSIP” deleted; 

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Bond, the words “on the maturity date 
specified above” and “at the rate shown above” shall be deleted and the 
following shall be inserted at the end of the first sentence “..., with such 
principal to be paid in installments on March 1 in each of the years and in the 
principal amounts identified in the following schedule and with such 
installments bearing interest at the per annum rates set forth in the following 
schedule: 

[Information to be inserted from the Officer’s Pricing Certificate] 

(iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered I-1. 

19. CUSIP Numbers.  CUSIP Numbers may be printed on the Bonds, but errors or
omissions in the printing of such numbers shall have no effect on the validity of the Bonds. 

20. Debt Service Fund; Tax Levy.  There is hereby established a separate fund of the City 
to be known as the City of Pearland, Texas, Permanent Improvement _______5______Debt Service 
Fund (the “Debt Service Fund”), which shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the 
City.  The proceeds from all taxes levied, assessed and collected for and on account of the Bonds 
authorized by this Ordinance shall be deposited, as collected, in the Debt Service Fund.  While the 
Bonds or any part of the principal thereof or interest thereon remain outstanding and unpaid, there is 
hereby levied and there shall be annually assessed and collected in due time, form and manner, and at 
the same time as other City taxes are assessed, levied and collected, in each year, a continuing direct 
annual ad valorem tax, within the limits prescribed by law, upon all taxable property in the City, 
sufficient to pay the current interest on the Bonds as the same becomes due and to provide and 
maintain a debt service fund of not less than two percent of the principal amount of the Bonds or the 
amount required to pay each installment of principal of the Bonds as the same matures, whichever is 
greater, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of collection, and said taxes are 
hereby irrevocably pledged to the payment of the interest on and principal of the Bonds and to no 
other purpose. 

To pay the debt service coming due on the Bonds prior to receipt of the taxes levied to pay 
such debt service, there is hereby appropriated from current funds on hand, which are hereby 
certified to be on hand and available for such purpose, an amount sufficient to pay such debt service, 
and such amount shall be used for no other purpose. 

21. Application of Chapter 1208, Government Code.  Chapter 1208, Government Code,
applies to the issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of the taxes granted by the City under Section 20 
of this Ordinance, and such pledge is therefore valid, effective and perfected.  If Texas law is 
amended at any time while the Bonds are outstanding an unpaid such that the pledge of the taxes 

5 Insert from Officers Pricing Certificate. 

Page 21 GO Refunding 2014



granted by the City under Section 20 of this Ordinance is to be subject to the filing requirements of 
Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code, then in order to preserve to the registered owners of the 
Bonds the perfection of the security interest in said pledge, the City agrees to take such measures as 
it determines are reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the applicable provisions 
of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code and enable a filing to perfect the security interest in said 
pledge to occur. 

22. Further Proceedings.  After the Initial Bond has been executed, it shall be the duty of
the Mayor and other appropriate officials and agents of the City to deliver the Initial Bond and all 
pertinent records and proceedings to the Attorney General of the State of Texas, for examination and 
approval.  After the Initial Bond has been approved by the Attorney General, it shall be delivered to 
the Comptroller for registration.  Upon registration of the Initial Bond, the Comptroller (or the 
Comptroller’s bond clerk or an assistant bond clerk lawfully designated in writing to act for the 
Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate prescribed herein and the 
seal of said Comptroller shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, thereon. 

23. Sale; Bond Purchase Agreement.  The Bonds shall be sold and delivered to the
Underwriter, who shall be designated in the Pricing Officer’s Certificate, at the price set forth in the 
Pricing Officer’s Certificate and in accordance with the terms of the Bond Purchase Contract  which 
the Pricing Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute on behalf of the District.  The Pricing 
Officer and all other officers, agents and representatives of the District are hereby authorized to do 
any and all things necessary or desirable to satisfy the conditions set out therein and to provide for 
the issuance and delivery of the Bonds.  The Pricing Officer is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute the Bond Purchase Agreement on behalf of the City, and the Mayor, City Manager, Director 
of Finance and all other officers, agents and representatives of the City are hereby authorized to do 
any and all things necessary or desirable to satisfy the conditions set out therein and to provide for 
the issuance and delivery of the Bonds.  In the event the Bond Purchase Agreement shall not be 
executed by the one year anniversary of the date of this Ordinance (the “Expiration Date”), the 
delegation to the Pricing Officer pursuant to this Ordinance shall cease to be effective unless the City 
shall act to extend such delegation.  Bonds sold pursuant to a Bond Purchase Agreement or winning 
bid form executed on or before the Expiration Date may be delivered after such date.  

24. Federal Income Tax Exclusion.

The City intends that the interest on the Bonds shall be excludable from gross income of the 
owners thereof for federal income tax purposes pursuant to Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the “Code”) and all applicable temporary, proposed 
and final regulations (the “Regulations”) and procedures promulgated thereunder and applicable to 
the Bonds. For this purpose, the City covenants that it will monitor and control the receipt, 
investment, expenditure and use of all gross proceeds of the Bonds (including all property, the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with the 
proceeds of the Bonds) and take or omit to take such other and further actions as may be required by 
Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and the Regulations to cause the interest on the Bonds 
to be and remain excludable from the gross income, as defined in Section 61 of the Code, of the 

Page 22 GO Refunding 2014



owners of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the City shall comply with each of the following covenants:  

(a) The City shall not use, permit the use of or omit to use Gross Proceeds or any other 
amounts (or any property the acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to 
be financed directly or indirectly with Gross Proceeds) in a manner which, if made or 
omitted, respectively, would cause the interest on any Bond to become includable in 
the gross income, as defined in Section 61 of the Code, of the owner thereof for 
federal income tax purposes.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, unless 
and until the City shall have received a written opinion of counsel nationally 
recognized in the field of municipal bond law to the effect that failure to comply with 
such covenant will not adversely affect the exemption from federal income tax of the 
interest on any Bond, the City shall comply with each of the specific covenants in this 
Section. 

(b) Except as permitted by Section 141 of the Code and the regulations and rulings 
thereunder, the City shall, at all times prior to the last stated maturity of the Bonds, 

(1) exclusively own, operate, and possess all property the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with Gross 
Proceeds of such series of the Bonds (including property financed with Gross Proceeds of the 
Refunded Obligations or notes or bonds refunded by the Refunded Obligations and not use or 
permit the use of such Gross Proceeds or any property acquired, constructed, or improved 
with such Gross Proceeds in any activity carried on by any person or entity other than a state 
or local government, unless such use is solely as a member of the general public, or 

(2) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other payment 
for use of Gross Proceeds of such series of the Bonds or any property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with such Gross 
Proceeds (including property financed with Gross Proceeds of the Refunded Obligations or 
notes or bonds refunded by the Refunded Obligations other than taxes of general application 
and interest earned on investments acquired with such Gross Proceeds pending application 
for their intended purposes. 

(c) Except to the extent permitted by Section 141 of the Code and the regulations and 
rulings thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of the Bonds to make or 
finance loans to any person or entity other than a state or local government.  For 
purposes of the foregoing covenant, Gross Proceeds are considered to be “loaned” to a 
person or entity if (1) property acquired, constructed or improved with Gross Proceeds 
(including property financed with Gross Proceeds of the Refunded Obligations or 
notes or bonds refunded by the Refunded Obligations is sold or leased to such person 
or entity in a transaction which creates a debt for federal income tax purposes, (2) 
capacity in or service from such property is committed to such person or entity under a 
take-or-pay, output, or similar contract or arrangement, or (3) indirect benefits, or 
burdens and benefits of ownership, of such Gross Proceeds or such property are 
otherwise transferred in a transaction which is the economic equivalent of a loan. 

Page 23 GO Refunding 2014



(d) Except to the extent permitted by Section 148 of the Code and the regulations and 
rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any time prior to the earlier of the final stated 
maturity or final payment of the Refunded Obligations, directly or indirectly invest 
Gross Proceeds of such Bonds in any Investment (or use such Gross Proceeds to 
replace money so invested), if as a result of such investment the Yield of all 
Investments allocated to such Gross Proceeds whether then held or previously 
disposed of, exceeds the Yield on the Refunded Obligations. 

(e) Based on all of the facts and estimates now known or reasonably expected to be in 
existence on the date the Bonds are delivered, the City reasonably expects that the 
proceeds of the Bonds and the Refunded Obligations (to the extent any of such 
proceeds remain unexpended) will not be used in a manner that would cause the 
Bonds or the Refunded Obligations or any portion thereof to be “arbitrage bonds” 
within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. 

(f) At all times while the Bonds are outstanding, the City will identify and properly 
account for all amounts constituting gross proceeds of the Bonds in accordance with 
the Regulations. The City will monitor the yield on the investments of the proceeds of 
the Bonds and, to the extent required by the Code and the Regulations, will restrict the 
yield on such investments to a yield which is not materially higher than the yield on 
the Bonds. To the extent necessary to prevent the Bonds from constituting “arbitrage 
bonds,” the City will make such payments as are necessary to cause the yield on all 
yield restricted nonpurpose investments allocable to the Bonds to be less than the 
yield that is materially higher than the yield on the Bonds. 

(g) The City will not take any action or knowingly omit to take any action, if taken or 
omitted, would cause the Bonds to be treated as “federally guaranteed” obligations for 
purposes of Section 149(b) of the Code. 

(h) The City represents that not more than fifty percent (50%) of the proceeds of any new 
money portion of the Bonds or any new money issue refunded by, the Refunded 
Bonds was invested in nonpurpose investments (as defined in Section 148(f)(b)(A) of 
the Code) having a substantially guaranteed yield for four years or more within the 
meaning of Section 149(g)(3)(A)(ii) of the Code, and the City reasonably expected at 
the time each issue of the Refunded Bonds was issued that at least eighty-five percent 
(85%) of the spendable proceeds of the Bonds or the Refunded Bonds would be used 
to carry out the governmental purpose of such Bonds within the corresponding three-
year period beginning on the respective dates of the Bonds or the Refunded Bonds. 

(i) The City will take all necessary steps to comply with the requirement that certain 
amounts earned by the City on the investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds, if 
any, be rebated to the federal government. Specifically, the City will (i) maintain 
records regarding the receipt, investment and expenditure of the gross proceeds of the 
Bonds as may be required to calculate such excess arbitrage profits separately from 
records of amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts of the City allocable to other 
obligations of the City or moneys which do not represent gross proceeds of any 

Page 24 GO Refunding 2014



obligations of the City and retain such records for at least six years after the day on 
which the last outstanding Bond is discharged, (ii) account for all gross proceeds 
under a reasonable, consistently applied method of accounting, not employed as an 
artifice or device to avoid, in whole or in part, the requirements of Section 148 of the 
Code, including any specified method of accounting required by applicable 
Regulations to be used for all or a portion of the gross proceeds, (iii) calculate, at such 
times as are required by applicable Regulations, the amount of excess arbitrage 
profits, if any, earned from the investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds and (iv) 
timely pay, as required by applicable Regulations, all amounts required to be rebated 
to the federal government. In addition, the City will exercise reasonable diligence to 
assure that no errors are made in the calculations required by the preceding sentence 
and, if such an error is made, to discover and promptly correct such error within a 
reasonable amount of time thereafter, including payment to the federal government of 
any delinquent amounts owed to it, including interest thereon and penalty. 

(j) The City will not indirectly pay any amount otherwise payable to the federal 
government pursuant to the foregoing requirements to any person other than the 
federal government by entering into any investment arrangement with respect to the 
gross proceeds of the Bonds that might result in a reduction in the amount required to 
be paid to the federal government because such arrangement results in smaller profit 
or a larger loss than would have resulted if such arrangement had been at arm’s length 
and had the yield on the issue not been relevant to either party. 

(k) The City will timely file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the Treasury of the 
United States the information required by Section 149(e) of the Code with respect to 
the Bonds on such form and in such place as the Secretary may prescribe. 

(l) The City will not issue or use the Bonds as part of an “abusive arbitrage device” (as 
defined in Section 1.148 10(a) of the Regulations). Without limiting the foregoing, the 
Bonds are not and will not be a part of a transaction or series of transactions that 
attempts to circumvent the provisions of Section 148 of the Code and the Regulations, 
by (i) enabling the City to exploit the difference between tax exempt and taxable 
interest rates to gain a material financial advantage, or (ii) increasing the burden on 
the market for tax-exempt obligations. 

(m) Proper officers of the City charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds are 
hereby directed to make, execute and deliver certifications as to facts, estimates or 
circumstances in existence as of the Issue Date and stating whether there are facts, 
estimates or circumstances that would materially change the City’s expectations. On 
or after the Issue Date, the City will take such actions as are necessary and appropriate 
to assure the continuous accuracy of the representations contained in such certificates. 

(n) The covenants and representations made or required by this Section are for the benefit 
of the Bond holders and any subsequent Bond holder, and may be relied upon by the 
Bond holder and any subsequent Bond holder and bond counsel to the City. 

Page 25 GO Refunding 2014



In complying with the foregoing covenants, the City may rely upon an unqualified opinion 
issued to the City by nationally recognized bond counsel that any action by the City or reliance upon 
any interpretation of the Code or Regulations contained in such opinion will not cause interest on the 
Bonds to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing law. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the City’s representations and 
obligations under the covenants and provisions of this Section 7.5 shall survive the defeasance 
and discharge of the Bonds for as long as such matters are relevant to the exclusion of interest on 
the Bonds from the gross income of the owners for federal income tax purposes. 

25. Use of Proceeds.  Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds shall, promptly upon receipt by 
the City, be applied as follows: 

(a) Accrued interest in the amount of $       6          and, if necessary, net premium 
on the Bonds in the amount of $    7        , shall be deposited into the Debt 
Service Fund. 

(b) Premium in the amount of $       8          shall be used to pay the underwriter’s 
discount. 

(c) Net premium in the amount of $  9  shall be used to pay the costs of 
issuance. 

(d) Bond proceeds in the amount of $            shall be used for the purposes 
described in Section 3(i).   

(d) The remaining proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, together with other 
available funds of the City (in the amount of $_____10        ), shall be applied 
to establish an escrow fund to refund the Refunded Bonds or a deposit with 
the paying agent for the Refunded Bonds, as more fully provided in Section 
26 below, and, to the extent not otherwise provided for, to pay all expenses 
arising in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the establishment of 
such escrow fund and the refunding of the Refunded Bonds.  

(e) Any proceeds of the Bonds remaining after making all such deposits and 
payments shall be deposited into the Debt Service Fund. 

6 Insert from Officer’s Pricing Certificate. 

7 Insert from Officer’s Pricing Certificate. 

8 Insert from Officer’s Pricing Certificate. 

9 Insert from Officer’s Pricing Certificate. 

10 Insert from Officers Pricing Certificate. 

Page 26 GO Refunding 2014



26. Escrow Agreement/Deposit with Paying Agent for Refunding Bonds.  If Refunding
Bonds are issued, the discharge and defeasance of the Refunded Bonds shall be effectuated pursuant 
to the terms and provisions of an Escrow Agreement to be entered into by and between the City and 
the Escrow Agent or pursuant to a deposit of funds with the paying agent for the Refunded Bonds. 
The terms and provisions of the Escrow Agreement, if needed, are hereby approved, subject to such 
insertions, additions and modifications as shall be necessary (a) to carry out the program designed for 
the City by the Underwriter, which, if required, shall be certified as to mathematical accuracy by 
Grant Thornton LLP, (b)  to minimize the City’s costs of refunding, (c) to comply with all applicable 
laws and regulations relating to the refunding of the Refunded Bonds and (d) to carry out the other 
intents and purposes of this Ordinance and comply with the terms of the Officer’s Pricing Certificate; 
and the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem is hereby authorized to execute and deliver such Escrow 
Agreement on behalf of the City in multiple counterparts and the City Secretary or an Assistant City 
Secretary is hereby authorized to attest thereto and affix the City’s seal. 

27. Redemption of Refunded Bonds.  If Refunding Bonds are issued, the City has
irrevocably exercised its option to call the bonds of the City for redemption prior to maturity on the 
dates and at the prices shown on Exhibit B to the Officer’s Pricing Certificate, and authorized and 
directed notice of such redemption to be given in accordance with the ordinances authorizing the 
issuance of such bonds. 

28. Purchase of Escrowed Securities.  If an Escrow Agreement is utilized, to assure the
purchase of the Escrowed Securities referred to in the Escrow Agreement, if required, the Pricing 
Officer is hereby authorized to subscribe for, agree to purchase, and purchase obligations which are 
authorized investments for escrow accounts pursuant to Section 1207.062, Texas Government Code, 
in such amounts and maturities and bearing interest at such rates as may be provided for in the 
Report, and to execute any and all subscriptions, purchase agreements, commitments, letters of 
authorization and other documents necessary to effectuate the foregoing, and any actions heretofore 
taken for such purpose are hereby ratified and approved. 

29. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  (a)  Annual Reports.  The City will provide
certain updated financial information and operating data to the MSRB annually in an electronic 
format as prescribed by the MSRB and available via the Electronic Municipal Market Access 
(“EMMA”) system at www.emma.msrb.org.  Unless provided for in the Pricing Certificate, the 
information to be updated includes all quantitative financial information and operating data with 
respect to the City of the general type included in the final Official Statement authorized by Section 
31 of this Ordinance under the headings “INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND INVESTMENT 
OBJECTIVES OF THE CITY - Current Investments,” “CITY TAX DEBT,” “TAX DATA” (except 
under the subheading “Estimated Overlapping Taxes”), “SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA,” and in 
APPENDIX “B.”  The City will update and provide this information within six months after the end 
of each fiscal year. 

If the City changes its fiscal year, it will submit a notice of such change to the MSRB, and the 
date of the new fiscal year end prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required 
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

Page 27 GO Refunding 2014



The financial information and operating data to be provided may be set forth in full in one or 
more documents or may be included by specific reference to any document available to the public  on 
the MSRB’s Internet Web site or filed with the SEC, as permitted by the SEC Rule.  The updated 
information will include audited financial statements, if the City commissions an audit and it is 
completed by the required time.  If audited financial statements  are not available by the required 
time, the City will provide unaudited financial statements by the required time and audited financial 
statements  when and if such audited statements become available.  Any such financial statements 
will be prepared in accordance with the accounting principals described in APPENDIX B or such 
other accounting principals as the City may require to employ from time to time pursuant to State 
law or regulation. 

 (b) Material Event Notices.  The City shall notify the MSRB in an electronic format 
prescribed by the MSRB, in a timely manner (not in excess of ten (10) days after the occurrence of 
the event), of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds: 

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
(ii) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 
(iii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties; 
(iv) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 

difficulties; 
(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform; 
(vi) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 

proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed 
Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or 
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other 
material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(vii) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material; 
(viii) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 
(ix) Defeasances; 
(x) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 

Bonds, if material; 
(xi) Rating changes; 
(xii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City;  
(xiii) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition 

involving the City or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of 
the City, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry 
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, 
other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and  

(xiv) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar  or change in the 
name of the Paying Agent/Registrar, if material. 

For the purposes, any event described in the immediate proceeding paragraph (12) is 
considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or 
similar officer for the City in a proceeding Under States Bankruptcy Code  or any other proceeding 

Page 28 GO Refunding 2014



under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over 
substantially all of the assets or business of  the City, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by 
leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the 
supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of order confirming a plan 
of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having 
supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City. 

The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to provide 
financial information or operating data in accordance this Section by the time required by such 
Section. 

(c) Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments.  The City shall be obligated to observe 
and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, the City 
remains an “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that 
the City in any event will give notice of any deposit made in accordance with Texas law that causes 
Bonds no longer to be outstanding. 

The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the holders and the beneficial owners 
of the Bonds, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any legal or 
equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The City undertakes to provide only 
the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which it has expressly 
agreed to provide pursuant to this Section and does not hereby undertake to provide any other 
information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the City’s financial results, 
condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided in accordance with 
this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The City does not make any 
representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in or 
sell Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER OR 
BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, 
FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE CITY, 
WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT 
SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, 
IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE 
UNLIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Section shall 
comprise a breach of or default under this Order for purposes of any other provision of this Order. 

Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 

The provisions of this Section may be amended by the City from time to time to adapt to 
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change 
in the identity, nature, or status or type of principal payment of the City, if (1) the agreement, as so 
amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the initial primary 

Page 29 GO Refunding 2014



offering in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the 
Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed circumstances, and (2) either (a) the 
holders of a majority in aggregate amount of the outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or 
(b) a person unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that 
the amendment will not materially impair the interests of the holders and beneficial owners of the 
Bonds.  The City may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement if 
the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters 
judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to the extent that the provisions 
of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling Bonds in the 
primary offering of the Bonds.  If any such amendment is made, the City will include in its next 
annual update an explanation in narrative form of the reasons for the change and its impact on the 
type of operating data or financial information being provided. 

30. Related Matters.  To satisfy in a timely manner all of the City’s obligations under this
Ordinance, the Bond Purchase Agreement, and the Escrow Agreement, the Mayor or Mayor Pro 
Tem, the City Secretary or an Assistant City Secretary, the City Manager, and all other appropriate 
officers and agents of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take all other actions that are 
reasonably necessary to provide for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, including, without 
limitation, executing and delivering on behalf of the City all certificates, consents, receipts, requests, 
and other documents as may be reasonably necessary to satisfy the City’s obligations under the 
Escrow Agreement, the Bond Purchase Agreement, and this Ordinance and to direct the application 
of funds of the City consistent with the provisions of the Escrow Agreement and this Ordinance. 

31. Power to Revise Form of Documents.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this the
Pricing Officer is hereby authorized to make or approve such revisions, additions, deletions, and 
variations to this Ordinance and in the form of the documents attached hereto as exhibits as, in the 
judgment of the Pricing Officer, and in the opinion of Bond Counsel to the City, may be necessary or 
convenient to carry out or assist in carrying out the purposes of this Ordinance, the Preliminary 
Official Statement, the final Official Statement, or as may be required for approval of the Bonds by 
the Attorney General of Texas; provided, however, that any changes to such documents resulting in 
substantive amendments to the terms and conditions of the Bonds or such documents shall be subject 
to the prior approval of the Board. 

32. Amendments.  The City may amend this Ordinance without the consent of or notice to
any Owner in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the Owners, including the curing of any 
ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission therein.  In addition, the City may with the 
written consent of the holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then 
outstanding affected thereby, amend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of the Ordinance; 
except that, without the consent of the Owners of the Bonds affected, no such amendment, addition 
or rescission may (i) make any change in the maturity of any of the outstanding Bonds; (ii) reduce the 
rate of interest borne by any of the outstanding Bonds; (iii) reduce the amount of the principal of   or 
redemption premium, if any, payable on any outstanding Bonds; (iv) modify the terms of payment of 
principal or of interest or redemption premium on outstanding Bonds or any of them or impose any 
condition with respect to such payment; or (v) change the minimum percentage of the principal 
amount of the Bonds necessary for consent to such amendment. 

Page 30 GO Refunding 2014



33. Official Statement.  The City Council hereby approves the form and content of the
Preliminary Official Statement prepared for the initial offering and sale of the Bonds and hereby 
authorizes the preparation of a final Official Statement reflecting the terms of the Bond Purchase 
Agreement and other relevant matters.  The use of such Official Statement in the reoffering of the 
Bonds by the Underwriter is hereby approved and authorized. 

34. Registrar.  The form of agreement setting forth the duties of the Registrar is hereby
approved, and the appropriate officials of the City are hereby authorized to execute such agreement 
for and on behalf of the City. 

35. No Personal Liability.  No recourse shall be had for payment of the principal of or
interest on any Bonds or for any claim based thereon, or on this Ordinance, against any official or 
employee of the City or any person executing any Bonds. 

36. Open Meeting.  The meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was open to the
public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given, all as required by 
the Texas Open Meetings Act; and such notice as given is hereby authorized, approved, adopted and 
ratified. 

Page 31 GO Refunding 2014



First Reading on the ____ day of ____________2014 

PASSED AND APPROVED on the Second Reading the _____ day of ________ 2014. 

___________________________________ 
Mayor 
City of Pearland, Texas 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
City Secretary 
City of Pearland, Texas 

(SEAL) 

Page 32 GO Refunding 2014



EXHIBIT A 

ALL THE CITY’S OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS 

Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2003 
Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series 2003 
Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2004 
Permanent Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 
Permanent Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2006 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2007 
Waterworks and Sewer System Combined Unlimited Tax and Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 
Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series 2007 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2008 
Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series 2008 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2009 
Permanent Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2009A 
Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series 2010A 
Permanent Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2010B 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2011 
Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series 2011 
Permanent Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 
Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series 2013   

Page 33 GO Refunding 2014



Overview of: 

$34,475,000* Permanent Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 

July 28, 2014 

Broker/Dealer Services and Securities offered by BOSC, Inc., an SEC registered investment adviser, a registered broker/dealer, member FINRA/SIPC. SEC registration does not imply a certain level of skill or 
training. Insurance offered by BOSC Agency, Inc., an affiliated agency.  Investments and insurance are not insured by FDIC, are not deposits or other obligations of, and are not guaranteed by, any bank or bank 
affiliate. Investments are subject to risks, including possible loss of principal amount invested. 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

* Preliminary, subject to change.

Page 34 GO Refunding 2014



1 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Current Market Conditions 

The BBI 20 is published every Thursday. The rate consists of general obligation bonds maturing in 20 years with an average rating equivalent to Moody’s “Aa2” and 
S&P’s “AA.” The BBI 25 is also published every Thursday. The rate consists of revenue bonds maturing in 30 years with an average rating equivalent to Moody’s “A1” 
and S&P’s “A+”. 

3.00

3.50

4.00

4.50

5.00

5.50

6.00

6.50

7.00

7.50

8.00

(%
)

Bond Buyer Index of 20 Municipal Bonds and 25 Municipal Bonds
January 1990 to Present

BBI 20 General Obligation Debt
BBI 25 Revenue Debt

4.31%
Fixed Rates of Interest 

Bond Buyer Index of 20 Muni. General Obligation Bonds
High 7.56% / Low 3.27% / Average 5.19%

Bond Buyer Index of 25 Muni. Revenue Bonds
High 7.83% / Low 4.06% / Average 5.59%

4.90%

Page 35 GO Refunding 2014



2 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Maturity Principal Call Interest Refunding
Series Date Amount * Date/Price Rate (a) Yield Savings (b)

Certificates of Obligation, Series 2004 3/1/2015 710,000 3/01/2014 @ 100 4.000% 0.400% 14,614

Permanent Improvement and Refunding 3/1/2016 1,175,000 3/01/2015 @ 100 5.000% 0.620% 42,756
   Bonds, Series 2005 3/1/2017 480,000 3/01/2015 @ 100 4.000% 0.960% 25,870

3/1/2018 550,000 3/01/2015 @ 100 4.000% 1.320% 38,626
3/1/2019 210,000 3/01/2015 @ 100 4.100% 1.710% 18,372
3/1/2020 215,000 3/01/2015 @ 100 4.125% 2.070% 19,450
3/1/2021 220,000 3/01/2015 @ 100 4.200% 2.340% 20,970
3/1/2022 225,000 3/01/2015 @ 100 4.250% 2.570% 21,923
3/1/2023 485,000 3/01/2015 @ 100 4.300% 2.770% 45,543
3/1/2027 1,690,000 3/01/2015 @ 100 4.500% 3.230% 88,088

Certificates of Obligation, Series 2006 3/1/2018 405,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.200% 1.320% 18,544
3/1/2019 505,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.250% 1.710% 24,370
3/1/2020 470,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.300% 2.070% 25,293
3/1/2021 500,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.300% 2.340% 27,944
3/1/2022 525,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.375% 2.570% 31,361
3/1/2023 555,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.400% 2.770% 33,102
3/1/2024 585,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.450% 2.930% 25,315
3/1/2025 605,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.500% 3.040% 20,619

The City has an opportunity to refund a portion of  its outstanding General Obligation Bonds at a lower interest 
rate and receive interest cost savings.  The refunding is for interest cost savings and is not a restructuring 
of  the City’s existing debt. 

Bonds to be Refunded for Savings: 

* Preliminary, subject to change.
(a) Interest estimated at current market rates. 
(b) Includes estimated transaction costs. Page 36 GO Refunding 2014



3 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Maturity Principal Call Interest Refunding
Series Date Amount * Date/Price Rate (a) Yield Savings (b)

Permanent Improvement and Refunding 3/1/2018 360,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.250% 1.320% 17,386
   Bonds, Series 2006 3/1/2019 1,000,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.500% 1.710% 53,494

3/1/2020 1,110,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 5.000% 2.070% 86,425
3/1/2021 1,185,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 5.000% 2.340% 102,161
3/1/2022 1,255,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 5.000% 2.570% 115,342
3/1/2023 1,610,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 5.000% 2.770% 153,156
3/1/2024 1,610,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 5.000% 2.930% 128,739
3/1/2025 1,700,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 5.000% 3.040% 120,429
3/1/2026 1,795,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 5.000% 3.140% 112,400
3/1/2027 1,890,000 3/01/2016 @ 100 4.750% 3.230% 61,619

WW&SS Combined Unlimited Tax 9/1/2016 75,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 3.900% 0.610% 5,727
   and Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 9/1/2017 75,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.000% 0.930% 7,752

9/1/2018 80,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.000% 1.250% 9,478
9/1/2019 85,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.000% 1.560% 10,562
9/1/2020 90,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.000% 1.880% 11,128
9/1/2021 95,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.100% 2.180% 12,198
9/1/2022 100,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.100% 2.420% 12,516
9/1/2023 110,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.200% 2.620% 14,017
9/1/2024 115,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.200% 2.770% 12,027
9/1/2025 120,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.300% 2.890% 11,770
9/1/2026 130,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.300% 3.010% 10,836
9/1/2027 135,000 9/01/2014 @ 100 4.300% 3.120% 9,171

Totals: $24,835,000 $1,621,093 * Preliminary, subject to change.
(a) Interest estimated at current market rates. 
(b) Includes estimated transaction costs. Page 37 GO Refunding 2014



4 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

* Preliminary, subject to change.
(a) Interest estimated at current market rates. 
(b) Includes estimated transaction costs and any necessary debt service fund transfers. 

Less:  Debt Total
Fiscal Year Current Total Service on the Debt Estimated

Ending (9/30) Debt Service Refunded Bonds * Principal * Interest (a) Service Savings (b)
2014 $24,791,541 $577,908 $24,213,633 $2,908
2015 24,679,607 1,851,615 $705,000 $1,019,175 24,552,167 127,440
2016 24,663,813 2,348,040 1,230,000 995,075 24,540,848 122,965
2017 24,660,314 1,611,140 515,000 973,675 24,537,849 122,465
2018 24,643,600 2,411,385 1,355,000 933,600 24,520,815 122,785
2019 24,641,281 2,748,494 1,755,000 866,300 24,514,088 127,194
2020 24,633,840 2,750,268 1,830,000 794,600 24,508,172 125,668
2021 24,619,589 2,774,384 1,925,000 724,400 24,494,605 124,984
2022 24,575,282 2,782,853 2,015,000 645,400 24,452,829 122,453
2023 24,560,320 3,323,225 2,650,000 547,000 24,434,095 126,225
2024 25,496,548 2,752,451 2,185,000 444,250 25,373,346 123,201
2025 25,491,336 2,753,243 2,300,000 327,000 25,365,093 126,243
2026 23,858,897 2,147,095 1,795,000 229,500 23,736,302 122,595
2027 23,837,330 3,803,718 3,585,000 94,750 23,713,363 123,968
2028 23,819,334 23,819,334
2029 23,814,046 23,814,046
2030 15,009,140 15,009,140
2031 14,994,658 14,994,658
2032 15,006,131 15,006,131
2033 3,704,681 3,704,681
2034 3,688,669 3,688,669
2035 1,784,856 1,784,856
2036 1,013,772 1,013,772
2037 663,938 663,938
2038 654,800 654,800

Totals $449,307,322 $34,635,818 $23,845,000 $8,594,725 $447,111,229 $1,621,093

Plus:  The Series 2014
Refunding Bonds

Estimated Debt Service Requirements – Refunding Portion (Refunding for Savings) 

Page 38 GO Refunding 2014



5 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Estimated Debt Service Requirements – New Money Portion – 20-Year Level Principal 

* Preliminary, subject to change.
(a) Includes the results of the proposed refunding. 
(b) Interest estimated at current market rates. 

FY Current Total
Ending Total Debt Debt Service
(9/30) Service (a) Principal* Interest (b) Total Requirements*
2014 $24,213,633 $24,213,633
2015 24,552,167 $530,000 $459,800 $989,800 25,541,967
2016 24,540,848 535,000 443,825 978,825 25,519,673
2017 24,537,849 530,000 427,850 957,850 25,495,699
2018 24,520,815 530,000 409,300 939,300 25,460,115
2019 24,514,088 530,000 388,100 918,100 25,432,188
2020 24,508,172 530,000 366,900 896,900 25,405,072
2021 24,494,605 530,000 345,700 875,700 25,370,305
2022 24,452,829 530,000 324,500 854,500 25,307,329
2023 24,434,095 535,000 303,200 838,200 25,272,295
2024 25,373,346 530,000 279,250 809,250 26,182,596
2025 25,365,093 535,000 252,625 787,625 26,152,718
2026 23,736,302 530,000 226,000 756,000 24,492,302
2027 23,713,363 535,000 199,375 734,375 24,447,738
2028 23,819,334 535,000 172,625 707,625 24,526,959
2029 23,814,046 530,000 146,000 676,000 24,490,046
2030 15,009,140 530,000 119,500 649,500 15,658,640
2031 14,994,658 530,000 93,000 623,000 15,617,658
2032 15,006,131 530,000 66,500 596,500 15,602,631
2033 3,704,681 530,000 40,000 570,000 4,274,681
2034 3,688,669 535,000 13,375 548,375 4,237,044
2035 1,784,856 1,784,856
2036 1,013,772 1,013,772
2037 663,938 663,938
2038 654,800 654,800

Totals $447,111,229 $10,630,000 $5,077,425 $15,707,425 $462,818,654 

Plus:  The Bonds*

Page 39 GO Refunding 2014



6 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Principal Amount of the Bonds: $23,845,000 * Principal Amount of the Bonds: $10,630,000 *
Plus:  Net Premium: 2,580,175               Plus:  Net Premium: 1,066,525               
Less:  Expenses: 274,039                  Less:  Expenses: 121,525                  

Underwriters' Discount 137,109             Underwriters' Discount 61,123             
Rating Agencies 34,000               Rating Agencies 16,000             
Bond Counsel 33,500               Bond Counsel 16,500             
Financial Advisor 33,500               Financial Advisor 16,500             
Attorney General Fee 6,500                 Attorney General Fee 3,000               
Printing/Distribution 6,000                 Printing/Distribution 2,000               
Miscellaneous 10,531               Miscellaneous 6,302               
Paying Agent/Trustee 7,900                 Paying Agent/Trustee 100 
Verification Agent 5,000                 

Issuer Contribution: 575,000                  
Total Proceeds: $26,726,136 Total Proceeds: $11,575,000

Estimated "All Cost" True Interest Rate (a): 3.293% Estimated "All Cost" True Interest Rate (a): 3.818%
Average Life: 7.920 Years Average Life: 10.103 Years

Total Bonds Refunded: $24,835,000
Average Rate on the Refunded Bonds: 4.706%

Total Debt Service Savings (a): $1,621,093
Present Value Savings: 1,352,121               
PV Savings Percentage: 5.444%

City of Pearland, Texas
$34,475,000* Permanent Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2014

Refunding Portion New Money Portion

* Preliminary, subject to change.
(a) Includes estimated transaction costs. 

Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds 

Page 40 GO Refunding 2014



7 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Tax Rate Impact Analysis – 5-Year CIP - 20 Year Level Principal (Includes Refunding) 

Prior Year/ Assessed Tax Rate per Total Funds Post Plus: Debt
Year Beginning Estimated Valuation $100 of Tax Other Available Less: Plus: Refunding 5 Year Total Ending Service

Ending Debt Service Taxable Assessed Growth Assessed Collections Revenue for Debt Outstanding Bonds to be Refunding Debt Capital Debt Service Debt Service Coverage
9/1 Fund Balance Valuation Rate (% ) Value 98.50% Sources Service Debt Service Refunded Bonds Requirements Plan Requirements Fund Balance (% )
2014 $4,992,480 $5,455,948,418 $0.4900 $26,286,916 $1,827,977 $28,114,893 $28,696,282 $577,908 $28,118,374 $28,118,374 $4,988,999 16.438%
2015 4,988,999 5,838,405,911 7.01% 0.4950 28,261,235 1,810,962 30,280,697 28,739,155 1,851,615 $1,724,175 28,611,715 $1,739,519 30,351,233 4,918,463 14.759%
2016 4,918,463 6,214,525,001 6.44% 0.5050 30,701,324 1,823,911 32,739,730 28,808,694 2,348,040 2,225,075 28,685,729 4,639,854 33,325,583 4,332,609 12.385%
2017 4,332,609 6,593,645,574 6.10% 0.5050 32,532,964 1,838,171 34,640,655 28,249,270 1,611,140 1,488,675 28,126,805 6,856,038 34,982,842 3,990,422 10.843%
2018 3,990,422 6,964,137,764 5.62% 0.5100 34,710,081 1,840,212 36,828,735 28,262,407 2,411,385 2,288,600 28,139,622 8,662,977 36,802,599 4,016,558 9.818%
2019 4,016,558 7,406,706,641 6.35% 0.5375 38,926,930 1,850,174 41,068,427 30,483,925 2,748,494 2,621,300 30,356,732 10,554,773 40,911,504 4,173,480 10.098%
2020 4,173,480 7,777,041,973 5.00% 0.5375 40,879,016 1,890,189 43,069,267 30,523,357 2,750,268 2,624,600 30,397,689 10,930,288 41,327,976 5,914,771 14.500%
2021 5,914,771 8,088,123,652 4.00% 0.4950 39,138,706 1,902,541 41,342,732 30,362,001 2,774,384 2,649,400 30,237,017 10,554,238 40,791,255 6,466,248 15.965%
2022 6,466,248 8,330,767,362 3.00% 0.4700 38,266,379 1,851,212 40,423,082 30,379,779 2,782,853 2,660,400 30,257,326 10,244,850 40,502,176 6,387,153 15.874%
2023 6,387,153 8,497,382,709 2.00% 0.4550 37,776,458 1,812,459 39,900,274 30,433,023 3,323,225 3,197,000 30,306,798 9,930,906 40,237,704 6,049,723 15.141%
2024 6,049,723 8,582,356,536 1.00% 0.4550 38,148,089 1,502,029 39,970,816 30,448,214 2,752,451 2,629,250 30,325,013 9,632,119 39,957,131 6,063,407 15.271%
2025 6,063,407 8,582,356,536 0.4500 37,717,114 1,476,918 39,523,150 30,494,802 2,753,243 2,627,000 30,368,559 9,337,944 39,706,503 5,880,054 14.969%
2026 5,880,054 8,582,356,536 0.4500 37,707,389 1,447,726 39,494,106 30,364,563 2,147,095 2,024,500 30,241,968 9,038,363 39,280,331 6,093,830 15.648%
2027 6,093,830 8,582,356,536 0.4450 37,275,964 1,419,767 39,043,600 30,342,996 3,803,718 3,679,750 30,219,029 8,723,906 38,942,935 6,194,494 15.980%
2028 6,194,494 8,582,356,536 0.4400 36,844,335 1,380,232 38,581,520 30,325,000 30,325,000 8,439,194 38,764,194 6,011,820 15.638%
2029 6,011,820 8,582,356,536 0.4200 35,148,764 1,349,424 36,860,061 30,319,713 30,319,713 8,124,200 38,443,913 4,427,968 15.097%
2030 4,427,968 8,582,356,536 0.3400 28,402,835 705,817 29,453,298 21,514,806 21,514,806 7,814,550 29,329,356 4,551,910 15.691%
2031 4,551,910 8,582,356,536 0.3300 27,551,430 596,484 28,498,696 21,500,324 21,500,324 7,510,013 29,010,337 4,040,269 14.069%
2032 4,040,269 8,582,356,536 0.3150 26,279,718 610,202 27,244,427 21,511,797 21,511,797 7,205,500 28,717,297 2,567,399 15.013%
2033 2,567,399 8,582,356,536 0.1950 16,197,917 451,964 16,940,890 10,210,348 10,210,348 6,891,256 17,101,604 2,406,685 14.337%
2034 2,406,685 8,582,356,536 0.1900 15,770,720 295,688 16,362,002 10,194,335 10,194,335 6,592,175 16,786,510 1,982,177 14.397%
2035 1,982,177 8,582,356,536 0.1550 12,835,778 290,023 13,397,207 8,290,523 8,290,523 5,477,694 13,768,216 1,611,168 14.216%
2036 1,611,168 8,582,356,536 0.1300 10,742,386 245,238 11,238,712 7,519,438 7,519,438 3,813,781 11,333,219 1,516,661 15.707%
2037 1,516,661 8,582,356,536 0.1075 8,862,629 213,581 9,304,651 7,169,604 7,169,604 2,486,331 9,655,935 1,165,376 13.588%
2038 1,165,376 8,582,356,536 0.0862 7,088,356 185,257 7,475,304 7,160,466 7,160,466 1,416,000 8,576,466 64,214 15.044%
2039 64,214 8,582,356,536 0.0030 243,860 158,578 412,335 56,045 56,045 370,800 426,845 49,704 0.000%
Totals $592,360,866 $34,635,818 $32,439,725 $590,164,773 $176,987,267 $767,152,040

Average Tax Rate: $0.3658
Tax Rate Increase: $0.0475

Page 41 GO Refunding 2014



8 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Date Action  Role 

Tuesday, June 24th First Draft of Preliminary Official Statement (POS) BOSC 

Tuesday, July 1st Second Draft of POS BOSC, AK, City 

Tuesday, July 8th Final Draft of POS BOSC, AK, City, UW 

Monday, July 28th Council Meeting - First Reading of Parameter BOSC, City, AK 
    Order for the Bonds 

Monday, August 11th Council Meeting - Second Reading of Parameter BOSC, City, AK 
    Order for the Bonds/ Adopt Parameter Order 

Friday, August 15th Print and Distribute Final POS BOSC, UW 

Week of August 18th Rating Agency Calls BOSC, City 

Week of August 25th Pricing of the Permanent Improvement and BOSC, AK, City, UW 
    Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 

Week of September 22nd  Bond Closings BOSC, AK, City, UW 

PARTICIPANTS 
City - City of Pearland, Texas 

BOSC - BOSC, Inc. 
AK - Andrews Kurth LLP 

UW - Underwriters 

$34,475,000* 
Permanent Improvement and Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2014 
 

July - 2014
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

August - 2014
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

September - 2014
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30

Tentative Schedule of Events 

* Preliminary, subject to change. Page 42 GO Refunding 2014



New 
Business 
Item No. 4 

4. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. 2014-80 – A
resolution authorizing publication of notice of intention to issue Certificates
of Obligation, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $5,000,000,
for the acquisition, construction and improvement of certain public works,
authorizing distribution of a preliminary official statement relating to such
series of certificates and authorizing certain other matters relating thereto.
Ms. Claire Bogard, Director of Finance.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:   July 28, 2014 ITEM NO.:  

DATE SUBMITTED: July 17, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Finance 

PREPARED BY:  Claire Bogard PRESENTOR:   Claire Bogard 

REVIEWED BY: REVIEW DATE: 

SUBJECT:    Notice of Intent to Issue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014 

EXHIBITS:    Resolution #R2014-80                
Notice of Intent to Issue Certificates of Obligation 

 Power Point Presentation 
 Memo to City Council – Certificate of Obligation and W/S Bonds 

     City Hall Renovations 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:      AMOUNT BUDGETED: 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:        PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO.:   

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
  X Finance X Legal        Ordinance X Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 
Pursuant to the Certificate of Obligation Act in the Local Government Code, 271.041, the fiscal year 
2014 budget included issuing $4.3 million in Certificates of Obligation for the following projects: 

CJP 7/21/2014 

Page 1 for CO Notice of Intent

Resolution No. R2014-80



Original Revised 
Project  Budget  Amount 
SCR Trail   38,994 
Green Tee Trail   86,987 
City Hall Complex   372,952   400,000 
Fire Station #3  2,822,423 3,227,423 
Fire Station #2    473,640   473,640 
Hillhouse Phase II    300,000 
Orange St. Service Center   290,000 
Construction Management   231,687   231,687 
Total    $4,326,683   $4,622,750 

The Certificates will fund design and construction or renovation of facilities that were not 
included in the 2007 bond referendum.  The only facilities that were addressed in the 2007 bond 
referendum were the expansion of the Tom Reid Library, the Nature Center, Fire Station #5, 
and the Recreation/Natatorium.  Additional need for 24/7 manned fire stations and renovation of 
existing facilities were not addressed at that time, however enhanced fire service requires the 
relocation and construction of a new Fire Station #2 and #3 and renovation and expansion of 
existing City facilities, mainly City Hall and the Orange Street Service Center, for space, 
security, and functionality needs are required.   Pursuant to the City Council retreat in March, 
staff provided information via the July 3rd Administrative packet comparing the cost of 
renovation of the existing City Hall/Community to that of a new facility, which was at a much 
higher cost.  (memo from July 3 packet regarding City Hall attached) 
The dollar amount of the issuance is higher than budgeted by $296,067 mainly due to Fire 
Station #3, based on the bid and currently under construction, as construction costs are 
increasing.    Hillhouse Annex Phase II dollars are being reallocated to the renovation of the 
Orange Street Service Center, which is a more pressing need and the trail projects are being 
funded with cash versus issuing bonds.  The revised bond amount was built into the long-range 
plan shared with City Council during the discussion on the General Obligation Debt and tax rate 
impacts. 

The Certificate of Obligation Act allows the governing body to issue certificates for professional 
services (ie: engineers, architects, appraisers, etc.) and construction associated for any public 
work.  Work has begun on most of these projects and City Council approved a notice of intent to 
be reimbursed from future bond proceeds in October 2013; Resolution R2013-164.   Certificates 
of Obligation, while not approved for the votes, allows for a public process.   

BID AND AWARD 
Prior to issuing the bonds, the City must publish notice of its intention to issue certificates.  The 
notice must be published once a week for 2 consecutive weeks in a newspaper that is of 
general circulation in the area with the date of the first publication to be before the 30th day 
tentatively set for the sale of the bonds.  The notice must state time and place tentatively set for 
the sale of the bonds, maximum amount and purpose of the certificates to be authorized, and 
the manner in which the bonds will be paid for, ie: property taxes, revenues, etc.   The Act 
includes provision for petition, 5% of the qualified voters, to require a vote of citizens, as 
required by state law. 

Page 2 for CO Notice of Intent



The certificates will be competitively bid, handled by the city’s financial advisor, with bid date of 
Monday, September 22, 2014.        

SCHEDULE 
Notice will be published on July 30th and August 6th with competitive bids taken on September 
22, 2014 and approval of the sale that evening by City Council.  The actual Ordinance 
approving the sale of the bonds will be a First and Final reading and declaring an 
emergency as pricing and the bond market would not allow the City to hold the bids for 
two weeks.  The Bonds will close in October. 

CURRENT AND FUTURE FUNDING /FINANCIAL IMPACTS/DEBT SERVICE 
The Certificates of Obligation will be structured with a 20-year maturity, level principal payment 
with a declining annual debt service payment.   For fiscal year 2015 annual debt service is 
estimated at $494,000.   This was incorporated into the five-year and long term forecast shared 
with City Council on the debt service tax rate. 

DISCUSSION WATER-SEWER REVENUE BONDS 
Running on the concurrent schedule with the Certificates of Obligation, will be the sale of 
Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds, in the amount of $9,210,000 to construction.   This is $2.3 million 
lower than the memo shared with council on July 3, 2014 due to timing the construction of the 
Far Northwest Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion with when the dollars will be needed.  

Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds are backed and paid for by the water/sewer system revenues 
generated by the rates of the system.   There is no public notice or voter approved bond 
propositions required with the sale of these bonds.  There is no specific pre-sale action required 
of council other than concurrence to proceed with the preliminary official statement and bond 
process.  City Council did approve an Intent to Reimburse from Future Bond Proceeds in 
October 2013 for the projects; Resolution R2013-164.   Projects are as follows:  

Project Original Budget Revised Amount
McHard Rd Waterline 6,883,947 2,753,235 
SH35 Waterline 1,500,000 1,500,000 
Far NW WWTP Exp 6,832,000 1,032,000 
Mykawa/Scott LS 358,205 - 
Hatfield Trunk Basin 2,255,000 2,255,000 
Longwood Service Area 644,190 644,190 
West Oaks LS 143,350 286,350 
Oak Brook LS 256,190 256,190 
Pearland Heights LS 255,024 255,024 
McHard Rd Trunk Sewer 225,745 225,745 
Total 19,353,651$              9,207,734$               

Page 3 for CO Notice of Intent



The amount of the bonds is $10.1 million less than anticipated mainly due to project timing of 
the Treatment Plant Expansion and McHard Road Waterline has been split into two phases. 
The amount of the bond issue has been built into the water/sewer rate model.  As anticipated 
with last year’s forecast, fiscal year 2015 will require a revenue increase of 4.63% for the 
payment of operations, debt service and to cover the 1.4 times coverage required by our bond 
covenants and 25% reserve policy. 

The City remains on the 25-year maturity schedule for the water/sewer revenue bonds with an 
annual debt service amount estimated at $671,000. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consideration and Approval of a Resolution Authorizing Publication Of Notice Of Intention To 
Issue Certificates Of Obligation, In An Aggregate Principal Amount Not To Exceed $5,000,000, 
For The Acquisition, Construction And Improvement Of Certain Public Works, Authorizing Dis-
tribution Of A Preliminary Official Statement Relating To Such Series Of Certificates And Au-
thorizing Certain Other Matters Relating Thereto  
. 

Page 4 for CO Notice of Intent



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-80 

A Resolution authorizing publication of notice of intention to issue 
Certificates of Obligation, in an aggregate principal amount not to 
exceed $5,000,000, for the acquisition, construction and 
improvement of certain public works, authorizing distribution of a 
preliminary official statement relating to such series of certificates 
and authorizing certain other matters relating thereto. 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTIES OF BRAZORIA, FORT BEND AND HARRIS § 
CITY OF PEARLAND  § 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Pearland, Texas 

(the “City”), is authorized to issue certificates of obligation to pay contractual obligations 

to be incurred for the construction of public works, for the purchase of materials, 

supplies, equipment, machinery, buildings, land and rights-of-way for authorized needs 

and purposes, and for the payment of contractual obligations for professional services 

pursuant to Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as 

amended; 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interests of the 

City and otherwise desirable to issue the City of Pearland, Texas Certificates of 

Obligation, Series 2014 in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $5,000,000 (the 

“Certificates”) for the design, engineering, acquisition and construction of certain public 

works and the purchase of certain equipment for authorized needs and purposes; 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Certificates, the City Council intends to 

publish notices of intent to issue the Certificates (the “Notice”) in a newspaper of 

general circulation in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with and has examined the 

proposed forms of Notice and finds that the forms and substance thereof are 

satisfactory, and that the recitals and findings contained therein are true, correct and 

complete. 

Page 5 for CO Notice of Intent



BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  Preamble. The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of 

this Resolution are hereby found and declared to be true and correct. 

Section 2.  Authorization of Notice.  The City Secretary is hereby authorized 

and directed to execute and deliver the Notice set forth in Exhibit A hereto and to 

publish such Notice on behalf of the City once a week for two (2) consecutive weeks in 

a newspaper which is of general circulation in the City, the date of the first publication of 

the Notice to be at least thirty-one (31) days before the date tentatively set in the Notice 

for the passage of the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the each series of the 

Certificates. 

Section 3. Engagement of Professionals.  This City Council hereby approves 

the engagement of Andrews Kurth LLP, as bond counsel (“Bond Counsel”) in 

connection with the issuance of the Certificates. 

Section 4. Authorization of Other Matters Relating Thereto.  The Mayor, City 

Secretary and other officers and agents of the City are hereby authorized and directed 

to do any and all things necessary or desirable to carry out the provisions of this 

Resolution. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 

passage. 

Section 6. Public Meeting.  It is officially found, determined and declared that 

the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice 

of the time, place and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such 

meeting, including this Resolution, was given all as required by the Texas Government 

Code, Chapter 551, as amended. 

Page 6 for CO Notice of Intent



PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the ______ day of _____________, 

A.D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

Page 7 for CO Notice of Intent



EXHIBIT A 
NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ISSUE CERTIFICATES 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas 
(the “City”) will meet at its regular meeting place at City Hall, Pearland, Texas at 6:30 
p.m. on the 22nd day of September, 2014, which is the time and place tentatively set for 
the passage of an ordinance and such other action as may be deemed necessary to 
authorize the issuance of the City’s certificates of obligation, payable from ad valorem 
taxation and a limited (in an amount not to exceed $10,000) subordinate pledge of 
certain revenues of the water and sewer system of the City, in the maximum aggregate 
principal amount of $5,000,000, bearing interest at any rate or rates, not to exceed the 
maximum interest rate now or hereafter authorized by law, as shall be determined within 
the discretion of the City Council at the time of issuance and maturing over a period of 
years not to exceed forty (40) years from the date thereof, for the purpose of evidencing 
the indebtedness of the City to pay all or any part of the contractual obligations to be 
incurred for the construction of public works and the purchase of materials, supplies, 
equipment, machinery, buildings, land and rights-of-way for authorized needs and 
purposes and for the payment of contractual obligations for professional services, to wit: 
(i) improvements, renovations and additions to the existing public works service center 
located at East Orange Street and Old Alvin Road; (iii) acquisition of land for and the 
design and construction of two new fire stations located at Yost Road and FM 518 and 
at Harkey Road and Fite Road; (iv) project management for parks, street and facility 
capital projects within the City; (v) renovations to the existing City Hall Complex; and (vi) 
professional services rendered in connection with the above listed projects.   

WITNESS MY HAND AND THE OFFICIAL SEAL OF THE CITY, this ___ day of 
July, 2014. 

__________________________ 
City Secretary 
City of Pearland, Texas  

Page 8 for CO Notice of Intent



Page 9 for CO Notice of Intent



Page 10 for CO Notice of Intent



Page 11 for CO Notice of Intent



Page 12 for CO Notice of Intent



Page 13 for CO Notice of Intent



Page 14 for CO Notice of Intent



Page 15 for CO Notice of Intent



Page 16 for CO Notice of Intent



ppatke
Rectangle





Overview of: 

$4,625,000* Certificates of  Obligation, Series 2014 
$9,210,000* Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 

July 28, 2014 

Broker/Dealer Services and Securities offered by BOSC, Inc., an SEC registered investment adviser, a registered broker/dealer, member FINRA/SIPC. SEC registration does not imply a certain level of skill or 
training. Insurance offered by BOSC Agency, Inc., an affiliated agency.  Investments and insurance are not insured by FDIC, are not deposits or other obligations of, and are not guaranteed by, any bank or bank 
affiliate. Investments are subject to risks, including possible loss of principal amount invested. 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

* Preliminary, subject to change.

Page 17 for CO Notice of Intent



1 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Current Market Conditions 

The BBI 20 is published every Thursday. The rate consists of general obligation bonds maturing in 20 years with an average rating equivalent to Moody’s “Aa2” and 
S&P’s “AA.” The BBI 25 is also published every Thursday. The rate consists of revenue bonds maturing in 30 years with an average rating equivalent to Moody’s “A1” 
and S&P’s “A+”. 

3.00

3.50

4.00

4.50

5.00

5.50

6.00

6.50

7.00

7.50

8.00

(%
)

Bond Buyer Index of 20 Municipal Bonds and 25 Municipal Bonds
January 1990 to Present

BBI 20 General Obligation Debt
BBI 25 Revenue Debt

4.31%
Fixed Rates of Interest 

Bond Buyer Index of 20 Muni. General Obligation Bonds
High 7.56% / Low 3.27% / Average 5.19%

Bond Buyer Index of 25 Muni. Revenue Bonds
High 7.83% / Low 4.06% / Average 5.59%

4.90%

Page 18 for CO Notice of Intent



2 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Estimated Debt Service Requirements – Certificates of Obligation – 20-Year Level Principal 

* Preliminary, subject to change.
(a) Includes the results of the proposed $34,475,000 Permanent Improvement and Refunding Bonds. 
(b) Interest estimated at current market rates. 

FY Current Total
Ending Total Debt Debt Service
(9/30) Service (a) Principal* Interest (a) Total Requirements*
2014 $24,213,633 $24,213,633
2015 25,541,967 $230,000 $264,042 $494,042 26,036,009
2016 25,519,673 235,000 213,875 448,875 25,968,548
2017 25,495,699 230,000 202,250 432,250 25,927,949
2018 25,460,115 230,000 190,750 420,750 25,880,865
2019 25,432,188 230,000 179,250 409,250 25,841,438
2020 25,405,072 230,000 167,750 397,750 25,802,822
2021 25,370,305 230,000 156,250 386,250 25,756,555
2022 25,307,329 230,000 144,750 374,750 25,682,079
2023 25,272,295 230,000 133,250 363,250 25,635,545
2024 26,182,596 230,000 121,750 351,750 26,534,346
2025 26,152,718 235,000 110,125 345,125 26,497,843
2026 24,492,302 230,000 98,500 328,500 24,820,802
2027 24,447,738 235,000 86,875 321,875 24,769,613
2028 24,526,959 235,000 75,125 310,125 24,837,084
2029 24,490,046 230,000 63,500 293,500 24,783,546
2030 15,658,640 230,000 52,000 282,000 15,940,640
2031 15,617,658 230,000 40,500 270,500 15,888,158
2032 15,602,631 230,000 29,000 259,000 15,861,631
2033 4,274,681 230,000 17,500 247,500 4,522,181
2034 4,237,044 235,000 5,875 240,875 4,477,919
2035 1,784,856 1,784,856
2036 1,013,772 1,013,772
2037 663,938 663,938
2038 654,800 654,800

Totals $462,818,654 $4,625,000 $2,352,917 $6,977,917 $469,796,571 

Plus:  The Certificates*

Page 19 for CO Notice of Intent



3 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

Estimated Debt Service Requirements – Water and Sewer System – 25-Year Level Debt 

* Preliminary, subject to change.
(a) Interest estimated at current market rates. 

FY Current Total
Ending Total Debt Debt Service
(9/30) Service Principal* Interest (a) Total Requirements*
2014 $8,587,124 $8,587,124
2015 8,580,569 $150,000 $523,819 $673,819 9,254,388
2016 8,583,109 195,000 475,650 670,650 9,253,759
2017 8,584,214 210,000 465,413 675,413 9,259,626
2018 8,581,211 220,000 454,388 674,388 9,255,599
2019 8,579,390 230,000 442,838 672,838 9,252,228
2020 8,580,168 240,000 430,763 670,763 9,250,930
2021 8,630,958 255,000 418,163 673,163 9,304,120
2022 8,628,120 270,000 404,775 674,775 9,302,895
2023 8,631,720 280,000 390,600 670,600 9,302,320
2024 8,628,169 295,000 375,900 670,900 9,299,069
2025 8,631,474 310,000 360,413 670,413 9,301,886
2026 8,632,949 330,000 344,138 674,138 9,307,086
2027 8,631,686 345,000 326,813 671,813 9,303,499
2028 8,632,325 365,000 308,700 673,700 9,306,025
2029 8,632,813 385,000 289,538 674,538 9,307,350
2030 8,632,306 405,000 269,325 674,325 9,306,631
2031 8,628,088 425,000 248,063 673,063 9,301,150
2032 4,335,250 445,000 225,750 670,750 5,006,000
2033 4,339,575 470,000 202,388 672,388 5,011,963
2034 4,339,300 495,000 177,713 672,713 5,012,013
2035 1,255,725 520,000 151,725 671,725 1,927,450
2036 370,556 550,000 124,425 674,425 1,044,981
2037 373,050 575,000 95,550 670,550 1,043,600
2038 605,000 65,363 670,363 670,363
2039 640,000 33,600 673,600 673,600

Totals $170,029,847 $9,210,000 $7,605,806 $16,815,806 $186,845,653 

Plus:  The WSS Bonds*

Page 20 for CO Notice of Intent



4 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

* Preliminary, subject to change.
(a) Includes estimated transaction costs. 

Principal Amount of the Bonds: $4,625,000 Principal Amount of the Bonds: $9,210,000
Plus:  Net Premium: 101,750                  Plus:  Net Premium: 155,670                  
Less:  Expenses: 101,750                  Less:  Expenses: 155,670                  

Underwriters' Discount 32,375               Underwriters' Discount 64,470             
Rating Agencies 10,000               Rating Agencies 14,000             
Bond Counsel 18,000               Bond Counsel 25,000             
Financial Advisor 17,000               Financial Advisor 23,000             
Attorney General Fee 4,625                 Attorney General Fee 9,120               
Printing/Distribution 9,000                 Printing/Distribution 9,000               
Miscellaneous 10,250               Miscellaneous 10,580             
Paying Agent/Trustee 500 Paying Agent/Trustee 500 
Total Proceeds: $4,625,000 Total Proceeds: $9,210,000

Estimated "All Cost" True Interest Rate (a): 3.875% Estimated "All Cost" True Interest Rate (a): 4.241%
Average Life: 10.062 Years Average Life: 15.484 Years

$9,210,000* Water and Sewer System$4,625,000* Certificates of Obligation,

City of Pearland, Texas

Series 2014  Revenue Bonds, Series 2014

Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds 

Page 21 for CO Notice of Intent



5 

City of  Pearland, Texas 

July - 2014
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

August - 2014
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

September - 2014
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30

October - 2014
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

Tentative Schedule of Events 

* Preliminary, subject to change.

Date Action Role 

Monday, July 28th Council Meeting to Review Schedule of Events BOSC, City, AK 
    and Authorize Notice of Intent to Issue CO’s 

Tuesday, July 29th First Draft of Notice of Sale (NOS) and BOSC 
     Preliminary Official Statement (POS) 

Wednesday, July 30th First Notice Published City 

Tuesday, August 5th Second Draft of POS BOSC, AK, City 

Wednesday, August 6th Second Notice Published City 

Week of August 18th Rating Agency Calls BOSC, City 

Tuesday, August 26th Final Draft of POS  BOSC, AK, City 

Friday, September 5th Print and Distribute Final NOS & POS BOSC 

Monday, September 22nd Pricing of Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014 BOSC, AK, City, UW 
    and Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, 
    Series 2014 

Thursday, October 16th Bond Closings BOSC, AK, City, UW 

PARTICIPANTS 
City - City of Pearland, Texas 

BOSC - BOSC, Inc. 
AK - Andrews Kurth LLP 

UW - Underwriters 

$4,625,000* $9,210,000* 
Certificates of Obligation, 

Series 2014 
Water and Sewer System 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 

Page 22 for CO Notice of Intent



New 
Business 
Item No. 5 

5. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-84 – A
resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, determining
the public necessity for certain water line/hydrant improvements in the
vicinity of SH 35 and Alice Street.  Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City
Manager.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:   July 28, 2014 ITEM NO.:  

DATE SUBMITTED: July 18, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Public Works 

PREPARED BY: Trent Epperson PRESENTOR:  Clay Pearson 

REVIEWED BY: Trent Epperson REVIEW DATE:  July 23, 2014 

SUBJECT: SH35 Water Line and Hydrant 

EXHIBITS:   R2014-84; A – Aerial of Property; B – Distance from Hydrant to 
Buildings Map;    C – Map with Previously Existing and Current Water 
Line Infrastructure     

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: NA AMOUNT BUDGETED:  
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO.:   
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance  X  Legal  Ordinance X  Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Make the findings of the attached resolution and request staff to pursue completion of 
the additional parallel waterline on the east side of SH35, south of Alice Street, to 
provide water service to the subject parcel and parcels further to the south.   

BACKGROUND 

To accommodate the State’s widening of SH35, the City of Pearland worked with the 
Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) to have the water and sanitary sewer 
utilities within the state’s right-of-way relocated. This project generally consisted of 
replacing the existing eight inch waterlines with a new 16” water line on the west side of 
SH35.  All existing connections to the previous waterline, including fire lines and 

Resolution No. R2014-84



domestic service lines were re-connected to the newly installed system.  The project 
also included constructing sanitary sewer lines along the east side of SH35.   

At Council Meetings in June and early July, a concern with the removal of the 8” water 
line and fire hydrant due to the SH35 project were discussed.  The waterline and 
hydrant were generally located on the east side of SH35 and south of Alice Street.  The 
discussion centered around three issues:   

1) The capability of the previously existing 8” line and hydrant to service future
buildings as proposed by Profax

2) Whether staff was aware of the proposed new building(s) at the time the waterline
was designed and whether proper notice of the waterline’s relocation had been
provided to existing businesses

3) Whether the removal of the hydrant affected the existing building’s compliance with
the Fire Code.

Issue 1:  The capability of the previously existing 8” waterline and hydrant to service 
future buildings as proposed by Profax 

The previously existing waterline was eight (8) inches in diameter.  It would not be able 
to provide enough flow to meet the proposed new building’s needs. 

Issue 2: Whether staff was aware of the proposed new building(s) at the time the 
waterline was designed and whether proper notice of the waterline’s relocation had 
been provided to existing businesses  

The design of the waterline started in approximately 2001 and was complete in 2009. 
Construction followed in 2010.  Since 2001the following permits were issued for the 
associated sites: 

5/11/2004 – Foundation Repair – 04-2573 
8/17/2006 – Site Work - Grading, Drainage, Paving and Landscaping 06-5223 
8/17/2006 – Building Permit – Office Area & Equipment Refurbishing 12,500 sq ft Office 
and Warehouse 
6/11/2010 – Permit for a generator hook up 
1/11/2011 – Electrical Permit 
12/16/2011 – Permit for new detention and driveway 
5/21/2014 – Pre-Development Meeting 

No Utility Availability Request was made during this time period. 

Opportunities to review the proposed plans for the SH35 project were as follows: 

Public Meeting – July 14, 2005 
Notice to Afford the Opportunity for a Public Hearing – July 12-August 11, 2006 
Public Meeting – 2009 

Standard practice at these public meeting is to have a full set of plans available or 
available upon request. 

Issue 3: Whether the removal of the hydrant affected the existing building’s compliance 
with the Fire Code. 



The existing building was built in three stages in 1980, 1986, and 1990.  The City first 
adopted a Fire Code in 1990.  It was the Standard Fire Prevention Code 1988 Edition, 
which had a 500’ maximum distance from hydrant to any outside point of a building. 
The only major change to the code occurred in 2004 when the City adopted the 
International Fire Code 2000 Edition, which reduced the distance to 400’.  Subsequent 
code updates have not affected this portion of the code. 

Based on the building construction dates and code adoptions under which the existing 
buildings were previously approved, the buildings are considered existing non-
compliant, which means they do not meet the current fire code.  If the hydrant had 
remained the existing buildings would still not meet the fire code.    The code 
requirements that would trigger a building upgrade to the current code are a large 
renovation, change of use, or discontinuation of occupancy for six months or greater. 
The attached Exhibit B shows the approximate distance from the previously existing 
fire hydrant on SH35 to the end of the existing buildings.   

A summary of the Code Compliance issue is below: 
• The existing building did not meet the code prior to the hydrant removal
• The buildings were built over many years and different code requirements
• The hydrant removal did reduce the fire coverage for the existing building but did

not affect its compliance/non-compliance with the code
• Additional water is available in the immediate area from the new 16” waterline

than could be utilized from the previously existing waterlines

Another way to consider the situation is:   
What would need to be completed for the proposed new building if the SH35 project had 
not occurred and the 8” waterline and hydrant still existed?   

The new building requires three hydrants and the 8” waterline would not provide 
required flow to support three hydrants (3,000 gallons per minute).  To provide enough 
flow for the three hydrants the owner would have three options: 

1) Construct a 12” waterline from Alice Street to their site
2) Utilize the 8” waterline and bring a second 8” waterline from Alice Street or from the

Water Plant area
3) Construct an on-site tank with pumps to provide enough water to make-up for the

flows that the 8” waterline cannot meet.

In addition to the water line item requirements above the owner would have been 
responsible for the following: 

1) Bringing a sanitary sewer line to the parcel, assuming the sanitary sewer line that
serves the existing building does not have the depth or capacity to serve the new
building.  (With the SH35 project, the parcel now has a new sanitary sewer line on its
side of SH35 for the connection.)

2) Building a sidewalk for the entire frontage along SH35 for the parcel containing the
new building.

Other Considerations 



Staff reviewed the rest of the SH35 corridor to determine if any other water line or 
hydrant abandonments resulted in a similar situation.  There is one additional property 
on the northeast corner of SH35 and Halik Street that had a hydrant within 
approximately 300’ of existing buildings.  Public Works will add a hydrant to the new 
water line that connects to the old line on Halik Street.  All other hydrants were 
reconnected to the new system.  See Exhibit C. 

City Constructed Water Line Extension 

If the City decides to move forward with a project to provide a new waterline and fire 
hydrant to the parcel, the plan is to tie into the 12” waterline at Alice Street, construct a 
12” waterline within the 25’ water/sewer easement along the east side of SH35 right-of-
way and locate hydrants along the way at the standard spacing of 300’.  The separation 
requirement between the water and sewer line can be met based on the depth of the 
sewer line and width of the easement.   The waterline will be extended to the southern 
property line of the Profax parcel.  A cost estimate for this work is $150,000.  Design, 
bid, and construction of the project will take approximately six months.  Funding will 
need to be allocated from the Water & Sewer fund. 



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-84 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
determining the public necessity for certain water line/fire hydrant 
improvements in the vicinity of SH 35 and Alice Street. 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the need for adequate fire 
protection in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the construction of water lines and fire hydrants in the City 
will help preserve the health, safety and welfare of property owners in the City; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the construction of 
certain water line/fire hydrant improvements in the vicinity of SH 35 and Alice 
Street will serve the publics interest. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  That the City Council hereby authorizes staff to proceed with 

the development of public water line/hydrant improvements in the vicinity of SH 35 

and Alice Street. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this _______ day of _______________, 
A.D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



tepperson
Text Box
2003 Aerial Photo

tepperson
Callout
Fire Hydrant Location



CITY OF PEARLAND

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.!A

!A

!A
!A

!A

!A

!A

E

G!.

G!.

M
A

IN
 S

T

MCHARD RD

ALICE

311

374

525

¡ M A P  P R E P A R E D :  J u l y  2 3 ,  2 0 1 4
C I T Y  O F  P E A R L A N D   P u b l i c  W o r k s

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

0 40 8020

Feet

Alice @ Hwy35 WaterlineExpansion
phase 1

Legend

Prop_Plug

E Prop_Tee

G!. Prop_FireHydrant

Proposed WaterLine

Distance

!A Previous Existing Fire Hydrant

1 inch = 40 feet1:480 or

Fire Hydrant
Before the Highway 35 Project

New Fire Hydrant to be Installed.
(to meet spacing requirements for the proposed waterline extension)

Proposed location for the Fire Hydrant to be installed.
(original location would have the Fire Hydrant located in the new sidewalk)



CITY OF PEARLAND

G!.
G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.
G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

(

(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

M
A

IN
 S

T

HALIK

PR
O

FA
X

 D
R

RICE DRIER RD

ALICE

MCHARD RD

8

8

6

8

12

8

8

6

12

12

15

8

6

10

8

8

6

16

8

8

8

8

¡ M A P  P R E P A R E D :  J u l y  2 3 ,  2 0 1 4
C I T Y  O F  P E A R L A N D   P u b l i c  W o r k s

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

0 40 8020

FeetWater System Layout
Before and After the

Hwy35 Project

1 inch = 120 feet1:1,440 or

Waterline before the Highway 35 Project

New Waterline Installed
During the Highway 35 Project

Legend

Fire Hydrants

Abandond
Waterlines

G!. Fire Hydrants

Waterlines (new or remained in service)

   HIGHWAY 35 PROJECT
 WATER SYSTEM LAYOUT

BEFORE  AFTER

(

FIRE HYDRANT
before Hwy35 Project

FIRE HYDRANT
before Hwy35 Project



New 
Business 
Item No. 6 

6. Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No.
CUP 2014-04 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland,
Texas, approving a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), for certain property, being
legally described as a tract or parcel containing 1.1019 acres or 
47,999 square feet of land, out of a called 9.993 acre tract situated in 
the H.T. & B.R.R. CO. Survey, Abstract No. 506, Brazoria County, 
Texas Conveyed to the Old Place, Inc. as recorded in the Brazoria 
County Clerk’s File No. 97-001270, Brazoria County, Texas, the parent tract
being located at the northwest corner of Broadway Street and Hillhouse
Road,Pearland, TX., for Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP2014-
04, to  allow for the construction of an Auto Wash (Self Service), with the
General  Business (GB) zoning district; at the request of Chan Patel
with Sparkles  Express, applicant; on behalf of The Old Place, Inc., owner;
containing a savings  clause, a severability clause and an effective date and
other provisions related to the subject.   Ms. Lata Krishnarao, Director of
Community Development.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF: July 28, 2014                  ITEM NO.: Ordinance No.  CUP2014-04  

DATE SUBMITTED: July 14, 2014        DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning PREPARED 

BY: Johnna Matthews      PRESENTOR:  Lata Krishnarao REVIEWED BY: Lata 

Krishnarao         REVIEW DATE:  July 24, 2014 

SUBJECT: A request of Chan Patel with Sparkles Express, applicant; on behalf 
of The Old Place, Inc., owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) to allow for an Auto Wash (Self Service) within the General 
Business (GB) zoning district, on approximately 1.10 acres of land, 
included within a larger tract of approximately 9.9 acres. 

   General Location: Approximately 1.1 acres of land included within a 
larger tract of land located at the northwest corner of Broadway Street 
and Hillhouse Road, Pearland, Texas 

ATTACHMENTS:      Ordinance No. CUP2014-04 and Exhibits (Exhibit A –          
 Legal Description; Exhibit B – Location Map; Exhibit C - 
 Site Plan; Exhibit D- Legal Ad; Exhibit E -  Planning and  
 Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter); Joint Public 
 Hearing Memo, Joint Public Hearing Staff Report,  Site Plan, 
 Architectural Renderings, Aerial Map, Zoning Map, FLUP 
 Map, Notification Map, Notification List, Applicant Packet          

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 

To be completed by Department: 
    Finance     Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct an 
Auto Wash (Self Service) on approximately 1.1 acres out of a called 9.993-acre tract. 
According to the applicant, the proposed express tunnel car wash is designed to 
automatically wash and dry vehicles through the tunnel entrance, where an attendant 
will guide the vehicle onto the conveyer.  Blowers at the end of the conveyer will dry the 
vehicle before the customer exits the tunnel.  This activity meets the initial definition of 
“Auto Wash (Self Service), as explained in the definition per the UDC. 

Access will be from Broadway Street via an existing access easement just west of the 
subject property, where customers will enter, pay at one of the auto cashiers, move 
through the tunnel, stop at the vacuum cleaners, if necessary, and exit back onto 
Broadway Street via the existing access easement.  The existing access easement 
currently provides access to Candlewood Suites and Texas Children’s Medical office. 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notices, comment forms, and a vicinity map were 
mailed to the applicant as well as property owners within 200 feet of the subject 
property under consideration for the conditional use permit.  Staff received one (1) 
notice in favor of the request and eight (8) notices in opposition to the request.  It is 
important to note, however, that the notices returned in opposition to the request were 
not from property owners within 200 feet of the site.  According to the Texas Local 
Government Code, if 20% of the landowners (as indicated by the tax rolls) within 200 
feet of the site are opposed to the request, a supermajority vote is required by City 
Council.  Additionally, at the public hearing on May 19, 2014, a nearby business owner 
indicated that the applicant did not post signs on the property.  However, the business 
owner provided a letter (Returned Notices) retracting his statement and his original 
opposition.   

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION:  At the regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on May 19, 2014, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission postponed the item, as they wanted more detailed information regarding 
the screening of the opening to the tunnel fronting Broadway Street, screening details 
regarding the vacuum stalls and elevations of the proposed building. 

At their regular meeting on July 7, 2014, Commissioner Elizabeth McLane made a 
motion to approve the CUP.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Mary Starr.  
The motion passed 6/0. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Consider CUP2014-04 to construct an 
Auto Wash (Self Service) on approximately 1.1 acres of a called 9.9 acre tract as per 
the attached site plan. 



Ordinance No. CUP 2014-04 

An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, approving a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP), for certain property, being legally described as a 
tract or parcel containing 1.1019 acres or 47,999 square feet of land, out of a 
called 9.993 acre tract situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. CO. Survey, Abstract No. 
506, Brazoria County, Texas Conveyed to the Old Place, Inc. as recorded in the 
Brazoria County Clerk’s File No. 97-001270, Brazoria County, Texas, the parent 
tract being located at the northwest corner of Broadway Street and Hillhouse 
Road, Pearland, TX., for Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP2014-04, to 
allow for the construction of an Auto Wash (Self Service), with the General 
Business (GB) zoning district; at the request of Chan Patel with Sparkles 
Express, applicant; on behalf of The Old Place, Inc., owner; containing a savings 
clause, a severability clause and an effective date and other provisions 
related to the subject.  

WHEREAS, Chan Patel with Sparkles Express, applicant; on behalf of The Old 

Place, Inc., owner; is seeking approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for 

an Auto Wash (Self Service) within the General Business (GB) zoning district, on 

approximately 1.10 acres of land on; said property being legally described in the original 

application for amendment attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as 

Exhibit “A” and more graphically depicted in the location map identified as Exhibit “B” 

and the site plan identified as Exhibit “C”; and 

WHEREAS, on the 19th day of May, 2014, a Joint Public Hearing was held 

before the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the City of 

Pearland, Texas, notice being given by publication in the official newspaper of the City, 

the affidavit of publication being attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as Exhibit "D", said call and notice being in strict conformity with provisions of 

Section 1.2.2.2 of Ordinance No.  2000T; and 

WHEREAS, on the 8th day of July, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

of the City submitted its report and recommendation to the City Council regarding the 



conditional use permit application of Chan Patel with Sparkles Express, applicant; on 

behalf of The Old Place, Inc., owner; to allow for the construction of an Auto Wash (Self 

Service) on 1.1 acres of land out of a called 9.993 acres, said recommendation attached 

hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as Exhibit “E”; and  

WHEREAS, upon receipt of the report from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, City Council considered this application and the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission at regular meetings on the 28th day of July 2014 and 

the 11th day of August 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council having fully heard the testimony and argument of all 

interested parties, and having been fully advised in the premises, finds that in the case 

of the application of Chan Patel with Sparkles Express, applicant; on behalf of The Old 

Place, Inc., owner; to allow for the construction of an Auto Wash (Self Service) on 1.1 

acres of land out of a called 9.993 acres of land, presented which, in the judgment of 

the City Council, would justify the approval of said application; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section I.  The following described property located within the corporate City 

 Limits of the City of Pearland, Texas, and presently located within the General 

Business (GB) zoning district, is hereby granted a conditional use permit to allow for an 

Auto Wash (Self Service) in said zoning district and consistent with the attached site 

plan; such property being more particularly described as: 

A tract or parcel containing 1.1019 acres or 47,999 square feet of land, out of a 
called 9.993 acre tract situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. CO. Survey, Abstract No. 
506, Brazoria County, Texas Conveyed to the Old Place, Inc. as recorded in the 
Brazoria County Clerk’s File No. 97-001270, Brazoria County, Texas 

GENERAL LOCATION:   Approximately 1.1 acres of land included in a larger 

Page 2 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-04 



tract of land located at the northwest corner of Broadway Street and Hillhouse Road, 
Pearland, Texas 

     Section II.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that  
the recitations in the preamble hereof are true and that all necessary 
prerequisites of law have been accomplished and that no valid protest of the 
proposed change has been made.  The City Council further finds and determines 
that there has been compliance with the mandates of law in the posting and 
presentation of this matter to the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the 
City Council for consideration and decision. 

Section III.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that 

the amendment adopted herein promotes the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

public and is a proper valid exercise of the City's police powers. 

Section IV.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions thereof. 

Section V.  All rights and remedies, which have accrued in the favor of the City 

under this Ordinance and its amendments thereto, shall be and are preserved for the 

benefit of the City. 

Section VI.  This Ordinance shall become effective after its passage and 

approval on second and final reading. 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on First Reading this 28th day of July, 

Page 3 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-04 



2014. 

_________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR  

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on Second and Final Reading this 11th 

day of August, 2014. 

__________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

Page 4 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-04 



Exhibit A 
Legal Description 

A tract or parcel containing 1.1019 acres or 47,999 square feet of land, out of a 
called 9.993 acre tract situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. CO. Survey, Abstract No. 506, 
Brazoria County, Texas Conveyed to the Old Place, Inc. as recorded in the Brazoria 
County Clerk’s File No. 97-001270, Brazoria County, Texas 

Page 5 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-04 



Ex
hi

bi
t B

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
M

ap
 

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 1

0 
O

rd
. N

o.
 C

U
P

 2
01

4-
04

 



Exhibit C 
Site Plan 

Page 7 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-04 



Exhibit D 
Legal Ad 

Page 8 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-04 



Exhibit E 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter 

July 8, 2014 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 

Re: Recommendation on Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP 2014-04 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 

At their regular meeting on July 7, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
considered the following:   

A request of Chan Patel with Sparkles Express, applicant; on behalf of The Old 
Place, Inc., owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for an 
Auto Wash (Self Service) within the General Business (GB) zoning district, on 
approximately 1.10 acres of land on the following described property, to wit: 

Legal Description:  A tract or parcel containing 1.1019 acres or 47,999 square 
feet of land, out of a called 9.993 acre tract situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. CO. 
Survey, Abstract No. 506, Brazoria County, Texas Conveyed to the Old Place, 
Inc. as recorded in the Brazoria County Clerk’s File No. 97-001270, Brazoria 
County, Texas 

General Location:  Approximately 1.1 acres of land included in a larger tract of 
land located at the northwest corner of Broadway Street and Hillhouse Road, 
Pearland, Texas 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the proposed site plan and 
Commissioner  Elizabeth McLane made a motion to approve the Conditional Use 

Page 9 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-04 



Permit.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Mary Starr.  The motion passed 
(6-0).  

Sincerely, 

Johnna Matthews 

City Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Page 10 of 10 
Ord. No. CUP 2014-04 



Memo 
To:   City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of 

   Pearland 
From: Planning Department 
Date: May 5, 2014 
Re:   Conditional Use Permit Application Number CUP 2014-04 

A request of Chan Patel with Sparkles Express, applicant; on behalf of The 
Old Place, Inc., owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow 
for an Auto Wash (Self Service) within the General Business (GB) zoning 
district, on approximately 1.1 acres of land.  The property is generally located 
at the northwest corner of Broadway Street and Hillhouse Road; Pearland, 
Texas. 

Proposal 

The subject property includes a total of 9.993 acres of land, of which the applicant is requesting approval 
of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct an Auto Wash (Self Service) on approximately 1.1 acres.  
The Unified Development Code (UDC) defines an Auto Wash (Self-Service) as “Washing, waxing or 
cleaning of automobiles or light duty trucks where the owner of the vehicle causes the vehicle to become 
washed.  One type of unattended car wash facility utilizes automated self-service (drive-through/rollover) 
wash bays and apparatus in which the vehicle owner inserts money or tokens into a machine, drives the 
vehicle into the wash bay, and waits in the vehicle while it is being washed.  The other type of unattended 
facility is comprised of wand-type self-service (open) wash bays in which the vehicle owner drives the 
vehicle into the wash bay, gets out of the vehicle, and hand washes the vehicle with a wand-type 
apparatus by depositing coins or tokens into the machine.”   

According to the applicant, the proposed express tunnel car wash is designed to automatically wash and 
dry vehicles through the tunnel entrance, where an attendant will guide the vehicle onto the conveyer. 
Blowers at the end of the conveyer will dry the vehicle before the customer exits the tunnel.  The proposed 
structure, including the tunnel and the equipment room/offices will be approximately 3,060 square feet, 
with 16 vacuums in two separate areas, with each section covered with an awning.  The applicant has 
indicated that the car wash hours of operation are generally 8:00 am – 7:00 pm (possibly 8:00 pm in the 
summer months); seven (7) days per week. 

Access will be from Broadway Street via an existing access easement just west of the subject property, 
where customers will enter, pay at one of the auto cashiers, move through the tunnel, stop at the vacuum 
cleaners, if necessary, and exit back onto Broadway Street via the existing access easement.  The 
existing access easement currently provides access to Candlewood Suites and Texas Children’s Medical 
Office.  It is important to note that Broadway Street is a major thoroughfare and is located within the 
Corridor Overlay District (COD), which requires enhanced design standards. 



Background 

The subject property is developed with a multi-tenant building which was previously used as a daycare. 
According to Brazoria County appraisal district records, the building was constructed in 1985, with asphalt 
paving added in 1997.  The property was annexed into the city in 1996.  Pursuant to Chapter 2 of the 
Unified Development Code, when a property is annexed into the city, the default zoning district is 
Suburban District (SD), and all zoning and development regulations of the SD zoning district shall be 
adhered to with respect to development and use of land until such time action is taken to zone the land. 
The site was zoned to Neighborhood Service (NS) and a Conditional Use Permit was approved on 
December 10, 2012 for a Daycare Center. 

Staff sent nineteen (19) public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner of 
the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration for the 
CUP on May 9, 2014.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was published in the local 
newspaper on Thursday, May 1, 2004 and a notification sign was placed on the property by the applicant. 
Staff has not received any returned notices from property owners within 200 feet of the site. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit (CUP 2014-04) to allow for the construction 
and operation of an Auto Wash (Self Service) on approximately 1.1 acres of land within the General 
Business (GB) zoning district, as proposed by the applicant and owner for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed Auto Wash (Self Service) will not significantly impact surrounding properties or
developments.  All surrounding properties are zoned for non-residential uses and zoning districts,
including General Business (GB) to the west, east and south and Neighborhood Service (NS) to
the north.  Properties to the east and west are developed with a retail shopping center (east) and
a hotel and medical offices (west).  The property to the south (south side of Broadway Street) is
currently undeveloped and the property to the north is developed with a non-conforming single
family home and appears to be used for storage of machinery and heavy equipment.  The site is
considered non-conforming, as single family dwelling units and the storage of machinery and
heavy equipment are not permitted uses within the NS zoning district.  Additionally, as proposed,
the proposed 1.1 acre lot will not directly abut the property to the north, and will be approximately
180 feet from the north property line.  Additionally, the tract to the north is heavily treed along its
southern property line.

2. A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) allows for a use that is not necessarily compatible with
surrounding uses and the character of an area; however can be made compatible with conditions.
Pursuant to Chapter 2 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) such conditions may include
modifications necessary to mitigate adverse effects of the proposed use and to carry out the spirit
and intent of the UDC.  As mentioned above, the subject property is surrounded by non-residential
developments and non-residential zoning districts.  Although the property to the north is zoned
NS, which is a non-residential zoning district, it is considered non-conforming as a result of the
existing single family home and is being used for the storage of machinery and heavy equipment.

Additionally, the property has frontage on Broadway Street; a major thoroughfare, and is located
within the Corridor Overlay District (COD).  The COD overlay regulations supplement the
regulations of the GB zoning district with more restrictive standards.  These standards will ensure
a high quality development that will enhance the character of the area and ensure an aesthetically
pleasing development.  Such standards include, but are not limited to the following:



• A 30-foot wide buffer is required along property frontages that face major
thoroughfares, such as Broadway Street.  The aforementioned 30-foot buffer shall
be free of paving, including parking areas, maneuvering and loading areas;

• No outdoor activity is allowed within the COD;
• 100% masonry or glass, transparency and building articulation along Broadway

Street; and
• Enhanced landscaping, including large shade trees, ornamental trees, shrubs and

parking lot islands.

3. The subject property and surrounding properties are located within the “Retail, Offices and
Services” future land use designation of the Comprehensive Plan.  According to the
Comprehensive Plan, major features of this designation include the following:

• Neighborhood shopping centers, or separate commercial uses;
• Located at major intersections;
• Limited outdoor retail activities;
• Buffer from neighboring single family residential;
• Appropriate zoning districts include Office and Professional (OP), Neighborhood

Service (NS) and selected uses within the General Business (GB) zoning district.

The proposed use conforms to and meets the intent and vision of the future land use designation 
of the Comprehensive Plan.  All surrounding properties are zoned for commercial uses, and there 
will be no negative impacts to the non-conforming single family home to the north, as substantial 
landscape buffering exists and would be required if the Auto Wash were to directly abut the 
residential use.  There will be limited outdoor activity, which will include patrons of the car 
wash who may choose to vacuum their vehicles under the covered vacuum areas.  Even in this 
instance substantial screening is required by the Unified Development Code, which includes street 
trees,  ornamental trees, a 30 foot wide  buffer area, as shown on the site  plan, which includes 
meandering sidewalks, and which shall  remain free of parking, maneuvering and loadings areas.  
Additionally, the vacuum stalls as well as the area where cars will exit the tunnel shall be 
screened with a screening wall.      

4. Broadway Street is a major thoroughfare and provides a high degree of mobility, serves high
volumes of traffic and has higher speeds than most other types of roadways.  It is desirable to
minimize the number of driveways on thoroughfares in order to reduce the number of conflict points
and facilitate traffic flow.  No new driveways will be added to Broadway Street, as a result of this
development, as access will be from an existing access easement to the west of the site currently
used to provide access to Candlewood Suites and Texas Children’s Medical Office.  There will be
no employees or customers drying vehicles outside or cleaning the interior of the cars at the end
of the tunnel.  Therefore, it is anticipated that there will be no traffic back-up onto Broadway Street.
Additionally, a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) is required at the time of platting, which may require
additional improvements, such as a deceleration lane, for example.

5. The proposed development will require platting of the site.  Platting will ensure that infrastructure
is adequate to serve the proposed development.  The subject property has access to public water
and sewer.  There is an existing 16 inch waterline on the south side of Broadway Street,
approximately 110 feet from the property line and 2 existing sanitary manholes along the frontage
of the site.  Extensions of these lines will likely be required depending upon how the tract is platted,
and will be determined during the platting process.



Conditions 

1. The applicant proposes to cover the vacuum areas with an awning.  In addition to the awning,
staff recommends that the vacuum areas are screened from Broadway Street with an 8-foot
screening wall constructed of masonry materials that are consistent in color and design with the
building architecture.

2. Staff recommends an 8-foot screening wall to screen the inside of the tunnel from Broadway
Street, as cars are exiting the tunnel.  The screening wall shall be constructed of masonry
materials that are consistent in color and design with the building architecture.

Options 

1. Recommend approval as submitted.

2. Recommend approval with conditions.

3. Recommend denial.

4. Table item.

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report

2. Revised Site Plan

3. Aerial Map

4. Zoning Map

5. Future Land Use Map

6. Notification Map

7. Notification List

8. Applicant Packet



Exhibit 1 
Staff Report

SUMMARY OF ANALYSIS: 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct an Auto Wash (Self 
Service) on approximately 1.1 acres out of a called 9.993-acre tract. The Unified Development Code 
(UDC) defines an Auto Wash (Self-Service) as “Washing, waxing or cleaning of automobiles or light duty 
trucks where the owner of the vehicle causes the vehicle to become washed.  One type of unattended 
car wash facility utilizes automated self-service (drive-through/rollover) wash bays and apparatus in which 
the vehicle owner inserts money or tokens into a machine, drives the vehicle into the wash bay, and waits 
in the vehicle while it is being washed.  The other type of unattended facility is comprised of wand-type 
self-service (open) wash bays in which the vehicle owner drives the vehicle into the wash bay, gets out 
of the vehicle, and hand washes the vehicle with a wand-type apparatus by depositing coins or tokens 
into the machine.”   

According to the applicant, the proposed express tunnel car wash is designed to automatically wash and 
dry vehicles through the tunnel entrance, where an attendant will guide the vehicle onto the conveyer. 
Blowers at the end of the conveyer will dry the vehicle before the customer exits the tunnel.  This activity 
meets the initial definition of “Auto Wash (Self Service), as explained in the definition per the UDC. 

Access will be from Broadway Street via an existing access easement just west of the subject property, 
where customers will enter, pay at one of the auto cashiers, move through the tunnel, stop at the vacuum 
cleaners, if necessary, and exit back onto Broadway Street via the existing access easement.  The 
existing access easement currently provides access to Candlewood Suites and Texas Children’s Medical 
office. 

The property is currently developed with retail office space designed for use by multiple tenants, and was 
formally used as a daycare via approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) on December 10, 2012. 
Platting will be required prior to development.  The applicant proposes to plat an approximately 1.1 acre 
lot out of the total 9.9 acres for the purpose of constructing the proposed car wash. 

The site is located within the General Business (GB) zoning district, and which district’s purpose is to 
permit an extensive variety of commercial uses, including retail trade, personal and business service 
establishments, offices and commercial recreation uses of limited scope.  The GB zoning district requires 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the proposed use.  A CUP allows for a use that is not 
necessarily compatible with surrounding uses; however can be made compatible with conditions. 
According to Chapter 2 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) such conditions may include 
modifications necessary to mitigate adverse effects of the proposed use and to carry out the spirit and 
intent of the UDC.  



The site is surrounding by nonresidential uses on all sides and the General Business (GB) zoning district, 
with the exception of the property to the north, which is zoned Neighborhood Service (NS) and is 
developed with a non-conforming single family home and is used for the storage of machinery and heavy 
equipment.  Neither use is a permitted use within the NS zoning district.  The below table identifies 
surrounding uses and zoning districts. 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 

Zoning Land Use 
North Neighborhood Service (NS) Single Family Home and 

Storage of Machinery and 
Heavy Equipment   

South General Business (GB) Undeveloped 
East General Business (GB) Retail Shopping Center, 

including Capital Bank, 
H&R Block, Dental Office 

West General Business (GB) Candlewood Suites, 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  The subject property is located 
within the General Business (GB) zoning district.  The purpose of the aforementioned zoning district is to 
permit an extensive variety of commercial uses, including retail trade, personal and business service 
establishments, offices and commercial recreation uses of limited scope.  The GB zoning district requires 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the proposed use.  A CUP allows for a use that is not 
necessarily compatible with surrounding uses; however can be made compatible with conditions. 
Pursuant to Chapter 2 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) such conditions may include modifications 
necessary to mitigate adverse effects of the proposed use and to carry out the spirit and intent of the 
UDC. 

The GB zone requires a minimum lot area of 22,500 square feet; a minimum lot width of 150 feet, a 
minimum lot depth of 125 feet; a minimum front yard setback of 25 feet and a minimum side yard of 10 
feet, and a maximum height of 45 feet.  

Additionally, Corridor Overlay District (COD) regulations apply to properties fronting on Broadway Street, 
as Broadway Street is a Major Thoroughfare, according to the city’s Thoroughfare Plan.  The COD is 
intended to help the city to exercise greater control over the aesthetic, functional and safety 
characteristics of development along major thoroughfares when developments front on such roadways. 
The COD regulations supplement the standards of the base zoning district with new or different standards 
which are more restrictive.  Such standards include, but are not limited to the following: 

• A 30-foot wide buffer is required along property frontages that face major thoroughfares, such as
Broadway Street.  The aforementioned 30-foot buffer shall be free of paving, including parking
areas, maneuvering and loading areas.

• No outdoor activity is allowed within the COD.
• Bicycle parking is required within the COD.  Bicycle parking spaces shall be provided at an amount

equal to a minimum of 5% of the vehicular parking spaces.
• Meandering sidewalks are required along property frontages.
• Outdoor storage is not permitted without approval by the City Council via a CUP, and must meet

certain requirements.
• Screening is required for vehicle loading and unloading.  Screens shall incorporate shrubbery



 

having year round foliage and/or a wall or architectural element of the building that is a minimum 
of 6 feet in height and is a maximum of 75% opaque. 

• All utility service shall be located underground.
• Building articulation is required for all nonresidential structures.
• Mechanical irrigation is required to be installed and maintained.

SITE HISTORY:  The subject property is developed with a multi-tenant building which was previously 
used as a daycare.  According to Brazoria County appraisal district records, the building was constructed 
in 1985, with asphalt paving added in 1997.  The site was annexed into the city in 1996.  The default 
zoning for property that is annexed into the city is Suburban District (SD).  The property was zoned to 
Neighborhood Service (NS) and a CUP was approved on December 12, 2012 for the aforementioned 
Daycare Center. 

PLATTING STATUS:  The property is not platted.  Prior to development and the issuance of building 
permits, platting will be required.  Platting will trigger various site improvements, including detention and 
extension of public infrastructure.  Broadway Street is a Major Thoroughfare and requires 120 feet of 
right-of-way.  According to the survey, the right-of-way along the frontage is 120 feet.  

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:   The subject property is located within the 
“Retail, Offices and Services” future land use designation.  According to the comprehensive plan, major 
features of this designation include the following: 

• Neighborhood shopping centers, or developed as separate uses
• Located at major intersections
• Limited outdoor retail activities
• Buffer from neighboring single family residential
• Appropriate zoning districts:  OP, Office and Professional; NS, Neighborhood Service; GB,

General Business (selected uses)

CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:   The subject property has frontage on 
Broadway Street; a major thoroughfare which requires 120 feet of right-of-way. The applicant’s survey 
indicates that right-of-way along the property frontage is 120 feet; however the thoroughfare plan 
indicates that Broadway Street is to be widened in this area. Right-of-way will be dedicated, if necessary, 
at the time of platting. 

AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject property has access to public water and sewer.  There is an 
existing 16 inch waterline on the south side of Broadway Street, approximately 110 feet from the property 
line and 2 existing sanitary manholes along the frontage of the site.  Extensions of these lines will likely 
be required depending upon how the tract is platted, and will be determined during the platting process. 

IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed Auto Wash (Self Service) will 
not significantly impact surrounding properties or developments.  All surrounding properties are zoned 
for non-residential uses and zoning districts, including General Business (GB) to the west, east and south 
and Neighborhood Service (NS) to the north.  Properties to the east and west are developed with a retail 
shopping center (east) and a hotel and medical offices (west).  The property to the south (south side of 
Broadway Street) is currently undeveloped and the property to the north is developed with a non-
conforming single family home and appears to be used for storage of machinery and heavy equipment. 
The site is considered non-conforming, as single family dwelling units and the storage of machinery and 
heavy equipment are not permitted uses within the NS zoning district.  Additionally, as proposed, the 
proposed 1.1 acre lot will not directly abut the property to the north, and will be approximately 180 feet 
from the north property line.  Additionally, the tract to the north is heavily treed along its southern property 
line. 
 



ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review 
Committee and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this report. 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Staff sent nineteen (19) public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to 
the applicant, the owner of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property 
under consideration for the CUP on May 9, 2014.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper on Thursday, May 1, 2004 and a notification sign was placed on the 
property by the applicant.  Staff has not received any returned notices from property owners within 200 
feet of the site. 

OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any comments 
either in opposition to or in support of the proposed CUP request.   

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit (CUP 2014-04) to 
allow for the construction and operation of an Auto Wash (Self Service) on approximately 1.1 acres of 
land within the General Business (GB) zoning district, as proposed by the applicant and owner for the 
following reasons: 

1. The proposed Auto Wash (Self Service) will not significantly impact surrounding properties or
developments.  All surrounding properties are zoned for non-residential uses and zoning districts,
including General Business (GB) to the west, east and south and Neighborhood Service (NS) to
the north.  Properties to the east and west are developed with a retail shopping center (east) and
a hotel and medical offices (west).  The property to the south (south side of Broadway Street) is
currently undeveloped and the property to the north is developed with a non-conforming single
family home and appears to be used for storage of machinery and heavy equipment.  The site is
considered non-conforming, as single family dwelling units and the storage of machinery and
heavy equipment are not permitted uses within the NS zoning district.  Additionally, as proposed,
the proposed 1.1 acre lot will not directly abut the property to the north, and will be approximately
180 feet from the north property line.  Additionally, the tract to the north is heavily treed along its
southern property line.

2. A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) allows for a use that is not necessarily compatible with
surrounding uses and the character of an area; however can be made compatible with conditions.
Pursuant to Chapter 2 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) such conditions may include
modifications necessary to mitigate adverse effects of the proposed use and to carry out the spirit
and intent of the UDC.  As mentioned above, the subject property is surrounded by non-residential
developments and non-residential zoning districts.  Although the property to the north is zoned
NS, which is a non-residential zoning district, it is considered non-conforming as a result of the
existing single family home and is being used for the storage of machinery and heavy equipment.

Additionally, the property has frontage on Broadway Street; a major thoroughfare, and is located 
within the Corridor Overlay District (COD).  The COD overlay regulations supplement the 
regulations of the GB zoning district with more restrictive standards.  These standards will ensure 
a high quality development that will enhance the character of the area and ensure an aesthetically 
pleasing development.  Such standards include, but are not limited to the following: 

• A 30-foot wide buffer is required along property frontages that face major
thoroughfares, such as Broadway Street.  The aforementioned 30-foot buffer shall
be free of paving, including parking areas, maneuvering and loading areas;

• No outdoor activity is allowed within the COD;
• 100% masonry or glass, transparency and building articulation along Broadway

Street; and



• Enhanced landscaping, including large shade trees, ornamental trees,    
shrubs and parking lot islands.

 
 
 

• Enhanced landscaping, including large shade trees, ornamental trees, shrubs and
parking lot islands. 

3. The subject property and surrounding properties are located within the “Retail, Offices and
Services” future land use designation of the Comprehensive Plan.  According to the
Comprehensive Plan, major features of this designation include the following:

• Neighborhood shopping centers, or separate commercial uses;
• Located at major intersections;
• Limited outdoor retail activities;
• Buffer from neighboring single family residential;
• Appropriate zoning districts include Office and Professional (OP), Neighborhood

Service (NS) and selected uses within the General Business (GB) zoning district.

The proposed use conforms to and meets the intent and vision of the future land use designation 
of the Comprehensive Plan.  All surrounding properties are zoned for commercial uses, and there 
will be no negative impacts to the non-conforming single family home to the north, as substantial 
landscape buffering exists and would be required if the Auto Wash were to directly abut the 
residential use.  There will be limited outdoor activity, which will include patrons of the car 
wash who may choose to vacuum their vehicles under the covered vacuum areas.  Even in this 
instance substantial screening is required by the Unified Development Code, which includes street 
trees,  ornamental trees, a 30 foot wide  buffer area, as shown on the site  plan, which includes 
meandering sidewalks, and which shall  remain free of parking, maneuvering and loadings areas. 
Additionally, the vacuum stalls as well as the area where cars will exit the tunnel shall be 
screened with a screening wall.      

4. Broadway Street is a major thoroughfare and provides a high degree of mobility, serves high
volumes of traffic and has higher speeds than most other types of roadways.  It is desirable to
minimize the number of driveways on thoroughfares in order to reduce the number of conflict points
and facilitate traffic flow.  No new driveways will be added to Broadway Street, as a result of this
development, as access will be from an existing access easement to the west of the site currently
used to provide access to Candlewood Suites and Texas Children’s Medical Office.  There will be
no employees or customers drying vehicles outside or cleaning the interior of the cars at the end
of the tunnel.  Therefore, it is anticipated that there will be no traffic back-up onto Broadway Street.
Additionally, a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) is required at the time of platting, which may require
additional improvements, such as a deceleration lane, for example.

5. The proposed development will require platting of the site.  Platting will ensure that infrastructure
is adequate to serve the proposed development.  The subject property has access to public water
and sewer.  There is an existing 16 inch waterline on the south side of Broadway Street,
approximately 110 feet from the property line and 2 existing sanitary manholes along the frontage
of the site.  Extensions of these lines will likely be required depending upon how the tract is platted,
and will be determined during the platting process.

CONDITIONS:  

1. The applicant proposes to cover the vacuum areas with an awning.  In addition to the awning,
staff recommends that the vacuum areas are screened from Broadway Street with an 8-foot
screening wall constructed of masonry materials that are consistent in color and design with the
building architecture.



2. Staff recommends an 8-foot screening wall to screen the inside of the tunnel from Broadway
Street, as cars are exiting the tunnel.  The screening wall shall be constructed of masonry
materials that are consistent in color and design with the building architecture.



No. DATE

REVISIONS

Drawn by:

Checked by:

Project No.

Date

NOTE

S
U

P
 
S

U
B

M
I
T

T
A

L
 
S

E
T

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

972-724-4440
972-691-7731 FAX

CONSTRUCTION
INTERIORS

ARCHITECTURE

APDG.US

A PLUS DESIGN
GROUP

R
E

V
I
E

W
 
S

E
T

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

A
 
N

E
W

 
C

A
R

 
W

A
S

H

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y
 
F

O
R

:

P
E

A
R

L
A

N
D

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

C   COPYRIGHT A PLUS DESIGN GROUP 2014

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Trent W. Clark, Architect

TX Registration # 17084

These Drawings are

incomplete and may not be

used for regulatory approval,

permit, or construction.

These drawings are for

informational purposes

only.

The information herein

is by the equipment

manufacture.

S
P

A
R

K
L

E
S

 
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

A1

SITE PLAN &

LANDSCAPE PLAN



Sparkles Car Wash
Pearland, Texas

VIEW FROM THE SOUTHWEST 

 © COPYRIGHT 2014 A PLUS DESIGN GROUP, LLC
JUNE 11, 2014



Sparkles Car Wash
Pearland, Texas

VIEW FROM THE SOUTHEAST 

 © COPYRIGHT 2014 A PLUS DESIGN GROUP, LLC © COPYRIGHT 2014 A PLUS DESIGN GROUP, LLC
JUNE 11, 2014



SOUTH ELEVATION  1/8" = 1'-0"

 © COPYRIGHT 2014 A PLUS DESIGN GROUP, LLC

Sparkles Car Wash
Pearland, Texas

35
' 8

"

23
' 1

"

Architectural Metal Roof and Coping

Aluminum and Glass Storefront System

Stucco

Metal canopy structure with solid metal roof and masonry base

JUNE 11, 2014



EAST ELEVATION  1/8" = 1'-0"

 © COPYRIGHT 2014 A PLUS DESIGN GROUP, LLC

Sparkles Car Wash
Pearland, Texas

Architectural Metal Roof and Coping

Aluminum and Glass Storefront System

Stucco Architectural Metal Coping
Stucco

Architectural Metal Coping

16
' 1

1"

JUNE 11, 2014



WEST ELEVATION  1/8" = 1'-0"

 © COPYRIGHT 2014 A PLUS DESIGN GROUP, LLC

Sparkles Car Wash
Pearland, Texas

JUNE 11, 2014



Aerial Map
CUP 2014-04
Hillhouse & 
Broadway Street

BROADWAY ST
HILLHOUSE RD

OWER LN

SUN GLEN DR

SUNDOWN DR

SUN HAVEN

SUNFOREST

SUNRISE MEADOW DR

SU
N 

CO
VE

SUN GLEN CT

2625

8701

9002

8619
9015

8701

2657

9121

9101

8603

8633
9005 9001

9115

9004

2611

2602

9006

9001

8802

2513

9014

2514 2513

9110

2601

2514
2514

2513

2614

8801

9001

2604

2526

2607

2520
2518

2522
2524

2518

2612
2610
2608

2609

2605

2523

2603
2606

2521

2519 2514

2517

2515

2516

8809

8535

8535

9105

9002

9002

9013

9106

9009

9010

88018813

9002

8814 8802

9003
9005

9019 90079015 88189017

9009

91019103

9007

9016

8811

9005

9018

9013

9104
9102

90099105

9001

2510

8816

8811

2512

88058809
8803

9106

8807

9006

8812

9008

9004

8819

8808

8807

8812

8810

8814

9003

9007

8805

9005
88049017

88068810
8808

9015
9101

8809

9019

8813

9006

9001

8817

9014

9008

88159004

91089106
9102

8804

90109102

9104

9010

9020

8803

9018

9016 9006
9008

9003

9002

9104

9004

2516 90079005

2617

2615

2613

2611

2609

2512

2607

2605

2603

2601

2511

2527

2525

2523

2521

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE

Exhibit 3
Aerial Map



Zoning Map
CUP 2014-04
Hillhouse & 
Broadway Street

GB

SR-12

R-3

NS

PUD

C-MU

BROADWAY ST
HILLHOUSE RD

OWER LN

SUN GLEN DR

SUNDOWN DR

SUN HAVEN

SUNFOREST

SUNRISE MEADOW DR

SU
N 

CO
VE

SUN GLEN CT

2625

8701

9002

8619
9015

8701

2657

9121

9101

8603

8633
9005 9001

9115

9004

2611

2602

9006

9001

8802

2513

9014

2514 2513

9110

2601

2514
2514

2513

2614

8801

9001

2604

2526

2607

2520
2518

2522
2524

2518

2612
2610
2608

2609

2605

2523

2603
2606

2521

2519 2514

2517

2515

2516

8809

8535

9105

9002

9002

9013

9106

9009

9010

88018813

9002

8814 8802

9003
9005

9019 90079015 88189017

9009

91019103

9007

9016

8811

9005

9018

9013

9104
9102

90099105

9001

2510

8816

8811

2512

88058809
8803

9106

8807

9006

8812

9008

9004

8819

8808

8807

8812

8810

8814

9003

9007

8805

9005 88049017

88068810
8808

9015
9101

8809

9019

8813

9006

9001

8817

9014

9008

88159004

91089106
9102

8804

90109102

9104

9010

9020

8803

9018

9016 9006
9008

9003

9002

9104

9004

2516 90079005

2617

2615

2613

2611

2609

2512

2607

2605

2603

2601

2511

2527

2525

2523

2521

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE

Exhibit 4
Zoning Map



FLUP Map
CUP 2014-04
Hillhouse & 
Broadway Street

Offices

Retail, Offices and Services

Business Commercial

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

Medium Density Residential Cullen Mixed Use District

BROADWAY ST
HILLHOUSE RD

OWER LN

SUNDOWN DR

SUNRISE TRL
SUN HAVEN

SUNFOREST

SUNRISE MEADOW DR

SU
N 

CO
VE

SUN GLEN CT

2625

8701

9002

8619
9015

8701

2657

9121

9101

8603

8633
9005 9001

9115

2611

2602

9006

8802

2513

9014

2514 2513

9110

2601

2514
2514

2513

2614

8801

9001

2604

2526

2607

2520
2518

2612
2609

2605
2603

2517

2515

8809

8535

8535

9004

9001

9105

9002

9002

9013

9106

9009

9010

8801
8813

9002

8814

2522

8802

900390059019

2610

9007
9015 8818

9017
91019103

90072523

9016

8811

9018

9013

9104
9102

9009
9105

9001

2510

8816

2519

8811

88058809

8803

9106

9006
9008

9004

8819 8807

8812
8814

9007

8805

90059017

88068810
8808

9015

9101

8809

9019

8813

9006

9001

8817

9014

9008

8815

9004

91089106 9102

8804

90109102

9104
9010

9020

9012

8803

90189016
9006

9008
9002

9104

2516 90079005

2617

2615

2613

2611

2609

2512

2607

2605

2603

2601

2511

2527

2521

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE

Exhibit 5
Future Land Use Map



Notification Map
CUP 2014-04
Hillhouse & 
Broadway Street

BROADWAY ST

HILLHOUSE RD

OWER LN

SUNDOWN DR

SUNRISE TRL

SUNNY BROOK
SUN HAVEN

SUNFOREST

SUNRISE MEADOW DR

SU
N 

CO
VE

2625

8701

9002

8619
9015

9121

8701

2657

9101

8603

8633
9005 9001

9115

9004

2611

2602

9006

9001

8802

9014

9110

2601

2614

8801

2604

2526

2607

2522
2524

2518

2612
2610
2608

2609

2605

2523

2603
2606

2521

2519 2514
2516

2617

2615

2520

2613

8809

8535

9105

9002

9013

9106

9009

9010

88018813

9002

8814 8802

900390059019
9007

9015 8818
9017

9009

91019103

9007

9016

8811

9005

9018

9013

9104
9102

90099105

9001

8816

8811

88058809
8803

9106

8807

9006

8812

9008

9004

8819

8808

8807

8812

8810

8814

9003

9007

8805

9005 88049017

88068810
8808

9015
9101

8809
8813

9006

9001

8817

9014

9008

8815

9004

91089106 9102

8804

90109102

9104
9010

9020

9012

8803

90189016
9006

9008

9003

2611

9002

9104
2609

90042607

2605

2601

2603

2527

2512

2525

2517
2523

8535

¯0 150 30075 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.

SITE

Exhibit 6
Notification Map



Exhibit 7
Notification List

NAME ADD_LINE2 CITY STATZIP
DOHERTY FRANK TRUSTEE 8735 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77584
NEEDHAM RICKY D 813 INDIGO SPRINGS LN LA MARQUE TX 77568
VELAZQUEZ CARLOS & MELODY 9004 SUNRISE TRL PEARLAND TX 77584
WILLIAMSON TRAVIS W 9006 SUNRISE TRL PEARLAND TX 77584
SILVER PEAR 518 BUSINESS PARK LTD PO BOX 79650 HOUSTON TX 77279
THE OLD PLACE INC PO BOX 703 MANVEL TX 77578
PEARLAND PLAZA LP 3922 ABBEYWOOD DR PEARLAND TX 77584
SILVER PEAR 518 BUSINESS PARK LTD PO BOX 79650 HOUSTON TX 77279
MOORE THEODORE & MAMMIE 2657 HILLHOUSE RD PEARLAND TX 77584
THE OLD PLACE INC PO BOX 703 MANVEL TX 77578
SU CHENG HUEY TR 102 PEBBLEBROOK CT SUGAR LAND TX 77478
FORTRESS PEARLAND INVESTMENTS LLC 4318 W FUQUA ST HOUSTON TX 77045
SIMMONS ANDREW 4830 MALLOW ST HOUSTON TX 77033
WESTCHASE HOSPITALITY INC 9015 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77584
BPI REALTY SERVICES INC 3800 SOUTHWEST FWY HOUSTON TX 77027
WESTCHASE HOSPITALITY INC 9015 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77584
SILVER PEAR 518 BUSINESS PARK LTD PO BOX 79650 HOUSTON TX 77279
THE OLD PLACE INC PO BOX 703 MANVEL TX 77578
SILVER PEAR 518 BUSINESS PARK LTD PO BOX 79650 HOUSTON TX 77279



Exhibit 8 
Applicant Packet































July 8, 2014 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 

Re: Recommendation on Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP 2014-04 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 

At their regular meeting on July 7, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
considered the following:   

A request of Chan Patel with Sparkles Express, applicant; on behalf of The Old 
Place, Inc., owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for an 
Auto Wash (Self Service) within the General Business (GB) zoning district, on 
approximately 1.10 acres of land on the following described property, to wit: 

Legal Description:  A tract or parcel containing 1.1019 acres or 47,999 square 
feet of land, out of a called 9.993 acre tract situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. CO. 
Survey, Abstract No. 506, Brazoria County, Texas Conveyed to the Old Place, 
Inc. as recorded in the Brazoria County Clerk’s File No. 97-001270, Brazoria 
County, Texas 

General Location:  Approximately 1.1 acres of land included in a larger tract of 
land located at the northwest corner of Broadway Street and Hillhouse Road, 
Pearland, Texas 



The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the proposed site plan and 
Commissioner Elizabeth McLane made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Mary Starr.  The motion passed (6-0).  

Sincerely, 

Johnna Matthews 

City Planner 

On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 



New 
Business 
Item No. 7 

7. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-85 – A
resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, awarding the
employee health insurance benefits for stop loss and administration
services to Cigna and renewing employee dental insurance with Aetna.
Ms. Bonita Hall, Director of Human Resources.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:     July 28, 2014 ITEM NO.:  Resolution No. 2014-85 

DATE SUBMITTED:  July 22, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN:  Human Resources 

PREPARED BY: Bonita J. Hall PRESENTER:  Bonita Hall 

REVIEWED BY:  Jon R. Branson REVIEW DATE:  July 22, 2014 

SUBJECT:  Update of City Health Plan 

EXHIBITS:     A.   Resolution 2014-85 
   B.   Material Presented June 23, 2014 
   C.   2014-2015 Recommendations for Employee Health and Welfare 

    Benefits Presentation 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: $6,795,008 AMOUNT BUDGETED:  $6,801,888 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: $6,801,888 PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO.:   
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance    Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

On June 23, 2014, Staff and IPS Advisors presented to Council various plan and contribution 
options for the 2014-15 health budget.  Council directed staff to develop a plan that would keep 
the City’s contribution increase to approximately $748,633 (Option 6a).  The total contribution 
estimated at that time for the 2014-15 health plan based on 545 employees was $5,879,172, 
with the City contribution being $5,042,669 (an increase of $748,633) and the employee 
contribution being $836,504 (an overall reduction of $152,824).   

HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION AND STOP LOSS RENEWAL 

Due to significant increases in paid claims, the City and IPS Advisors released a Stop Loss 
RFP to gauge the competitiveness of Cigna’s renewal and assist in negotiations.  Below is a 



summary of the Stop Loss RFP results and associated maximum annual funding liability for the 
health plan. 

STOP LOSS CARRIER: Cigna 
Current 

Cigna 
Renegotiated 

Renewal 

Best Alternative 
Transamerica 

Recommended       
Cigna  Plan Option 6 

SPECIFIC STOP LOSS DEDUCTIBLE LEVEL: $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 

ANNUAL STOP LOSS PREMIUM $585,199 $619,796 $592,328 $604,296 

ANNUAL AGGREGATE STOP LOSS DEDUCTIBLE $5,598,240 $7,135,736 $7,768,081 $6,483,938 

ANNUAL CIGNA ADMINISTRATION FEES $222,309 $228,907 $238,717 $220,311 

HEALTH CARE REFORM FEES $0 $79,300 $79,300 $79,300 

MAXIMUM ANNUAL FUNDING $6,405,748 $8,063,740 $8,678,426 $7,387,844 

% CHANGE FROM CURRENT n/a 25.9% 35.5% 15.3% 

$ CHANGE FROM CURRENT n/a $1,657,992 $2,272,678 $982,096 

 NOTES: 
• Current, Renegotiated and Best Alternative are based on the current plan of benefits. 
• Recommended is based on Plan Option 6 proposed to Council on June 23, 2014.
• Health Care Reform fees include required Reinsurance and PCORI fees. 

Cigna has provided the most competitive renewal and recommended Plan Option 6 proposal. 
By selecting plan options 6, the City will experience a 3.3% increase to stop loss premiums, a 
15.8% increase to its annual aggregate stop loss deductible, a -0.9% decrease to Cigna 
administrative fees, and an overall 15.3% increase to the City’s maximum annual funding level. 

The 2014-2015 budget is $6,801,888 which includes budgeted authorized positions (608 total 
positions), less 10 positions for a vacancy factor, based on plan 6a and updated stop loss fees.  
The Expected Annual Funding is $6,795,008 based on the 608 budgeted positions.  The City’s 
current health reserves are $994,450. 

Aetna has submitted a renewal with no increase in premium rate to the City.  The annual 
premium for dental will remain $371,556. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consideration and approval of a resolution renewing the agreement with Cigna to continue to 
provide administrative services and to provide specific and aggregate stop loss at the 
recommended Cigna Plan Option 6 rates, as listed above. In addition, consideration and 
approval of the proposed plan design as illustrated in option 6a.  Finally, consideration and 
approval of the dental renewal.   



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-85 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, awarding the 
employee health insurance benefits for stop loss and administration 
services to Cigna and renewing employee dental insurance with Aetna. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the City of Pearland has received proposals for employee benefit 

 rates, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and such rates have been evaluated. 

Section 2. That the City Council hereby awards the employee health insurance 

benefits for stop loss and administration services to Cigna in the amount described in 

exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated for all purposes. 

Section 3. That the City Council hereby renews its contract for employee dental 

insurance with Aetna. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the _____ day of _________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



I 

RESPONSIVE RESULTS-ORIENTED TRUST-BUILDERS ACCOUNTABLE 

City of Pearland 
Human Resources Department 

3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, Texas 77581 
Tel: 281-652-1600 
cityofpearland.com 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: City of Pearland City Council 

FROM: Clay J. Pearson, City Manager 
Jon Branson, Assistant City Manager 
Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 
Bonita J. Hall, Director of Human Resources and Safety 

DATE: June 14, 2014 

SUBJECT: Health Plan Update 

As part of preparing the FY 2014/15 Budget, we are bringing you the City's health plan 
earlier in the process which helps that budget process and gives employees earlier 
information to plan before open enrollment is conducted. Before you is information 
concerning the City's health plan, including a brief history of the self-funded model, the 
current financial outlook, some quality control measures in place and strategies for moving 
forward. 

Prior to 2010, the City was experiencing greater premium increases than believed necessary 
given the plan loss ratios at the time. In reviewing prior years' increases and realizing the 
City had Jost savings opportunities, we decided to move to a partially self-funded model. 
The adopted plan, beginning with the budget year starting October l, 2010, included stop 
loss insurance coverage for catastrophic conditions. It would also necessitate the creation of 
a "reserve" account that would include funds used to offset times when expenses exceeded 
budget. There are multiple funding options ranging from the minimum of budgeting at 
"expected with estimated Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims, to the maximum with 
estimated IBNR. Given our positive loss ratio in previous years, the City opted to fund at 
"expected" for fiscal year 2011 and 2012. The City also decided that it would "grow" the 
reserve, getting it to the requisite amount in three to five years. 

While in the first year we experience both cost savings and cost avoidances, subsequent 
years have proven to be difficult ones for the employees and the City, experiencing 
devastating illnesses and loss while also experiencing ever increasing costs of medical care. 
The City has taken various steps in its ongoing effort to combat the ever rising costs of 
maintaining an employee health plan. Such steps included bringing an HMO plan on board, 
initiating a City-wide wellness program, offering membership to the City recreation center 
at deep discounts to employees, implementing a Health Savings Account (HSA) plan for 



RESPONSIVE RESULTS-ORIENTED TRUST-BUILDERS ACCOUNTABLE 

employees, increasing the amount of the stop loss ceiling and striving to create better 
educated health care consumers. 

All of these efforts, while admirable have been unsuccessful at helping us reach our goals 
of a more educated health care consumer employee and an adequate reserve fund, able to 
sustain the plan during years of high loss ratios. The time has come to be more assertive 
in our efforts. This will require difficult decisions, decisions that may determine the 
future solvency of the City's health plan. 

In an effort to reach our goals, we will be bringing to Council several funding options, 
options that once decided upon will be used to build a more sustainable system for the 
City's health plan, including plan redesign as well as building a proper health reserve 
account. The attached power point and plan design tables outline some of the history, the 
present and potential future programs. A more formal presentation regarding this material 
will occur on June 23, 2014, when IPS Advisors presents to Council at its next meeting. 
Take some time review and forward any staff questions to City Manager Pearson so that 
we may be able to answer any questions or concerns you may have regarding the material. 



1 

Council Presentation 
Healthcare Benefits Strategy 

Presented by: 
Brent Weegar, MBA 

JPS Advisors, Inc. 
10000 North Central Expressway, Suite 1500 

Dallas, Texas 75206 

i ~ 
l!.!AS. INC. 



• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

<
 m

 
0 

:E
 "'U

 
.,, 

(/
) 

CD
 

3 
c 

CD
 

O>
 
~
 

CD
 

~
 

"'C
 

O>
 

~
 

O>
 

:;
; 

C
l. 

~
 
~
 

~
 

"T
l 

0 
0 

CD
 

0 
Q

. 
c 

.., 
'<

 
(/

) 
CD

 
(
)
 

(/
) 

"'C
 

D
,) 

~
 

CD
 

(/
) 

!::
!: 

C
l. 

CD
 

0 
"'U

 
0 

c 
CD

 
(/

) 
~
 

~
 

CD
 

,....
. 

a 
(/

) 
"'C

 
C

l. 
("

) 
D

,) 
.., 

C
l. 

,....
. 

!::
!: 

0 
cc

 
D

,) 
s: 

a·
 

(/
) 

ru 
,....

. 
0 

~
 

Q)
' 

3 
CD

 
C

l. 
(
)
 

("
) 

CD
 

!::
!: 

(J
J 

.., 
0 

I 
;:::

::;:
 

,....
. 

CD
 
~
 

.., 
0 

.., 
D

,) 
D

,)
. 

,....
. 

<
 

CD
 

CD
 

cc
 

'<
 

<
 

en
· 

~
 



3 

The City of Pearland faced substantial fully insured renewal increases from its health 
insurance providers despite having loss ratios below the providers target. After historical 
analysis of claims data under partially self insured scenarios, the City of Pearland elected 
to partially self fund its health plan cost for fiscal year 2010 - 2011. 

$7,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,000,000 ..., 

J $1,000,000 

$0 

otal Partial Self Insured Cost 

Difference from Fl Premium 

Estimated Savings from Partial Self Funding 

2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 YTD 

• Total Fully Insured (Fl) Premium Total Partial Self Insured Cost 

$4,208,125 $5,140,045 $5,778,621 $3,739,657 

($851,390) ($402,289) ($191,923) ($180,434) 

Assumptions: 2010 - 2011 Fully Insured Premium Cost based of Aetna's Actual Best and Final offer 

Fiillx ln1ured Loss Ratio 
And Rate lncraM! 

2008 I 2009 = 78% UR = 20.1 % Increase 
2009 I 2010 = 73% UR = 9.2% Increase 
·2010 / 2011 = 78% L/R = 13.5% Increase 
°Best and Final Offer 

$18,866,449 

$1,626,036) 

Medical Trend from Segal Healthcare Cost Survey Applied to Fully Insured Premium Costs for years after 2010-2011 
Partial Self Insured costs represented are actual cost • I l!!~S. 1Nc.-· 



• 

• 

• 

4 

Under the partial self funded health plan the City partially assumes the financial risk 
for funding health benefits for its employees by paying actual incurred claim costs (up 
to limits). 

Reinsurance I Stop-loss insurance is purchased from Cigna Healthcare to protect the 
City against catastrophic claims thus containing risk and facilitating financial solvency 
of the partially self-funded plan. 

The City pays administrative fees to Cigna Healthcare administer both the medical 
and pharmacy program. 

• a l§~S.INC."' 



5 

The City pays a monthly fee to Cigna Healthcare to administer the self funded health 
plan. Services include but are not limited to: 

• Claims Administration 
- Health and Pharmacy Plans 

- Customer Service Support 

- On-Line Self Help Tools 

• Network Access 
- PPO I HMO Networks 

- Pharmacy Networks 

• Claims Management 
- Large Case Management 

- Utilization Review 

- Claims Integration 

• Health Risk Management 
- Disease Management 

- Wellness Programs 

- Health Risk Assessment 

• Reporting 
- Stop Loss Integration 

- Claims Management Reports • ~ s:!!~~.IHC.'' 



6 

The City purchases Specific and Aggregate stop loss to protect the plan against large 
claims cost and significant fluctuations in paid claims. 

• 

• 

Specific Stop Loss - The City purchases a $125,000 Specific Stop Loss Deductible 
on each individual covered within the health plan. Once medical and pharmacy 
claims exceed $125,000, Cigna will assume the remaining risk. 

Aggregate Stop Loss - The City purchases Aggregate Stop Loss protection which is 
a predetermined amount based off 125°/o of the annual expected claims. Cigna will 
reimburse the City up to $1,000,000 if claims were to exceed the Aggregate Stop 
Loss deductible 

• ~ m~~IN(.-



Plan Financials 

A B _c 0 E F G H 
Monthly Combined Monthly Claims Less Cumulative 

Monthly Specific & Aggregate Monthly Aggregate Specific Stop Loss Unused Monthly Surplus From 
ReportinQ Month Monthly Lives Administration Premium Deductible Liability Reimbursements Surolus Month: 

Oct-13 535 $18.216 $47,872 $447,685 $439,448 $8,237 $8,237 
Nov-13 536 $18,248 $47,961 $448,500 $559,693 ($111.192) ($102,955) 
Oec-13 537 $18,273 $48,051 $450,009 $407,318 $42,692 ($60,263) 
Jan-14 551 $18,726 $49,303 $462,472 $562,358 ($99,886) ($160,150) 
Feb-14 550 $18,699 $49,214 $460,722 $354,694 $106,028 ($54,122) 
Mar-14 548 $18,630 $49,035 $458,972 $465,809 ($6,837) ($60,959) 
Apr-14 537 $18,701 $48,051 $459,667 $481,356 ($21,690) ($82,649) 
May-14 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($82,649) 
Jun-14 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($82,649) 
Jul-14 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($82,649) 
Aug-14 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($82,649) 
s--14 0 $0 so so $0 $0 ($82.6491 
Total 542 $129,494 $339,487 $3,188,027 $3,270,676 *($82,649) 

7 • ~ ~S, INC: 



8 

Claims vs Expected/Maximum 

Maximum Claims Liability - Expected Claims Liability -+-Actual Claims less SL 

$3,500,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,000,000 

$500,000 

$0 

Maximum Claims Liability 

Expected Claims Liability 

Actual Claims less SL 

Oct-13 

Oct-13 

$447,685 

$358,148 

$437,622 

Nov-13 Dec-13 

Nov-13 Dec-13 

$896,186 $1,346,195 

$716,948 $1,076,956 

$984,660 $1,379,582 

Individual Plan Results-% of Maximum Liability 

• Kelsey Care = 69.1 % of Maximum Claims for Plan 

Jan-14 

Jan-14 

$1,808,667 

$1,446,933 

$1,941,083 

• 
• 

Health Savings Account = 52.1 % of Maximum Claims for Plan 

OAPB Plan= 139.7% of Maximum Claims Factor for Plan 

Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 
- - .. 

Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 

$2,269,389 $2,728,361 $3,188,027 

$1,815,511 $2,182,688 $2,550,422 

$2,294,440 $2,756,499 $3,236,891 

i ~ B!RS,INC. 



600 -

500 

400 
345 

300 

200 

100 

0 

Basic Premium Kelsey HSA Combined 

8 2010 • 2011 a 2011 - 2012 D 2012 • 2013 D 2013 - 2014 

2011 - 2012 214 -3.2% 309 I 5.7% n/a n/a n/a n/a 523 1.9% 

2012 - 2013 133 -38.0% 187 -39.6% 200 n/a n/a n/a 520 -0.6% 
2013 - 2014 186 40.1% 0 -100.0% 345 72.1% 12 n/a 543 4.5% 

9 i «4 l!!RS,INC 



2010 - 2011 

2011 - 2012 

2012 - 2013 

2013 - 2014 

10 

$18,000 

$16,000 

$14,000 

$12,000 

$10,000 

$8,000 

$6,000 

$4,000 

$2,000 

so 

$5,047 

$5,092 

$6,865 

$16,195 

$16,195 

$12,490 

...-
Basic Premium Kelsey HSA 

• 2010 · 2011 Q 2011 • 2012 El 2012 - 2013 D 2013 • 2014 

n/a $9,991 n/a n/a n/a n/a 
0.9% $10,332 3.4% n/a n/a n/a 

34.8% $12,490 20.9% $7,295 n/a n/a 
135.9% n/a n/a $6,511 -10.7% $5,547 

$10,729 

Combined 

n/a $7,862 n/a 
n/a $8,187 4.1% 

n/a $9,050 10.5% 

n/a $10,729 18.6% 

i ~ ~RS. INC. 



)>
 

-I
 

-I
 

)>
 

(
)
 

I ~
 

m
 

z -I
 



.. 
-a

. 
I'

\,
) 

z 0 - ~ :::::
!:! 

0 en
 

c:
 

C
T 

Il
l a:
 

'<
 

Ci!
 

'O
 

0 ::l
. 

CD
 

c.
. O'
 

.... ~
 

i0
· 
~
 

<D
 

t/
I - CD ::::>
 .... Q
_ ii
i 

c.
. 

'O
 

ii
) 

? 



• The city of Pearland currently requires employees to conduct a biometric screening 
and health risk assessment through Cigna to receive Wellness Premium Rates. 

- 479 or 89% of the employee population was screened in September of 2013 
• Height I Weight • Triglycerides 

• Blood PressUJe • Body Mass Index 

• Total Cholesterol • Waist Circumference 

• HDL/LDL • Self Reported Questionnaire 

• Key Results of Screenings 
46% of Population is considered Obese 

79% of Employee Population has Hypertension I Pre-Hypertension 

31 % of Employee Population has High or Elevated Cholesterol 

19% self Reported Tobacco Use 

• Biometric and HRA results are automatically downloaded to Cigna's Care Engine to 
identify gaps in care and disease management opportunities. 

• Other Wellness Programs provided to employees in 2014. 

• 

13 

Stairwell to Health 

10-10-1 o Challenge 

Step into Health 

- Core Program 

- Hydration Challenge 

- Wellness Lectures (4 This Year) 

Cigna provides a $25,000 annual wellness fund for the City to use for wellness 

programs. ii§.~ 



• Incorporation of wellness challenges to qualify for Wellness premium rates 
- Biggest Loser Challenge 

- Walk Across Texas 

- Etc. 

• Tobacco Cessation Program and premium rate differentials are recommended 

• Incorporate Annual Physical Incentive to establish doctor I patient relationship. 

• Evaluate Feasibility of a Employee Health Clinic 

• Long Term - Integrate results based wellness to maximize return on investment 
- Incentives for meeting medical criteria 

14 i {{~ l!!RS,INC. 



The following measures have been put in place to ensure the City and 
its plan participants are receiving high quality administrative services. 

• Cigna has placed $25,000 of Fees at Risk based on performance criteria of the plan. 
This criteria includes : 

- Claims Turnaround Time 

- Financial and Payment Accuracy 

- Customer Service 

- Implementation 

- Satisfaction 

• The City's Health Plan is currently being Audited by PartnersPlus Consulting to 
ensure Cigna is paying claims appropriately and performing to standards. The Audit 
includes but is not limited to the following reviews: 

• 

15 

- Eligibility Files 

- High Cost Claims 

- Provider Contracts 

- Performance Guarantees 

It is also our recommendation to market the City's insurance plans every 3 years to 
benchmark costs and services against potential providers. The City will be entering 
its last renewal option period for the 2014 - 2015 Plan Year. 

i ~ l§RS,INC. 



• As part of our RFP and renewal process we work with the City to establish a set of 
plan performance criteria. Appropriate weighting is determined based on the City's 
needs and providers are scored against the criteria. In the past, the Criteria for 
scoring at the City of Pearland has included: 

- Cost (25%) 

- Financial Stability (20%) 

- Communication Resources (5%) 

- Claims Processing (25%) 

- Management Reports ( 10%) 

- Technology Initiatives (10%) 

- References (5%) 

16 i {~ l!!AS,INC. 



Employee 
+Spouse 
+Children 
+Family 

Premium Contributions I I 

HSA Contributions ~ 
Total Contributions D 

+Spouse 

t_ +Children 
+Family 
Premium Contributions 

.___,....... 

l~as ic Plan - S 1.000 $2.000 DcJ. 80° o 

$3.000 i $6.000 OPl\I $20 ,1 $.+O OV Copa) 

Employee 

+Spouse 
+Children 
+Family 

Premium Contributions 

.-\ 11 Plans 

!Total Contributions - All Plans l 

13 
0 
3 
3 

1-3 
~ -13 

13 " 

31 I 
6~ / -
86 

352 

Full Time 
I :mployec -. 

180 

23 
34 
50 

180 

Full Timc 
l:mplo:ces 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
CURRENT 

$450 $433 
$496 $334 
$360 $243 
$811 $547 

$112,307 $96,021 

$19,000 $19,000 

$131.307 _lU5,021 

... 

$433 
( ~3 ;--l $477 $334 : 

$3~7 \ I $243 , 

!S?a 1 $_5-4-7 ' 
$3~1lf6,499 

I\ k Jica l Rate 

$528 

$582 
$423 
$952 

$2,045,575 

Total I\ kJ ica I Cost 

I $5,283,381 I 

-$'2~723~()64 
....... 

C it\ Cont ribut ion 
($ 

$433 

$334 
$243 
$547 

$1,455,351 

City Contribution 
($) 

I $4,294,036 

...... 

I 

iP§!~ 
Emplo: cc Contribution Total Lmploycc 

( S) Contribut ion 
($) 

96.3% $16 $16 
67.4% $161 $178 
67.4% $117 $134 

67.4% $264 $280 
85.5% - ~ $16,286 

100.0%- ' $0 

~'l&.% 10 $16,286 

Fmplo) cc Contribution Total l'.mplo: cc 
(S) Contribution 

($) 

1p·o.r1o 

! ~l 
$0 $0 

1o.or o $143 $143 

~o.or $104 $104 

70.0Vo $234 $234 

87:'7°/o 

Cit ~ Contribution 
( (~ ;, ) 

82.0% 

57.4% 
57.4% 

57.4% 

71.1% 
-

City Cnntrib ut ion 
(%) 

-8T3%=1 

----- $382,835 

Emplo) cc Contribution Total Employee 
($) Contribut ion 

$95 

$248 
$180 
$406 

$590,225 

Lmplo: ce Contribution 
($) 

($) 

$95 

$343 
$275 
$500 

1 



Employee 13 

II + Spouse 0 
+ Children 3 

Employee 180 
+ Spouse 23 
+ Children 34 
+ Family 50 
Premium Contributions 180 

% 

$589 
$649 
$471 

$692 
$762 
$553 

$1,247 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
RENEW AL - Current Funding 0/o 

I 
$567 ~ 

96.3% 
$438 67.4% 
$318 67.4% 
$716 67.4% 

85.5% - ~ 

$567 82.0% 
$438 57.4% 
$318 57.4% 
$716 57.4% 

$2,678,684 $1,905,784 71.1% 

$22 
$211 
$153 
$346 

$124 
$325 

: $236 
$531 

$772,900 

i ~ P!ORS 
·fo:al Lmplo: cc Tot<i l l:mplo: cc Total Em;ilo: cc 

Co111 ributio11 Contri bution Ch:1 11~c Co111ributio11 Change 
( \ ) (S) l" o) 

$22 
$233 
$175 
$367 

$188 
$136 
$307 

$5 
$55 
$41 
$87 

$32 
$73 

31% 
31% 
31% 
31% 

31% 
31% 
31% 

Total Lmplo: cc Tot,ll Lmplo: cc Total 1. mplo> cc 
Co 111rili11 tin11 Contribution Clu ngc Corlln h11t ion Ch;mgc 

( $ ) (S) (" u) 

$124 $29 31% 
$449 $106 31% 
$360 $85 31% 
$655 $155 31% 

~ 

2 



,Oedyc:lible 
lo9duclllllt OON nl• 

90% 
7a" 

Sl.000/$2,000 
~ 

[Co .. 1Uf11nte 

1COtnliiinc. OON I ,.. I JIJ-,. I own I ,.,. I '1\IJ'W I V\119 

Out of POO.el ~a.xunum ... · --- · -- --- ................ · ..... ---- ... - ......... · ...... --- ... - --- · ...... ......... .. .. --- · ...... ......... ... · ......... · -

D% I 0% 
20% after Oed. 
20%.nerelid. 
20% •fter Ced. afterOed. I ssoc~ 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
Plan D11lgn Option• 

i --0% 

~Ced. 
20% after Ced. 
20% aner Ced. 

nla 

O'lro 0% 
20%afterDad. US Cop• , 
20% •fter Ced. S50CODIW 
20% Iller Ced. S75 COP• ¥ 

nl• 
Toi' 
7a" 

U ,ooo / H .000 
nl• 

0% 
szsc~ I 20% a fter Oed. 
SSGCn~ I 20% after Ced. 
S71CDDav I 20% after Ced. 

20% •ft•r-oed. afterOecl. I uooc- 2°"' after Deel. 20% ..... Deel. SZOGCiiii szoo Con..~ 1 20% after Oed. 

Conlributlons 

~ 
'YtA 

SS.617.166 
$1.323,130 

311,8% 

20% after Ced. 
20% •fter Oed. 
20%-•fter Deel. 
20%-•fter Ced. 

10% 20% after Ced. 
10% 20% after Ced. 
10% 20% after OeO. 20% 
10% _20% after Deel. 20% 
10% 20%•fler0ecl 20% 
10% _ 20%•fter0ecl. 20% 
10% 20% after Deel. 20'4 

S 15 after Oed. 

20% after Oed. 10% 20% 
20% Iller t\e!I. 10% 20% 
20% after Oed. 10% 20% 
20% after Oed. 10% 20% 

30% I 20% after Oed. 10% 20% 
30% I 20% aft..-Oed. 10% 20'.4 
;O% l 20% after Old. 10% 20% 

s10 aner Ced. 
MO after Ced. 
sao after Ced._ 
uoo an.r Ced. 

o% 
APPo;• 

SS.8?9.172 
Tsi5.ffi 

_- 11% 

ss-:-247:Ja1 SS,1).42.669 
n•B.833 

11% 
)953-:-381 I ·--· 

22% •• 

Contnt>Ubon1 I S1.295,549 I •·---1 .-1.1.J•.u'1'I ....... · 1 .-1C111:11,.1o1.,_, . I · }•···-· -· 1- - _.,~ .~ ... f I __ ~ .& ... ••·"' · ' .- I •v-. 
$306.204 - :.: ........ 1 .... _,,. . • •• . , a' - c ... _ ,.... ...... .. . J .:xz_ -- ~ .. a _.-. ... . . ..... .... 

Em 
i1' 

~ 
10152.8421 

~ A 31.0% ---:mr-.... ~ 
S6,17H28 ~ 
$891.1"8 SS95,791 

17% ---1.!!...._ 

SS,050.827 s.4,852.ll_stl_ 
$758.791 SSS8.81• 

13_% 

$1.026.3_22 
$38.977 
-.;:-

t:::; 
1EmElo:f!! Con · · 
iS A llil>Utions 

iA 

18% 

- mm 
IPI/! • .,!:.!!6 
$~95,791 

11% • f , ... 

\ \ - Total Contnbuti li'4 ..,. 
(%4 

S6&7• .529 I ••uu 
w S891.1•8 

17% 

M.09_3.576 
Ls:I00.'4801 

-5% I lll 
$4,4~ .003 

1$!!0.Gll: 
·1% 

~Coolnbutions li,~30.525 S1.7~~~ 

17911251 
-;;;r 

St. 
~ 

Sv.41.180 
95% 

20% •fter Dtd. 
20%1ft1<DIHI. 
20% after Dad. 
20% after Ded. 
20% after Ced. 
20% after OIHI. 
20 

3 



CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION 1 - Basic Plan Deductible Adjustment 

Employee 13 

II 
$588 $561 95.3% $28 

+ Spouse 0 $648 $432 66.7% $216 
+ Children 3 $471 $314 66.7% $157 

66.7% $353 
% 

+ Spouse 23 $713 $432 60.7% $280 
+ Children 34 $517 $314 60.7% $203 
+ Family 50 $1,166 $707 60.7% $459 

Premium Contributions 180 $2,504,570 $1,882,915 75.2% $621,655 
-

i ~ P§.ORS 
Total Lmph1~ CL' fot~il Lmpl o~ c~· Tot.ii l:mplo~ cc 

Cunlrihution Co1111 ihut iun Chan~~c Cont ribution Ch:1n~.: 

!S) (5 I (" .,) 

$28 
$244 
$184 
$381 

$11 
$66 
$51 
$101 

$42 
$31 
$69 

69% 
37% 
38% 
36% 

29% 
29% 
29% 

Tota l l'.mplo~ cc Total Fmplo~ cc Tot.11 Fmplo~ cc 
Contribution Contr ibution Change Con11ihution Ch:mgc 

(S) !Sl !"o) 

$86 ($8.77) 

I 
-9~'o 

$366 $23.65 7% 
$290 $14.77 5% 
$545 $44.27 9% 

4 



I !SA Plan - S2.'iOO S~.000 Dell. 80' o Fu~I Time 
S4.000 . :'.8.000 OOPl\I l.mplo: ee~ 

Employee 
+Spouse 
+Children 
+Family 

Premium Contributions 

HSA Contributions 

Total Contributions 

rate action on Dian 

+Spouse 
+Children 

+ Famil 

13 
0 

3 
3 

13 

13 
1~ 13 

$517 
$570 
$414 

$932 

$129,153 

- $19.000 
$148~f53 

$621 
$451 

$1;_016 

$6,219,762 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION 2 - Basic Plan Removal 

$498 
I 

96.3% 
$384 67.4% 
$279 67.4% 

$629 -- 67.4% 

$110,425 - 85.5% 

$19,000 100.0% 

$129.425 87.4% 

$19 
$186 
$135 

$304 

S'135 
~l305 

$787;043 

i ~ P!ORS 
To:.i l !.1:1plo: ee Total hnplo: ee Total i:mplo: ee 

Conti ilrn1 io11 Co111ributio11 Change Conlrihut ion Ch.111µ.e 
!5 ) (5) { 0 ul 

$19 
$204 
$154 

$323 

$186 
$135 

$305 

$2 
$27 
$20 

$42 

$43 
$31 

$70 

15% 
15% 
15% 

15% 

30% 
30% 

30% 

5 



I IS.\ Plan - 5>2.500 · S:".IJOO Ded. 80° o 

St.J.ooo , $8.ooo 001':--. 1 

Employee 
+Spouse 
+Children 
+Family 

ium Contributions 

Employee 
+Spouse 
+Children 
+ Family 
Premium Contributions 

n 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION 3 - Basic Plan Removal, Alternate 80%, $1,000 OOP Kelsey Plan i ~ P!a.s 

hill T1111e 

Emp!o: ee'> 

13 

0 

3 

3 

13 

96 1 ~ 
• .130 

~ 

-
532 -

J\kdic,tl Rak 

$516 

$569 

$413 

$931 

$128,884 

L~~~~ ' 
$919 

•$5,997' 764 

' 
' 

I 

Cit: Contributin:1 
Ci>l 

$497 

$384 

$278 

$628 

$110 -$19,000 

$129,194 

I $419 ( $304 

~ , $686 

SS,238,813 

Cit: Co:•trihutio:i 
{ () <)) 

96.3% 

67.4% 

67.4% 

67.4% 

70.0% I 

( 70.0% ' ' 

_ n.1£l.0% ~ L - . . I 

'- _ 81.3% 
. . 

F mplo: ee 
Cnntrihutinn 

(5) 

$19 

$185 
$134 

$303 

~180 

$130 

$294 
$758,952 

($211 ,704) 
_t.4% 

fotal Lmpln: l'l' Total Emplo: ee Total J:mplo: ee 
Cn111ribu1io11 Cnntrihut ion Chan~e Contribut ion Chan~e 

( $) rSl ('~o) 

$19 $2 15% 

$204 $26 15% 
$153 $20 15% 

$322 $41 15% 

LI $180 
$36 

I 
25% 

$130 $26 25% 

_ $294 $59 25% 

6 



CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION 4 - Basic Plan Removal, Alternate 80% $1,500 OOP Kelsey Plan i «~ P!.ORl 

I IS.\ Plan - $2.:100 ~ :1 .000 Ded. 8011
11 Full Time 

$-LOOO .·· $8.000 00[>1\l Lmplo:- ees 

Tntal t:mplo: 1.·e Tot,1! l mplu: cc Toul Emplo: ee 
Conti ihution Contrihu1 io11 Change Contrihutinn Ch,mge 

(~) ('.+>) ( o(, ) 

Employee 13 $516 $497 96.3% $19 $19 $2 15% 
+Spouse 0 $569 $384 67.4% $185 $204 $26 15% 
+Children 3 $413 $278 67.4% $134 $153 $20 15% 
+Family 3 $931 $628 67.4% $303 $322 $41 15% 
Premium Contributions 13 
HSA Contributions 13 
Total Contributions 

~ 13· 

rate action on olan 

l \'l,li Lmplo: 1.'c' Total Fmplo: ee Tn1,1l Emplo: cc 
Contrihut1011 Contribution Change Co111ribu11011 Chan:;e 

(ii) ( ~) (" ;, ) 

$0 $0 n/a -

LJ +Spouse I I :lt- 11 $582 r 

I 
$407 70.0% $115 $175 $31 22% ' . I $127 $42~ ( I ( I 

+Children $296 70.0% $127 $23 22% 
+ Familv __ $952 - ; $666 , .... "..1JLOo/o , r l $286, • $286 $51 22% 

$5.092,547 ' - - 8'7.3% ' . ' $737;762 
--

13.2% 1.~o. 

7 



I IS.\ l'b:1 - S2.50ll S:'.<JO ll Dell. 80" " 

S-UlOO 58.000 OOP!\! 

Employee 
+ Spouse 
+ Children 

Employee 
+ Spouse 
+ Children 
+ Family 

Premium Contributions 

hill Time 
1·111 plo: ee'> 

13 
0 
3 

478 
54 
86 
122 
478 

II 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION Sa - Dual Kelsey Plans, Current Funding 0/o 

~kui.:a l l{ak 

$516 
$569 
$413 
$93 l 

128, 

$548 
$603 
$438 
$987 

$5,428,951 

Cit: Cnntrihu1:u11 
tS) 

$497 
$384 
$278 
$628 

$531 
$409 
$297 
$670 

$4,596,647 

Cit \ Co::trib::t iun 

t"o) 

96.3% 
67.4% 
67.4% 
67.4% 

96.9% 
67.8% 
67.8% 
67.8% 
84.7% 

Lm plo) ee 
Cu:1:rihut inn 

(S l 

$19 
$185 
$134 
$303 

$17 
$194 
$141 
$317 

$832,304 

To:;!I r 111pln: ee 
C m11ihu1 i1111 

(S} u19 204 
153 
322 

$127 
$287 

$17 
$211 
$1 58 
$334 

i ~ ~SORS 
Tot,11 1 mpl\\: e~ Total I :mrl n: e~ 

C1mtributillfl Change Contrihut :rn: Ch:mg~ 

tS l t"o} 

$2 
$26 
$20 
$41 

$32 
$23 
$53 

$1 7 
$68 
$54 
$100 

15% 
15% 
15% 

22% 
22% 
22% 

n/a 
47% 
52% 
43% 

8 



Employee 478 
+ Spouse 54 
+ Children 86 
+ Family 122 
Premium Contributions 478 

$ Change From Current 
o/c 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION 5b - Dual Kelsey Plans, Benchmark Funding 0/o 

$548 $531 
$603 $363 
$438 $263 
$987 $593 

$5,428,951 $4,419,222 

63.7% 
63.7% 

96.9% 
60.1% 
60.1% 
60.1% 
81.4% 

$206 
$150 
$337 

$17 
$241 
$175 
$394 

$1,009,728 

i ~ P!ORS 
T11tal !:mph>)-=•-' Total l mrl n~ t:t: Total L mrlo~ t:t: 

Co:1!riliutio11 Contrihut!llll Cll.u1gt: C111111 ihut i1111 Ch~mgt: 

{S) (S) { 0 nl 

$0 
$206 
$150 
$337 

$222 
$161 
$364 

$17 
$258 
$192 
$411 

($16) 
$28 
$16 
$57 

$79 
$57 

$129 

$17 
$114 
$88 
$176 

- 100% 
16% 
12% 
20% 

55% 
55% 
55% 

n/a 

80% 
84% 
75% 

9 



CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION Sc - Dual Kelsey Plans, 30°/o Dependent Funding 

l!S.\ l'l.111 - "i2.:'00 "i:'.000 D..:d. 80"o l·ull lim..: 
\~.{)()() S8.0(){) OOPf\I lmrlo) ..:..:~ 

Employee 13 $516 $516 100.0% $0 
+ Spouse 0 $569 $175 30.8% $393 
+ Children 3 $413 $127 30.8% $286 
+ Family 3 $931 $287 30.8% $643 
Premium Contributions 13 $128,884 $95,438 
HSA Contributions - 13. - -~ $19,000 $1 
Total Contributions ~ -~ 1 3~ 
rate action on Dian 

Employee 478 $548 $531 96.9% $17 
+ Spouse 54 $603 $175 29.1% $428 
+ Children 86 $438 $127 29.1% $311 
+ Family 122 $987 $287 29.1% $700 
Premium Contributions 478 $5,428,951 $3,709,524 68.3% $1 ,719,426 

.... o/c 

i 

i ~ P!ORS 
Toti! lmpln; ..:..: lot.ii l mplo; ..:..: Tot.Ii Fmrln; ..:..: 

Cn11tributinn Contnbution Chang..: Contribution Chang..: 
(Sl {Sl {"ul 

$0 ($16) -100% 
$393 $216 121% 
$286 $152 114% 
$643 $363 129% 

lut:d Lmrh);..:..: Tot.Ii l mrlo;..:..: Tot,11 Fmrlu;e..: 
( ·\lntnbution Contribution Chang..: Contribution Chang..: , 

!S) (S) ("n) 

$0 
$409 

$0 
$266 
$193 
$435 

n/a 
186% 
186% 
186% 

Total J:rnplo; ..:..: Total J:mrl\l) ..:..: J"ot,11 Ernrln; ..:..: 
Contribution Contrihuti\ln Clw1g..: Cnntributillll CJi;mg..: 

( S) (S) (" o l 

$17 $17 n/a 
$445 $302 210% 
$328 $224 215% 
$717 $483 206% 

10 



I IS.\ J>bn - S2.)00 S:'\.000 Dcd. 80°n Full Tim.: 
'.-> LOOO ~S.0110 OOl'l\I l rnphi: c.:s 

Employee 
+ Spouse 
+ Children 
+ Family 
Premium Contributions 
HSA Contributions 
Total Contributions 
rate action on Dian 

Employee 
+ Spouse 
+ Children 
+ Famil 
Premium Contributions 

13 
0 
3 
3 
13 

...... 13- -= 
13 

478 
54 
86 
122 
478 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION 6a - Dual Kelsey Plans, Current Funding 0/o 

$516 $497 96.3% $19 
$569 $384 67.4% $185 
$413 $278 67.4% $134 
$931 $628 67.4% $303 

$128.884 $110.194 85.5% 

$520 $509 97.9% $11 
$573 $393 68.6% $180 
$416 $285 68.6% $131 
$938 $643 68.6% $295 

$5,157,503 $4,412,781 85.6% $744,722 

% 

i ~ P!ORS 
Tot.ii [mplo: cc Tot;i l I:mpln) .:c Total Lrnphi) cc 

Conlt ihutinn C\i111:·ihuti\111 Ch~111~~ Cot:! r:b~1!inn Chan~c 

!SI (Sl l" ul 

$19 
$204 
$153 
$322 

$122 
$276 

$2 
$26 
$20 
$41 

$25 
$18 
$41 

15% 
15% 
15% 
15% 

18% 
18% 
18% 

Tota l Lmpln) .:c Tot~1! I mpln: .:~ Tot,11 Emplo) ~~ 
Cont11hutil1n Cllllt rihutilln Chant-!c Contri hutinn Ch;mg~ 

l"i ) (S) (" o) ull $11 

I 
n/a 

191 $48 33% 
142 $38 36% 
306 $71 30% 

11 



CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION 6b - Dual Kelsey Plans, Benchmark Funding 0/o 

I IS.\ Plan - S2.:'00 \:'.000 Dl.!d. 80"u lull Ti11:1.! 
Scl.000 S8.000 OOPI\ I l:mplll) ces 

Employee 13 $516 $497 - 96.3% $19 

+ Spouse 0 $569 $384 67.4% $185 
+ Children 3 $413 $278 67.4% $134 

;• + Family I 
3 $931 $628 67.4% $303 

Premium Contributions 13 $128,884 $1 10,194 85.5% 

HSA Contributions - 13- =- ,_....___$19,000 $19,000 I 100.0% 
A% 

Employee 478 $520 $509 97.9% $11 

+ Spouse 54 $573 $348 60.7% $225 
.,. Children 86 $416 $253 60.7% $163 

+ Family 122 $938 $569 60.7% $368 

Premium Contributions 478 $5,157,503 $4,242,453 82.3% $915,050 

o/c 

i ~ P.!ORS 
Tot,11 r111plo: l.!I.! Tot.ti l .mplo) Cl.! fot,tl I mrlo) 1.!I.! 

Cnntri bu:i1111 Cn:llr:but: li:1 Ch;1::µc C1rnlnhut1on Chan!!e 
(SJ (Sl ("u) 

$19 
$204 
$153 
$322 

$2 
$26 
$20 
$41 

$70 
$51 

$115 

15% 
15% 
15% 
15% 

49% 
49% 
49% 

Tot,tl 1 ·mplo) el.! Tot;tl Emplo) cc To1al L111ph1: ce 
Contribulion C1111t1 ihutinn Ch;mµc Cnntrihu1io11 Ch;111!!c 

tS) (S l (" ol 

$11 

I 
$11 n/a 

$236 $93 65% 
$174 $70 67% 

$379 $145 62% 

12 



CITY OF PEARLAND 
OPTION 6c - Dual Kelsey Plans, 30°/o Dependent Funding 

Employee 

I 
13 

II 
$516 $497 96.3% $19 

+ Spouse 0 $569 $384 67.4% $185 
+ Children 3 $413 $278 67.4% $134 

$931 $628 67.4% $303 
128, 

000 I $19,000 I 100.0~ 

87.4% 

Employee 478 $520 $509 97.9% $1 I 
+ Spouse 54 $573 $168 29.4% $405 
+ Children 86 $416 $122 29.4% $294 
+ Family 122 $938 $276 29.4% $662 
Premium Contributions 478 $5, 157,503 $3,561 ,143 69.0% $1,596,360 

% 

iP§.i~ 
Tot,tl 1.mplo) cl.! Tot;tl lmplo) 1.:c Total l .111plo) ct.: 

Contribution C1mtrihuti1111 Change Contribution Ch<1n!!c 
IS l 1S1 ("o) 

$19 
$204 
$153 
$322 

$285 
$643 

$2 
$26 
$20 
$41 

15% 
15% 
15% 
15% 

174% 
174% 
174% 

Tnt;il Frnplo; t.:c Total 1-.mplo) t.:c Total Emplu.\l:c 
Contribution Cl111trihutil1n Chanµt.: Contribution Ch,111gt.: 

(S) (SJ ("oJ 

$11 $1 I n/a 

$415 $272 190% 
$305 $201 193% 
$673 $439 187% 

13 



' 

RESPONSIVE RESULTS-ORIENTED TRUST-BUILDERS ACCOUNTABLE 

Memo 
To: Clay Pearson, City Manager 

From: Claire Bogard, Director of Finance 

Date: June 19, 2014 

Re: Health Insurance Options - Effects on Employees 

In conjunction with the presentation that the City's advisors, IPS Advisors, Inc. will give to City 
Council on options for health insurance for fiscal year 2015, staff ran the effects of Option 5 (b 
and c) and Option 6 (a, b, and c) on a few of the City's positions based on average salary. 
Options b and c push more cost to the employee for dependent coverage. 

The tables attached compare: 

Kelsey to Kelsey - compares those employees and employee cost on the current 
Kelsey plan to the revised Kelsey plan(s) for each option. Currently there are 352 employees 
on the Kelsey plan, of which 185 have dependent coverage. The Kelsey plan requires the 
employee to use the Kelsey system unless in an emergency. 

Basic to Kelsey - since the recommendation calls for the elimination of the current 
Basic Plan, this compares those employees and employee cost on the current Basic plan to the 
revised Kelsey plan for each option. There are 180 employees currently on the Basic Plan of 
which 107 have dependent coverage. The Basic plan allows employees to choose a Doctor 
that is on the plan. 

HSA to HSA - compares those employees and employee cost on the current HSA plan 
to the revised HSA plan. The City also contributes $1,000 annually to an employee only health 
savings account and $2,000 annually for dependents. The city has 13 employees on the HSA 
plan, of which 6 have dependent coverage. The HSA plan allows employees to use a Doctor of 
their choosing. 
Options compared are: 

Option 5b - Lowers the dependent coverage paid by the City from 70% to 62% for the 
new base plan set at a 70% coinsurance, based on the average of the 10 city survey. Increases 
the total City contribution by $756,791 and increases the total employee contribution by 
$134,356. 

Option 5c - Lowers the dependent coverage paid by the City from 70% to 30% for the 
new base plan, based on where the City was at in 2006. Decreases the total City contribution 
by $50,000 and increases the total employee contribution by $941, 180. 

Option 6a - Keeps the dependent coverage paid by the City 70%, however sets a 
new base plan at 80% coinsurance and increases out of pocket maximums over Option 5. This 



- -

RESPONSIVE RESULTS-ORIENTED TRUST-BUILDERS ACCOUNTABLE 

increases the total City contribution by $748,633, and lowers the total employee contribution by 
$152,842. 

Option 6b - Lowers the dependent coverage paid by the City from 70% to 62% for the 
new base plan set at a 80% coinsurance and increases out of pocket maximums over Option 5. 
This option increases the total City contribution by $558,814 and total employee contribution 
increases by $36,977. 

Option 6c - Same as option 6b but decreasing the City dependent contribution from 70% 
to 30%. This option decreases the total City contribution by $200,460 and Increases the total 
employee contributions by $796,251. 

(in all Options, assumptions for employees in the HSA program have remained at the current 
level, 13. If more employees move to the HSA, than shown here, the numbers above will 
change as the City contributes an additional $1,000 annually for an employee only and $2,000 
annually for dependent coverage) 

For illustrative purposes, there were four positions chosen to compare. A Firefighter, Police 
Officer, Maintenance Worker and a Project Manager. An average salary was used based on 
the current employees in that position. For Fire and Police, the salary includes guaranteed 
overtime pay based on the current work schedule, however does not include additional overtime 
that may be paid for training, court, back-fill for sick, vacation or vacant positions, to name a 
few. The FY2015 salary includes an average 2% merit increase for civilians and an overall 5% 
increase for police officers: a 2% increase in the step rate and 3% for the actual step. 
However, since the police officer increase exceeds the average 2% merit for civilians, we could 
consider a 3% step increase only. Since these deductions are pre-tax, there has been no 
calculation as to the tax implications nor TMRS contributions. 

Option C, which decreases the City contribution toward dependent coverage from 70% to 30%, 
has a significant impact on employees with dependents, so much so that staff is not 
recommending this option. In all options, employees at the lower end of pay scale see the 
biggest impact. The City currently has 78 budgeted positions, or 13% of the City's workforce, 
with salaries of $30,000 or below. Depending on where one is in the pay range, this would 
include clerks (court, records, permit and customer service), office assistants, maintenance 
workers (parks, building and utility), and custodians, animal shelter attendant, receptionists. 

Staff is recommending either Option 6A or 6B, which provides a lower cost increase to the City 
and is manageable for the employee. 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefigiter 
Police Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Child 
Firefigiter 
Police Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Family 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 
Med Prem Net 

0 55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Med Prem Net 
1,719 53,406 

65,606 
26,653 
70,781 

1,248 53,877 
66,077 
27,124 
71,252 

2,812 52,313 
64,513 
25,560 
69,688 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Kelsey Plan 

Kelsey to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 2015 • 5b ded. 70% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 0 56,228 1,103 
70,691 70,691 3,366 
28,939 28,939 567 
73,950 73,950 1,450 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 2,664 53,564 157 
70,691 68,027 ' 2,421 
28,939 26,275 {378} 
73,950 71,286 505 

56,228 1,932 54,296 419 
70,691 68,759 2,682 
28,939 27,007 (117} 
73,950 72,018 766 

56,228 4,368 51,860 (453) 
70,691 66,323 1,811 
28,939 24,571 (988) 
73,950 69,582 {106) 

6/19/2014 

Proposed FY 2015 -Sb ded. 90% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 204 56,024 899 
70,691 70,487 3,162 
28,939 28,735 363 
73,950 73,746 1,246 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 3,096 53,132 (275) 
70,691 67,595 1,989 
28,939 25,843 (810) 
73,950 70,854 73 

56,228 2,304 53,924 47 
70,691 68,387 2,310 
28,939 26,635 {4E9) 
73,950 71,646 394 

56,228 4,932 51 ,296 (1,017} 
70,691 65,759 1,247 
28,939 24,007 {1 ,552) 
73,950 69,018 (670) 

I 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Child 
Firefighter 
Ponce Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent- Family 
Firefighter 
Ponce Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

I 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 I 

72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 
Med Prem Net 

0 55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Med Prem Net 
1,719 53,406 

65,606 
26,653 
70,781 

1,248 53,877 
66,077 
27,124 
71 ,252 

I 

2,812 52,313 
64,513 

I 

25,560 I 

69,688 

Medlcal Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Kelsey Plan 

Kelsey to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 2015 • 5c • ded. 70% 
Salarv Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 0 51 ,320 (3,806) 
70,691 ! 65,783 (1,542) 
28,g3g ' 24,031 {4.341) 
73,950 69,042 (3.458) 

i 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 4,908 51,_320 (2.087) 
70,691 65,783 177 
28,939 24,031 (2,622' 
73,g50 69,042 (1,739 

56,228 3,564 52,664 (1 ,214 
70,691 67,127 1,050 
25,g3g 25,375 (1,749) 
73,950 70,386 (866) 

56,226 8,040 48,188 {4,125) 
10,6g1 62,651 (1 .861) 
28,939 20,899 (4.660} 
73,950 65,g10 (3.778) 

6/19/2014 

Proposed FY 2015 • 5c - ded. 90% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56.228 204 56,024 899 
10,6g1 70,487 3,162 . 
28,939 28,735 363 
73,950 73,746 1,246 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 5,340 50,888 (2.519) 
70,691 65,351 (255) 
28,939 23,599 {3,054) 
73,g50 68,610 (2.171 J 

56,228 3,936 52,292 {1,586) 
70,691 66,755 678 
28,939 25,003 (2,121) 
73,950 70,014 (1,238) 

56,228 8,604 47,624 (4.689) 
10,6g1 62,087 (2,425) 
28,939 20,335 {5,224) 
73,950 65,346 (4,342) 

2 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
P.JV Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Chlld 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Family 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 

Med Prem Net 
0 55,125 

67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Med Prem Net 
1,719 53,406 

65,606 
26,653 
70,781 

1,246 53,877 
66,077 
27,124 
71 ,252 

2,812 52,313 
64,513 
25,560 
69,688 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Kelsey Plan 

Kelsey to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 2015 - 6a - ded. 80% 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 0 56,228 1,103 
70,691 70,6g1 3,366 
28,g3g 28,g39 567 
73,950 73,950 1,450 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 2,016 54,212 805 
70,6g1 68,675 3,069 
28,939 26,923 270 
73,950 71,934 1,153 

56,228 1,464 54,764 887 
70,691 69,227 3,150 
28,939 27,475 351 
73,950 72,486 1,234 

56,228 3,312 52,916 603 
70,691 67,379 2,867 
28,939 25,627 68 
73,950 70,638 950 

6/1g/2014 

Proposed FY 2015- 6a - ded. 90% 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 132 56,096 971 
70,6g1 70,559 3,234 
28,939 28,807 435 
73,950 73,818 1,318 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 2,292 53,936 529 
70,691 68,399 2,793 
28,939 26,647 {6) 
73,950 71 ,658 877 

56,228 1,704 54,524 647 
70,691 68,987 2,910 
28,g3g 27,235 111 
73,950 72,246 994 

56,228 3,672 52,556 243 
70,691 67,019 2,507 
28,939 25,267 (292' 
73,950 70,278 590 

3 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent- Child 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent • Family 
Firefighter 
Pol!ce Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 
Med Prem Net 

0 55,1 25 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Med Prem Net 
1.719 53,406 

65,606 
26,653 
70,781 

1,248 53,877 
66,077 
27,124 
71 ,252 

2,812 52,313 
64,513 
25,560 
69,688 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Kelsey Plan 

Kelsey to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 2015 - 6b ded. 80% 
Salarv Med Prem Net ChanQe 
56,228 0 56,228 1,103 
70,691 70,691 3,366 
28,939 28,939 567 
73,950 73,950 1,450 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 2,556 53,672 265 
70,691 68,135 2,529 
28,939 26,383 (270) 
73,950 71 ,394 613 

56,228 1,860 54,368 491 
70,691 68,831 2,754 
28,939 27,079 (45) 
73,950 72,090 838 

56,228 4,188 52,040 (273) 
70,691 66,503 1,991 
28,939 24,751 (806) 
73,950 69,762 74 

6/19/2014 

Proposed FY 2015 - 6b - ded. 90% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 132 56,096 971 
70,691 70,559 3,234 
28,939 28,807 435 
73,950 73,818 1,318 

Salary Med Prem Net Chani:ie 
56,228 2,832 53,396 (11) 
70,691 67,859 2,253 
28,939 26,107 (546) 
73,950 71 ,118 337 

56,228 2,088 54,140 263 
70,691 68,603 2,526 
28,939 26,851 (273) 
73,950 71 ,862 610 

56,228 4,548 51 ,680 (633) 
70,691 66,143 1,631 
28,939 i 24,391 (1.168) 
73,950 69,402 (286) 

~ 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Child 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Family 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 ' 
28,372 I 

72,500 

I Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

I 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 
Med Prem Net 

0 55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Med Prem Net 
1,719 53,406 

65,606 
26,653 
70,781 

1,248 53,877 
66,077 
27,124 
71,252 

2,812 52,313 
64,513 
25,560 
5g,688 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Kelsey Plan 

Kelsey to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 201 5 - &c ded. ao•/a 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 0 56,228 1,103 
70,691 70,691 3,366 
28,93911 28,939 567 
73,950 73,950 1,450 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 4,716 51,512 (1,895) 
70,691 65,975 369 
28,939 24,223 (2,430} 
73,950 69,234 (1 ,547) 

56,228 3,420 52,808 (1,070) 
70,691 67,271 1,194 
28,939 25,519 (1,605) 
73,950 70,530 (722) 

56,228 7,716 48,512 (3.801) 
70,691 62,975 (1 .5371 
28,93g 21,223 (4.336) 
73,950 66,234 (3,454) 

6/19/2014 

Proposed FY 201 5 - &c - ded. 90°/. 
Salarv Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 132 56,096 971 
70,691 70,559 3,234 
28,939 28,807 435 
73,950 73,818 1,318 

Salary Med Prem Net ChanQe 
56,228 ' 4,980 51 ,248 (2,159) 
70,691 65,711 105 
28,939 23,959 (2,694) 
73,950 68,970 (1 ,811) 

56,228 3,660 52,568 (1 ,310) 
70,691 67,031 954 
28,939 25,279 (1,845) 
73,950 70,290 (962) 

56,228 8,076 48,152 (4,161) 
70,691 62,615 (1 ,897' 
28,939 20,863 (4.696) 
73,950 65,874 (3,814) 

--b 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Off teer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Pollce Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Child 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Family 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary 
54,417 
54,060 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 
Med Prem Net 

1,139 53,986 
66,186 
27,233 
71 ,361 

Med Prem Net 
4,114 50,303 

49,946 
24,258 
68,386 

3,299 51,826 
64,026 
25,073 
69,201 

6,006 49,119 
61,319 
22,366 
66,494 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Basic Plan 

Basic move to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 2015- Sb ded. 70% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 0 56,228 2,242 
70,691 70,691 4,506 
28,939 28,939 1,707 
73,950 73,950 2,589 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
55,505 2,664 52,841 2,538 
56,763 54,099 4,153 
28,939 26,275 2,017 
73,950 71,286 2,900 

56,228 1,932 54,296 2,469 
70,691 68,759 4,733 
28,939 27,007 1,934 
73,950 72,018 2,817 

56,228 4,368 51,860 2,740 
70,691 66,323 5,004 
28,939 24,571 2,205 
73,950 69,582 3,088 

6/19/2014 

Proposed FY 2015 - Sb ded. 90% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 204 56,024 2,038 
70,691 70.487 4,302 
28,939 28,735 1,503 
73,950 73,746 2,385 

Salary Med Prem Net Chanoe 
55,505 3,096 52,409 2,106 
56,763 53,667 3,721 
28,939 25,843 1,585 
73,950 70,854 2,468 

56,228 2,304 53,924 2,097 
70,691 68,387 4,361 
28,939 26,635 1,562 
73,950 71 ,646 2,445 

56,228 4,932 51,296 2,176 
70,691 65,759 4,440 
28,939 24,007 1,641 
73,950 69,018 2,524 

ls; 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Chlld 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Famlly 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 
Med Prem Net 

1,139 53,986 
66,186 
27,233 
71,361 

Med Prem Net 
4,114 51,011 

63,211 
24,258 
68,386 

3,299 51,826 
64,026 
25,073 
69,201 

6,006 49,119 
61,319 
22,366 
66.494 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Basic Plan 

Basic move to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 2015- 5c-ded. 70% 
Salary Med Prem Net Chanae 
56,228 0 56,228 2,242 
70,691 70,691 4,506 
28,939 28,939 1,707 
73,950 73,950 2,589 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 4,908 51,320 308 
70,691 65,783 2,572 
28,939 24,031 {227) 
73,950 69,042 656 

56,228 3,564 52,664 837 
70,691 67,127 3,101 
28,939 25,375 302 
73,950 70,386 1,185 

56,228 8,040 48,188 (932) 
70,691 62,651 1,332 
28,939 20,899 (1.467' 
73,950 65,910 (584) 

6/19/2014 

Proposed FY 2015 - Sc - ded. 90% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 204 56,024 2,038 
70,691 70,487 4,302 
28,939 28,735 1,503 
73,950 73,746 2,385 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 5,340 50,888 (124) 
70,691 65,351 2,140 
28,939 23,599 {659) 
73,950 68,610 224 

56,228 3,936 52,292 465 
70,691 66,755 2,729 
28,939 25,003 (70) 
73,950 70,014 813 

56,228 8,604 47,624 (1,496) 
70,691 62,087 768 
28,939 20,335 (2,031) 
73,950 65,346 (1,148) 

·1 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Child 
Firefighter 
Pollce Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Family 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 
Med Prem Net 

1,139 53,986 
66,186 
27,233 
71 ,361 

Med Prem Net 
4,114 51 ,011 

63,211 
24,258 
68,386 

3,299 51 ,826 
64,026 
25,073 
69,201 

6,006 49,119 
61 ,319 
22,366 
66,494 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Basic Plan 

Basic move to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 2015- 6a- ded. 80% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 0 56,228 2,242 
70,691 70,691 4,506 
28,939 28,939 1,707 
73,950 73,950 2,589 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 2,016 54,212 3,200 
70,691 68,675 5,464 
28,939 26,923 2,665 
73,950 71,934 3,548 

56,228 1,464 54,764 2,937 
70,691 69,227 5,201 
28,939 27.475 2.402 
73,950 72.486 3,285 

56,228 3,312 52,916 3,796 
70,691 67,379 6,060 
28,939 25,627 3,261 
73,950 70,638 4,144 

6/1912014 

Proposed FY 2015 -6a - ded. 90% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 132 56,096 2 .110 
70,691 70,559 4,374 
28,939 28,807 1,575 
73,950 73,818 2,457 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 2,292 53,936 2,924 
70,691 68,399 5,188 
28,939 26,647 2,389 
73,950 71 ,658 3,272 

56,228 1,704 54,524 2,697 
70,691 68,987 4,961 
28,939 27,235 2,162 
73,950 72,246 3,045 

56,228 3,672 52,556 3.436 
70,691 67,019 5,700 
28,939 25,267 2,901 
73,950 70,278 3,784 

i 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighler 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Chlld 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Family 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 
Med Prem Net 

1,139 53,986 
66,186 
27,233 
71,361 

Med Prem Net 
4,114 51,011 

63,211 
24,258 
68,386 

3,299 51,826 
64,026 
25,073 
69,201 

6,006 49,119 
61,319 
22,366 
66,494 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Basic Plan 

Basic move to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 2015 - 6b ded. 80% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 0 56,228 2,242 
70,691 70,691 4,506 
28,939 28,939 1,707 
73,950 73,950 2,589 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 2,556 53,672 2,660 
70,691 68,135 4,924 
28,939 26,383 2,125 
73,950 71,394 3,008 

56,228 1,860 54,368 2,541 
70,691 68,831 4,805 
28,939 27,079 2,006 
73,950 72,090 2,889 

56,228 4,188 52,040 2,920 
70,691 66,503 5,184 
28,939 24,751 2,385 
73,950 69,762 3,268 

6/19/2014 

Proposed FY 2015 - 6b - ded. 90% 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 132 56,096 2,110 
70,691 70,559 4,374 
28,939 28,807 1,575 
73,950 73,818 2,457 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 2,832 53,396 2,384 
70,691 67,859 4,648 
28,939 26,107 1,849 
73,950 71.118 2,732 

56,228 2,088 54,140 2,313 
70,691 68,603 4,577 
28,939 26,851 1,778 
73,950 71,862 2,661 

56,228 4,548 51,680 2,560 
70,691 66,143 4,824 
28,939 24,391 2,025 
73,950 69,402 2,908 

9 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Chlld 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Famlly 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 
Med Prem Net 

1,139 53,986 
66,186 
27,233 
71,361 

Med Prem Net 
4,114 51,011 

63,211 
24,258 
68,386 

3,299 51,826 
64,026 
25,073 
69,201 

6,006 49,119 
61,319 
22,366 
66,494 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on Basic Plan 

Basic move to Kelsey 

Proposed FY 2015 • 6c ded. 80% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 0 56,228 2,242 
70,691 70,691 4,506 
28,939 28,939 1,707 
73,950 73,950 2,589 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 4,716 51,512 500 
70,691 65,975 2,764 
28,939 24,223 (35) 
73,950 69,234 848 

56,228 3,420 52,808 981 
70,691 67,271 3,245 
28,939 25,519 446 
73,950 70,530 1,329 

56,228 7,716 48,512 (608) 
70,691 62,975 1,656 
28,939 21,223 (1,143) 
73,950 66,234 (260) 

6/1912014 

Proposed FY 2015- 6c- ded. 90% 
Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 132 56,096 2,110 
70,691 70,559 4,374 
28,939 28,807 1,575 
73,950 73,818 2,457 

Salary Med Prem Net Change 
56,228 4,992 51,236 224 
70,691 65,699 2.488 
28,939 23,947 f311} 
73,950 68,958 572 

56,228 3,660 52,568 741 
70,691 67,031 3,005 
28,939 25,279 206 
73,950 70,290 1,089 

56,228 8,076 48,152 (968) 
70,691 62,615 1,296 
28,939 20,863 (1,503) 
73,950 65,874 (620) 

JO 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Child 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Famlly 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

FY 2014 
Salary Med Prem 
55,125 197 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary Med Prem 
54,417 2,134 
54,060 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 1,603 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 3,365 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on HSA Plan 

HSA to HSA 

Proposed FY 2015 - Sb 
Net Salary Med Prem Net 
54,928 56,228 0 56,228 
67,128 70,691 70,691 
28,175 28,939 28,939 
72,303 73,950 73,950 

Net Salary Med Prem Net 
52,283 55,505 2,472 53,033 
51,926 56,763 54,291 
26,238 28,939 26,467 
70,366 73,950 71,478 

53,522 56,228 1,800 54,428 
65,722 70,691 68,891 
26,769 28,939 27,139 
70,897 73,950 72,150 

51,760 56,228 4,044 52, 184 
63,960 70,691 66,647 
25,007 28,939 24,895 
69,135 73,950 69,906 

6/19/2014 

Change 
1,300 
3,564 

765 
1,647 

Change 
750 

2,365 
229 

1,112 

906 
3,169 

371 
1,253 

424 
2,688 
{111) 
771 

I I 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Child 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Family 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Salary 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Sala IV 
55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

FY 2014 

Med Prem 
197 

Med Prem 
2,134 

1,603 

3,365 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on HSA Plan 

HSAto HSA 

Proposed FY 2015 - Sc 

Net Salarv Med Prem Net 
54,928 56,228 0 56,228 
67,128 70,691 70,691 
28,175 28,939 28,939 
72,303 73,950 73,950 

Net Salary Med Prem Net 
52,991 56,228 4,716 51,512 
65,191 70,691 65,975 
26,238 28,939 24,223 
70,366 73,950 69,234 

53,522 56,228 3,432 52,796 
65,722 70,691 67,259 
26,769 28,939 25,507 
70,897 73,950 70,518 

51,760 56,228 7,716 48,512 
63,960 70,691 62,975 
25,007 28,939 21,223 
69,135 73,950 66,234 

6/19/2014 

Change 
1,300 
3,564 

765 
1,647 

Change 
(1,480) 

784 
(2,015) 
(1, 132) 

(726' 
1,537 

(1 ,261) 
(379) 

(3,248) 
(984) 

(3,783) 
(2,901) 

iL 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Child 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Family 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

FY 2014 

55,125 197 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salarv Med Prem 
55,125 2,134 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 1,603 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 3,365 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on HSA Plan 

HSA to HSA 

Proposed FY 2015 - 6a 

54,928 56,228 228 56,000 
67,128 70,691 70,463 
28,175 28,939 28,711 
72,303 73,950 73,722 

Net Salarv Med Prem Net 
52,991 56,228 2,448 53,780 
65,191 70,691 68,243 
26,238 28,939 26,491 
70,366 73,950 71,502 

53,522 56,228 1,836 54,392 
65,722 70,691 68,855 
26,769 28,939 27,103 
70,897 73,950 72,114 

51,760 56,228 3,864 52,364 
63,960 70,691 66,827 
25,007 28,939 25,075 
69,135 73,950 70,086 

6/19/2014 

1,072 
3,336 

537 
1,419 

Cha nae 
788 

3,052 
253 

1,136 

870 
3,133 

335 
1,217 

604 
2,868 

69 
951 

13 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent - Chlld 
Firefighter 
Pollce Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent- Famlly 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

FY 2014 
Salary Med Prem 
55,125 197 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary Med Prem 
55,125 2,134 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 1,603 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 3,365 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on HSA Plan 

HSA to HSA 

Proposed FY 2015 - 6b 
Net Salarv Med Prem Net 
54,928 56,228 228 56,000 
67,128 70,691 70,463 
28,175 28,939 28,711 
72,303 73,950 73,722 

Net Salary Med Prem Net 
52,991 56,228 2,448 53,780 
65,191 70,691 68,243 
26,238 28,939 26,491 
70,366 73,950 71,502 

53,522 56,228 1,836 54,392 
65,722 70,691 68,855 
26,769 28,939 27,103 
70,897 73,950 72,114 

51,760 56,228 3,864 52,364 
63,960 70,691 66,827 
25,007 28,939 25,075 
69,135 73,950 70,086 

6/19/2014 

Change 
1,072 
3,336 

537 
1,419 

Charn:ie 
788 

3,052 
253 

1,136 

870 
3,133 

335 
1,217 

604 
2,868 

69 
951 

IL/ 



Employee Only 
Firefighter 
Pollce Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent-Spouse 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent· Child 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mtce Worker 
Project Manager 

Dependent· Family 
Firefighter 
Police Officer 
PW Mice Worker 
Project Manager 

FY 2014 
Salary Med Prem 
55,125 197 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Salary Med Prem 
55,125 2,134 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 1,603 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

55,125 3,365 
67,325 
28,372 
72,500 

Medical Premium Changes 
Affect on Employees on HSA Plan 

HSAto HSA 

Proposed FY 2015 • 6c 
Net Salary Med Prem Net 
54,928 56,228 228 56,000 
67,128 70,691 70,463 
28,175 28,939 28,711 
72,303 73,950 73,722 

Net Salary Med Prem Net 
52,991 56,228 2,448 53,780 
65,191 70,691 68,243 
26,238 28,939 26,491 
70,366 73,950 71,502 

53,522 56,228 1,836 54,392 
65,722 70,691 68,855 
26,769 28,939 27,103 
70,897 73,950 72,114 

51,760 56,228 3,864 52,364 
63,960 70,691 66,827 
25,007 28,939 25,075 
69,135 73,950 70,086 

6/19/2014 

Change 
1,072 
3,336 

537 
1,419 

Change 
788 

3,052 
253 

1,136 

870 
3,133 

335 
1,217 

604 
2,868 

69 
951 

J5 



m
 

3 
N

 
~
o
 

0 
~
 

<
 
~
 

tD
 

I 

tD
 

N
 

:c
 0

 
tD

 
~
 

Q
J 

U
'1 

-,... 
:a

 
::r

 t
D

 
'T

l 
DJ

 
n 

0 
-.

it
 

0 
:a

 
c. 

3 

~~
 

-
::s

 
~
 

C
l. 

-s
 

DJ
 

tD
 

!:!
'. 

D:
J 

0 
tD

 
::s

 
::s

 
"'

 
!l

 er
 

-
·
 

-s
 

,... "' 

-.,, "' ,,. a.
 

<
 -· .,. 0 .. ~ r r .,, 



11 

I. IPS Advisors 

• Established over 35 years ago, IPS Advisors is an independent fee 
based brokerage and consulting firm. Our governmental division 
services 32 municipalities across the State of Texas with their health 
and welfare benefits plans. 

• We provide specialized services through our core practice areas: 

• Corporate Benefits Consulting 

• Corporate Retirement Planning Services 

• Life Insurance Portfolio Management 

iP!,~ 



II. Stop Loss RFP Response 

• Medical 
- Presented 

•Cigna 
• American Alt 
• Transamerica 
• Highmark 
•Gerber 

- Declined I Disqualified 
• Berkely 
• SunLife 
• American National 
• Optum 
• RSLI 
•QBE 
•HCC Life 



Ill. Partial Self Insurance Renewal Financials 

STOP LOSS CARRIER: 

SPECIFIC STOP LOSS DEDUCTIBLE LEVEL: 

Cigna 
Current 

$1 25,000 

I ss85,199 I I ANNUAL STOP LOSS PREMIUM I 
ANNUAL AGGREGATE STOP LOSS DEDUCTIBLE $5 598240 

ANNUAL CIGNA ADMINISTRATION FEES $222309 

HEALTH CARE REFORM FEES $0 

MAXIMUM ANNUAL FUNDING $6,405,748 

% CHANGE FROM CURRENT n/a 

$ CHANGE FROM CURRENT n/a 

NOTES: 

Cigna 
Renegotiated 

Renewal 

S125,000 

__ $_619, 791-_ 

$7,135.736 

$228 907 

$79.300 

$8,063,740 

25.9% 

$1,657,992 

Current, Renegotiated and Best Alternative are based on the current plan of benefits 
Recommended is based on Plan Option &a proposed to Council on June 23, 2014 
Health Care Reform fees include required Reinsurance and PCORI fees 
Financials Based of 545 enrolled employees 

Best Alternative 
Transamerica 

S125,000 

Recommended 
Cigna Plan 
Option 6a 

S125,000 

I $592,328 I [ _ $604,296 I 

$7,768,081 $6 483.938 

$238.717 $220.311 

$79.300 $79.300 

$8,678,426 $7,387,844 

35.5% 15.3% 

$2,272,678 $982,096 

iP!,~ 



IV. Plan Option 6a - Proposed 

N 
!Coinsurance 
'Coinsurance OON 
Out of Pocket Maximum 

of Pocket OON 
!4ULU-1 

Out-patient Hospital 
Major Lab/X-Ray 

n/a 
90% 

$1,000 I $2,000 

10% 
10% 

80% 80% 

20% after Ded. 20% after Ded. I 
20% after Ded. 20% after Ded. I 

n/a 
90% 
n/a 

$2,000 I $4,000 

10% 
10% 

80% 
n/a 

$3,000 I 56,000 

20% 

80% 
60% 

$4,000 I $8,000 
$8,000 I 516,000 l 

20% I 20% after Ded. 
!Ambulance 10% 20% after Qon ?nOJ... ~ftor' non 

10% 20% after Ded. T 20% after Ded. 
I I -- OU - · ·-· ---· I -- • u _,._, ---· I ' ... I V I ..... I V I 20°/o after De .... 

20% after De 
10% 20% after Ded. 

$15 after Ded. 
$35 after Ded. 
$50 after Ded. $80 after Ded. 

$100 after Ded. 

lies 



V. Employee Medical Contributions (6a) 

N/A - New Plan 
N/A - New Plan 
N/A - New Plan 
N/A - New Plan 

N/ A - Discontinued 
N/A- Discontinued 
N/A- Discontinued 
N/A- Discontinued 

NOTE : Rates assume KelseyCare Core Plan funded at 100% for Employees and 70% for dependents 



VI. Dental Plan Financials 

Total Premium Cost 

$Change from Current 

% Change from Current 

r - - - .1 
Employer Premium Cost 

$Change from Current 

% Change from Current 

Aetna 

Current 

1 $371,556 

NIA 

NIA 

I 
$203,063 

NIA 

NIA 

Aetna 

Renewal 

$371,556 1 

mll 

0% 

$203,063 

$0 

0% 

Notes on Renewal: Renewal Includes Required HCR Fees/ Adjustment- Estimated at +2.9% 
No changes are recommended to the employer subsidy at 100% employee and 0% dependents 
Costs assume SSS enrolled employees 

iP!o~ 



VII. Recommendations 

• Medical Plan 
• Renewal with Cigna for plan administration and stop loss insurance is recommended for 

the 2014 - 2015 plan year. 
• Staff is recommending for the City to implement plan option 6 as proposed and shift the 

employer funding of the Core KelseyCare plan to 100% for employees and 70% for 
dependents. 

• Continuing the $25 monthly physical and $25 monthly tobacco premium differential 
programs are recommended. 

• Dental Plan 
• Renewal with Aetna for the Dental Plan is recommended for the 2014-2015 plan year. 
• Staff is recommending for the City to continue employer funding of the Dental Plan at 

100% for employees and 0% for dependents. 

iP!o~ 



--



New 
Business 
Item No. 8 

8. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-82– A
resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, approving the
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Community
Development Block Grant Program year 2014/fiscal year 2015 Annual
Action Plan.  Mr. Joel Hardy, Grants Coordinator.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:   July 28, 2014 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 14, 2014 

PREPARED BY:        Joel Hardy 

REVIEWED BY:  

SUBJECT: CDBG Plan Year 2014 Annual Action Plan – Council Approval 

EXHIBITS:     R2014-82 
   Exhibit A - PY 2014 Annual Action Plan (AAP) 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  AMOUNT BUDGETED: $313,794 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: $313,794 PROJECT NO.:   
ACCOUNT NO.:  Fund 112 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:  
PROJECT NO.:  
To be completed by Department: 
    X    Finance   X Legal  Ordinance  X Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 
The City has been allocated $313,794 from U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development 
– Community Planning and Development (CPD) for the Community Development Block Grant
program for FY 2014-2015; CPD Program Year 2014.   This is $19,459 lower than last year’s 
award of $333,253. Staff is presenting to Council the City’s 8th Annual Action Plan (AAP). The 
award amount is based on a formula calculation of the City’s population, local income statistics, 
and other statistical elements of our City’s demography.  

CJP

ITEM NO.: Resolution No. R2014-82

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Finance 

PRESENTOR:  

REVIEW DATE:   7/21/14 



READER’S GUIDE 
The Annual Action Plan is a detailed outline of how Pearland intends to meet the 5-year 
priorities established in its Con-Plan during the coming year and includes: 

• funding amounts to be expended by each project and activity;
• the number of individuals and/or households to be served by projects and activities; and
• the status of prior projects and fair housing activities to be undertaken.

Area-benefit projects should be located within Census boundaries that contain 40.93 percent 
low-moderate income households. Individuals and/or households benefiting from such funding 
must fall within the allowable income limits, unless homeless, for the number of household 
members in their residence, based on the latest Metropolitan Statistical Area income limits for 
Brazoria County, as the chart below describes. An update with FY 2015 income limits will be 
available from HUD in the coming weeks. 

FY 2014 Income Limits Summary - Brazoria County 
FY 2014 
Income 
Limit 
Area 

Median 
Income 

FY 2014 
Income 
Limit 

Category 

Persons in Family 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Brazoria 
County $75,800 

Low (80%) 
Income 

Limits ($) 42,500 48,550 54,600 60,650 65,550 70,400 75,250 80,100 

Very Low 
(50%) 

Income 
Limits ($) 

26,550 30,350 34,150 37,900 40,950 44,000 47,000 50,050 

Extremely 
Low (30%) 

Income 
Limits ($) 

15,950 18,200 20,500 22,750 24,600 26,400 28,250 30,050 

HUD restricts the use of CDBG funds, allowing up to 15% of the total for social services 
programs and no more than 20% for planning and administration, leaving the remainder for 
infrastructure, public facilities, code enforcement and/or housing activities. Unspent portions of 
the CDBG allocation year funding may be carried over for use in infrastructure and improvement 
activities only. Therefore, if program administration or social services funds are not totally 
expended in accordance with budgeted amounts, those unspent portions may be carried over 
only for use in an approved infrastructure or improvement project, or one that the City proposes 
via substantial amendment to the Action Plan.  

While carryover funds have no enumerated limitations on the number of years they can be 
available, 24 CFR 570.902 requires that the City be subject to a “timely spending” formula that 
determines how much of our available balance is subject to annual use.  



The planning requirements for submission of a successful HUD CDBG Action Plan include the 
following, and are specified with details of the process Pearland is putting forth for the CDBG PY 
2014 8th Annual Action Plan: 

1. Allocation information received by City – March 14th

2. Public Notice of Public Hearing #1 and Application Workshop for Potential CDBG
Subrecipients – March 26th

3. Public Hearing #1 and Application Workshop for Potential CDBG Subrecipients – April 2nd

4. Council Approval of Projects for CDBG Action Plan – June 9th

5. Public Comment Period  - June 19th – July 21st

6. Public Hearing #2 – June 25th

7. Council Consideration of Approval of 8th Annual Action Plan – July 28th

8. Upon Council Approval, Submission of Action Plan to HUD – July 29th –  Due August 15th

The June 25th public hearing produced no significant public involvement and no public 
comments, and none have been received at the time of this Agenda Request. Staff will include 
any and all comments received prior to the end of the public comment period in the Action Plan. 

BID AND AWARD 
The award/allocation from HUD will be $313,794 and will be issued to the City upon the HUD’s 
acceptance and approval of the City’s Annual Action Plan. Our Grant Agreement with HUD 
typically arrives during the mid-October timeframe and is executed by our City’s highest elected 
official – Mayor Tom Reid. 

SCOPE OF CONTRACT/AGREEMENT 
The CDBG contract between the City and HUD will be for one year beginning October 1, 2014 
and ending September 30, 2015 and will only restrict the use of program administration and 
public services funds for that period of performance. Infrastructure/improvement monies may be 
carried over and used in following years. 

POLICY/GOAL CONSIDERATION 
The City’s Community Development Block Grant program intends to serve low-moderate 
income households with activities that prevent homelessness, improve local accessibility and 
availability of suitable living conditions, and promote fair housing. 24 CFR 570 as the regulatory 
guidance for using CDBG funding for eligible, local policies, and best-practices elements of 
surrounding cities’ housing rehab programs, will be used to complete the development of 
guidelines for participating in Pearland’s single family housing rehabilitation program. Pearland’s 
program parameters will be commensurate with Council’s recommendations that volunteerism, 
civic involvement, homeowner participation, and accountability to all applicable standards.  

HUD PROGRAM YEAR 2014 (FY’15) ACTION PLAN – CITY OF PEARLAND 
The 8th Annual Action Plan contains 18 sections, 12 of which the City is subject to completing 
when submitting a plan to HUD. The others contain requests for information regarding programs 
that do not fit into the scope of work our CDBG initiative entails (Emergency Shelter Grants, 
HOME program activities, public housing needs, etc…).  

The attached 34 page document describes the intended use of the funds we receive, based on 
HUD National Objectives (remove slum/blight, serve low-moderate income households, meet 



urgent needs such as natural disasters), and in accordance with regulations in 24 CFR 570 and 
related regulatory circulars.  

On June 9th, Council approved the projects and activities submitted for inclusion in this coming 
year’s Annual Action Plan and the City will use these to meet HUD National Objectives during 
the 2014 HUD Program Year which begins October 1, 2014. Funding these programs will result 
in the use of $20,000 for social services programs, $231,036 for code enforcement and single 
family housing rehab program activities, and $62,758 for planning and program administration.  

The Plan describes the City’s intention to use CDBG funds for two new types of program 
activities: Code Enforcement and Single Unit Residential Rehab. These two initiatives are 
designed to work hand-in-hand and help the City address local violations of residential building 
codes and the emergence of dilapidation or blighted conditions. No funds will be delivered 
directly to homeowners, and only those that qualify based on an intensive review of their 
socioeconomic status will be approved for participation in the program. The City will utilize 
depreciating liens over 5 years to secure the investments made in the properties, with restrictions 
that prevent a homeowner from selling or transferring property until the life of the lien 
depreciation reaches zero value.  

The overall intent of the program will be to improve local housing conditions in ways that reduce 
blight, positively impact the local economy, and provide qualified homeowners with greater 
access to safe and suitable living conditions…a “helping hand” as opposed to a “hand-out.”  

Staff assigned to coordinating the program development process is working with the City’s 
CDBG consultant, key department heads, and officials from surrounding communities to continue 
the creation of the single family residential housing rehabilitation program guidelines and 
application process. These should be available by October 1, 2014, and will be available for 
review and input by various stakeholders to achieve the proper program parameters for a 
successful initiative. The following highlights provide a quick view of what the program guidelines 
should cover: 

• The mission, vision, goals, and objectives of the program
• The decision-making and advisory characteristics of stakeholders involved in the

operation of the program
• The amount, type, and method of distribution for funding housing rehab activities
• The process of selecting contractors or subrecipients for construction services
• Eligibility for participating in the program and receiving housing rehab benefits
• The process of how participants in the program are prioritized and selected
• Rules governing the oversight and day-to-day management of the program
• The allowable costs and expenditures associated with delivering these activities
• The timeline for delivering program activities (application, review, selection, construction,

completion/close-out, etc...)
• Applicable local and other governmental standards and regulations
• Responsibilities of all parties involved in the completion of rehab activities (homeowner,

City, contractor, subrecipient, other partners, etc...)
• Evaluation and outcome measurement activities for determining success

The pictures below somewhat demonstrate the potential for improvements that this type of 
activity could create and/or enhance, should funding of rehabilitation activities be made available 
in Pearland: 



Before After 

The aforementioned depictions are of actual conditions our City staff have identified, intervened 
on, and implemented corrective procedures for addressing blighted properties. Our anticipation is 
that situations such as these, with potential funding for making repairs, could produce even more 
notable and sustainable results.  

FLAGGED FOR FOLLOW-UP – ADMINISTRATIVE PACKET (JUNE 26, 2014) 
HUD requires Entitlement Jurisdictions to serve 51% or more low-moderate income households 
when using CDBG funds. In 2007, the City was granted an “exception” to this rule, and was 



required to serve low-moderate income areas with only 45.61%. Since the draft of this Action 
Plan was submitted in the June 26 Administrative Packet, certain demographics and local 
income dynamics have further affected our “exception percentage.” HUD has issued an 
adjustment to Pearland’s former percentage of 45.61, reducing it to 40.93%. This will allow the 
City to serve more local citizens with CDBG funds, in a greater geographic area of the City. The 
attached Annual Action Plan has been revised to include the additional/revised Census Block 
Group areas that can be served, as well as maps that provide a visual depiction of these 
geographic areas. The latest census tract block groups eligible for area-benefit projects to be 
completed in, including their percentages of low-moderate income population, are as follows: 

Census Tract Block Group Total Population Low-Mod Population % Low-Mod Income 
660200 1 550 245 44.55% 
660300 1 745 505 67.79% 
660500 2 1,045 565 54.07% 
660500 4 1,505 655 43.52% 
660500 5 1,965 810 41.22% 
660500 6 2,665 1,250 46.90% 
660702 3 1,085 590 54.38% 
660900 1 1,585 1,105 69.72% 
660900 3 1,500 950 63.33% 
660900 4 1,315 1,080 82.13% 
661900 1 1,930 790 40.93% 
670800 2 1,950 1,315 67.44% 

Totals 17,840 9.860 56.33% 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Council consideration and approval of a resolution approving the 8thAnnual CDBG Action Plan 
for the City of Pearland – PY14/FY15.  



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-82 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
approving the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Community Development Block Grant Program year 2014/fiscal year 
2015 Annual Action Plan. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That certain Community Development Block Grant Program 8th Annual 

Action Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, is hereby authorized and approved. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the ________ day of ______________, 

A.D., 2014. 

_________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 1 

Pearland Texas 
Eighth Program Year 
Action Plan  

The CPMP Eighth Annual Action Plan includes the SF 424 and Narrative Responses to Action 
Plan questions that CDBG, HOME, HOPWA, and ESG grantees must respond to each year in 
order to be compliant with the Consolidated Planning Regulations.  

Narrative Responses 

GENERAL 

Executive Summary 

The City of Pearland has identified 3 projects, in addition to program administration, for 
funding in PY 2014.  It has allocated 6.37% of the $313,794 the City will receive in PY 2014 
for one public service project; 20% for program administration and the remaining 73.63% 
percent for two infrastructure/improvement projects: (1) code enforcement activity that will 
enforce local residential and commercial building ordinances in the U.S. Census Block 
Groups eligible to receive funding from local area benefit projects; and (2), a Single Family 
Housing Rehabilitation program that will allow income-eligible owner/occupied homes to be 
repaired through forgivable loans and/or grants.  

The City solicited applications from area nonprofits and City departments serving Pearland 
residents and received requests for funds in the aforementioned areas. Funding is available 
to support many of the projects presented to the City. However, changing priorities due to 
the City’s continued growth, the community’s desire to focus more of our CDBG 
expenditures on housing activities, and the City’s assessment of housing issues related to 
code enforcement, some requests for funding were simply denied and others enhanced. The 
City anticipates spending 80% of its allocation in the CDBG Target Area, with the remaining 
20% going to program administration. No less than 71%, of the PY ’14 CDBG funds will 
benefit low-moderate income residents. Considering the technical assistance provided by 
City CDBG program administration staff, as well as the work performed to conduct Fair 
Housing Activities, some portions of the 20% expenditures for program administration will 
additionally benefit low-moderate income communities. 

A total of $20,000 will be spent on Public Services Activities (05Q) and allocated to the 
Pearland Neighborhood Center for Emergency Rental/Utility Assistance via Subrecipient 
Agreement. A total of $49,039 will be spent on Code Enforcement (15) and $181,997 on 
single family residential housing rehabilitation (14A) in Pearland. The remaining balance of 
$62,758 will be spent on Program Administration. Table 1 below highlights the PY 2014 
allocation amounts and activities. 

FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL 



Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 2 

Table 1 – Community Development Block Grant Projected Use of PY 2014 Funds and Prior Year Re-allocations 

CDBG 
Eligibility 

Matrix Code 
Projects National Objectives Code Units PY 2014 

Allocation 

Public Services 

05Q 
Pearland Neighborhood Center’s 

Emergency Assistance  (LMC) - 2335 N. 
Texas Avenue 

LMC 01-People: 60 $20,000 

Subtotal 01-People: 60 $20,000 
Public Infrastructure & Facilities 

15 Code Enforcement LMA 01-People: 50 $49,039 

14A Single Family Rehab LMH 01-People: 49 $181,997 

Subtotal 01-People: 99 $231,036 
Administration 

21 
A - E 

Contract consultants and in-house staff & 
expenses N/A N/A $62,758 

Subtotal $62,758 

Total  CDBG Expenditures 01-People:159 
 $313,794



Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 3 

Below is a list of percentages allocated for each program category: 

Table 2 – Percent of Allocation for Each Category 
Category Maximum Allowed Actual 
Public Services 15% 6.37% 
Infrastructure/Public Facilities N/A 73.63% 
Administration 20% 20.0% 

This Annual Action Plan outlines the citizen involvement in the planning process, the need 
for the services, facility improvements and infrastructure installations to be accomplished 
and the proposed outcomes for each project.  All projects are within the priorities of the 
City’s 2nd 5-Year Consolidated Plan, adopted by Pearland City Council in PY 2012 and 
presently in use by the City. The City of Pearland has utilized past funds for assisting 
nonprofit agencies in improving facilities of local public service agencies, providing 
emergency assistance, employment training and education to the low-to-moderate income, 
and improving pedestrian safety through sidewalks.  During the past 20 months, the City 
has funded a number of infrastructure, public facility and public service projects.  Below is a 
summary of projects funded during PY 2012 and the first 8 months of PY 2013 and their 
status: 



Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 4 

Table 3 - PY 2012 Plus 8 Months PY 2013 CDBG/CDBG-R Accomplishments 

Activity Type, Program Year, & 
ID/Name 

PY 2012 1st 8 Months of PY 2013 
PY 12 

Expenditures Status Outcomes PY 13 
Expenditures Status YTD 

Outcomes 
PY 2011 Activity 39 – Westchester 

Sidewalks/Drainage* $126,444.53 Open Pending $165,499.80 Open** 90 

PY 12 Activity 46 – Pearland 
Neighborhood Center Emergency 

Assistance 
15,000 Complete 69 N/A N/A N/A 

PY 13 Activity 50 - Pearland 
Neighborhood Center Emergency 

Assistance 
N/A N/A N/A $5,175.24 Open 11 

PY 12 Activity 43 – Forgotten Angels 
Day Hab Center 1,000 sq ft facility 

expansion 
$21,349.09 Under 

Construction Pending $18,650.91 Complete 44 

PY 11 Activity 37 – Forgotten Angels 
Day Hab Center Fire Sprinkler 

System Installation 
$31,189.30 Complete 45 $0 Complete 44 

PY 11 Activity 29 – Adult Reading 
Center Improvements: ADA 

Accessibility Ramps 
$1,202.23 Complete 50 N/A N/A 33 

Program Administration $56,963.60 N/A N/A $28,802.74 N/A N/A 
Totals $252,148.75 N/A 164 $218,128.69 N/A 178 

*$23,875.25 was spent in PY 2011. 
** Project remains open per monitoring/review activities and pending draft of Substantial Amendment. Improvements are 
available for us by the public.



Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 5 

General Questions 

• Describe the geographic areas of the jurisdiction (including areas of low
income families and/or racial/minority concentration) in which assistance will
be directed during the next year.  Where appropriate, the jurisdiction should
estimate the percentage of funds the jurisdiction plans to dedicate to target
areas.

The City of Pearland is located primarily in Brazoria County, Texas with a portion of its 
western edge in Fort Bend County, Texas and a portion of its northwest and northeast edges 
in Harris County, Texas.  All three counties are CDBG Entitlement Jurisdictions and HOME 
Participating Jurisdictions.  It also abuts Galveston County, which is not an Entitlement 
Jurisdiction.  The map below illustrates the location of the City, its corporate limits and the 
location of its low- to moderate-income residents.   

Figure 1 – City of Pearland and 2014 CDBG Target Areas 

Most entitlement jurisdictions throughout the United States are required to have a 
concentration of low-mod population of more than 51 percent for target areas.  Historically, 
the City of Pearland has been an exception and its accepted minimum was originally set at 
45.61 percent.  However, at the time of the creation of this 8th CDBG Annual Action Plan, 
HUD issued a change in LMISD values occurred that affected the City of Pearland (Grantee 
No. 484080), making the City’s newly calculated exception percentage 40.93%. 



City of Pearland, Texas PY 2014 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 6 

According to the U.S. Bureau of the Census, the 2010 population of the City of Pearland was 
91,252, up 142% from 37,640 in 2000.  Some growth has been due to annexation, but the 
majority of the population increase can be attributed to build out of and new subdivisions 
within the City Limits.  The latest information from the U.S. Census Bureau, via HUD, 
suggests that there are 11 census block groups eligible for the City to complete CDBG-
funded activities in. A 12th exists if Fort Bend County boundaries are included in the 
equation, but the portion of the City of Pearland that exists in this census block group is 
such as small area that no projects should be completed in this area. 

Overall, 9,860 low-moderate income residents are in Pearland, in block groups that serve a 
total of 17,840 people. These block groups, as the table below demonstrates, are comprised 
of an average of 56.33% low-moderate income households. 

Census Tract Block Group Total 
Population 

Low-Mod 
Income 

Population 

% Low- 
Mod 

Income 
660200 1 550 245 44.55% 
660300 1 745 505 67.79% 
660500 2 1,045 565 54.07% 
660500 4 1,505 655 43.52% 
660500 5 1,965 810 41.22% 
660500 6 2,665 1,250 46.90% 
660702 3 1,085 590 54.38% 
660900 1 1,585 1,105 69.72% 
660900 3 1,500 950 63.33% 
660900 4 1,315 1,080 82.13% 
661900 1 1,930 790 40.93% 
670800 2 1,950 1,315 67.44% 

Totals 17,840 9.860 56.33% 

• Describe the basis for allocating investments geographically within the
jurisdiction (or within the EMSA for HOPWA) (91.215(a)(1)) during the next
year and the rationale for assigning the priorities.

All area-based projects are located within established CDBG Target Areas with at least 
45.61 % low- to moderate-income households.  Eligible Capital Improvement Projects that 
would improve safety and accessibility were given the highest priority. The adoption of 
efforts to serve low-moderate income areas with at least 40.93%, consistent with the latest 
changes HUD has made to the exception percentage for the City of Pearland. 

In addition to Fair Housing activities, the City will plan for the implementation of four 
projects that serve low-moderate income residents of the City of Pearland. The City 
proposes to use Community Development Block Grant funds from HUD for: 

• Code Enforcement in Low-Moderate Income Target Areas;
• a single-family housing rehabilitation program for low-moderate income Pearland

residential homeowners that occupy such residences;
• a program to provide short-term emergency financial assistance to eligible, local,

low-moderate income residents that are facing evictions, utility shut-offs, or even
prescription medicines for the elderly or mentally-disabled adults; and



City of Pearland, Texas PY 2014 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 7 

• replacement of aging AC Waterlines in the CDBG Target Area residential
neighborhoods on an as-needed basis.

Code Enforcement is an eligible expense under 24 CFR 570.202(c), and will be used to 
remediate the beginning signs of slum and blight. Evidence-based programs demonstrate 
the effectiveness of removing code violations through enforcement preserve the existing 
sustainable living conditions and prevent impediments. In conjunction with a Single-Family 
Housing Rehabilitation Program (SFHRP), low-moderate income areas of town will be 
supported with additional resources to identify code violations, improve education and 
awareness of local standards, receive helpful tips and assistance from volunteers if needed 
to remove unsightly debris, and encouragement to self-remediate violations in the event the 
homeowner can afford to do so. If not, homeowners will be directed to the availability of 
grant funding to support the rehabilitation activities designed to remove livability risks and 
promote sustainable housing conditions for eligible recipients of the funds. One staff person 
will be responsible for delivering the day-to-day duties involving the inspection of residences 
for code violations, coordination of the City’s responses to such violations, implementation 
of procedures directed at achieving homeowner actions for remediating violations, 
administering enforcement and/or legal measures to improve code-compliance, and the 
elements of coordinating the single-family housing rehabilitation program. 

These two projects – Code Enforcement and single family residential housing rehabilitation – 
are eligible activities under CDBG matrix codes 15 and 14A. They are proposed to be 
conducted on the basis of LMA (15 Code Enforcement) and LMH (14A Rehab: Single Unit 
Residential) National Objectives. 

The basis for allocating these investments geographically within the jurisdiction in PY 2014 
is to remediate challenges to sustainable living conditions in areas considered to be low-
moderate income. Rationally, these are priorities have been established because they 
address local needs for improvements that other funding sources and income levels of the 
households are not available to complete, and that neglecting these will result in further 
dilapidation.  



Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 8 

Figure 2 – Location of PY 2014 Area-Benefit 
Infrastructure Project 



City of Pearland, Texas PY 2014 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 9 

Table 4a - Area Benefit Activities By Census Tract Block Group 

Project Census Tract Block 
Group 

Total 
Population 

Low-Mod 
Income 

Population 

% Low- 
Mod 

Income 

Code Enforcement 

660200 1 550 245 44.55% 
660300 1 745 505 67.79% 
660500 2 1,045 565 54.07% 
660500 4 1,505 655 43.52% 
660500 5 1,965 810 41.22% 
660500 6 2,665 1,250 46.90% 
660702 3 1,085 590 54.38% 
660900 1 1,585 1,105 69.72% 
660900 3 1,500 950 63.33% 
660900 4 1,315 1,080 82.13% 
661900 1 1,930 790 40.93% 
670800 2 1,950 1,315 67.44% 

Totals 17,840 9.860 56.33% 

Table 4b - Housing Activities* 
Single-Family Residential Housing Rehabilitation City-Wide 100,065 13,425 13.41 

*Eligibility of expenditures for housing activities will based on household income levels of owner-occupants’ home repairs and
rehabilitation. 



Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 10 

• Describe actions that will take place during the next year to address obstacles
to meeting underserved needs.

The City is committed to using the CDBG funds to efficiently address the most urgent needs 
of the greatest number of underserved people and areas.  The needs, however, far 
outweigh the available CDBG allocation.  Few non-profit organizations are available to meet 
the needs of underserved populations, and Pearland’s socio-cultural makeup often makes it 
difficult to identify and organize support for serious societal problems such as 
homelessness, substance abuse, and unemployment. 

However, the City will be adjusting its approach to delivering eligible CDBG funding to the 
benefit of the communities in need, by focusing on programs and activities that remediate 
dilapidation in housing stock and enforcing local building codes in ways that prevent slum 
and blight. This new direction will encourage subrecipient(s) to emphasize financial literacy 
when offering assistance to those in need that meet eligibility requirements. Volunteerism, 
matching efforts, and sustainability will be the guiding principles for our efforts to prioritize 
which programs and activities benefit the community. 

Over the next year, City staff and pro-bono consulting resources will continue to provide 
technical assistance to nonprofits in areas of fund procurement, fund management, 
governance, and strategic planning.  This will ensure that more agencies have the capacity 
to apply for and manage community development funding from other federal and state 
programs and foundations.  City leaders support local area non-profit agencies with 
advocacy, fundraising and leadership development activities. 

• Identify the federal, state, and local resources expected to be made available
to address the needs identified in the plan.  Federal resources should include
Section 8 funds made available to the jurisdiction, Low-Income Housing Tax
Credits, and competitive McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act funds
expected to be available to address priority needs and specific objectives
identified in the strategic plan.

It is anticipated that federal funds allocated to the City from the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development’s Community Development Block Grant program will 
provide the majority of resources aimed at addressing the needs identified in this Annual 
Action Plan. Local resources will include time and effort from staff, management, elected 
officials, and volunteers that participate in the decision-making and citizen involvement 
aspects of the City’s CDBG program activities. Staff representatives from Public Works, 
Engineering, Capital Projects, Health and Environmental Services, Community Development, 
and other departments will participate in the delivery of local standards for completing 
infrastructure improvements and housing activities. 

Managing the Process 

1. Identify the lead agency, entity, and agencies responsible for administering
programs covered by the consolidated plan.



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 11  

The City of Pearland is the lead agency for the CDBG program.  The City’s Finance 
Department will continue to oversee the planning and implementation of all CDBG-funded 
projects.  Community development projects, such as parks acquisition/ enhancement, 
infrastructure and facility improvements, will be managed in-house by the appropriate City 
department, while public service projects will be managed by nonprofit subrecipient 
agencies.  All projects will be monitored by the Finance Department. 
 
 
2. Identify the significant aspects of the process by which the plan was 

developed, and the agencies, groups, organizations, and others who 
participated in the process. 

 
For PY 2014 the City used the 2nd Consolidated Plan’s needs and priorities to set its current 
year focus. Since these are very similar to those outlined in the 1st Consolidated Plan, the 
activity focus is also similar. The Finance Department’s CDBG Grants Coordinator met with 
staff from other City departments to determine priority projects for the PY 2014 funding 
cycle.  Each project falls within the priorities set forth in the 5-Year Consolidated Plan and 
addresses the needs of the CDBG Target Areas and low- to moderate-income residents.  A 
budget for the projects was developed and presented to the City Manager along with the 
scope of each project.     
 
In addition, the City sent emails to public service and housing agencies in the area, as well 
as posting information about the application process on the City’s website and various social 
media, explaining the CDBG program and inviting them to apply for subrecipient funds and 
providing a copy of the grant application.  Also included was an invitation to the first public 
hearing and pre-application workshop. The public hearing focused on the CDBG process and 
asked the attendees for their determination of priority needs in the areas of housing, special 
needs populations (including homeless), public services and community development.  The 
pre-application workshop, which immediately followed the public hearing, included a round-
table discussion with attending agencies and answers to questions regarding project scope, 
beneficiaries and funding availability.  The agreed-upon infrastructure/improvement and 
public service projects were then presented to City Council for approval prior to the release 
of the Annual Action Plan. 
 
A second public hearing was held during the 30-day public comment period for the 
Consolidated Plan and Action Plan, giving attendees the opportunity to comment on the 
priorities developed and the proposed allocation of funds.  Both public hearings included a 
section on the Fair Housing Act and fair housing issues.  Both public hearings were 
advertised in the first section of the general circulation newspaper for Pearland. A copy of 
each ad is included in the attachments.   
 
A second City Council meeting included the Annual Action Plan’s proposed projects for 
approval. The City Council agenda is posted for public review before each meeting and there 
is a time for citizen comments at each meeting.  At that time residents were afforded the 
opportunity to speak at both of the City Council meetings regarding the proposed funding 
allocations and Annual Action Plan.  
  
3. Describe actions that will take place during the next year to enhance 

coordination between public and private housing, health, and social service 
agencies. 
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 12  

Code Enforcement and housing rehabilitation activities will enhance coordination between 
local social service agencies, neighborhood organizations, and the City.  
 
 
Citizen Participation 
 
1. Provide a summary of the citizen participation process. 
 
The Citizen Participation process will continue to be an on-going element of the CDBG 
program.  Each year, the City makes a concerted effort to involve the residents in all of its 
planning activities.  In preparation for PY 2014, the City hosted two public hearings and a 
pre-application workshop for public service providers.  Both public hearings and the 
workshop were advertised in the front section of the general circulation newspaper and 
posted on the City’s website.  In addition, the City has started to utilize social media and 
other innovative approaches to informing the public. This resulted in much greater 
participation in the citizen’s survey and increased turnouts at public hearings. 
 
The two public hearings were conducted at or after 6:00 PM to allow participation by 
residents that work during the day.  The public hearings included an overview of the CDBG 
process with time given to receive the comments of every attendee regarding housing, 
special population, community development and fair housing issues in Pearland. There was 
an opportunity for discussion on better ways to collaborate and reach more residents with 
services and opportunities to become involved in CDBG planning.   
 
The first public hearing was in conjunction with the pre-application workshop for potential 
subrecipients.  The second public hearing was conducted in conjunction with the release of 
the Con-Plan and Annual Action Plan for 30-day public comment and a copy of the plans 
were available for review and comment at the hearing.  A copy of the notices and the Power 
Point presentations are included in the attachments.   
 
In addition to the public hearings, the City staff presented the funding recommendations, 
Con-Plan priorities, and later the Action Plan, to City Council for review, comment and 
approval.  The City Council agenda is available to the public and anyone wishing to speak on 
a topic is welcome.  This afforded two more opportunities for residents and service providers 
to speak publicly about the needs in Pearland.  The Action Plan was approved by City 
Council on July 28, 2014. 
 
The City has attended various meetings of public service agencies and provided information 
and contacts for them to share with their staff, volunteers and program participants 
regarding the CDBG program.  The City is committed to working with public service 
agencies in identifying needs, priorities, funding opportunities and opportunities to 
collaborate.  One of the most effective avenues to involving residents in the planning 
process is through the agencies that directly serve them.   
 
Pearland will continue to encourage citizen participation, with particular emphasis on 
participation by persons of very-low, low, and moderate income and those who are 
residents of target areas in which funds are allocated or proposed to be allocated.   
 
 
2. Provide a summary of citizen comments or views on the plan. 
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 13  

No public comments were received during the public comment period. 
 
 
3. Provide a summary of efforts made to broaden public participation in the 

development of the consolidated plan, including outreach to minorities and 
non-English speaking persons, as well as persons with disabilities. 

 
The City of Pearland has been involved in the public participation process and has relied on 
the social service agencies to assist in outreach to the community, particularly minorities, 
non-English speakers, elderly and persons with disabilities.  The social service agencies 
were asked to provide to their program participants information about CDBG and contact 
information and notices of public hearings.   
 
The City will continue to attempt to host public hearings in different locations around the 
City in future years, particularly in CDBG Target Areas and/or buildings housing subrecipient 
agencies.  The City will make information available at the public venues and will provide 
meeting and public hearing notices to agencies for their consumers.  The Mayor and City 
Council are also ambassadors into the community to garner more public participation.   
 
 
4. Provide a written explanation of comments not accepted and the reasons why 

these comments were not accepted. 
 
*Please note that Citizen Comments and Responses may be included as additional files within the CPMP 
Tool. 
 
The City’s policy is to accept all comments and consider them in developing the Annual 
Action Plan or other CDBG plans and activities.   
 
 
 
 
Institutional Structure 
 
1. Describe actions that will take place during the next year to develop 

institutional structure. 
 
The City of Pearland manages the CDBG program through the Finance Department and its 
Grants Coordinator.  By assigning a centralized person to investigate, apply for and manage 
grants for the City, the Finance Department has been able to increase efficiency and use 
multiple funding streams to create a more comprehensive approach to serving the low- to 
moderate-income in Pearland.  To ensure that the HUD regulations were followed and that 
the program ran smoothly, the City contracted with a consultant who has more than a 
decade of CDBG experience.   
 
The consultant worked closely with the city staff and has now stepped back for the Grants 
Coordinator to take a more comprehensive role in managing the program.  During PY 2014, 
the Grants Coordinator will continue to attend HUD-sponsored workshops and trainings, to 
work closely with the City’s HUD representative and to provide technical assistance to other 
City staff members and subrecipients.  
 
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 14  

 
Monitoring 
 
1. Describe actions that will take place during the next year to monitor its housing 

and community development projects and ensure long-term compliance with 
program requirements and comprehensive planning requirements. 

 
The City of Pearland’s monitoring strategy is designed to assist staff in fulfilling its 
regulatory obligation in monitoring subrecipients, including City departments, as well as 
assist subrecipients in best serving their consumers.  The primary purpose for this 
monitoring strategy is to ensure proper program performance, financial performance and 
regulatory compliance in accordance with HUD Regulations.  The secondary purpose is to 
ensure that the funded agencies are providing the best and most cost effective services 
possible and that they are positioned to access additional funding from non-HUD sources.   

 
Staff monitors to ensure that each subrecipient is adhering to its approved scope of service, 
budget and schedule of service.  Lags in spending or in submission of reimbursement 
requests result in additional monitoring actions or staff support provided to subrecipients in 
the form of technical assistance. Each subrecipient and City department must also abide by 
the regulatory guidelines set forth by HUD in providing benefits to low-moderate income 
persons and/or eliminating a slum or blighted condition. 
 
The monitoring process is an on-going one of planning, implementation, communication and 
follow-up.  Under normal circumstances, on-site monitoring is conducted semi-annually.  
However, if the activity or program is considered to have a high-risk of non-compliance, a 
more frequent monitoring schedule is developed. High risk programs include housing 
rehabilitation, economic development programs undertaken by any subrecipient for the first 
time, and programs undertaken by an agency or department with a history of staff 
turnovers, reporting problems, or monitoring findings.   
 
Additionally, all subrecipients must submit reimbursement requests at least quarterly, 
though are encouraged to submit monthly. These packets include information regarding 
clients served, agency organization, Board meetings, agency activities as well as actual 
financial requests.  The packets are reviewed by the staff member in charge of CDBG and 
the Director of Finance before any reimbursements are made.   

 
Monitoring provides a basis for assessing a program’s operations and identifying problems.  
Another goal of monitoring is to obtain ongoing data for use in determining program 
achievement and success.  Evaluations summarize monitoring findings and program goals, 
and measure progress toward those goals during the provision of services. 
 
Clear record keeping requirements for programs are essential for grant accountability.  
Responsibility for maintaining many of the records is assigned to the subrecipients.  This 
includes responsibility for documenting activities with special requirements, such as 
necessary determinations, income certifications or written agreements with beneficiaries, 
where applicable. 
 
The monitor(s) make site visits to the activities or projects of each subrecipient. The 
monitoring process consists of the monitors examining time records, randomly selecting 
client files, financial records, Federally-funded equipment and machinery.   
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 15  

At the beginning of each Program Year, the staff meets with each subrecipient to provide 
reporting forms, discuss expectations and enter into a 12-month contract for services.  A 
pre-monitoring contact is made with the designated person(s) of the subrecipient agency to 
discuss the overall expectations, information to be viewed and site visits.  This also allows 
staff an opportunity to discuss solutions to possible problems that may have occurred from 
past experiences with a particular subrecipient. 
 
The procedure for conducting the monitoring consists of the following: 

1. Prior to the actual award contracts, the staff holds one-on-one workshops for all 
subrecipients.  At that time monitoring procedures, reporting procedures and 
expectations are discussed and reporting forms provided in hard-copy and electronic 
formats.   

2. Mid-year, each subrecipient is notified of a date, time and place for a monitoring visit 
and the information to be viewed and discussed. 

3. A conference is held with a Board Member or Executive Director and their designated 
staff members who are working with the activity being funded. 

4. The actual monitoring visit is conducted by completing the monitoring interview 
form, and viewing documentation.  If applicable, had there been housing 
rehabilitation completed, the monitors would have visited each house receiving HUD-
funded repair.   

5. Monitoring visits conclude with monitor(s) advising the subrecipient of any 
deficiencies. 

6. Within 10 business days, the City provides the subrecipient agency with written 
notice via mail or email of the results of the monitoring and corrective measures, if 
any, to be taken.  Any agency with deficiencies is given 30 days to make the 
necessary changes and document the corrections. 

7. Prior to the approval of any payments, the staff reviews all reimbursement requests 
and back-up documentation for accuracy, eligibility of activities/clientele and proper 
supporting information.  Any errors or deficiencies are reported to the subrecipient 
and the documentation corrected and resubmitted. 

 
Subrecipients are required to submit the following forms before reimbursements can be 
made: 
• Monthly Beneficiary, Progress and Expenditure Reports provide quarterly information 

and are due to the City no later than the 10th day of the month following each quarter.  
• Any subrecipient that receives $500,000 or more in federal funds in one (1) year must 

have an independent audit performed which complies with the OMB Circular A-133 
Single Audit Act.  This does not impact any of Pearland’s subrecipients at this time, but 
the City reviews each subrecipient’s budget at the time of annual application to ensure 
that A-133 does not apply or to require the single audit if it does apply. 

 
 
Lead-based Paint 
 
1. Describe the actions that will take place during the next year to evaluate and 

reduce the number of housing units containing lead-based paint hazards in 
order to increase the inventory of lead-safe housing available to extremely low-
income, low-income, and moderate-income families, and how the plan for the 
reduction of lead-based hazards is related to the extent of lead poisoning and 
hazards. 

 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 16  

The City of Pearland is now proposing housing rehabilitation projects that could lead to the 
evaluation or reduction of the number of housing units containing lead-based paint hazards.  
The City will provide information on lead poisoning to all social service agencies.  The City 
will encourage the agencies to use the information to educate their clients and program 
participants. Any and all rehabilitation activities will include the proper measures to 
remediate violations of laws addressing the hazards presented by lead-based paint.  
 
 
 

HOUSING 
 
Specific Housing Objectives 
 
*Please also refer to the Housing Needs Table in the Needs.xls workbook. 
 
1. Describe the priorities and specific objectives the jurisdiction hopes to achieve 

during the next year. 
 
A major priority for the City during PY 2013 was to research and develop a code 
enforcement and single family home rehabilitation program for possible CDBG funding in PY 
2014. As the City grows and more new homes become available, in addition to the 
significant growth in new rental housing units coming online, older housing often becomes 
neglected. The City is charging itself with enforcing more code violations in low-moderate 
income target areas and encouraging low-moderate income homeowners to bring 
dilapidated residential and commercial properties into compliance with local code. 
 
The City has utilized PY 2013 as a planning year for these efforts, has initiated the design of 
program parameters founded on evidence-based programs in surrounding areas, and is 
prepared to deliver code enforcement and single family residential housing rehabilitation 
activities with PY 2014 funding from HUD. An advisory committee will be utilized to finalize 
guidelines for use in delivering this program. 
 
2. Describe how Federal, State, and local public and private sector resources that 

are reasonably expected to be available will be used to address identified 
needs for the period covered by this Action Plan. 

 
The City of Pearland is within the Brazoria County Housing Authority jurisdiction and the 
City will refer City residents to BCHA to apply for Section 8 vouchers.  Additionally, because 
the City is no longer under the jurisdiction of the County’s HOME program, community 
stakeholders have encouraged a local housing nonprofit to become a State of Texas CHDO 
to expand its inventory of housing for the disabled. 
 
 
Needs of Public Housing 
 
1. Describe the manner in which the plan of the jurisdiction will help address the 

needs of public housing and activities it will undertake during the next year to 
encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management 
and participate in homeownership. 
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 17  

There is no public housing in Pearland and the only Public Housing Authority that serves the 
Pearland area, is the Brazoria County Housing Authority, which provides Section 8 Housing 
Choice Vouchers only.  As part of the administrative process, the City will continue to refer 
citizens to Brazoria County Housing Authority to ensure access by Pearland residents to the 
Section 8 program.  Currently, only one apartment complex accepts Section 8 vouchers and 
the City will continue to assist BCHA in educating other apartment managers about the 
program and encourage them to accept the housing choice vouchers.     
 
 
2. If the public housing agency is designated as "troubled" by HUD or otherwise is 

performing poorly, the jurisdiction shall describe the manner in which it will 
provide financial or other assistance in improving its operations to remove such 
designation during the next year. 

 
Not Applicable – Brazoria County Housing Authority is not troubled 
 
 
 
 
Barriers to Affordable Housing 
 
 
1. Describe the actions that will take place during the next year to remove 

barriers to affordable housing. 
 
 
Fair Housing Choice:  The Census Bureau and HUD collaborate each decade to provide a 
set of Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) tables detailing the number of 
units with one or more housing problems.  Housing problems are defined in the CHAS as 
overcrowding, without complete kitchen or plumbing, and/or housing cost burden.   The 
CHAS data are available for housing problems for the disabled and minorities for Pearland. 
Approximately 40 percent of all physically disabled renters are living in housing with housing 
problems. Just over half (52.4%) of the African American renters and 35.9 percent of the 
Hispanic renters had housing problems in 2000.  The CHAS data for disabled and minority 
do not differentiate between cost burdens and structural problems, however, based on the 
age of the housing stock and the small number of units overall lacking some plumbing or 
kitchen facilities, it can be assumed that the vast majority of the housing problems are cost 
burdens and/or overcrowding.   
 
Considerably fewer elderly homeowners (18.2%) than elderly renters had housing 
problems.  Likewise, 30.5 percent of African American homeowners and 26 percent of 
Hispanic homeowners had housing problems, compared with 52.4 percent and 35.9 percent 
respectively for renters.  While 40.4 percent of physically disabled renters had housing 
problems, 23.5 percent of owners had similar problems.   
 
African Americans and physically disabled had a minor, yet duly notable, disproportionate 
share of housing with problems – either cost burdens, overcrowding, structural issues or 
any combination of these problems.  Hispanic homeowners also had a disproportionate 
share of housing with problems.  It should be noted, however, that the disproportion in 
percentages with housing problems is a factor of the low number of total units in those 
categories.   



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 18  

 
Table 5 – Housing Problems by Elderly, Ethnicity and Disability* 

Total Households 
  All HHs Disabled 

African 
American Hispanic 

Elderly Renters 248 149 0 40 
Other Renters 2,409 235 105 403 
Elderly Owners 1,807 596 15 68 
Other Owners 8,684 779 494 1,025 
Total 13,148 1,759 614 1,536 

% With Housing 
Problems 

Elderly Renters 46.0 33.6 0.0 50.0 
Other Renters 35.7 44.7 52.4 34.5 
Elderly Owners 18.2 23.3 100.0 5.9 
Other Owners 17.3 23.6 30.5 27.3 
Total 21.3 27.2 34.2 28.8 

*Summarized from CHAS tables for Elderly, Disabled and by Ethnicity 
 
Areas of Minority Concentration and Programs Addressing the Needs of Protected Classes:  
The map below shows the percent minority population by block group from the 2005-2009 
American Community Survey of the Census Bureau.  
 

Figure 3 – 2005-2009 Average Percent Minority Population 

 
The City will expend $231,036 (73.62%) of the PY 2014 allocation on code enforcement 
activities and single family residential housing rehabilitation. 
 
 



City of Pearland, Texas PY 2014 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 19 

Utilization of CDBG funds for Fair Housing Activities:  The City will utilize CDBG 
administration funds for Fair Housing activities through educational materials related to Fair 
Housing that are discussed at the public hearings held in connection with the CDBG 
program.  In 2012, the City submitted a new Consolidated Plan and Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice/Fair Housing Plan and both documents contain as much 
public input as possible, including surveys of resident and stakeholders/advocates in the 
services, housing choice and policies regarding all protected classes.  

In PY 2014, the City will provide the public with information and awareness materials 
designed to affirmatively further fair housing in Pearland. All materials will be posted on the 
City’s website upon Council approval.  Information about fair housing choice will also be 
posted on the City’s website and during Fair Housing Month, and will also be disseminated 
to citizens via the City’s municipal access channel.   The City will make HUD’s brochure and 
complaint form available upon request. The public library and each of the subrecipients’ 
offices are other locations that complaint forms are made available to citizens. 

Activities relating to affirmatively furthering fair housing:  In addition to fair housing 
activities directly related to CDBG funding, Petra, a non-profit seeking CHDO status through 
the State of Texas, will initiate efforts to construct group homes for the mentally disabled in 
Pearland.  Petra, a partner organization to Forgotten Angels, is committed to expanding the 
number of group homes for mentally disabled adults in Pearland.  In addition, it intends to 
secure funding to develop housing for the elderly and/or physically disabled.  The City will 
make contact with Petra regularly in regards to its development plans.   

The City submitted its Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing to HUD in November of 2012 
and is committed to Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing with $3,138 (5% of its Program 
Planning and Administration funds) being devoted to Fair Housing Activities. Staff will 
dedicate this percentage of time towards the development of educational information 
documenting Fair Housing laws that will be distributed via the City’s website and investigate 
the need to enhance or improve the City’s capacity for responding to complaints about Fair 
Housing matters.  

The City presents the Action Plan and other HUD-required evaluation and outcome 
measurement reports, including but not limited to the CAPER, Consolidated Plan, and 
Environmental Review Record, in English. However, public notices and other advertisements 
relative to the Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) are produced to serve non-English speaking 
populations and the City announces its preparedness to provide translation services upon 
request if Spanish, Asian, Indian or disabled language barriers require such efforts. Visually-
impaired citizens of the jurisdiction may request that staff read the document(s) to them, or 
an audio-recording of these documents can be provided. The City will work towards 
achieving the following strategies to address public and private impediments to fair housing 
as identified in its Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing. Others unaddressed in this 
Action Plan will be addressed in following years. 

Local Codes, Ordinances and Policies; Public Facilities/Infrastructure; and Housing 

• During PY 2014, the City of Pearland will review fair housing ordinances of other
Texas cities and determine the benefits of developing such an ordinance.

• The City of Pearland will continue to work with Brazoria County and Houston-
Galveston Area Council in the development of a regional transportation plan.



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 20  

• The City of Pearland will continue to provide infrastructure and facility improvements 
and upgrades to CDBG Target Areas, which are those neighborhoods of lowest 
income; some of which may have high concentrations or protected classes.   

• The City of Pearland will work with Brazoria Housing Authority and Pearland landlords 
to make referrals to the Brazoria Housing Authority for any resident wishing Section 
8 and any landlord wishing to accept Section 8 vouchers.   

• The City of Pearland will participate in the development process of private subsidized 
units for the elderly and disabled, and will certify those which are consistent with the 
Consolidated Plan, zoning ordinance and building codes. 

• In the event that any complaints involving deed restrictions come to the City’s 
attention, the Fair Housing Officer will assist the complainant in completing HUD’s 
Fair Housing Complaint form and will refer the complainant to the Houston Field 
Office of HUD.  

 
 

HOME/ American Dream Down payment Initiative (ADDI) 
 

1. Describe other forms of investment not described in § 92.205(b). 
 

2. If the participating jurisdiction (PJ) will use HOME or ADDI funds for 
homebuyers, it must state the guidelines for resale or recapture, as required 
in § 92.254 of the HOME rule. 

 
3. If the PJ will use HOME funds to refinance existing debt secured by 

multifamily housing that is that is being rehabilitated with HOME funds, it 
must state its refinancing guidelines required under § 92.206(b).  The 
guidelines shall describe the conditions under which the PJ will refinance 
existing debt.  At a minimum these guidelines must:    
a. Demonstrate that rehabilitation is the primary eligible activity and 

ensure that this requirement is met by establishing a minimum level of 
rehabilitation per unit or a required ratio between rehabilitation and 
refinancing. 

b. Require a review of management practices to demonstrate that 
disinvestments in the property has not occurred; that the long-term 
needs of the project can be met; and that the feasibility of serving the 
targeted population over an extended affordability period can be 
demonstrated. 

c. State whether the new investment is being made to maintain current 
affordable units, create additional affordable units, or both. 

d. Specify the required period of affordability, whether it is the minimum 15 
years or longer. 

e. Specify whether the investment of HOME funds may be jurisdiction-wide 
or limited to a specific geographic area, such as a neighborhood 
identified in a neighborhood revitalization strategy under 24 CFR 
91.215(e)(2) or a Federally designated Empowerment Zone or Enterprise 
Community. 

f. State that HOME funds cannot be used to refinance multifamily loans 
made or insured by any federal program, including CDBG. 
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 21  

4. If the PJ is going to receive American Dream Down payment Initiative 
(ADDI) funds, please complete the following narratives: 
a. Describe the planned use of the ADDI funds. 
b. Describe the PJ's plan for conducting targeted outreach to residents and 

tenants of public housing and manufactured housing and to other 
families assisted by public housing agencies, for the purposes of 
ensuring that the ADDI funds are used to provide down payment 
assistance for such residents, tenants, and families. 

c. Describe the actions to be taken to ensure the suitability of families 
receiving ADDI funds to undertake and maintain homeownership, such 
as provision of housing counseling to homebuyers. 

Not Applicable – City of Pearland is not a HOME Participating Jurisdiction  



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 22  

HOMELESS 
 
Specific Homeless Prevention Elements 
 
*Please also refer to the Homeless Needs Table in the Needs.xls workbook. 
 
1. Sources of Funds—Identify the private and public resources that the 

jurisdiction expects to receive during the next year to address homeless needs 
and to prevent homelessness. These include the McKinney-Vento Homeless 
Assistance Act programs, other special federal, state and local and private 
funds targeted to homeless individuals and families with children, especially 
the chronically homeless, the HUD formula programs, and any publicly-owned 
land or property.  Please describe, briefly, the jurisdiction’s plan for the 
investment and use of funds directed toward homelessness. 
 

The City of Pearland is not an ESG Participating Jurisdiction and no agency in Pearland is 
receiving State of Texas ESG funds.  The City is within the service area of the Gulf Coast 
Homeless Coalition but no homeless agencies serving Pearland are funded through 
Supportive Housing, Shelter Plus Care or SRO Moderate Rehabilitation.  The City of Pearland 
has no shelter or transitional living beds.   
 
In May 2011, the Gulf Coast Homeless Coalition voted to discontinue its Continuum of Care 
process so that its counties – Galveston, Brazoria, Liberty and Chambers would come under 
the “Balance of State” program for the Continuum of Care.  This will allow non-funded 
agencies to apply for new Continuum of Care dollars through the Texas Homeless Network.  
The City of Pearland assisted Pearland nonprofits, particularly Forgotten Angels and Petra, 
with any local data or statistics required to submit their application to Texas Homeless 
Network for inclusion in the PY 2011 Continuum of Care application. 
 
There are 64 shelter beds in Brazoria County, with only 16 in the northern half of the county 
near Pearland, all for female victims of domestic violence and their children.  The Salvation 
Army in Freeport, approximately 50 miles from Pearland, is the only shelter within Brazoria 
County for men.  There are only 5 transitional living beds in Brazoria County.  Funding for 
these projects come from a variety of non-HUD sources.  It can be expected that 
approximately 4 of these northern Brazoria County beds will serve Pearland residents, 
providing a total of $8,000 a month or $96,000 a year in homeless services to the residents 
of Pearland. 
 
Gulf Coast Center, the area’s MHMR agency does receive McKinney-Vento funds for 
permanent housing for the chronically mentally ill homeless but neither project is located in 
or near Pearland.  The Gulf Coast Center has 15 permanent supportive housing beds 
through the Continuum of Care funding process and Pearland residents are eligible for the 
program.  However, it is anticipated that no Pearland resident will enroll in the program.  
While the Gulf Coast Center serves Galveston and Brazoria Counties, it focuses its housing 
and resources on the City of Galveston. 
 
Forgotten Angels provides nine single family group homes for adults with mental disabilities 
to prevent them from becoming homeless.  Each home houses three to six individuals and is 
supported through a variety of private funding sources.  The agency is investigating the 
potential of accessing other state and federal funds to construct a multi-family supportive 
housing project for this clientele as well as to construct a transitional living center for 



City of Pearland, Texas PY 2014 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 23 

adjudicated youth and those aging out of the foster care system.  The development of these 
two projects will involve several years and several sources of funding. 

The Pearland Neighborhood Center provides approximately $200 per household to 250 
Pearland households each year for emergency assistance in an attempt to help prevent 
homelessness.  This translates into $50,000 per year in homeless prevention. For PY 2014, 
40% of this effort will be funded with CDBG dollars that are administered through the 
grantee. 

2. Homelessness—In a narrative, describe how the action plan will address the
specific objectives of the Strategic Plan and, ultimately, the priority needs
identified.  Please also identify potential obstacles to completing these action
steps.

The City of Pearland receives no McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act funds and no 
CDBG funds are allocated during this year for services directly to the homeless.  However, 
the City is providing $20,000 in CDBG funds to Pearland Neighborhood Center for 
emergency rental, utility and prescription assistance that is a form of homeless prevention. 
Pearland Neighborhood Center, through other sources, will be providing an estimated 
$30,000 in additional emergency assistance for homeless prevention to residents of 
Pearland. 

3. Chronic homelessness—The jurisdiction must describe the specific planned
action steps it has taken over the years aimed at eliminating chronic
homelessness by 2013.  Again, please identify barriers to achieving this.

According to the Gulf Coast Homeless Coalition, there have been no identified chronically 
homeless in the City of Pearland.  However, the City is committed to assisting housing and 
service providers in addressing the issue should individuals be identified.  One of the causes 
of chronic homelessness is disability and the City of Pearland is providing CDBG funding to 
Forgotten Angels, Inc., an agency that provides group homes for mentally and physically 
disabled adults.  By providing permanent supportive housing in a group home environment, 
Forgotten Angels helps in preventing chronic homelessness.  Their nine homes provide 
supportive housing for approximately 36 disabled adults.  The agency has a day center for 
its residents and non-resident disabled.  The City has used CDBG funds to provide 
transportation to supportive services, medical appointments and other necessary 
appointments to those living in three of the group homes.  In PY 2013, the City funded the 
completion of a 1,000 square foot expansion of the Day Habitation Center which provides 
supportive services to all of Forgotten Angels’ residents.  In the past, the City has funded 
improvements to a bathroom, including an adult changing table; and the installation water 
and sewer lines to connect to existing City lines.  

The City receives no ESG funds and no Pearland agency receives ESG, SHP, S+C or SRO 
Mod Rehab funding from the State of Texas or through the Continuum of Care.  Without 
being an ESG Participating Jurisdiction and without a local homeless coalition responsive to 
the City’s needs, the City and its agencies have no real access to any McKinney-Vento 
funding and without being a HOME Participating Jurisdiction or a local Housing Authority, the 
City has no access to providing subsidies or other options to make housing affordable to the 
homeless.  



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 24  

 
 
4. Homelessness Prevention—The jurisdiction must describe its planned action 

steps over the next year to address the individual and families with children at 
imminent risk of becoming homeless. 
 

During PY 2014, the City will fund Pearland Neighborhood Center to provide emergency 
assistance to those in danger of homelessness.  This short-term assistance will pay past-due 
rent for those facing eviction, utilities for those facing utility cut-offs, medications for those 
who must choose between paying for housing or prescription drugs.  This will help to 
prevent homelessness, at least on a short-term basis.   
 
Dilapidated housing conditions are growing, as growth in the amount of aging infrastructure 
and older homes occurs. The City’s efforts to remediate the effects of neglect that stem 
from limited or non-existent financial capacity of older or low-moderate income homeowners 
will create more sustainable housing conditions, preventing the potential for homelessness 
that dilapidating housing conditions often result in. The goal of the City’s program will be to 
remove unlivable, unsafe, and unhealthy housing conditions for those in Pearland that 
cannot afford to do so themselves. 
 
 
5. Discharge Coordination Policy—Explain planned activities to implement a 

cohesive, community-wide Discharge Coordination Policy, and how, in the 
coming year, the community will move toward such a policy. 

 
The City of Pearland does not receive ESG, SHP, S+C or Section 8 SRO funds and does not 
have a discharge coordination policy.  However, the City falls within the jurisdiction of the 
Gulf Coast Homeless Coalition which does have a discharge coordination policy as outlined 
in the Exhibit 1 of their annual CofC application and in the City’s 5-Year Consolidated Plan.  
However, none of the CofC funds are expended in Pearland.    
 
With the Continuum of Care process moving to Balance of State from the Gulf Coast 
Homeless Coalition, the City of Pearland will work with Texas Homeless Network to ensure 
that Pearland is included in the community-wide Discharge Coordination Policy.  A Pearland 
agency, Petra, is working with the Darrington Unit of the Texas Department of Criminal 
Justice, located in Brazoria County.  One aspect of the agency’s efforts will be the provision 
of housing and supportive services for offenders exiting the Darrington Unit and remaining 
in the Pearland/Brazoria area. 
 
 
 
 
Emergency Shelter Grants (ESG) 
 
(States only) Describe the process for awarding grants to State recipients, and a 
description of how the allocation will be made available to units of local 
government. 
 
Not Applicable 
 
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 25  

 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
Community Development 
 
*Please also refer to the Community Development Table in the Needs.xls workbook. 
 
1. Identify the jurisdiction's priority non-housing community development needs 

eligible for assistance by CDBG eligibility category specified in the Community 
Development Needs Table (formerly Table 2B), public facilities, public 
improvements, public services and economic development. 
 

Through public participation, meeting with service providers and reviewing Census and 
other data, the City has determined which eligible services have a high, medium or low 
priority.  The table below, extracted from the CPMP Needs table from the PY 2012-2016 
Consolidated Plan, lists the activities and their priorities.  Not all of the services, including 
those with a high priority, will be funded using CDBG dollars, but the City is committed to 
funding as many eligible projects that apply through the competitive grant process as 
possible.  As more public service agencies build capacity, more services may be funded 
through CDBG. 
 
The table below outlines the public service programs eligible under CDBG, the ones the City 
intends to fund during the next five years and the ones that the City will fund in PY 2014.   
 

Table 6 –Non-Housing Public Service Priorities 
03F Parks, Recreational Facilities 570.201(c) H 
05A Senior Services 570.201(e) H 
05B Handicapped Services 570.201(e) H 
05D Youth Services 570.201(e) H 
05E Transportation Services 570.201(e)  H 
05G Battered and Abused Spouses 570.201(e) H 
05H Employment Training 570.201(e) H 
05N Abused and Neglected Children 570.201(e) H 
05Q Subsistence Payments 570.204 H 
05 Public Services (General) 570.201(e) M 
05F Substance Abuse Services 570.201(e) M 
05I Crime Awareness 570.201(e) M 
05J Fair Housing Activities (if CDBG, then subject to 570.201(e) M 
05L Child Care Services 570.201(e) M 
05M Health Services 570.201(e) M 
05O Mental Health Services 570.201(e) M 
05R Homeownership Assistance (not direct) 570.204 M 
05S Rental Housing Subsidies (if HOME, not part of 5% 570.204 M 
05T Security Deposits (if HOME, not part of 5% Admin c M 
05C Legal Services 570.201(E) L 
05K Tenant/Landlord Counseling 570.201(e) L 
05P Screening for Lead-Based Paint/Lead Hazards Poison 570.201(e) L 
Note:  those items in dark green are being funded this year (as per table below). 
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 26  

 
 

Table 7 – Public Service Funding for PY 2014 

Projects 
Units of 
Measurement 

Amount 
Allocated 

Public Services (15% max = $41,565)   
05Q Pearland Neighborhood Center’s Emergency 

Assistance  - 2335 N. Texas Avenue, 
Pearland TX 77581 

01-People:        60         $20,000 

Subtotal 01-People:    60          $20,000 
   

 
The table below outlines the priorities for capital projects and administrative tasks under the 
Non-Housing Community Development determination.  As with the previous table, the dark 
green rows are the areas to be funded with PY 2014 CDBG funds. 
 

Table 8 –High and Medium Priority Capital & Administrative Projects  
03A Senior Centers 570.201(c) H 
03F Parks, Recreational Facilities 570.201(c) H 
03I Flood Drain Improvements 570.201(c) H 
03K Street Improvements 570.201(c) H 
03L Sidewalks 570.201(c) H 
19C CDBG Non-profit Organization Capacity Building H 
21A General CDBG Administration H 
21D Fair Housing Activities H 
03 Public Facilities and Improvements (General) 570.201(c) M 
03B Handicapped Centers 570.201(c) M 
03D Youth Centers 570.201(c) M 
03E Neighborhood Facilities 570.201(c) M 
03J Water/Sewer Improvements 570.201(c) M 
03M Child Care Centers 570.201(c) M 
03O Fire Stations/Equipment 570.201(c) M 
04 Clearance and Demolition 570.201(d) M 
06 Interim Assistance 570.201(f) M 
10 Removal of Architectural Barriers 570.201(k) M 
12 Construction of Housing 570.201(m) M 
13 Direct Homeownership Assistance 570.201(n) M 
14A Rehab; Single-Unit Residential 570.202 M 
14I Lead-Based/Lead Hazard Test/Abate 570.202 M 
15 Code Enforcement 570.202(c) M 
17B CI Infrastructure Development 570.203(a) M 
19D CDBG Assistance to Institutes of Higher Education M 

Note:  those items in dark green are being funded this year as per the map and table below. 
 
  



City of Pearland, Texas PY 2014 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 27 

Figure 4 – Location of PY 2014 Infrastructure & Facility Projects 

Table 7 – Area Benefit Activity By Census Tract Block Group 

Project Census 
Tract 

Block 
Group 

Total 
Population 

Low-Mod 
Income 

Population 

% Low- 
Mod 

Income 

Code Enforcement 

660200 1 550 245 44.55% 
660300 1 745 505 67.79% 
660500 2 1,045 565 54.07% 
660500 4 1,505 655 43.52% 
660500 5 1,965 810 41.22% 
660500 6 2,665 1,250 46.90% 
660702 3 1,085 590 54.38% 
660900 1 1,585 1,105 69.72% 
660900 3 1,500 950 63.33% 
660900 4 1,315 1,080 82.13% 
661900 1 1,930 790 40.93% 
670800 2 1,950 1,315 67.44% 

Totals 17,840 9.860 56.33% 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 28  

 
2. Identify specific long-term and short-term community development objectives 

(including economic development activities that create jobs), developed in 
accordance with the statutory goals described in section 24 CFR 91.1 and the 
primary objective of the CDBG program to provide decent housing and a 
suitable living environment and expand economic opportunities, principally for 
low- and moderate-income persons. 
*Note:  Each specific objective developed to address a priority need, must be identified by number 
and contain proposed accomplishments, the time period (i.e., one, two, three, or more years), and 
annual program year numeric goals the jurisdiction hopes to achieve in quantitative terms, or in 
other measurable terms as identified and defined by the jurisdiction. 

 
The long-term and short-term objectives for the City of Pearland include objectives to be 
funded by CDBG and those to be carried out through other funding mechanisms, such as 
the City’s General Fund and various regional nonprofits and foundations.  The City’s primary 
objectives are: 

• Increase education to qualify for jobs 
• Enhance infrastructure (drainage, sidewalks, streets, park space) to enhance 

suitable living environment 
• Provide supportive services to disabled, homeless, elderly and low-income 

residents 
• Provide an environment to support the availability of affordable and fair housing. 
 

During PY 2014, the City will be funding projects that improve infrastructure, and provide 
supportive services (job training, emergency assistance).   
 

Table 8 – Projects by National Objectives and Outcome Categories 
National 
Objectives 

National Outcome Categories PY 14 
Numbers to 
be Served  

Outcome 1: 
Availability/ 
Accessibility 

Outcome 2: 
Affordability 

Outcome 3:  
Sustainability 

 

Primary 
Objective:  
Suitable Living 
Environment 

 Funding of Code 
Enforcement 
activities and 
single family 
residential housing 
rehabilitation 
programs 

Funding of Code 
Enforcement 
activities and single 
family residential 
housing 
rehabilitation 
programs 

99 people 

Funding of Public 
Service to improve 
availability & 
accessibility to 
needed assistance 
through  
emergency 
subsistence 
assistance  

Funding of Public 
Services to 
improve 
affordability of 
utilities, rent and 
prescriptions  

 60 people 

 
The Table below, extracted from the CPMP Needs Table, outlines the specific objectives by 
matrix code. 
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 29  

Table 9 – 5-Year and Current Year Objectives for Anticipated Community 
Development Activities 

Activity Accomplishment Units Goals 
  5-Year Current 

Year 
05A Senior Services 01-People 100  
05B Handicapped Services 01-People 45  
05D Youth Services 01-People 450  
05E  Transportation 01-People 50  
05G Battered & Abused Spouses 01-People 45  
05H Employment Training/ESL 
Education/Literacy Education 

01-People 150  

05N Abused & Neglected Children 01-People 45  
05Q Subsistence Payments 01-People 200 60 
03A Senior Centers 01-People 

 
11-Public Facilities 

500 
 
1 facility 

 

03B Handicapped Centers 01-People 
 
11-Public Facilities 

50  
 
1facility 

 

03E Neighborhood Facilities 01-People 
 
11-Public Facilities 

150  
 
1facility 

 

03F Parks, Recreational Facilities 01-People 
 
11-Public Facilities 

500  
 
1 facility 

 

03I Flood/Drainage Improvements  01-People 
 
11-Public Facilities 
(Linear Feet) 

3,500 
 
1,450’  

 

03K Street Improvements 01-People 
 
11-Public Facilities 
(Linear Feet) 

1,550 
 
1,000’  

 

03L Sidewalks 01-People 
 
11-Public Facilities 
(Linear Feet) 

3,500 
 
1,450’ 

 
  

14A Rehab: Single Unit Residential 01-People 245 49 
15 Code Enforcement 01-People 250 50 

Total 159 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 30  

 
Antipoverty Strategy 
 
1. Describe the actions that will take place during the next year to reduce the 

number of poverty level families. 
 
The City of Pearland’s anti-poverty strategy is not only aimed at lifting existing residents out 
of poverty but also preventing others from falling into poverty.  Poverty is a two-edged 
sword – lack of income and high costs of living.  Therefore, the 5-year strategy is aimed at 
helping residents increase their incomes and reduce their costs of living.  During PY 2014, 
the strategies will be: 
 

Income Strategies:  Education is the key to increasing incomes.  The City will fund 
Adult Reading Center to continue and expand its program in ESL, literacy and job 
training education.  This program will improve the employability of those with limited 
reading capabilities, limited English proficiency and/or limited job skills to secure 
employment at a livable wage.   
 
Living Costs:  The City of Pearland will fund Pearland Neighborhood Center to 
provide emergency assistance and homeless prevention activities in Pearland 
through their emergency rental, utility and prescription assistance program. 
 
Other:  The City of Pearland is committed to referring citizens to Brazoria County 
Housing Authority for its Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.  By educating 
Pearland residents and apartment complexes about the program, more Pearland 
citizens will be able to take advantage of Section 8 without having to relocate to 
other areas of the county.   
 
 
 

 

NON-HOMELESS SPECIAL NEEDS HOUSING 
 
Non-homeless Special Needs (91.220 (c) and (e)) 
 
*Please also refer to the Non-homeless Special Needs Table in the Needs.xls workbook. 
 
1. Describe the priorities and specific objectives the jurisdiction hopes to achieve 

for the period covered by the Action Plan. 
 
The City is not in a financial position, given the limited CDBG funds, to support housing 
options for any of the special needs populations.  However, it places a high priority on both 
housing and supportive services to these populations.   
 
Petra has recently applied for status as a Community Housing Development Corporation 
(CHDO) with the State of Texas and Brazoria County and is investigating the feasibility of 
applying for Section 202 funds for the construction of housing for the elderly and Section 
811 funds for the construction of housing for their mentally disabled clients. A partner 
organization to Forgotten Angels, Petra is also in the process of identifying properties for the 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 31  

construction of additional group homes for the mentally disabled served by Forgotten 
Angels.   
 
 
2. Describe how Federal, State, and local public and private sector resources that 

are reasonably expected to be available will be used to address identified 
needs for the period covered by this Action Plan. 

 
The City will continue to conduct facility reviews of its CDBG subrecipients for compliance 
with ADA and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act. Agencies are committed to improving 
their facilities in ways that increase accessibility to their programs and services. 
 
 
Housing Opportunities for People with AIDS 
 
*Please also refer to the HOPWA Table in the Needs.xls workbook. 
 
1. Provide a Brief description of the organization, the area of service, the name of 

the program contacts, and a broad overview of the range/ type of housing 
activities to be done during the next year. 
 

2. Report on the actions taken during the year that addressed the special needs of 
persons who are not homeless but require supportive housing, and assistance 
for persons who are homeless. 
 

3. Evaluate the progress in meeting its specific objective of providing affordable 
housing, including a comparison of actual outputs and outcomes to proposed 
goals and progress made on the other planned actions indicated in the strategic 
and action plans.  The evaluation can address any related program adjustments 
or future plans. 
 

4. Report on annual HOPWA output goals for the number of households assisted 
during the year in: (1) short-term rent, mortgage and utility payments to avoid 
homelessness; (2) rental assistance programs; and (3) in housing facilities, 
such as community residences and SRO dwellings, where funds are used to 
develop and/or operate these facilities.  Include any assessment of client 
outcomes for achieving housing stability, reduced risks of homelessness and 
improved access to care. 
 

5. Report on the use of committed leveraging from other public and private 
resources that helped to address needs identified in the plan. 
 

6. Provide an analysis of the extent to which HOPWA funds were distributed 
among different categories of housing needs consistent with the geographic 
distribution plans identified in its approved Consolidated Plan. 
 

7. Describe any barriers (including non-regulatory) encountered, actions in 
response to barriers, and recommendations for program improvement. 
 

8. Please describe the expected trends facing the community in meeting the 
needs of persons living with HIV/AIDS and provide additional information 
regarding the administration of services to people with HIV/AIDS. 



City of Pearland, Texas PY 2014 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 32 

9. Please note any evaluations, studies or other assessments that will be
conducted on the local HOPWA program during the next year.

Not Applicable – City of Pearland receives no HOPWA funding 

Specific HOPWA Objectives 

Describe how Federal, State, and local public and private sector resources that are 
reasonably expected to be available will be used to address identified needs for 
the period covered by the Action Plan. 

Not Applicable – City of Pearland receives no HOPWA funding 



City of Pearland, Texas  PY 2014 
 

 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 33  

Other Narrative 
 
Include any Action Plan information that was not covered by a narrative in any 
other section. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Pearland, Texas PY 2014 

Eighth Program Year Action Plan City of Pearland 34 

Attachments 
Attachments are not included in the draft version of the Annual Action Plan, but 
will include the following information/documentation after receiving the City’s 
governing body approval, and prior to submission to HUD. 

The following will be included at that time: 

PY 2014 Projects from CPMP Excel file 
Certifications  
Copies of Public Notices  
Power Point Presentations  
Public Services Subrecipient Application packet 



New 
Business 
Item No. 9 

9. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-81– A
resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas,authorizing a
contract for professional services associated with the McHard Road
Extension Project, with Freese Nichols, Inc., in the amount of
$4,415,202.20.  Mr. Trent Epperson, Assistant City Manager.



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF:  July 28, 2014 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 8, 2014 

PREPARED BY: Jennifer Lee 

REVIEWED BY: Jon R. Branson 

ITEM NO.: Resolution No. R2014-81 

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Projects 

PRESENTOR:  Trent Epperson REVIEW 

DATE:   July 21, 2014 

SUBJECT: McHard Road Extension- Engineering Services 

EXHIBITS: R2014-81;  Exhibit A – Contract for Engineering Services (TxDOT 

Format); B – TxDOT NTP Letter; C – 7/17/14 Thursday Packet Memo 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash  
Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: $4,415,202.20 AMOUNT BUDGETED:  $2,650,195 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: $2,562,700 PROJECT NO.:TR1205 
ACCOUNT NO.:   
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:  NA - Per the AFA with TxDOT 80% of 
the Design Contract associated with the roadway ($4,415,202.20 X 
80%=$3,714,601.71) will be reimbursed monthly based on actual expenditures   
ACCOUNT NO.: NA 
PROJECT NO.: NA 
To be completed by Department: 
    X    Finance   X Legal  Ordinance X  Resolution 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends that Council approve the proposal and award a professional services 
contract to Freese Nichols, Inc. for the McHard Road Extension project in the amount of 
$4,415,202.20 and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement.  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

The McHard Road project includes the construction of approximately 3.5 miles of four lane 
divided concrete roadway with curb and gutter, landscaped medians, sidewalk & bike trail and 
pedestrian ramps, drainage, and five signalized intersections (Max Rd., Roy Rd., O’Day Rd., 
Garden Rd., and Hatfield Rd.).  The roadway will extend from east of Cullen Blvd. to Mykawa 
Rd.  

In July 2012, the McHard Road extension between Cullen Blvd. and Mykawa was one of nine 
projects submitted to the Houston Galveston Area Council (HGAC) for funding in the 2013-
2016 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  The project met eligibility requirements, and 
although funding was limited, it was selected for federal funding.  This prompted the City to 
include the project in the 2014-2018 CIP Budget funding the design in FY 2014, Land 
Acquisition in FY2016 and Construction in FY2017 and 2018. In August 2013, the city entered 
into an Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) which reimburses the City for all approved costs 
up to 80% of design and construction.  The City is required to utilize a TxDOT Contract for 
Engineering Services for this work.   

SCOPE OF CONTRACT/AGREEMENT 

The City followed the TxDOT requirements for Consultant Selection for this project.  The 
Request for Qualifications was advertised in the Houston Chronicle and Pearland Reporter 
News in May of 2013. Twelve firms submitted qualifications.  Four firms were shortlisted and 
interviewed in June 2013.  City staff selected Freese Nichols, Inc. as the most qualified firm to 
provide design engineering services and subsequently met with TxDOT to scope the project as 
required.   

The design engineering scope of services includes the preparation of plans, details and 
compute quantities to include roadway design, grading, paving, sidewalks & bike trails and 
pedestrian ramps, drainage, detention pond design, traffic signals, signing, pavement 
markings, illuminations, traffic control plans, storm water pollution prevention plans, 
landscape/irrigation plans, environmental permitting and clearances, specifications and cost 
estimate. The construction cost estimate is $31,062,500.   

The project fees are divided into four components; Basic Services, Additional Services, Special 
Services, and Construction Phase Services.  The Basic Services total $2,269,265.63 and 
include engineering design phase services, traffic signal design, pond and storm sewer design, 
and the drainage report.   Additional Services total $644,832.88, which covers the storm water 
pollution prevention plans, street lighting layout, landscape design, survey, the geotechnical 
report and associated expenses.  Special Services are services that are not traditionally 
included in design contracts.  The Special Services total is $1,411,221.74. These services 
include environmental and cultural resources analysis, right of way mapping and acquisitions, 
and construction materials testing.  They have been included in this contract so that they are 
reimbursable at 80% from TxDOT.  If not included in this contract, the City would have to 
conduct another Request for Qualification and contract review process with TxDOT for each 
separate contract.  This process has taken eight months for this contract and navigating that 
process for separate contracts will be detrimental to the project schedule.  The Construction 
Phase Services total $89,881.95 and include construction administration services. 
Construction administration services are necessary because per the AFA, the City will perform 



advertising, letting and manage the construction of the project, per TxDOT’s Local Let 
program.   

The sum total of all fees is $4,415,202.20.  These fees reflect the higher level of effort 
necessary for the development of a Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) package that 
meet TxDOT requirements including the navigation of the TxDOT review process and 
environmental permitting.  TxDOT will reimburse 80% of the City’s expenditures on a monthly 
basis.   

Attached is a proposal for this work from Freese Nichols, Inc. in the total amount of 
$4,415,202.20.  Also attached is a letter from TxDOT concurring with the scope and fee of the 
contract. The contract schedule includes twenty-four months to complete the 100% PS&E 
submittal to TxDOT.  Freese Nichols, Inc. has a long standing relationship with the City and 
has performed well on previous projects. The design of the Dixie Farm Road Widening, 
Pearland Parkway, and Business Center Drive road projects, the design of the Bella Vita 
Waterline, the McHard Road 16” Waterline, and the Hatfield Trunk Basin are a few of the most 
recent projects designed by Freese Nichols, Inc. 

BID AND AWARD 

N/A 

SCHEDULE 

The design phase is estimated to be completed in the third quarter of 2016. The construction is 
estimated to begin in the third quarter of 2017 and is anticipated to be 24 months in duration. 

POLICY/GOAL CONSIDERATION 

Consistent with multiple Council goals, staff has pursued and received state and federal 
funding for multiple transportation improvement projects including McHard Road. 

The extension of the roadway is part of the City’s Thoroughfare Plan, and will alleviate traffic 
on FM 518 by providing an alternate east/west route between SH 288 and SH. 

CURRENT AND FUTURE CIP FUNDING /FINANCIAL IMPACTS/DEBT SERVICE 

The McHard Road project will be 80 percent funded from STP-MM (Surface Transportation 
Program – Metropolitan Mobility funds through an Advanced Funding Agreement with TxDOT 
and 20 percent funded with City General Obligation bonds.  The City’s shares of the costs 
associated with this contract are estimated to be $8,231,132.80 after reimbursement.   



CURRENT AND FUTURE CIP FUNDING /FINANCIAL IMPACTS/DEBT SERVICE 
Although the current contract exceeds the FY2014 Funds that are available, the portion of the 
contract for land acquisition services, land appraisals, and construction material testing will not 
be spent until fiscal years 2016 and 2017.  In addition, most of the design work will occur in 
FY2015 when funds are adequate to cover the full design costs.  

Year To Date 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
Budget 2,650,195$       3,855,469$       20,824,047$     13,825,364$     41,155,075$     

Prior Expenditures
     PER - 
     Land/ROW - 
     Design/Survey 87,495              87,495              
     Construction - 
     FF&E - 
Current Request
     Design/Survey 4,415,202 4,415,202 
Future Expenditures
     PER - 
     Land/ROW 774,000            1,000,000         2,081,000         3,855,000         
     Design/Survey - 
     Construction 18,743,964       13,825,364       32,569,328       
     FF&E - 

Total Expenditures 4,502,697$       774,000$          1,000,000$       20,824,964$     13,825,364$     40,927,025$     

Remaining Balance (1,852,502)$      1,228,967$       228,967$          228,050$          228,050$          228,050$          

Debt Sold
Debt to Be Sold 530,039            771,094            4,364,047         2,909,364         
Annual Debt Service 19,611              87,176              87,176              380,000            

O&M IMPACT INFORMATION 

Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Operation and Maintenance Costs 47,650$         



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-81 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
authorizing a contract for professional services associated with the 
McHard Road Extension Project, with Freese Nichols, Inc., in the 
amount of $4,415,202.20. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That certain contract for professional services, a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes, is hereby 

authorized and approved. 

Section 2. That the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute 

and the City Secretary to attest a contract for professional services associated with the 

McHard Road Extension Project. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the _____ day of _________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

_________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

























































































































































































































































1 | P a g e

Memo 
To:  Clay Pearson, City Manager 

From:  Trent Epperson, Director of Engineering & Capital Projects 

CC:  Jon Branson, Assistant City Manager 
Skipper Jones, Assistant Director - Projects 

Date: July 15, 2014 

Re: McHard Road Update & Design Contract Award 

The purpose of this memo is to provide background information on the McHard Road project and 
preview the forthcoming engineering design contract that is scheduled for the July 28, 2013 City Council 
meeting.  

History 

McHard Road first appeared in the City’s Planning documents when it was listed in the City’s 1988 
Comprehensive Plan Update under the Major Street Plan.  In 1993, the first Major Thoroughfare Plan 
was established showing McHard as a major east-west corridor north of FM518 connecting FM521 to 
Pearland Parkway.  An alignment planning study was conducted in 1999 during which McHard’s route 
was shifted slightly south to avoid Brookside Village.  

Completed Segments 

In the late 1990s the segment between SH35 and Mykawa Road was constructed.  The segment 
between SH35 and Pearland Parkway was completed in 2006.  The segment between Country Place 
Boulevard and Cullen Parkway was completed in 2010.  Most recently, a widening of the segment 
between FM521 and SH288 was completed in 2011. 

Alignment Study – Cullen Parkway to Mykawa Road 

In 2010, an update of the alignment was developed in preparation for the project’s application for 
funding from Houston Galveston Area Council’s (H-GAC) 2013-2016 Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP).  See Exhibit 1 Project Map. 

Preliminary Engineering 

In January 2012, the City awarded an engineering contract to Freese-Nichols, Inc. to conduct a 
Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) on McHard Road and the McHard Road 16” Water Line.  The PER 
will be the basis for the final design contract.  The PER was completed August 2013. 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

Transportation Improvement Program  

In July, 2012, the McHard Road Project was one of nine projects submitted for federal/state funding to 
H-GAC’s TIP “Call for Projects”.   Ultimately, it was one of four Pearland projects to receive funding 
approval in May 2013. The funding is 80% federal funds with a 20% local match.   

Advanced Funding Agreement 

To utilize federal or state funds the City must enter into an Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) with the 
Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT).  In August, 2013 City Council approved the AFA with 
TxDOT establishing the project budget and available federal funds.  Cost overruns will be 100% covered 
by the City.  See Exhibit 2 Funding Attachment from the AFA.   

Design Services - Request for Qualifications  

In May2013, the City advertised a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for final design services for the 
McHard roadway project.  The RFQ process is required for projects funded under state or federal 
programs as a means of making a “qualification based consultant selection” for professional engineering 
design services.  Staff developed a standard RFQ process which has been approved by TxDOT for use on 
federal or State funded projects.  Freese-Nichols, Inc. was selected to provide the design services. 

Engineering Contract Negotiation 

The Scope of Work included in the contract includes standard Basic Services such as: final design, bid 
phase services, and construction phase services.  In addition, it includes the following traditional 
Additional Services:   drainage design, signal design, storm water plan, geotechnical report, bid phase 
services, construction phase services, project management, surveying and parcel mapping, drainage 
study, signal warrant studies, signal design, landscaping design, and illumination design.  Stemming from 
the requirement to use a very time consuming consultant selection process every consultant service 
that will be reimbursed from the state, the scope also includes the following non-traditional additional 
services:  environmental documentation, Right of Way Appraisal, Acquisition and Relocation services, 
Appraisal Review and Verification, and Construction Materials Testing services.    

The City initially negotiated the scope and fee for the above mentions services and then submitted the 
contract to TxDOT for review in November 2013.  TxDOT completed their review and comments on the 
contract in June 2014.  The initial submittal from the consultant was approximately $5.7M.  After scope 
refinement and negotiations the contract that will be submitted for Council consideration is 
approximately $4.4M.  

The Basic Services portion of the fee is approximately $2.3M and represents 7.4% of the estimated 
construction cost of $31M, which is within historical norms for this type and size of project.  With all 
additional services included the total contract is 14.2% of the construction estimate.  It is Staff’s opinion, 
shared by TxDOT District Contract Consultant Services, that this is a fair and reasonable price for the 
scope of work contained in the contract. 

 



 

3 | P a g e  

 

Next Steps 

The design contract will be included on the July 28, 2014 City Council agenda for consideration and 
approval.  Once approved, the design and environmental work will start within two weeks.  Once the 
environmental document has been approved, land acquisition will begin, which will be followed by 
construction.  The City will perform advertising, letting and manage the construction of the project, per 
TxDOT’s Local Let program.  Therefore, a future contract for Construction Management will be 
developed and submitted for Council approval prior to the start of construction. 

Schedule 

The TIP schedule to bid the project is currently August 2016.  However, since the TIP selection process 
was delayed four months and the TxDOT approval of the design contract took seven months, the bidding 
will be rescheduled to approximately April 2017.  The City will request that H-GAC’s Transportation 
Policy Council move the project to Fiscal Year 2017 of the TIP to correspond with the delays.  Below is 
the current milestone schedule that will be included in the design contract: 

August 2014 - December 2016  Design 

August 2014 - December 2016  Environmental approval 

May 2016 – March 2017  Land Acquisition 

April 2017    Project Bidding 

July 2017 – July 2019   Construction 

 

 



US 90A

FM 2234

S. G
ess

ner

Beltway 8
FM

 52
1 FM 518

Broadway St
SH

 28
8

McHard Rd

FM
 86

5

SH
 35

Pearland Pkwy

MY
KA

WA
 R

D

MCHARD RD PROJECT
0 1 2

Miles¯
HOUSTON

MISSOURI CITY

STAFFORD

PEARLAND

PEARLAND ETJ

PROJECT AREA

tepperson
Text Box
Exhibit 1



tepperson
Text Box
Exhibit 2








	Agenda
	Public Hearing - Amendments to the Strategic Partnership Agreements 
	Agenda Request
	Memo to City Council
	Map
	Proposed Amendments

	Consent Agenda - A  Minutes
	July 14,, 2014, Special Meeting 

	Consent Agenda B  Conditional Use Permit No. CUP2014-03
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. CUP2014-03 
	Exhibit "A" Legal Description
	Exhibit "B"  Map
	Exhibit "C" 'Site Plan
	Exhiibit "D" Legal Ad
	Exhibit "E" Recommendation Letter
	Memo
	Staff Report
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Map
	Future Land Use Map
	Abutter Map
	Notification List
	Applicant Packet
	Recommendation Letter 

	Consent Agenda - C  Zone Change No. 2014-08Z
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. 2000M-116
	Exhibit "A" 
	Exhibit "B"
	Exhibit "C"
	Exhibit "D" 
	Memo
	Staff Report
	Future Land Use Map
	Notification Map
	Notification List
	Returned Notices
	Aerial Map
	Applicant Packet
	Recommendation Letter 

	Consent Agenda - D Amending the Procedure for Abandoning, Altering
	Agenda Request
	City Council Memo
	Ordinance No. 788-1

	Cosent Agenda - E Strategic Partnership Agreements with Brazoria MUD Nos. 21 & 22
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-76 
	Memo to Council
	Map
	MUD 21 Amendment
	MUD 22 Amendment

	Consent Agenda - F Professional Services Contract for Surveying Services 
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-76
	Contract for Professional Services
	Proposal for Land Surveying C.L Davis & Company 

	New Business No. 1 Contract for Professional Services assoicated with the Sports Complex at Shadow Creek Ranch
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. 2014-83
	Exhibit "A" Engineers Estimate
	Exhibit "B"Proposed Contract 
	Exhibit "C" Park Layout

	New Business No. 2 Shadow Creek Ranch MUD Funding for Utilities
	Agenda Request
	Exhibit "A" Letter
	Exhibit "B" Map

	New Business No. 3 Refunding Bonds
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. 1501
	PowerPoint 

	New Business No. 4 Notice of Intent to Issue Certificates of Obligation 2014
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-80
	Notice of  Intent to Issue Certificate of Obligation
	Memo to City Council
	City Hall Renovations - Space Plan
	PowerPoint

	New Business No. 5 Determining the Public Necessity for a Water line/Hyrant
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-84
	Exhibit "A" Aerial of Property 
	Exhibit "B" Distance from Hydrant 
	Exhibit "C" Map with Previously Existing and Current Water Line 

	New Business No. 6 Counditional Use Permit No. 2014-04
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. CUP 2014-04
	Exhibit "A" Legal Description
	Exhibit "B" Location Map
	Exhibit "C" Site Plan
	Exhibit "D" Legal Ad
	Exhibit "E" Recommendation Letter 
	Memo to City Council and P&Z
	Staff Report 
	Proposed Detention Area
	Architectural Renderings
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Map
	Future Land Use Map
	Notification Map
	Notification List
	Applicant Packet

	New Business No. 7 Employee Health Insurance Benefits
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-85
	Material Presented on June 23, 2014
	2014-2015 Recommendations for Employee Health and Welfare Benefits Presentation

	New Business No. 8 Block Grant Program 2014 Fiscal year 2015 Action Plan
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-82
	Exhibit "A" Action Plan

	New Business No. 9 Contract for Professional Services Associated with McHard Road Extention Project
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-81
	Exhibit "A" Contract for Engineering Services




